Yo

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14t Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov

NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE REGULAR MEETING THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Pursuant to A.R.S. §838-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Board of
Directors of the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
(“YCIPTA") and to the general public that the Board of Directors will hold a meeting on:

MONDAY, September 25, 2017 — 1:30 PM
Yuma County Department of Development Services — Aldrich Hall
2351 West 26" Street -- Yuma, AZ, 85364

Unless otherwise noted, meetings held at the above location are open to the public.

The Board of Directors may vote to go into executive session during the noticed meeting
concerning any of the agenda items mentioned below. If authorized by the requisite vote of
the Directors, the executive session will be held immediately after the vote and will not be
open to the public. The executive session, if held, will be at the same meeting location set
forth above. The discussion may relate to confidential matters permitted pursuant to
A.R.S. 88 38-431.03(A)(1)-(7). The Chairman or other presiding officer shall instruct the
persons present at the executive session regarding the confidentiality requirements of the
Open Meeting Laws.

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, reasonable accommodation
requests may be made by contacting the Transit Director at 928-539-7076, ext 101
(TTY/TDD - Arizona Relay Service 711). Requests should be made as early as
possible to allow time to arrange the accommodation.

The agenda for the meeting is as follows:
CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

CALL TO PUBLIC: The public is invited to speak on any item or any area of concern that is within the
jurisdiction of the YCIPTA Board of Directors. The Board is prohibited by the Arizona Open Meeting Law from
discussing, considering or acting on items raised during the call to the public, but may direct the staff to place
an item on a future agenda. Individuals are limited to a five-minute presentation.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

1


mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/

YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (YCIPTA)
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Monday, September 25, 2017 Page 2 of 3

CONSENT CALENDAR: The following items listed under the Consent Calendar will be considered
as a group and acted upon by one motion with no separate discussion, unless a board member so requests. In

that event, the item will be removed for separate discussion and action.

1. Adopt the July 24, 2017 regular minutes. Pg. 4

DISCUSSION & ACTION ITEMS:

1. Discussion and or action regarding the Chairman, Vice Chairman and
Secretary/Treasurer positions. Action required. Pg.7

2. Discussion and or action regarding the First Amendment to Grant Pass
Through Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and City of Yuma
for Federal Transit Grant Funding. Action required. Pg. 17

3. Discussion and or action regarding the First Amendment to

Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and the City of Yuma for
the Provision of Information Technology Services. Action required. Pg. 21

4. Discussion and or action regarding the Second Amendment to the Amended
and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust of the Yuma Area Benefit
Consortium Trust Agreement. Action required. Pg. 28

5. Discussion and or action regarding the Third Amendment to the
Independent Contractors Agreement for Transit Advertising Services.
Action Required. Pg. 57

6. Discussion and or action regarding the First Amendment to Agreement for
the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response
Services. Action Required. Pg. 61

PROGRESS REPORTS:

1. Operations Manager Report — George Rodriguez, National Express
Operations Manager. No action is required. Provided at meeting

2. Transit Director Report — Shelly Kreger, YCIPTA Transit Director. No action
is required. Pg.256

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

2



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (YCIPTA)
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Monday, September 25, 2017 Page 3 of 3

3. Transit Ridership — Carol Perez, Management Analyst/Mobility Manager

No action is required. Pg.257
4. Financial Report — Chona Medel, YCIPTA Financial Services Operations
Manager. No action is required. Pg.258

SCHEDULE NEXT MEETING DATE AND IDENTIFY AGENDA ITEMS:
The next Board meeting is scheduled for Monday, October 23, 2017.

ADJOURNMENT

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

3



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (YCIPTA) REGULAR BOARD
OF DIRECTORS MEETING MONDAY, July 24, 2017. Page 1 of 3

The Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) met in Regular
Session on Monday, July 24, 2017 at the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation
Authority (YCIPTA) office 2715 E 14" St Yuma, AZ 85365. The Chairman called the meeting to
order at 1:33 p.m.

Members present:
Paul Soto/Cocopah Indian Tribe

Members present via phone:

Bill Lee/City of Somerton/Chairman

Susan Thorpe/Yuma County/Vice Chair

Larry Killman/Town of Wellton/Secretary/Treasurer
Daniel Corr/Arizona Western College

Ralph Velez/City of San Luis

Greg Wilkinson/City of Yuma

Members Excused:
Brian Golding, Sr./Quechan Indian Tribe
Michael Sabath/Northern Arizona University

Other Present:

Shelly Kreger/YCIPTA/Transit Director

Chona Medel/YCIPTA/Financial Services Operations Manager
Carol Perez/ YCIPTA/ Management Analyst

Daisy Ruiz/YCIPTA/Office Specialist |

The Pledge of Allegiance was not performed.

Call to Public: There was no call to the public, as no one was present.
DISCUSSION & ACTION ITEMS:

No 1: Discussion and or action regarding the extension of the YCIPTA Quechan MOU
Exhibit A and the EICTS operations Business Plan through June 30, 2018. Action Required.

Ms. Kreger stated that the contributions are from Quechan and Imperial Valley. They will not
exceed Quechan’s $214,000 and Imperial Valley's $138,000 for the period of July 1, 2017 to June
1, 2018.

Motion (Wilkinson/Corr): Approved items presented.
Voice Vote: Motion Carries, 7-0 with Mr. Golding and Mr. Sabath excused.

No.2: Discussion and or action regarding the YCIPTA Title VI Implementation Plan. Action
required.

Ms. Kreger stated that having an Implementation Plan and Public Participation Plan is required
for anyone receiving federal funding.

Ms. Kreger stated that upon approval, it will be submitted to the Federal Transportation Authority
(FTA) and the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT).

Dr. Corr inquired if this is an annual requirement.

4



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (YCIPTA) REGULAR BOARD
OF DIRECTORS MEETING MONDAY, July 24, 2017. Page 2 of 3

Ms. Kreger stated that the FTA requires us to update every 3 years.

Motion (Velez/Killman): Approved items presented.
Voice Vote: Motion Carries, 7-0 with Mr. Golding and Mr. Sabath excused.

Ms. Thorpe joined via telephone.

Progress Reports:

No. 1: Operations Manager Report — George Rodriguez, National Express Operations
Manager. No action required. Not available.

No. 2: Transit Director Report — Shelly Kreger, YCIPTA Transit Director. No action required.
Ms. Kreger presented item as contained in the member packet. No action taken.

Mr. Lee inquired into what precautions we are taking to prevent the trolley from breaking down.

Ms. Kreger stated that it will be in excellent condition and we will assist them in anything they
need.

No.3: Transit Ridership & Customer Comment Report — Carol Perez, YCIPTA Management
Analyst/Mobility Manager. No action required.

Ms. Perez presented item as contained in the member packet. No action taken.
Mr. Lee inquired if the increase was from the Dump the Pump event.
Ms. Perez stated that the numbers are close to last year’s.

Mr. Lee also inquired about the increase in passengers and if it might be from the students that
will be attending Arizona Western College (AWC).

Ms. Perez stated that it was a national trend.

No. 4: Financial Report — Chona Medel, YCIPTA Financial Services Operations Manager.
No action is required.

Mrs. Medel presented item as contained in the member packet. No action taken.

SCHEDULE NEXT MEETING DATE AND IDENTIFY AGENDA ITEMS:
The next Board meeting is scheduled for Monday, August 28, 2017.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Authority, the Chairman adjourned the
meeting at 1:45 p.m.

YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (YCIPTA) REGULAR BOARD
OF DIRECTORS MEETING MONDAY, July 24, 2017. Page 3 of 3

Adopted this , 2017, Agenda Item

Daisy Ruiz, Board Secretary



Yo

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14t Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov

September 25, 2017

Discussion and Action Item 1

To: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Board of Directors

From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the Chairman, Vice Chairman and

Secretary/Treasurer positions.

Requested Action: Unknown

Background and Summary: The current Chairman of the YCIPTA Board of
Directors, Bill Lee from the City of Somerton, has resigned as the City Manager
and as such is no longer the Chairman of the YCIPTA Board. It does not explicitly
state in the By-Laws how the position of Chairman be filled. It has been normal
practice that when the new year begins the current Vice Chairman will become the
Chairman and the Secretary/Treasurer will become the Vice Chairman.
Nominations and a vote of the board will then fill the Secretary/Treasurer position.
With there being only three months left in the current year the board needs to
decide if the election of the Secretary/Treasurer should take place this board
meeting, having Susan Thorpe — Yuma County become Chairperson, Larry Killman
— Town of Wellton to Vice Chairman and election of Secretary/Treasurer with terms
ending in January of 2019, or waiting until January 2018 to shift positions.

Recommended Motion: Unknown

Fiscal Impact: None

Legal Counsel Review: No

Attachments: YCIPTA By-Laws

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

14


mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/

For information on this staff report, please contact Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
via email at skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101.

Approved for Submission

Shelly Kreger
Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

8



SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS
OF THE YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

ARTICLE 1
PURPOSE AND CONSTRUCTION

1.1. Coordination of public transportation services, and designing, operating and
maintaining a transportation system to meet regional needs are the primary objectives of the
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (“YCIPTA”). The purpose of
these Bylaws is to define the framework of the organization and the roles, responsibilities and
expectations of its members.

1.2 YCIPTA was formed under the statutory authority defined in A.R.S. § 28-9101 et
seq., and will continue to operate under, the guidelines established thereby. Any conflict
between these Bylaws and the authority of A.R.S. § 28-9101 et seq. will be resolved in favor of
statute.

1.3 The functions of YCIPTA include, but are not limited to, to the following:

a. Acquire, develop, and provide for the provision of transit services in a manner
that will meet the standards for maximum public use and will be most equitable,
expedient, convenient and compatible with the public health, safety and well-being;

b. Implement specific transit programs selected for implementation by the Board of
Directors;

c. Record and compute transit service use and report the same as required by local,
state and federal law;

d. Insure the cooperation, coordination and pooling of common resources, maximum
efficiency and economy in governmental operations with respect to providing transit
services;

e. Inventory, classify and identify problems that may be solved with respect to
transit services, though a comprehensive survey and plan involving multi-city and
county cooperation;

. Facilitate actions and agreements among the governmental units for specific
project development with respect to transit services; and

g. Provide for the adoption of common policies with respect to problems which are
common to the various member agencies of YCIPTA with respect to transit services.

ARTICLE IT
NAME AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE

2.1 The name of the public intergovernmental transportation authority will be the
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority (“YCIPTA”). YCIPTA is a
corporate body and political subdivision of the State of Arizona, with all of the power and
privileges appurtenant thereto.



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(YCIPTA) —2™ Amended & Restated Bylaws (Rev. 2014) Page 2 of 8

2.2 The principal office of YCIPTA shall be at Yuma County Administration, 198 S.
Main St., Yuma, Arizona 85364. YCIPTA may have such other offices as the Board of Directors
may designate or as the business of YCIPTA may require from time to time.

ARTICLE III
MEMBERS

3.1 Initial Members. The initial members of YCIPTA shall be as follows:
Yuma County
City of Yuma
City of Somerton
City of San Luis
Town of Wellton
Yuma Branch Campus of Northern Arizona University
Arizona Western College
3.2  Additional Members. Additional members, up to a maximum total of nine (9)
members, may be added by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of all of the current Members of the
Board of Directors.
33 The boundaries of YCIPTA include all of the area within the boundaries of the
Cities of Yuma, Somerton, San Luis, and the Town of Wellton, as well as all of the
unincorporated areas within Yuma County. The Board may, by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote
of all of the current Members, increase the membership of YCIPTA as provided in Sec. 3.2 to

include additional municipalities or entities located in Yuma County authorized for membership

in an intergovernmental public transportation authority pursuant to A.R.S. § 28-9102 (“New
Member”). The vote to add a New Member shall be taken upon written application of the New
Member.

34  Membership in YCIPTA is not transferable or assignable.

10



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(YCIPTA) — 2™ Amended & Restated Bylaws (Rev. 2014) Page 3 of 8

ARTICLE IV
YCIPTA BOARD OF DIRECTORS

4.1 YCIPTA shall be governed by a Board of Directors consisting of nine (9)
members (the “Board”). The Board shall be comprised of at least one (1) representative of each
Member described in section 3.1. The remaining director positions, if any, shall be apportioned
among the Member municipalities according to the population represented by each Member with
priority beginning with the Member municipality representing the largest population.

For example, in the event all nine director positions have not been filled after each
Member has appointed one representative, the Member municipality representing the largest
population would have priority to appoint a second representative, then the Member municipality
representing the second largest population would have priority to appoint a second
representative, and so forth, until a total of nine director positions have been filled.

In the event that additional members join YCIPTA, the existing Member municipality
representing the smallest population and having two directors shall select which one of the
directors shall remain as the Member’s appointed representative and the other director position
shall be apportioned to the new member entity.

42  The initial directors shall serve for terms of two (2), three (3), four (4) and five (5)
years, to be determined by lots, with three (3) directors serving initial terms of three (3) years,
three (3) directors serving initial terms of four (4) years and one (1) director serving initial terms
of five (5) years. Succeeding directors shall serve full five (5) year terms in staggered rotation.
Additional directors shall be allocated within this system to ensure an orderly and regular
rotation of directors.

43 A member agency may remove its appointed director for cause, as determined by
the governing body of such member agency. In the event a director is removed by a Member, or
by YCIPTA, the Member shall promptly appoint a successor director.

44  YCIPTA may remove any director for cause. Cause shall include: (a) Conviction
of a felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude; (b) Death; (¢) Permanent disability
(unable to perform duties for 180 consecutive days); or (d) Failure to attend three (3) or more
consecutive board meetings within a running year.

4.5 At the first meeting of each calendar year, the Board shall elect a chairperson, a
vice chairperson and a secretary-treasurer, who shall serve as the officers of YCIPTA. The
chairperson shall be responsible for approving the development of meeting agendas and the
conduct of each meeting of the Board. The chairperson shall have such powers, and be subject
to such dutics as are provided by the law of Arizona, by these Bylaws, or as may be conferred
upon him or her by vote or resolution of the Board of Directors. In the absence or disability of
the chairperson, the vice-chairperson shall have all the powers, and be subject to all the duties of
the chairperson, so long as such absence or disability continues. The vice-chairperson shall have
such powers and duties as may from time to time be conferred upon him or her by the Board. In
the absence of the chairperson and vice-chairperson, the secretary-treasurer shall assume the
responsibilities and duties of the chairperson. The secretary-treasurer shall be responsible for

11




YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(YCIPTA) - 2™ Amended & Restated Bylaws (Rev. 2014) Page 4 of 8

reviewing YCIPTA's finances and maintaining YCIPTA's minutes and records, as is required by
AR.S. § 38-431, et. seq., and may delegate the day to day provision of these functions to the
YCIPTA Transit Director.

4.6  The Board shall have all of the powers set forth in A.R.S. § 28-9122 (the
“Statutory Powers™), and those powers necessary to implement the Statutory Powers.

4.7 Voting rights. Each member of the Board will have one equally weighted vote on
any decision that is not concerned with program funding. For votes on funding matters, each
member of YCIPTA will have one vote, regardless of the respective financial contributions of
any individual entity toward program funding. Additional votes on program funding matters will
be granted only to those member entities making financial contributions to the particular
program being voted upon. In those instances, any entity contributing no less than 35% of
funding for a specific program will be entitled to four (4) additional votes, for a total of five (5)
votes.

48 The Board shall adopt rules (the “Rules and Regulations™) that are proper and
necessary to the use, operation and maintenance of its Regional Transportation System, property,
facilities and service. The Board shall hold one public hearing within the boundaries of YCIPTA
prior to adopting Rules and Regulations and any amendments or additions to such Rules and
Regulations.

49  The Board will conduct a periodic survey of public transportation needs in
YCIPTA’s jurisdiction, and may adopt, with such additions and updates as it deems appropriate,
a survey which has been conducted within the last two (2) years for all or part of the area
included in YCIPTA (the “Transit Study”).

4.10 Each year, on or before the 31% day of March, the Board will produce and adopt a
five-year public transportation program (the “Transportation Program™) that is consistent with
the regional transportation plan approved by the Yuma Metropolitan Planning Organization
(“YMPO”).

411 Directors shall receive no compensation for services as directors but may be
reimbursed for any reasonable expenses approved by the Board.

4.12  The powers of the Board shall include, but are not limited to, the following:

a. Make decisions as to the selection of the transit service contractor, if any, and provide
for the maintenance and operation of equipment, facilities and the cost thereof; set
fees to be charged for transit services; adopt the annual budget; and determine the
ultimate use and disposal of equipment and facilities.

b. Make decisions on transit service issues which shall be binding on all members.

c. Approve or deny projects recommended to the Board for appropriate action.

d. Either directly or indirectly through the transit service contractor, contract for and
acquire real or personal property, employ agents and employees; develop, maintain

12



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(YCIPTA) — 2™ Amended & Restated Bylaws (Rev. 2014) Page 50f 8

and operate site and facilities; and acquire, hold, or dispose of property and incur
debts, liabilities or obligations.

e. Appoint committees composed of public officials, employees and private citizens to
proffer non-binding advice to the Board.

ARTICLE V
MEETINGS

51 All meetings of the Board and all committee meetings shall be open to the public
and subject to the Arizona Open Meeting Law defined in A.R.S. § 38-431 et seq. Written notice
and a complete meeting packet of each Board meeting shall be mailed or delivered electronically
or in person to each director at least five (5) working days prior to the date fixed for such
meeting, unless prevented by emergency circumstances.

5.2  Meetings of the Board shall be at least quarterly and held at any place and at such
times as designated by the Board. In the absence of any such designation, meetings shall be held
at YCIPTA’s principal office.

5.3  Meetings shall, to the extent practicable, be governed by Robert’s Rules of Order,
and any other procedures and limitations as deemed necessary by the Chairperson of the Board.

54 A simple majority of the Board in office shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business. A vote of a majority of the directors present at any meeting in which a
quorum is present shall constitute action by the Board, unless a different vote is required by the
these Bylaws or Arizona statute.

5.5  Any or all directors may participate in a regular or special meeting by, or conduct
the meeting through the use of, any means of communication by which all directors participating
may simultaneously hear one another during the meeting. A director participating in a meeting
by this means is deemed to be present in person at the meeting.

ARTICLE VI
DISSOLUTION AND RESIGNATION

6.1 By an absolute majority vote of all of the directors, the Board may propose at any
Public Board meeting that YCIPTA be dissolved, provided that all contractual obligations and
debts of YCIPTA are satisfied or transferred to another governmental entity or entities, and
provided further that such governmental entity or entities will accept dedication of all the
YCIPTA property and assume all of YCIPTA’s obligations. A public hearing on the proposed
dissolution shall be held not less than fifteen (15) nor more than thirty (30) days after the
proposal is made.

6.2  TFollowing the public hearing held pursuant to Section 6.1, the Board shall adopt
by resolution a plan of termination to be executed within a stated period of time after it is

13



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(YCIPTA) — 2" Amended & Restated Bylaws (Rev. 2014) Page 6 of 8

adopted. The plan of termination shall include a schedule for transferring the assets and
obligations of YCIPTA to a governmental entity or entities named in the Plan.

6.3 The growth of Yuma County’s population to more than two hundred thousand
persons shall not cause the dissolution of YCIPTA pursuant to AR.S. § 28-9104(C).

6.4 A member may resign from YCIPTA upon consultation with the Board, in which
case the boundaries shall be amended pursuant to section 3.3. Prior to the Resignation of a
member pursuant to this Section, the Board must determine how the resignation will impact the
Regional Transportation System or the services provided to the remaining Members.

6.5  Resignation shall not relieve the member so resigning of the obligation to pay any
dues, assessments or other charges theretofore accrued and unpaid.

6.6 No Member shall have any right to the return or withdrawal of such Member’s
capital contributions until termination of YCIPTA, unless such withdrawal is consented to by all
other Members or otherwise provided for herein. No interest shall be paid on capital
contributions made to YCIPTA or returned to its Members.

6.7  No Member shall be individually liable for the obligations of YCIPTA. Except as
otherwise provided in these Bylaws, a Member’s liability for the obligations of YCIPTA shall be
limited to the aggregate amount of the Member’s agreed upon contribution to YCIPTA.

ARTICLE VII
INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

7.1 Any member of the Board and any officer of YCIPTA, as a condition of accepting
said office, shall be indemnified by YCIPTA against expenses actually and necessarily incurred
by him or her in connection with the defense of any action, suit, or proceedings in which he or
she is made a party by reason of having been or being a member of the Board or officer of
YCIPTA, except for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct
or knowing violation of law, or for a transaction from which the person derives an improper
personal benefit. Such right of indemnification is not to be deemed exclusive and shall not affect

any right to which an officer or director may be entitled under the laws of the State of Arizona,
these Bylaws, agreements, vote of Members, or otherwise.

7.2 To the extent permitted by law, each Member shall hold harmless and indemnify
each other Member from any claim, liability or loss related to any funding, capital contribution,
or in any manner whatsoever with regard to the individual participation by that Member to the
fullest extent allowed by law, except for that caused by the intentional misconduct or sole
negligence of a Member.

7.3 YCIPTA shall have the right to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of its
officers, directors, employees, and other agents, against any liability asserted against or incurred

14




YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(YCIPTA) — 2™ Amended & Restated Bylaws (Rev. 2014) Page 7 of 8

by any officer, director, employee, or agent in such capacity or arising out of the officer’s,
director’s, employee’s, or agents status as such.

ARTICLE VIII
AMENDMENT

8.1 Amendments to these Bylaws may be adopted by the Board at any regular or
special meeting by a majority vote of the Board, subject to the quorum requirement of section
5.4. Notice of any proposed amendments shall be included in a notice to the Members of the
meeting at which the proposed amendment(s) is/are to be considered.

ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS

9.1 This Agreement is subject to termination for conflict of interest, pursuant to the
provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511.

92 All checks, drafts, notes, bonds, bills of exchange, or other orders, instruments, or
obligations for the payment of money shall be in accordance with guidelines established by
Yuma County government.

9.3  The fiscal year shall commence on July 1 and end on June 30 and the Board shall
adopt a budget prior to June 30.

94  The Board shall have the power to receive bequests, donations, grants, and gifts of
all kinds of property, in fee simple, and to do all acts necessary to carry out the purposes of such
in accordance with the terms of the bequests, donations, grants, or gifts.

9.5 By December 31, an annual report shall be prepared and presented to the Board,
Members and interested parties.

9.6  The Transit Director, or his or her designee, shall assist the secretary-treasurer for
YCIPTA, and shall cause notice of all meetings of the Board to be given as described in these
Bylaws.

ARTICLE X
ADOPTION AND CERTIFICATION

10.1 These Bylaws were duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority at a regular meeting originally held on
August 22, 2011, amended on May 29, 2012, and the Second Amended and Restated Bylaws are
hereby adopted this 7%¢ d dayof Juwne ,2014.

15



YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
(YCIPTA) — 2™ Amended & Restated Bylaws (Rev. 2014) Page 8 of 8

ATTESP: o L{ Zm
\iivd

ROBERT L. PICKELS, JR., Chairman
JOHN ANDQH, Board Secfetary

16



Yo

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14t Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov

September 25, 2017

Discussion and Action Item 2

To: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Board of Directors

From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the First Amendment to Grant

Pass Through Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and
City of Yuma for Federal Transit Grant Funding.

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve the First
Amendment to Grant Pass Through Intergovernmental Agreement between
YCIPTA and City of Yuma for Federal Transit Grant Funding.

Background and Summary: YCIPTA and the City are parties to the certain Grant
Pass Through Intergovernmental Agreement effective February 26, 2015 (“IGA”)
pursuant to which YCIPA passed funds from Grant Numbers AZ-90-X132 and AZ-
90-X127 to the City to provide final design and pre-construction costs associated
with the rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol for use as a multimodal transportation
center. The term of the IGA expired August 26, 2017 but grant funds remain that
may be used toward the improvement and rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol; and,
YCITPA and the City desire to extend the term of the IGA to allow the City to use
remaining grant funds for the improvement and rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol.
The term of this agreement shall expire August 31, 2018

Recommended Motion: That the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority Board of Directors vote to approve the First Amendment
to Grant Pass Through Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and City of
Yuma for Federal Transit Grant Funding.

Fiscal Impact: Included in current budget.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

17


mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/

Legal Counsel Review: Yes

Attachments: First Amendment to Grant Pass Through Intergovernmental
Agreement between YCIPTA and City of Yuma for Federal Transit Grant Funding.

For information on this staff report, please contact Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
via email at skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101.

Approved for Submission

Shelly Kreger
Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

18



FIRST AMENDMENT TO
GRANT PASS THROUGH INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN
YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
and
CITY OF YUMA
FOR FEDERAL TRANSIT GRANT FUNDING

This First Amendment to the Grant Pass Through Intergovernmental Agreement (“Amendment”)
is entered into as of , 2017 (“Effective Date”), between the Yuma
County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority, a political subdivision of the State of
Arizona (*YCIPTA”), and City of Yuma, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “City”).
YCIPTA and the City are sometimes referred to herein individually as the *“Party” and
collectively as the “Parties”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and the City are parties to the certin Grant Pass Through Intergovernment
Agreement effective February 26, 2015 (“IGA”) pursuant to which YCIPA passed funds from
Grant Numbers AZ-90-X132 and AZ-90-X127 to the City to provide final design and pre-
construction costs associated with the rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol for use as a multimodal
transportation center;

WHEREAS, the term of the IGA expired August 26, 2017 but grant funds remain that may be
used toward the improvement and rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol; and,

WHEREAS, YCITPA and the City desire to extend the term of the IGA to allow the City to use
remaining grant funds for the improvement and rehabilitation of the Hotel Del Sol.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
is hereby acknowledged, the Parties do hereby mutually agree to the following:

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The Recitals are acknowledged by the Parties to be
substantially true and correct, and hereby incorporated as agreements of the Parties.

2. Term. Section 2 of the IGA, titled “Term of Agreement”, is hereby deleted and replaced
with the following:

Term of Agreement. The Term of this Agreement shall expire on August 31, 2018.

3. Nature of Amendment. Except for the modifications set forth in this Amendment, the
IGA remains in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this First Amendment as of the date first
set forth above.

First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma Grant Pass Through IGA for Federal Transit Funding, Page 1 of
2

19



CITY OF YUMA YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Gregory K. Wilkinson, Shelly Kreger, CCTM
City of Yuma - Administrator Transit Director
ATTEST

Lynda L. Bushong
City Clerk

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT APPROVAL
The foregoing First Amendment has, prior to its execution, been submitted to the attorney for

each Party, who has determined that the intergovernmental agreement is in proper form and is
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of this state to such Party.

Dated this day of , 2017

By:

Minda M. Davy
YCIPTA Attorney

Dated this day of , 2017

By:

Richard Files
Yuma City Attorney

First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma IGA for FTA Grant, Page 2 of 2

20



Yo

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14t Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov

September 25, 2017

Discussion and Action Item 3

To: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Board of Directors

From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the First Amendment to

Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and the City of
Yuma for the Provision of Information Technology Services.

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve the First
Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and the City of
Yuma for the Provision of Information Technology Services.

Background and Summary: YCIPTA and the City of Yuma wish to extend the IGA
for Information Technology Services for the term of two years, ending on June 30,
2019. The cost for the services have increased from $800 to $1,000 per month.
With the increase in the monthly expense, the City of Yuma ITS will provide
network consulting services for a possible future move to a new location to include
the following:

e Provide design details and specifications for the communications closet

e Provide design and specifications for the riser cable and horizontal network
cable runs

e Recommend a local communication contractor to do any additional
communication cabling that may need to be done and certify their work

e Inspect and approve all work done by the communications contractor

e Coordinate with Altura, your Avaya key phone system vendor, to get a quote
for relocation services and do any foot work required for them to expedite
the work and lower the cost.

e Disconnect all City maintained computer equipment and provide packing
direction

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

21


mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/

e Reconnect and test all City maintained computer equipment once unpacked
at new location.

e Provide any other IT related consulting needed to assist with a smooth
transition to your new location

Recommended Motion: That the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority Board of Directors vote to approve the First Amendment
to Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA and the City of Yuma for the
Provision of Information Technology Services

Fiscal Impact: Included in current budget.

Legal Counsel Review: Yes

Attachments: First Amendment to Intergovernmental Agreement between YCIPTA
and the City of Yuma for the Provision of Information Technology Services

For information on this staff report, please contact Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
via email at skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101.

Approved for Submission

Shelly Kreger
Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

22



FIRST AMENDMENT TO
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN
YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
and
CITY OF YUMA
FOR THE PROVISION OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

This First Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement (“Amendment”) is entered into as of
, 2017 (“Effective Date”), between the Yuma County
Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority, a political subdivision of the State of
Arizona (*YCIPTA”), and City of Yuma, an Arizona municipal corporation (the “City”).
YCIPTA and the City are sometimes referred to herein individually as the *“Party” and
collectively as the “Parties”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and the City are parties to a certin intergovernment agreement effective
September 19, 2014 (“1GA”) pursuant to which the City provides information techonology
services to YCIPTA,

WHEREAS, the Parties extended the term of the IGA through September 18, 2017,

WHEREAS, YCIPTA has determined that the IGA with the City for information technology
related services may continue based upon the availability of funding, and as such, YCIPTA’s
Board of Directors authorized the second extension of the IGA on the day of
, 20__;

WHEREAS, YCIPTA would like the City to provide certain information techonology services
which were not included in the IGA;

WHEREAS, the City is willing provide such additional services for additional consideration and
to extend the IGA in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this Amendment.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
is hereby acknowledged, the Parties do hereby mutually agree to the following:

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The Recitals are acknowledged by the Parties to be
substantially true and correct, and hereby incorporated as agreements of the Parties.

2. Scope of Services. Section Il of the IGA, titled “Scope of Services”, is amended only to
the extent to delete the following crossed-out language and add the following underlined
language:

A. CITY OF YUMA:

City of Yuma Information Technology Services (“ITS”) will provide technical and
consulting services to YCIPTA when the support capacity is available in relation to the
purchase, installation and maintenance support of the following items:

First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma IGA for IT, Page 1 of 5

23



3. Infrastructure Services Support
a. Maintenance of current network infrastructure rfrastructure-that-was
previoushy-installed-by-the-Yuma-CountyH1S;
b. Enhancement or replacement of network equipment as needed, cost
passed through to YCIPTA,
c. Restoration and backup of data stored on server storage;-—and
Support of Network Connectivity; and
e. Support of Wi-Fi Network Connectivity.

o

5. Email Services Support
a. Provide email accounts for up to twenty (20) YCIPTA

users.Maintenance-of-email-services/administrative-tasks—from-third-

b. Maintenance of email services / administrative tasks for City provided
accounts, (i.e. setting up desktop Outlook to email services and

calendar_services). ¥CHPTA—shall-be—responsible—forpaying—emat

B. YCIPTA:

In order to defray the cost of the services to the City, YCIPTA will compensate
the City for providing the services and support outlined herein.

1. Contract Monthly Rate

Service Contracted Rate
Contract Rate (29 hrs / mo, 5-6 hrs / wk, 1/6 FTE | $ 80606 1,000.00 per month
)

System Administration Administrative Included
Applications Included

Email Accounts and Service for up to 20 users Included

Desktop Support for up to 16 Client Computers Included
Network / Security / Anti-virus Support Included

Wi-Fi Network Support Included

VPN Client Support Included

Cost Per Mile Included

One unsolicited site visit per week by technician | Included

Site visits by technician upon request during Included

normal working hours

First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma IGA for IT, Page 2 of 5

24



Help Desk support during normal business hours | Included
(Remote Assistance)

Hardware, Software and Consumables Additional cost per item

After hours support (i.e. after 6:00 P.M. and | Additional cost perheur $50
before 7:00 A.M., or on a dark Friday or City | per hour.
recognized holiday).

2. YCIPTA resources must be readily available when ITS staff provides
support.
3. YCIPTA shall pay all invoices for services within thirty (30) days of the

date of receipt. The City will bill YCIPTA on a-menthly basis the 1% day
of each month.

4. YCIPTA shall not allow equipment maintained by ITS to be accessed by
any other service provider without prior ITS approval, which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

5. If YCIPTA’s monthly support hours exceed 29 hours in a given month, an

hourly rate of $27.59 per hour will be charged for the additional support.
If any City ITS staff assigned to provide support to YCIPTA incurs
overtime while providing YCIPTA with support services, YCIPTA shall
pay an overtime rate of $41.38/hr. will-apphy-toefor all YCIPTA support
hours in excess of that City ITS support person’s 40-hour work week.
Except for requests for after hours support, as defined in Section 11(B) of
this Agreement, YCIPTA may inquire as to whether City ITS staff will be
incurring overtime, and may request a City ITS staff member that would
not be incurring overtime, and the City shall make its best efforts to
accomodate the request.

3. Term. Section 111 of the IGA, titled “Term,” is amended to delete the following crossed-
out language and add the following underlined language:

Term. This IGA shall be-foranterm-of-one-{1)year; commence on the Effective Date

and terminate on June 30, 2019, unless earlier terminated by action of the Parties as
outlined in this IGA or by operation of law as described herein. FhistGA—may-—be

4, Indemnification. Section V of the IGA, titled “Indemnification”, is amended to add the
following underlined language:

Each Party (the “Indemnitor™) to this IGA agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless
the other Party, and their officers, officials, employees, agents, representatives and
directors (the “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, demands, damages,
losses, liabilities, causes of action, expenses and costs (including expert witness fees,
attorney’s fees and other reasonable costs of defense and any appeals) (collectively
“Claims”), which may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against a—Partythe
Indmenitee, attributable (directly or indirectly) to, or arising in any manner by reason of
the Indemnitor’s intentional, reckless, or negligent acts, omissions, errors, directives,

First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma IGA for IT, Page 3 of 5

25



5.

neghgence mistakes, misconduct or other fault of the etherPartylndemnitor, or of any
agent, officer, servant or employee of the etherPartylndemnitor, or anyone for whom the
Indemnitor may be legally liable in the performance or non-performance of this IGA,
except to the extent such Claims arise out of or are based upon the negligent acts,
mistakes, errors, or omissions of Indemnitee.

Notices. The address for notices sent to YCIPTA, as set forth in Section VI, subsection

G, titled “Notices”, is amended to read as follows:

6.

Ifto YCIPTA:  Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation
Authority
2715 East 14" Street
Yuma, Arizona, 85365
Tel: 928-539-7076, Ext. 101
Fax: 928-783-0309
skreger@ycipta.org

Additional General Provisions. Section VIl is amended to add subsections N, to read as

follows:

7.

N. Provisions Required by Law. Each and every provision of law and any clause
required by law to be in the IGA will be read and enforced as though it were
included herein and, if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not
inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon the application of either Party, the
IGA will promptly be physically amended by the Parties to make such insertion or
correction.

Nature of Amendment. Except for the modifications set forth in this Amendment, the

IGA remains in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this First Amendment as of the date first
set forth above.

CITY OF YUMA YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Gregory K. Wilkinson, Shelly Kreger, CCTM
City of Yuma - Administrator Transit Director
ATTEST

Lynda L. Bushong
City Clerk

First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma IGA for IT, Page 4 of 5

26


mailto:jandoh@ycipta.org

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT APPROVAL
The foregoing First Amendment has, prior to its execution, been submitted to the attorney for

each Party, who has determined that the intergovernmental agreement is in proper form and is
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of this state to such Party.

Dated this day of , 2017

By:

Minda M. Davy
YCIPTA Attorney

Dated this day of , 2017
By:

Richard Files

Yuma City Attorney

First Amedment to YCIPTA / City of Yuma IGA for IT, Page 5 of 5

27



Yo

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14t Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov

September 25, 2017

Discussion and Action Item 4

To: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Board of Directors

From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the Second Amendment to the

Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust of the
Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement.

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve the Second
Amendment to the Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust of
the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement

Background and Summary: The Second Amendment consists of removing Yuma
Elementary School District No. One (*YESD1”) as a patrticipating Entity and to add
the Housing Authority of the City of Yuma (“*Yuma Housing Authority”) as an
additional Participating Entity in the Trust. All Participating Entities are required to
approve and sign the Second Amendment.

Recommended Motion: That the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority Board of Directors vote to approve the Second
Amendment to the Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust of
the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement

Fiscal Impact: None.

Legal Counsel Review: Yes

Attachments: Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Agreement and
Declaration of Trust of the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

28


mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/

For information on this staff report, please contact Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
via email at skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101.

Approved for Submission

Shelly Kreger
Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

29



SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE
AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT AND DECLARATION OF TRUST
OF THE
YUMA AREA BENEFIT CONSORTIUM TRUST AGREEMENT

The Initial Agreement and Declaration of Trust was made effective the first day
of April 1997, between the Yuma/LaPaz Counties Community College District (aka
Arizona Western College) (“AWC”), Crane Elementary School District No. 13
(“Crane”), and Yuma Elementary School District No. One, and certain persons
hereinafter referred to as the “Trustees” to administer the Trust in accordance with the
terms and provisions of this instrument. Effective on or about July 1, 2004, the City of
Yuma (the “City”) was admitted as an additional Participating Entity in the Trust
pursuant to an Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust (hereinafter
the “Trust Agreement”) with an effective date of July 1, 2004. Effective as of July 1,
2012, a First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of
Trust was adopted to admit the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation
Authority and the Yuma Metropolitan Planning Organization as Participating Entities.
Pursuant to powers retained by the Participating Entitics pursuant to Section 12.01 of the
Trust Agreement, the Participating Entities hereby desire to amend the Agreement and
Declaration of Trust as set forth herein effective the first day of July 1, 2017, to eliminate
the Yuma Elementary School District No. One (“YESD1”) as a Participating Entity and
to add the Housing Authority of the City of Yuma (“Yuma Housing Authoritj‘b as
additional as-a Participating Entity in the Trust.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 9.01 of the Trust Agreement, the Participating Entities
considered the petition of the Yuma Housing Authority to become a Participating Entity
in the Trust; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10.01, YESDI has provided the Participating Entities
with written notification of its intent to terminftion its membership in the Trust; ond

WHEREAS,; the Participating Entities approved Yuma Housing Authority’s petition and
accepts the termination of the membership of YESD1 in the Trust;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, covenants, agreements, terms,
obligations and duties herein set forth, it is understood and agreed as follows:

1. Article 1.08 of the Trust Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:

1.08 - Participating Entities. The term “Participating Entities” shall mean each
of the following: Arizona Western College, Crane Elementary School District No. 13, the
City of Yuma, the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority, the
Yuma Metropolitan Planning Organization, the Housing Authority of the City of Yuma
and members approved under Article [X.

2. Section 3.02 of the Trust Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:

3015314.1 2017 1 Second Amendment to the
Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust
Of the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement

30



3.02 - Board of Trustees Composition. The number of members of the Board of
Trustees shall be not less than four (4) nor more than twelve (12) of which at least three
(3) persons shall be elected officials or employees of public entities within the State of
Arizona. The Governing Boards of Crane, AWC, and the City each shall appoint two (2)
trustees.

3. Section 10.01.3 of the Trust Agreement is amended to read as follows:

10.01.3  Once termination is effective, a former Participating Entity may not
apply for readmission to the Trust during the subsequent plan year and, after such
subsequent plan year, may apply for readmission to the Trust under Section 9.01. Grants
of readmission are not assured and may be denied on the Board of Trustee®s discretion
afterl\%uly called meeting and vote.

4. By its signatuge below, the Trustees appointed by YEDS1, formally withdraw as
t

Trustees effective asz e withdrawal date of YEDS1 .

5. Except as specifically modified or amended by this Second Amendment, the Trust
Agreement as amended remains in full force and effect.

6. This Second Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute
one and the same agreement. A pdf of an executed signature page shall have the same
effect as an originally signed signature page.

3015314.1 2017 2 Second Amendment to the
Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust
Of the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement

31



SIGNATURES OF CONTINUING PARTICIPATING ENTITIES OR
AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE:

By:

Governing Board President or authorized designee

for Arizona Western College

Print Name

Signed this day of , 2017
SIGNATURE OF TRUSTEES:
By:

Trustee for Arizona Western College

Signed this day of ,20
By:

Trustee for Arizona Western College
Signed this day of .20

Pursuant to AR.S. § 11-952(D), the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned and it is in proper from and is within the powers and authority granted under
the laws of the State of Arizona.

By:
Legal Counsel for Arizona Western College
Signed this day of .20
3015314.1 2017 3 Second Amendment to the

Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust
Of the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement

32



SIGNATURES OF CONTINUING PARTICIPATING ENTITIES OR
AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE:

By:
Governing Board President or authorized designee
for Crane Elementary School District No. 13
Print Name
Signed this day of , 2017
SIGNATURE OF TRUSTEES:
By:
Trustee for Crane Elementary School District No. 13
Signed this day of ,20
By:
Trustee for Crane Elementary School District No. 13
Signed this day of .20

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D), the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned and it is in proper from and is within the powers and authority granted under
the laws of the State of Arizona.

By:
Legal Counsel for Crane Elementary School District No. 13
Signed this day of .20
3015314.1 2017 4 Second Amendment to the

Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust
Of the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement

33



SIGNATURE OF CONTINUING PARTICIPATING ENTITY OR AUTHORIZED
DESIGNEE:

By:

Mayor or authorized designee for City of Yuma

Print Name

Signedthis _ dayof /2017
SIGNATURE OF TRUSTEES:
By:

Trustee for City of Yuma

Signed this day of .20
By:

Trustee for City of Yuma

Signed this day of .20

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D), the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned and it is in proper from and is within the powers and authority granted under
the laws of the State of Arizona.

By:
Legal Counsel for City of Yuma
Signed this day of ,20
3015314.1 2017 5 Second Amendment to the

Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust
Of the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement

34



SIGNATURE OF CONTINUING PARTICIPATING ENTITY OR AUTHORIZED
DESIGNEE:

By:

Authorized designee for Yuma Metropolitan
Planning Organization

Print Name
Signed this day of , 2017
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D), the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the

undersigned and it is in proper from and is within the powers and authority granted under
the laws of the State of Arizona.

By:
Legal Counsel for the Yuma Metropolitan Planning Organization
Signed this day of .20
3015314.1 2017 6 Second Amendment to the

Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust
Of the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement

35



SIGNATURE OF CONTINUING PARTICIPATING ENTITY OR AUTHORIZED
DESIGNEE:

By:
Authorized designee for Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation
Print Name

Signed this day of , 2017

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D), the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned and it is in proper from and is within the powers and authority granted under
the laws of the State of Arizona.

By: L/lULL/{ l{iﬂ/wj Ml/

Legal Counsel for the Yuma gjunty Intergovernmental Public Transportation
Authority

Signed this iﬂmday of MZOU

3015314.1 2017 7 Second Amendment to the
Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust
Of the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement

36



SIGNATURE OF WITHDRAWING PARTICIPATING ENTITY OR
AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE:

By
Governing Board President or authorized designee
for Yuma Elementary School District No. One
Print Name
Signed this day of 2017
SIGNATURE OF TRUSTEES:
By:
Trustee for Yuma Elementary School District No. One
Signed this day of ,20
By:

Trustee for Yuma Elementary School District No. One

Signed this day of .20

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D), the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned and it is in proper from and is within the powers and authority granted under
the laws of the State of Arizona.

By:
Legal Counsel for Yuma Elementary School District No. One
Signed this day of .20
3015314.1 2017 8 Second Amendment to the

Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust
Of the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement

37



SIGNATURE OF ENTERING PARTICIPATING ENTITY OR AUTHORIZED
DESIGNEE:

By
Housing Authority of the City of Yuma
Print Name

Signed this day of , 2017

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D), the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the
undersigned and it is in proper from and is within the powers and authority granted under
the laws of the State of Arizona.

By:
Legal Counsel for the Housing Authority of the City of Yuma
Signed this day of ,20
3015314.1 2017 9 Second Amendment to the

Amended and Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust
Of the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium Trust Agreement

38



o028

AMENDED AND RESTATED
AGREEMENT AND DECLARATION OF TRUST

~ The Initial Agreement and Declaration of Trust was made effective the first day of April
1997, between the Yuma/LaPaz Counties Community College District (aka Arizona Western
College) ("AWC"), Crane Elementary Schoel District No. 13 ("Crane"), and Yuma Elementary
School District No. One (“Yuma"), hereinafier referred to as the "Initial Participating Entitics”
and certain persons hereinafter referred to as the "Trustees" to administer the Trust in accordance
with the terms and provisions of this instrument. Effective on or about July 1, 2004, the City of
Yuma (the “City”) was admitted as an additional Participating Entity in the Trust. The City and
Initial Participating Entities are collectively referred to herein as the “Participating Entities.”
Pursuant to powers retained by the Participating Entities pursuant to Section 12.01 of the Initial
Agreement and Declaration of Trust, the Participating Entities hereby desire to Amend and
Restate the Agreement and Declaration of Trust as set forth herein effective the first day of July
2005.

WITNESSETH

Whereas A.R.S. §11-952.01 permits two or more public agencies (1) to enter into
contracts or agreements to purchase insurance jointly or to pool retention of such public
agencies' nsks for property, casualty and liability losses and to provide for the payment of
property loss or claims of liability made against any member of such pool; or (2) to jointly form
a nonprofit corporation to carry out the provisions of A.R.S. §11-952.01 on behalf of the
members of the nonprofit corporation directly or by contract with a private party.

Whereas A.R.S. §15-382.B, 15-387 and §15-342(13) authorize school districts to enter
into intergovernmental agreements or contracts pursuant to Title 11, Chapter 7, Article 3 or
cooperative procurement agreements pursuant to rules adopted under §15-213, providing for a
self-insurance program by a district or the joint purchase of insurance. .

Whereas, Arizona Western College has the power and authority to contract (A.R.S. §15-
1444 (B) (3)); enter into intergovernmental agreements (A.R.S. §11-952); and provide for its
employees' health, disability, death and related fringe benefits (A.R.S. §15-1444 (B) (5)); and

Whereas, said Participating Entities and certain employees of said Participating Entities
hereinafter designated and referred to as "Employees," desire to enter into a program of
providing and maintaining health and welfare benefits for Employees of the Participating Entities
and certain members of their families; and,

Whereas, to effect the aforesaid purpose, it is mutually desirable by and between the
parties hereto to declare and create a Trust which establishes a Trust Fund for and in the manner
more particularly set forth herein; and,

Now therefore, in consideration of the promises, covenants, agreements, terms,
obligations and duties herein set forth, jt is understood and agreed as follows:

-

1

39



Mfzedat‘tha-gity&unciﬁﬁeaﬁng«of

City Clerk: J
i

e Mk Collohon o .
Meeps o copyof aglement
Thust el ’
,....&ah.ga 5%__1412_,95,3 o

18105 Tadke_ Q..

40



ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS

It is mutually understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that the following
are and shall be the definitions:

1.01 - Beneficiary. The term "Beneficiary” shall mean eligible employees, Governing
Board members, ex-Governing Board members, retirees and their eligible dependents.

1.02 - Employee. "Employee” shall mean all persons who have been employed by the
Participating Entities on a regular basis, who work not less than the number of hours per week
required by the Participating Entities for eligibility.

1.03 - Employee Contribution. The term "Employee Contribution” shall mean the
contributions made by the Employees of a Participating Entity to said Fund.

1.04 - Fund. The term "Fund" as used herein shall mean the Trust Fund created by this
instrument, and shall mean generally the monies, property, contracts, or things of value, tangible
or intangible, received and held by the Trustees for the use and purposes set forth herein.

1.05 — Governing Board. "Governing Board" shall mean the elected board, council or
other body charged with the general management and control of the atfairs of a Participating
Entity or a Prospective Member.

1.06 - Health and Welfare Program. The term "Health and Welfare Program" shall
mean the program of benefits to be established by the Trustees pursuant to this Agreement and
Declaration of Trust. :

1.07 - Member Contributions. The term "Member Contributions” shall mean the
contributions made by Participating Entities to the Fund for the Health and Welfare Program.

1.08 - Participating Entities. The term "Participating Entities” shall mean each of the
following: Arizona Western College, Crane Elementary School District No. 13, Yuma
Elementary School District No. One, the City of Yuma and members approved under Article IX.

1.09 - Plan Document, The term "Plan Document" shall mean the document containing
certain self-funded or insured health and welfare benefits.

1.10 - Trust Agreement. The term "Trust Agreement” shall mean this Amended and
Restated Agreement and Declaration of Trust and any modifications or amendments thereto.

1.11 - Trustees. The term "Trustees" as used herein shall mean the Trustees and any
successors provided for in this Trust Agreement.

1.12 - Yuma Area Benefit Consortium. The name of this Trust shall be the Yuma Area
Benefit Consortium.

41°



1.13 - Fiscal Agent. The term "Fiscal Agent" shall mean the Trustee assigned the
responsibility of coordinating the financial operations of the Trust.

1.14 - Proportional Share. The term "Proportional Share" means the contributions
attributed to the Participating Entity (including contributions made by or on behalf of
Beneficiaries in the Trust due to their affiliation with each respective Participating Entity as well
as the Participating Entity's contributions on behalf of Employees) over the 12 months prior to
termination divided by total contributions to the Trust over the same 12 months.

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE OF TRUST AND APPLICATION OF THE FUND

2.01 - Fund. There is hereby declared and created the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium.
The purpose of the Yuma Area Benefit Consortium 1S to establish a Trust Fund to provide
benefits for, but not limited or restricted to, Life, Accidental Death and Dismemberment,
Disability, Basic or Major Medical coverage for accidents or sicknesses, dental, and any other
benefits as determined by the Trustees for Beneficiaries, provided such benefits are related to
Health, Death or Disability, whether through self-funded or insured programs or both. The
Trustees shall have the power to enter into contracts, procure insurance policies, or provide such
benefits through self-funding and to place into effect and maintain the desirable benefits as set
forth in the Plan Document.

2.02 - Principal Office. The Trust shall have its principal office at-Arizona Western
College, P.O. Box 929, Yuma, Arizona 85366-0929 (hereinafter designated and referred to as
"Principal Office"). The Trustees may from time to time designate another location as the
Principal Office of the Trust.

ARTICLE III - TRUSTEES - APPOINTMENT, TERM AND REMOVAL

3.01 - Appointment of Trustees. The Trustees shall be appointed by the Participating
Entities as provided herein and will serve at the pleasure of the Participating Entity which
appointed them. A Trustee may be reappointed at the Participating Entity's sole discretion.,

3.02 - Board of Trustees Composition. The number of members of the. Board of
Trustees shall be not less than four (4) nor more than twelve (12) of which at least three (3)
persons shall be elected officials or employees of public entities within the State of Arizona. The
Governing Boards of Crane, Yuma, AWC, and the City each shall appoint two (2} trustees. As
of the effective date of this Agreement, the following individuals have been appointed to serve as
trustees:

(1) Crane: Michael Wicks and Mike Jarvis
'(2) Yuma: Maureen Irr and Kerry Jones

{3) AWC: Daniel Hann and Shane Turner

(4) City: Mikeil (Mike) Callahan and Bob Stull.

42



The Governing Board of any governmental entity which becomes a Participating Entity
after the effective date of this Agreement shall have such rights, it any, to appoint one or more
Trustees as the then serving Trustees may determine.

3.03 - Term and Removal. A Trustee shall serve until he or she resigns or is removed,
A Trustee shall serve at the pleasure of the Governing Board of the Participating Entity
appointing such Trustee and may be removed by such Governing Board at any-time, with or
without cause. The removal of a Trustee shall become immediately effective upon written
notification by the Governing Board of a Participating Entity to the appointed Trustee to be
removed. A Trustee may resign at any time by giving five (5) days written notice to the other
Trustees and the Governing Board appointing said Trustee.

3.04 - Successor Trustees. Upon the resignation or removal of a Trustee the Governing
Board of the Participating Entity that appointed such Trustee shall appoint or select a successor
Trustee. The successor Trustee shall have the same powers and duties as those conferred upon
the Trustees hereunder.

3.05 - Acceptance of Trusteeship. By signing this Trust Agreement, the Trustees hereby
accept the Trust and Trusteeship and declare that they will receive and hold the Fund by virtue of
this Trust Agreement for the uses and purposes and with the powers and duties herein set forth
and none other and keep adequate and proper records as set forth herein.

ARTICLE 1V - POWERS AND DUTIES OF TRUSTEES

4.01 - General Powers of the Trustees. The Health and Welfare Program and Trust shall
be administered by the Trustees. The Trustees shall hold, manage, care for and keep the Fund
and collect the income and increments thereof, and shall keep and maintain adequate and proper
records to render an annual audit, accounting and reports as hereinafter mentioned. The Trusteces
shall employ or hire such agents, attorneys, accountants, actuaries, employees or other persons
and lease premises and equipment as may be necessary or desirable in administering the Fund
and carrying out its purposes and the fees, salaries, wages, emoluments or compensation of any
and all such persons shall be paid from the Fund. The Trustees may pay any and all taxes of
whatsoever nature the Fund is and may be obligated to pay, and incur any expenses for supplies,
rental of space, or-other items or anything else believed to be necessary or desirable in
administering the Fund and carrying out the objectives and purposes of the Trust and Trust
Agreement. Nothing herein is intended to and does not limit in any way the power of the
Trustees, it being the intent of this Agreement that the Trustees shall have all right, power and
authority to do all those things, which in the opinion of the Trustees may be necessary or
desirable for the administration and operation of and accomplishments of the objectives and
purposes of the Fund and this Trust and Trust Agreement. The Trustees shall have the power to
adopt rules and regulations for the administration of the Fund and/or Trust, which regulations
and rules shall be consistent with covenants, terms, conditions, obligations and duties as set forth
in this Trust Agreement, and such rules and regulations shall be binding upon all persons dealing
with the Fund and upon any and all persons claiming any benefits hereunder. The Trust may
issue checks in its own name.

43



4.02 - Benefits. The Trustees, in carrying out the purposes of this Trust Agreement, shall
have the power and the right to provide the intended benefits under this Trust as set forth in the
Plan Document by means of direct or self-funding by the Trust and/or by the procurement of
group insurance contracts (permissible under the laws of Arizona) including group insurance
contracts issued to and in the name of the Trust, together with such other forms of contracts
issued by qualified insurance companies authorized to do business in the State of Arizona as may
be selected by the Trustees for the purpose of providing for all or part of the benefits provided
for in the Plan Document. The Trustees are hereby expressly authorized to pay to any insurance
company as may be selected by the Trustees the required premiums on the insurance contracts
issued to the Trust. Subject to Paragraph 4.03 below, whether or not benefits are provided by
means of direct or self-funding shall be at the sole and exclusive discretion of the Trustees.
Should the Trustees select or provide for any policy or any program of self-funding, no claims
for benefits or liabilities shall be brought against the Trustees or members of the Governing
Boards of Participating Entities.

4.03 - Stop Loss, If the Trustees choose to provide any self-funded benefits, the payment
from the Fund of any and all benefits to or on behalf of each beneficiary shall be a minimum of
$100,000 each fiscal year. The aggregate total of payments for all self-funded benefits to or on
behalf of all Employees shall be limited to an annual maximum calculated using an aggregate
factor established through an aggregate stop-loss insurance policy.

4.04 - Types of Employce Benefits. To Be Funded By The Trust. The Trustees may
obtain for the Beneficiaries of the Trust the following forms of employee benefits plus other
benefits, provided such benefits are related to Health, Death or Disability: Accidental Death and
Dismemberment Life Insurance Hospital, surgical and medical, dental, and other group health
products customarily made available to employee groups.

4.05 - Unexpended Corpus. All corpus or portions of the Fund not otherwise expended
may be deposited by the Trustees in the name of the Trust in such depository or depositories as
the Trustees shall from time to time select, and any such deposit or deposits should carry or bear
interest. The Trustees are empowered to receive for the benefit of the Fund such interest as might
accrue on the above deposits. If not so deposited, any accumulated funds not currently required
for the purposes of this Trust shall be invested by the Trustees in reasonably secure, reasonably
liquid investments.

The Trustees may accumulate dividends or experience rating refunds or other monies, if
any, accruing from any insurance policy or policies, deposits or investments. Such dividends,
refunds or other monies, or all of them, shall be held in the Fund and applied to the payment of
self-funded claims, the payment of insurance premiums, or held, used or applied as herein set
forth. The Trust may issue checks in its own name with written permission of the Yuma County
treasurer.

4.06 - Trustee Reimbursements. No Compensation. The Trustees may receive
reimbursement for actual reasonable expenses incurred, under such terms and conditions as may
be approved by a majority of the Trustees. Trustees shall not receive compensation for their
services rendered.

5

44



4,07 - Recording Secretary. The Trustees shall have a Recording Secretary who shall
keep minutes of all meetings, proceedings, and acts of the Trustees, which records shall be
available at the Principal Office of the Trust for inspection by all interested persons during usual
business hours. Such records and minutes need not be verbatim. The Recording Secretary need
not be a Trustee. '

4.08 - Acts of Trustees. No person who is dealing with the Trustees shall be obligated to
see to the application of any monies or property of the Fund, or to see that the terms of this Trust
Agreement have been complied with or to inquire as to the necessity or expediency of any act of
the Trustees. Every instrument executed by the Trustees or at their direction shall be conclusive
in favor of every person who in good faith relies upon it, that (a) at the time of the delivery of the-
instrument this Trust Agreement was in full force and effect; (b} the instrument was executed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Trust Agreement; and, (c) the Trustees were
duly authorized to execute the instrument or direct its execution.

4.09 - Meetings. The Trustees shall hold their first meeting as soon as practical after
being appointed. Thereafter, meetings shall be held on a regular basis sufficient to conduct the
business of the Trust. The Trustees will hold all meetings in compliance with the Open Meeting
Law of Arizona, A.R.S. Section 38-431 et seq. The Trustees shall determine the time and place
of the regular meetings. Special meetings of the Trustees may be called by the Chairman or by a
majority of the Trustees. At least twenty-four (24) hours written notice shall be provided to the
Trustees of any meeting, including a copy of the meeting agenda. A majority of Trustees present
at any meeting shall constitute a quorum.

4,10 - Accounting. The accounting year of the Fund shall be on a fiscal year basis,
commencing on the first day of July and ending on the 30th day of June of the following year.
Any report required by law, State or Federal, or the respective subdivisions thereof, shall be
prepared or caused to be prepared by the Trustees. The Trustees shall have an annual audit and
accounting of the Trust Fund by a Certified Public Accountant ("CPA"} in accordance with good
accounting practices, at the end of each fiscal year. The CPA shall certify to the accuracy of its
audit and accounting. A statement of the results of each audit shall be available for inspection by
at the Principal Office of the Trust. Copies of the audit and generalized statements of the
accounting and reports shall be delivered to the Trustees after each audit and copies of the report
will, be submitted to Governing Boards or chief executive officers of the Participating Entities
and to the Director of Insurance.

4.11 - Bonding Of Trustees. The Trustees shall procure fidelity bonds for the benefit of
the Trust and covering persons authorized to receive, handle, deal with or draw upon the monies
in the Fund for any purpose whatsoever, said bonds to be in such reasonable amount to
reasonably aid in reimbursing bondable loss of money, and in any event shall meet the
requirements as may be imposed, from time to time, by applicable law. Bonds are to be obtained
from reputable fidelity or surety company or companies as the Trustees shall determine. If
convenient, and in conformity with law, such bonds may be position bonds. The cost of the
premiums on such bonds shall be paid out of the corpus or income of the Fund. If any fidelity or

",

6

45



surety company refuses to bond or write a bond for any Trustee, or other person as described in
this section, that Trustee or person shall not serve and shall resign.

4.12 - Benefits Claim Settlement and Appeals Board. The Trustees may in their sole
discretion compromise or settle any disputed benefits claim or benefits claim controversy in such
manner as they think best, and any decision made by the Trustees in compromise or settlement of
a disputed benefits claim or benefits claim coniroversy, or any compromise or settlement
agreement entered into by the Trustees shall be conclusive and binding upon all parties interested
in this Fund. The Trustees may establish an appeals board which may have the same powers and
duties of the Trustees to settle benefits claims or benefits claims controversies. Should they

- decide to establish an appeals board, the Trustees shall establish by resolution the membership,
procedures, and duties of the appeals board and include the same in the Plan Document.

4.13 - Discharge Duties With Care. The Trustees agree to discharge their
responsibilities with the care, skill, prudence and diligence under the circumstances then
prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would
use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims, all in accordance with
the provisions of this Trust Agreement. Notwithstanding this duty, Trustees shall only be liable
for claims, damages or other harm to the extent provided for in Section 4.14 below.

4.14 - Indemnification and Insurance. A Trustee shall not be responsible or liable for
any claim, damages or other harm, unless and only to the extent that the claim, damages or harm
is caused by the Trustee's gross negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct, including gross
negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct in the handling of monies received for the Trust's
benefit and/or with respect to the execution and administration of the Fund or this Trust
Agreement, A Trustee shall néither be responsible for actions or omissions of successor Trustees,
nor for the actions or omissions of other agents, nor for actions or omissions of any insurance
company or its agents, including, but not limited to, nonpayment of claims by an insurance
company or companies for any reason. To the extent permitted by law, a Trustee shall be entitled
to indemnification from the Trust, including court costs and attorneys' fees, for costs attributable
to any claim of liability, or actual liability, unless such costs or liability arises from the Trustee's
willful misconduct, bad faith or gross negligence, in which case no indemnification” shall be
available to the Trustee. The Trustees are specifically authorized to purchase errors and
omissions nor other appropriate insurance coverage for the benefit of the Trustees.

4,15 - Power To Interpret Agreement. The Trustees shall have the power to construe,
mterpret and apply the provisions of this Trust Agreement or any amendments, rules or
regulations adopted thereto, and the terms used herein and any construction, interpretation or
application adopted in good faith shall be final and binding upon the Participating Entities and
the Beneficiaries, and their respective successors, assigns, executors, administrators, and/or legal
representatives.

ARTICLE V - PLAN DOCUMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN

) 5.01 - Benefits Set Forth In Plan Document. The benefits to be provided hereunder,
- whether by self-funding or insurance contract, shall be set forth in a Plan Document which shall

7

46



also explain the eligibility rules for coverage for Beneficiaries. Beneficiaries have no rights to
any claim to benefits under the Health and Welfare Program beyond those set forth in the Plan
Document for which they are eligible, The Trustees and Participating Entities will have no
liability for failure to fund or pay for benefits not provided for in the Plan Document.

5.02 - Designation Of Third Party Administrator and Removal. The Trustees shall
have the full obligation and responsibility for the general administration of the Health and
Welfare Program but may designate any person, firm or corporation as its agent to act for it in
administering the Health and Welfare Program. Such agent shall be known as the third party
administrator. The third party administrator will provide day to day management of the Fund.
The Trustees may remove the third party administrator at any time without cause after thirty (30)
days wriften notice to the third party administrator. Areas of authority of the third party
administrator will be delineated in the third party administrator's contract with the Trust and any
regulations or rules established by the Trustees.

5.03 - Record Maintenance By Third Party Administrator. Any agent designated as
the third party administrator of the Health and Welfare Program shall keep accurate and detailed
records of its administration of the Health and Welfare Program which shall be open for
examination at reasonable times during business hours by any person authorized in writing by
the Trustees. In addition, the third party administrator shall, within sixty (60) days after the end
of each Trust year or such other date as determined by the Trustees, file with the Trustees a
complete statement of the administration of the Health and Welfare Program covering the period
since the last statement. S

5.04 - Disputes. In the event there shall be any disagreement between the Trustees and
the third parly administrator over exercise of powers granted herein or with respect to the
interpretation of any regulations or rules established by the Trustees, the Trustees shall prevail,
and the third party administrator shall have no liability to any person with respect to such act or
omission in the event it shall give notice in writing to the Trustees and to the Participating
Entities of its dissent from such act.

5.05 - Authorization To Establish Office And Staff. The Trustees may establish offices
and employ necessary staff to carry out the provisions of this Trust Agreement.

5.06 - Authorization To Obtain Property. The Trustees may purchase, lease or rent real
and personal property deemed necessary or desirable to operate the Trust.

ARTICLE VI - CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE FUND

6.01 - Member Contributions. In order to effectuate the purpose hereof, the
Participating Entities shall contribute to the Fund an amount determined by the Trustees and
approved by the Participating Entities to be necessary to pay for the benefits provided hereunder,
which shall include but is not limited to costs incurred for claim payments; insurance contracts;

“administrative expenses and establishing of and maintenance of incurred but not reported claims
reserves ("IBNR"). During the first year of this Agreement, a Participating Entity may fund for
incurred but not reported ¢laims and known incurred losses throygh a lump sum payment at the

g

47



beginning of the plan year or through prorated payments during the first 12 months of this Trust
Agreement. The calculation of the IBNR and known incwred losses will be calculated using
recognized actuarial calculation by a licensed actuarial and/or consuiting firm. The Participating
Entity's contribution shall be due and payable as of the first day of the month or as otherwise
determined by the Trustees.

6.02 - Assessment Of Participating Entities If Fund Is Determined To Be Insolvent
Or Unable To Discharge Its Legal Liabilities; Limits of Liability For Trustees And
Participating Members. If the Fund is determined to be insolvent or is otherwise found to be
unable to discharge its legal liabilities and other obligations, the Participating Entities shall be
assessed on a pro rata basis (proportional share) as calculated by the amount of each
Participating Entities' annual contribution in order to satisfy the amount of deficiency. Not
withstanding the above, the assessment shall not exceed the amount of each Participating Entity's
annual contribution to the Fund. In either event, benefit payments to such Beneficiaries shall be
limited to the amount in the Trust Fund. In the event the assessment does not yield sufficient
funds to pay all outstanding claims, the Trust's obligation to pay claims shall be limited to the
amount in the Trust Fund after the assessment, and the Trustees and Participating Entities' shall
have no further legal obligations of any type. In the event that submitted claims of Beneficiaries
exceed the funds available, the claims shall be paid in the order received as determined by the
Trustees or by the third party administrator if so delegated by the Trustees.

6.03 - Participating Entities' Contributions Are Not Wages. To the extent permitted
by law, the Participating Entities' contributions to be paid into the Fund shall not constitute or be
deemed wages due to Employees, nor shall the Participating Entities' contributions in any
manner be liable for or subject to the debts, contracts, or liabilities of the Participating Entities.
Neither the Participating Entities, any Employee, nor any Beneficiary under the Plan shall have
any rights, title, or interest in the Fund, except as otherwise specifically provided herein.

6.04 - Employee Contributions. Employees may be required to contribute to the Fund
the amount determined by the Participating Entity, to be appropriate for the benefits to be
provided hereunder. All Employees' contributions shall be due and payable as of the first day of
the month or as otherwise determined by the Trustees.

6.05 - Payment In Lieu Of Benefits. No Employee or other Beneficiary shall have any
right to receive any part of his/her own or the Participating Entities' contributions paid to him/her
in lieu of benefits. :

6.06 - Payroll Deductions. All Employees' contributions shall be paid by payroll
deduction, by salary reduction, or as otherwise required by the Trustees. The Participating Entity
shall remit all monies obfained in a lump sum to the Fund at least once per month or as otherwise
specified by the Trustees. '

6.07 - Payment. All contributions shall be payable to the name of the Trust, and shall be
paid in the manner and form determined by the Trustees.

48



6.08 - Reports. The Participating Entities shall make all reports required by the Trust in
order that the Trustees can carry out their obligations under the Trust Agreement. The Trustees
may at any time have an audit made by an independent Certified Public Accountant of the wage
records of the Participating Entities in connection with their contribution and/or reports.

6.09 - Irrevocability of Contribution. Subject to the provisions providing for
termination of this Trust Agreement, all contributions to the Fund shall be irrevocable, and under
no circumstances shall any monies properly paid into the Fund, or any part of the Fund, be
recoverable by or payable to the Participating Entities or any Beneficiary, nor shall any of the
same be used for or diverted to purposes other than for the exclusive program of benefits for
Beneficiaries provided hereunder.

6.10 - Trustees' Responsibility For Contributions. Subject to the limitations stated in
this section, and notwithstanding any other provisions of this Trust Agreement, each Trustee
shall be responsible for monies only when and after such monies are received by the Trust
pursuant to this Trust Agreement. :

ARTICLE VII - PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

7.01 - Method Of Payment. The Trustees may arrange for the disbursement of benefits
under the Plan Document. Benefit payment determinations may be made by a third party
administrator appointed by the Trustees.

7.02 - Protection Of Employees. Prior to payment to any Beneficiary, all assets of the
Trust shall be owned by the Trust and shall not be liable in any way for any debt or obligation of
any Beneficiary. To the extent permitted by law, all Trust benefits shall be exempt from
attachment, garnishment, levy of execution, bankruptcy proceedings, or other legal process; and,
in any event, such assets shall be subject to such process only to the extent of such Beneficiary's
benefits hereunder as they fall due. '

7.03 - Claim To Benefits. Beneficiaries will have no rights to any claim to benefits
beyond those set forth in the Plan Document for which they are eligible. The Trustees and
Participating Members will have no liability for failure to fund or pay for benefits not otherwise

provided for in the Plan Document.

ARTICLE VIII - NONVESTING OF RIGHTS

8.01 - Rights. No Employee, Beneficiary, nor any other person or group or their
respective successors, assigns or legal representatives shall have any right, title or interest, vested
or otherwise, in or to the Fund, Trust, corpus income or increments thereto, insurance dividends,
cash value, if any, or insurance or benefits or monies payable therefrom, payments from the
Fund, or in or to the eligibility requirements for the benefits as changed or altered. Any
participating Beneficiary who withdraws or ceases to participate in the Program does hereby and
shall expressly waive and forfeit any right, title or interest in and to the Fund, its corpus and
assets. No Employee, Beneficiary, or any other person or group or other respective successors,
assigns or legal representatives shall have any rights in or to the Trust, Fund, corpus, insurance,

10

49



dividends, cash value, if any, of insurance, income, benefits, or any benefits or money payable
therefrom, or anything arising out or in this Trust during the term of this Trust Agreement and
any benefits he or they may have is forever terminated and discharged upon the Employee's loss
of employment with the Participating Entity (quitting or discharge), subject to COBRA rights
pursuant to 42 USCA §300bb-1, or when this Trust Agreement is terminated, wound up, and
dissolved. No benefit, right or interest, if any of the foregoing, is transferable or assignable by
the Employee to another Employee or person, corporate or otherwise, except to physicians,
hospitals and any other person, or institutions furnishing medical services within the terms of this
Trust Agreement. No monies, property, or equity, of whatsoever nature, in the Fund, nor
insurance policies nor benefits nor monies payable therefrom, nor investments, nor deposits nor
any part or portion of the Fund, shall be subject in any manner by an Employee, or other
Beneficiary or person claiming through such Employee or Beneficiary, to ownership,
anticipation, alienation, sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, encumbrance, gamishment,
attachment, execution, mortgage, lien or charge of whatsoever name or kind, and any attempt to
cause the same is and shall be null and void.

ARTICLE IX - PROSPECTIVE MEMBERS

9.01 - Petition For Membership. A governmental unit desiring membership in the Trust
("Prospective Member") may petition the Trustees to join by completing an application form
available at the principal office of the Trust. The deadline to submit an application for
membership in the Trust shall not be less than three months prior to the proposed effective date
for membership. A fee, as determined by the Trustees, will be charged for the application
process. The Trustees, in a meeting, may through a' majority vote after approval by all
Participating Entities extend an invitation for membership to the Prospective Member, subject to
payment of the contribution required, in an amount according to the formula as determined by
the Trustees. Upon acceptance of the invitation, the Prospective Members shall pay the Trust the
formulated contribution for the purpose of establishing IBNR Trust reserves. This payment may
be in the form of a lump sum payment prior to the effective date of coverage or the first payment
of a prorated schedule of payments during the first 12 months of participation. The Trustees
shall determine the terms upon which a Prospective Member shall be admitted as a Participating
Entity, including, but not limited to, whether or not such Prospective Member shall have the right
to appoint one or more Trustees as provided in Article III if the Prospective Member is admitted
as a Participating Entity. Upon receipt of the lump sum or first of the 12 prorated payments. and
the compliance by the Prospective Member with such other terms as the Trustees may establish,
the Prospective Member shall be deemed a Participating Entity with such rights and obligations
of a Participating Entity as the Trust and the Prospective Member may have agreed upon.
Representatives of the Prospective Member may attend meetings but shall not be allowed to
vote, :

ARTICLE X - TERMINATION OF A PARTICIPATING ENTITY

10.01 - Voluntary (Without Cause) Termination, If an individual Participating Entity
desires to terminate its membership in the Trust, the following provisions must be met:

11

50



1. The Trustees must receive written notification of intent to terminate
membership 12 months prior to the end of the plan year in which termination is desired
(e.g. provide written notice prior to July 1, 1998 to be able to terminate on June 30,
1999), and,

2. Termination would become effective at the end of the plan year following
the required twelve (12) month notice period (e.g. if written notice received prior to July
1, 1998, Participating Entity would terminate participation on June 30, 1999).

3 Once termination is effective, a former Participating Entity may not apply
for readmission to the Trust for a minimum of three plan years.

10.02 - Involuntary Terminatioen (For Cause). In the event a Participating Entity fails
to make any required contribution of funds, or fails to comply with any of the other terms of this
Trust Agreement, the Trustees may, if such default is not cured within thirty (30) days' after
receipt of written notice, suspend the Participating Entity's Beneficiaries' coverage either in
whole or in part for a period of up to ninety (90} days without further action. The written notice
shall inform the Participating Entity that the suspension may be made permanent effective ninety
(90) days after the date of the notice. During such suspension period, the Trustees shall either (1)
determine that the suspension shall be made permanent, in which case this Agreement shall be
deemed terminated effectively ninety (90) days after the date of the written notice of suspension,
or (ii) determine the circumstances, if any, under which the Participating Entity's participation in
the Trust and coverage may be restored. Should the Participating Entity be permanently
suspended and this Agreement terminated, the Participating Entity shall forfeit all rights to any
distribution of surplus, contributions or other distributions from or assets of the Trust. In the
event of such termination, the Participating Entity shall be relieved of any liability for ordinary
contributions for fiscal years after the fiscal year of the Participating Entity's involuntary
" termination. Further, the Participating Entity's liability for additional assessments will continue if
the Trust becomes insolvent or is otherwise found to be unable to discharge its legal liabilities
and other obligations as determined in good faith by the Trustees, through the end of the fiscal
year during which the Participating Entity was terminated.

10.03 - Incurred But Not Reported Claims Liability On Termination. A terminating
Participating Entity, either upon voluntary termination or upon involuntary termination, shall be
responsible for its Proportional Share of claims run-out which exceeds Trust Fund Reserves
established for the incurred but not reported claims liability. A "proportional share” is defined as
the contributions attributed to the Participating Entity (including contributions made by or on
behalf of Beneficiaries in the Trust due to their affiliation with the Participating Entity as well as
the Participating Entity's. contributions on behalf of Beneficiaries) over the 12 months prior to
termination divided by total contributions to the Trust over the same 12 months. In the event
Trust Fund reserves exceed claims run-out, an amount equal to 75% of a Proportional Share of
such reserves will be returned to the former Participating Entity as set forth in 10.04.

10.04 - Final Accounting. Twelve (12) months after termination of any Participating
Entity, whether it be voluntary or involuntary, a final accounting will be made of the incurred but
not reported claims reserve in a manner set forth by the Trustees in its rules and regulations. In

12

51



the event of reserve excesses or deficit, as reflected in the Final Accounting, the balance shall be
settled pursuant to Section 10.03 above - (1) a terminating Participating Entity shall be
responsible for its Proportional Share of claims run-out which exceeds Trust Fund Reserves
established for the incurred but not reported claims liability and (2) a terminating Participating
Entity will recetve an amount equal to 75 % of its proportional share of Trust Fund reserves in
the event of an excess. Any deficit owed by the terminating Participating Entity, or any excess
owed by the Trust to the terminating Participating Entity, shall be paid within 60 days of release
and receipt of the final accounting.

ARTICLE XI - TERMINATION OF TRUST

11.01 - Termination by Participating Entities. This Trust may be terminated by
resolutions executed by a majority of the Participating Entities' governing bodies. An instrument
in writing duly executed by a majonty of the Participating Entities shall give the Trustees ninety
(90) days written notice of the effective date of termination. If the Trust is in a deficit position
upon termination, including the claims lag as determined by the Trustees, each Participating
Entity will share in the liability of the Trust, subject to the limitations as set forth in Section 6.02
above, until the Trusts business has been wound up.

'11.02 — Continue Until Completion. The Trust shall continue until terminated as
provided herein. Upon termination of the Trust by the Participating Entities, each Participating
Entity shall be responsible to notify all Beneficiaries affiliated with it and any other interested
parties, of the decision to terminate and its effective date. Any deficit shall be paid by the
Participating Entities on a proportional basis as set forth in 6.02. Notwithstanding any provisions
herein concerning the duration and termination of this Trust, the Trust shall continue in existence
for so long a period as may be necessary to complete its affairs. Upon final termination of this
Trust, after payment of unpaid claims and/or insurance premiums and other expenses and
" obligations of the Trust, each Participating Entity who was a member at the time of the decision
to terminate, shall be paid its Proportional Share (as defined in 10.03) of any balance in the Fund.

11.03 — Final Accounting. At such time as the Trust is terminated, the Trustees shall .
render a final accounting of the affairs of the Trust and the Trust Fund to the Participating
Entities, and thereafter there shall be no claim or action against the Trustees and they shall have
no further responsibility or duties and shall be discharged. Notwithstanding the above, no
Trustee shall be released or discharged for any malfeasance or wrongful conduct while in office.

ARTICLE XII - MISCELLANEOUS

12.01 - Power To Amend Rests With Participating Entities. It is anficipated that
conditions may arise that are not foreseen at the time of execution of this Trust Agreement. It is
the intention of the Participating Entities and the Trustees that the power of amendment which is
herein granted to the Participating Entities be exercised in order to carry out the spirit, objectives,
and purposes of this Trust. Any Amendment shall be binding upon the parties to this Trust
Agreement upon approval of the Governing Boards of each Participating Entity. Any such
Amendment shall be signed by all Participating Entities and cach Trustee.

13

52



12.02 - Workers' Compensation. The insurance coverage contemplated by this.
Agreement shall not apply in any case which is compensable under Workers' Compensation
Laws.

12,03 - Insurance Companies Not Parties To Trust Agreement. No insurance
company which may issue any policies or contracts for the purpose of fulfiliing the terms of this
Agreement shall be deemed to be a party to this Trust Agreement, nor shall it be responsible for
the validity of this Trust Agreement, nor is this Trust Agreement established in any manner for
the benefit of the insurance company or companies. No insurance company shall be required to
look into the terms of this Agreement, or to question the authority of or action of the Trustees, or
be responsible to verify that any action of the Trustees is authorized by the terms of this
Agreement.

12.04 - Applicable Law. Each Participating Entity shall comply with all applicable
federal and state statutes and regulations, including all applicable legal requirements relating to
civil rights and non-discrimination in employment. The County of Yuma, State of Arizona, shall
be deemed the situs of the Fund created hereunder. All questions pertaining to validity,
construction and administration shall be determined in accordance with the laws of the State of
Arnzona. This Agreement is deemed, made, executed and delivered in Arizona.

12.05 - Construction. Wherever any words are used in this Agreement in the masculine
gender, they shall be construed as though they were also in the feminine or neuter gender in all
situations where they would so apply, and wherever any words in this Agreement are in the
singular form, they shall be construed as though they were also used in the plural form in all
situations where they would so apply, and wherever any words are used in this Agreement and
Declaration of Trust in the plural form they shall be construed as though they were also used in
the singular form in all situations where they would so apply.

12.06 - Severability. Should any provision or term in this Agreement be deemed or held
to be unlawful or invalid for any reason, such fact shall not adversely aftfect the provisions herein
contained unless such illegality shall make impossible or impractical the functioning of the Trust.
In such case the appropriate parties shall immediately adopt a new provision to take the place of
the illegal or invalid provision.

12.07 - Clarification of Captions. It is understood and agreed that the captions headings
are for convenience only and are not and shall not be a part of this Agreement and in no manner
whatsoever define, limit, or expand any of the terms, obligations or conditions hereof.

12.08 - Cancellation. This Agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
511.

12.09 - Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in multiple
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which taken together
shall constitute one and the same agreement.

3
e}

14

53



SIGNATURES OF PARTICIPATING ENTITIES OR AUTHORIZED DESIGNEE:

By:

Governing Board President or authorized designee
for Arizona Western College

Print Name

Signed this day of ' ,200

Governing Board President or authorized designee
for Crane Elementary School District No. 13

Print Name

Signed this day of , 200

Governing Board President or authorized designee
for Yuma Elementary School District No. One

Print Name

Signed this day of , 200

%Zszzf/ _

Mayo?;ir’%uthon’zed designee for City of Yuma
AR S, (TS0t

Print Name

Signed this /8 dayof (Jo . 2004

15

54



SIGNATURE OF TRUSTEES:

By:

Daniel D, Hann
Trustee for Arizona Western College

Signed this day of , 200

Shane Turner
Trustee for Arizona Western College

Signed this day of | , 200

Michael Wicks ,
Trustee for Crane Elementary School District No. 13

Signed this day of , 200

Mike Jarvis
Trustee for Crane Elementary School District No, 13

Signed this day of , 200

Maureen Irr
Trustee for Yuma Elementary School District No. One

Signed this day of , 200

16

95



By:

By:

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D), the foregoing agreement has been reviewed by the undersigned
and 1t is in proper from and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws of the State

Kerry Jones
Trustee for Yuma Elementary School District No. One

Signed this day of , 200

o : )
Jd T Lol
Mike#l G. Callahan
Trustee for City of Yuma

. e ’ . Y
Signed this /5 dayof ) ueteeersy 200 ”[/
Jd

) o
{,-v? n d l‘__r.m-—--‘
s £l Y p
ﬁ,é:;/_. //’ ,s;__ijawﬁ ;

Bob Stull
Trustee for City of Yuma
Signed this /& day of Feeww ons : 200{4—’

of Arizona.

By:

By:

By:

By:

Legal Counsel for Arizona Western College

Signed this day of , 200

Legal Counsel for Crane Elementary School District No. 13

Signed this __dayof , 200

Legal Counsel for Yuma Elementary School District No. One

Signed this day of ,200

LA Do,

Legal Counsel\fbf City of Yuma

Signed this__| 9 _day of QQ,}AL{,JMAJ , 2006

IAFILES\DOCSYYUMA04\210378\DOCA\EQ2290.DOC

17

56



Yo

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14t Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov

September 25, 2017

Discussion and Action Item 5

To: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Board of Directors

From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the Third Amendment to the

Independent Contractors Agreement for Transit Advertising Services.

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve the Third
Amendment to the Independent Contractors Agreement for Transit Advertising
Services

Background and Summary: YCIPTA and All Access Media entered into the
Agreement for transit advertising services in Yuma County with a base term
beginning on April 1, 2012 and expiring on June 30, 2015, and up to two (2), one
(1) year extensions through June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2017. The two (2)
extensions where executed. YCIPTA desires to continue the contract for one more
additional year ending June 30, 2018. Before the end of this renewal, staff will be
preparing a new advertising RFP for transit advertising services.

Recommended Motion: That the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority Board of Directors vote to approve the Third Amendment
to the Independent Contractors Agreement for Transit Advertising Services

Fiscal Impact: None.

Legal Counsel Review: Yes

Attachments: Third Amendment to the Independent Contractors Agreement for
Transit Advertising Services

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

S7


mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/

For information on this staff report, please contact Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
via email at skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101.

Approved for Submission

Shelly Kreger
Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

58



THIRD AMENDMENT TO INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT
FOR TRANSIT ADVERTISING SERVICES

The Independent Contractor Agreement entered into by and between the YUMA
COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, a
political subdivision of the State of Arizona (“YCIPTA") and All Access Media Productions
("Contractor"), dated March 26, 2012, (the “Agreement”), is hereby amended as follows:

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and Contractor entered into the Agreement for transit advertising
services in Yuma County with a base term beginning on April 1, 2012 and expiring on June 30,
2015, and up to two (2), one (1) year extensions through June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2017, as
mutually agreed between the parties;

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement was extended pursuant to the First Amendment
entered into between the parties to be effective as of July 1, 2015, and the Second Amendment
entered into between the parties to be effective as of July 1, 2016;

WHEREAS, Contractor has been providing transit advertising services to YCIPTA
throughout the base and extended terms pursuant to the terms of the Agreement;

WHEREAS, YCIPTA has determined that the independent contractor relationship with
Contractor for transit advertising services may continue based upon the availability of funding,
and as such, YCIPTA’s Board of Directors authorized an amendment to continue the Agreement
for one (1) year; and

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and Contractor have mutually agreed to continue the Agreement
for one (1) year.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency
of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Amendment. The following Section Five is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following:

SECTION FIVE - TERM

The Term of this Agreement shall begin July 1, 2017, and end one (1) year later on June
30, 2018.

2. Other Terms and Conditions.

A. This amendment supersedes all oral negotiations and prior and contemporaneous
writings with respect to the subject matter hereof and is intended by the parties as the
final expression of the Agreement with respect to the terms and conditions set forth

YCIPTA/AII Access Media Productions THIRD AMENDMENT: Page 1

59



herein and as the complete and exclusive statement of the terms agreed to by the
parties. If there is any conflict between the terms, conditions and provisions of this
amendment and those of any other agreement or instrument, the terms, conditions and
provisions of this amendment shall prevail.

B. Except as expressly modified, amended or supplemented herein, all other terms and
covenants set forth in the Agreement, shall remain the same, shall be in full force and
effect, and are hereby reaffirmed and ratified by the parties in their entirety.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the parties hereto have caused this Third Amendment to
Independent Contractor Agreement for Transit Advertising Services to be executed through the
parties’ representatives as of the dates indicated below.

YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL
PuBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

By: Shelly Kreger Date
Its: Transit Director

ALL ACCESS MEDIA PRODUCTIONS

By: Elisa C. Velasco Date
Its: Owner

YCIPTA/AII Access Media Productions THIRD AMENDMENT: Page 2

60



Yo

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority

2715 East 14t Street, Yuma, AZ 85365-1900, Telephone: 928-539-7076
Fax: 928-783-0309, email: info@ycipta.az.gov, Web: www.ycipta.az.gov

September 25, 2017

Discussion and Action Item 6

To: Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Board of Directors

From: Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

Subject: Discussion and or action regarding the First Amendment to

Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and
Demand Response Services.

Requested Action: Staff recommends that the Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) Board of Directors approve First
Amendment to Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and
Demand Response Services

Background and Summary: On August 18, 2014 YCIPTA and National Express
Transit Services Corporation (NEXT) entered into an agreement to provide
General Public Fixed Route and Demand Response Services. The contract term
was for three (3) initial years with seven (7) one (1) year extensions. YCIPTA
desires to continue the contract with NEXT by executing the first one (1) year
option ending June 30, 2018. There will be six (6) one (1) year remaining options
on the contract.

Staff has requested several sections of the contract be amended including
removing the cap on liquidated damages, additional key performance indicators,
maintenance and key personnel, accident reporting and NEXT providing the
Demand Response service beginning July 1, 2017.

Recommended Motion: That the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority Board of Directors vote to approve the First Amendment
to Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand
Response Services

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

61


mailto:info@ycipta.az.gov
http://www.ycipta.az.gov/

Fiscal Impact: Included in current budget.

Legal Counsel Review: Yes

Attachments: First Amendment to Agreement for the Provision of General Public
Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, Exhibit A and Original Agreement.

For information on this staff report, please contact Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
via email at skreger@ycipta.az.gov or call 928-539-7076, extension 101.

Approved for Submission

Shelly Kreger
Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Board Of Directors
Bill Lee, Chairman - City of Somerton, Susan Thorpe, Vice Chairman — Yuma County, Larry Killman —
Sec/Treasurer — Town of Wellton, Greg Wilkinson — City of Yuma, Brian Golding, Sr.-Quechan Tribe,
Dr. Michael Sabath - Northern Arizona University, Dr. Daniel Corr - Arizona Western College,
Ralph Velez - City of San Luis, Paul Soto — Cocopah Tribe

Shelly Kreger, Transit Director

62



FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF GENERAL
PUBLIC FIXED-ROUTE AND DEMAND RESPONSE SERVICES

This First Amendment to Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and
Demand Response Services (“Amendment”), made and entered into September 1, 2017
(“Effective Date”), is by and between Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona (“YCIPTA”), and
National Express Transit Services Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“CONTRACTOR”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR are parties to that certain Agreement for the
Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, dated on or about
August 1, 2014 (“Agreement”);

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR desire to extend the Contract Term of the
Agreement pursuant to Section 4(B) of the Agreement and otherwise amend the Agreement
subject to the terms and conditions of this Amendment;

WHEREAS, YCIPTA is in need of the services of transportation services for persons
with disabilities that meet the criteria for using Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”)
paratransit service as part of the One Call-One Click Mobility Management Center called SARA
Rides, and CONTRACTOR is willing and able to provide these services, and as of July 1, 2017,
CONTRACTOR has been providing these services; and

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR desire to amend the Agreement accordingly
by entering into this Amendment pursuant to Section 57 of the Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency
of which are hereby acknowledged, and the mutual promises hereinafter given, YCIPTA and
CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

1. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined in this Amendment are used with
the same respective meanings attributed thereto in the Agreement.

2. The Contract Term of the Agreement is hereby extended such that it shall expire at 11:59
p.m. on June 30, 2018.

3. All references throughout the Agreement for the SARA Contractor are hereby deleted
and CONTRACTOR shall perform OnCall services that were previously performed by
Saguaro Transportation Services for the extended Contract Term in accordance with the
terms of the Agreement.

4. The last sentence of Section 1(M)(2) Demand Response Service is hereby deleted and
replaced with the following: “CONTRACTOR shall not be paid for the following, and
such time shall be subtracted from the Revenue Hours: i) bus operator breaks; ii) lunch

1

63



periods; and iii) idle vehicle time when the bus operator is off the vehicle more than 30
minutes.”

5. In Section 8(D), the words, “if applicable,” are hereby inserted after “(AWC)”.

6. A new Section 8(E) shall be inserted, causing the subsequent subsections to be re-
lettered, as follows:

“E. Maintenance Personnel: CONTRACTOR shall employ four (4) full time
maintenance personnel to provide the services under this Agreement and in accordance
with Appendix A, Section G(1)(d), and CONTRACTOR shall bill YCIPTA under a
separate invoice for the fourth (4™) maintenance personnel. YCIPTA reserves the right to
request additional maintenance personnel to be provided and paid for by CONTRACTOR
on an as needed basis, billed in accordance with pay equivalent to other mechanics.”

7. Section 48 of the Agreement is revised as follows:

i.  The seventh (7"") sentence in Section 48 is hereby deleted and replaced with the
following: “YCIPTA shall deduct liquidated damages from CONTRACTOR’s
monthly invoice.”

ii.  The eighth (8") sentence in Section 48 is hereby deleted in its entirety.

8. The following amendments are made to Appendix A of the Agreement:

i.  In Section A(2), the requirement for farebox revenue being counted while at least
two CONTRACTOR employees are present is hereby revised to require that
farebox revenue must be counted by a CONTRACTOR employee.

i. In Section A(7)(f), the reference to “CONTRACTOR” is hereby deleted and
replaced with “YCIPTA”.

iii. In Section C(17)(a), the words “and wax, with solutions pre-approved by
YCIPTA” are hereby inserted after the word “Wash”.
iv.  In Section G(1), a new subsection (d) is hereby inserted as follows:

“d. In addition to those minimum qualifications listed in G(1)(b), maintenance
personnel shall be required to possess the following minimum qualifications:

1) Maintenance personnel shall include two (2) or more Class “A” Technicians
and two (2) or more Class “B” Technicians as defined below. “C”
Technicians may fill a “B” Technician position for a period of no more than
six (6) months with a written employee development plan.

2) Class “A” Technician:

a) Purpose of Position — Makes diagnostic tests and repairs on or to any
vehicles assigned to the transit property in a reasonable time with
minimal or no supervision or assistance.

b) Primary Job Functions — Performs diagnostic tests on all assigned
vehicles and equipment; performs skilled Preventive Maintenance

2

64



Service; services and/or repairs all assigned transit vehicles,
automobiles, and miscellaneous light and heavy mechanical
equipment; and performs other duties as required.

c) Certified in both 608 and 609 A/C repairs.

d) Documented experience in the repair and maintenance of all types of
automotive and transit equipment or an equivalent combination of
training and experience.

e) Good knowledge of the repair, maintenance, and modifications of light
and heavy gasoline and diesel powered equipment, including transit
vehicles.

f) Ability to use all types of vehicle mechanic equipment and tools
effectively and safely.

g) Familiar with use of repair manuals and parts books.

3) Class “B” Technician:

a) Purpose of Position — Makes diagnostic tests and repairs on or to most
vehicles assigned to the transit property in a reasonable time with
moderate assistance and guidance.

b) Primary Job Functions — Performs diagnostic tests on all assigned
vehicles and equipment; performs skilled Preventive Maintenance
Service; services and/or repairs all assigned transit vehicles,
automobiles, and miscellaneous light and heavy mechanical
equipment; and performs other duties as required.

c) Certified in both 608 and 609 A/C repairs.

d) Documented experience in the repair and maintenance of all types of
automotive and transit equipment or an equivalent combination of
training and experience.

e) Good knowledge of the repair, maintenance, and modifications of light
and heavy gasoline and diesel powered equipment, including transit
vehicles.

f) Ability to use most types of vehicle mechanic equipment and tools
effectively and safely.

g) Familiar with use of repair manuals and parts books.

4) Class “C” Technician:

a) Purpose of Position — An entry level position for trade school
graduates and individuals that show general mechanical aptitude that
will allow them to learn and practice diagnostic tests and repairs on or
to most vehicles assigned to the transit property in a reasonable time
with assistance from the manager or other class mechanics assistance
and guidance.

b) Primary Job Functions — Learns and performs diagnostic tests on
assigned vehicles and equipment; learns and performs skilled
Preventive Maintenance Service; and with supervision, services and/or
repairs all assigned transit vehicles, automobiles, and miscellaneous
light and heavy mechanical equipment.

c) Ability to be certified in both 608 and 609 A/C repairs.

d) Graduate from a trade school or displays mechanical aptitude.

3

65



e) Understands the safe use of shop tools and equipment.
5) All maintenance personnel classified in any of the above shall also possess the
following:

a) Essential Knowledge and Skills

b) High school graduate or its equivalent.

c) Must possess a Commercial Driver’s License or the ability to obtain
one.

d) Must be able to pass an employment physical examination (pre-
employment or renewal) including a substance abuse screening.

e) Clean driving record.”

9. The following amendments are made to Appendix E of the Agreement:

Page 11-133 of Appendix E, Row 1, Column 2, is hereby revised to require that
the standard for reporting all accidents is immediately, and in no event more than
one (1) hour after the accident.

Page 11-133 of Appendix E, Row 2, Column 4, is hereby revised to insert the
following language: “In the event that a key personnel position remains unfilled
for more than thirty (30) days, then the fixed monthly charge shall be reduced by
the then current salary amount for that position until the position is filled. For the
purposes of this paragraph, key personnel positions include Operations Manager,
Safety and Training Manager, and Maintenance Manager.”

Additional Key Performance Indicators with the corresponding amount of
liquidated damages are hereby inserted in accordance with Exhibit A, attached
hereto.

10. The Agreement remains in full force and effect in accordance with its terms. There are
no other modifications, express or implied, except as herein provided.

11. YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR each represent to the other that (i) the party signing this
Amendment on behalf thereof is duly authorized to do so, and (ii) this Amendment is binding
upon such party in accordance with its terms. This Amendment may be executed in multiple
counterparts and by facsimile signatures with the same effect of an original.

---SIGNATURES ON THE NEXT PAGE---

66



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this First Amendment to
Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services on
the day and year first above written.

YUMA COUNTY INTERGOVERNMENTAL
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

> Shelly Kreger, Transit Director
ATTEST:

By:
Carol Perez, Management Analyst
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

Minda M. Davy, YCIPTA Legal Counsel

NATIONAL EXPRESS TRANSIT
SERVICES CORPORATION

Judith Crawford, Chief Executive Officer

67



EXHIBIT A

Additional Key Performance Indicators — Appendix E

68



AGREEMENT
FOR THE PROVISION OF
GENERAL PUBLIC FIXED-ROUTE
AND DEMAND RESPONSE
SERVICES

by and between

YUMA COUNTY
INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

and

National Express Transit Services
Corporation

August 1, 2014

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority August 2014
Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services

69



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1 DEFINITIONS ... uiiiiiioiiieniii i oottt et st ene e rinies 2
SECTION 2 SCOPE OF WORK . .....viiiiiit ettt e, 5
SECTION 3 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENT ....vivoviieei ettt 5
SECTION 4 CONTRACT TERM .....cooiiit ittt ettt sttt e erane 8
SECTION 5 COMPENSATION ......ooiiiiiiiii ettt et sttt et e e e e e e 6
SECTION 6 NON-REGULAR SERVICES ..ottt e st e 10
SECTION 7 RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT ......oovvveiiiieceeee e, 11
SECTION 8 CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL ......ooiviiiiiie e et 11
SECTION GVEHICLES ... i ettt st s tae e v e e ees 17
SECTION 10 VEHICLE WARRANTY REPAIRS ..ottt ettt sttt 17
SECTION 11 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT ...ooiiiiieiee e sen e v, 17
SECTION 12 INVENTORY ...ttt ettt e e 18
SECTION 13 MAINTENANCE, OPERATIONS ADMINISTRATION FACILITY ..cooovovoveveeen, 19
SECTION 14 COMPUTER AND TECHNOLOGY REQUIREMENTS. ...ovooovicivee e, 21
SECTION 15 FARE COLLECTION.. ..ottt ve ettt et 22
SECTION 16 SERVICE CHANGES ...t e, 22
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority August 2014

Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services

70



SECTION 17 OPERATION DURING A DECLARED EMERGENCY .........coccoeiviriveeerees s, 22

SECTION 18 MARKETING AND ADVERTISING .....ociiiiiiir ettt eee v 22
SECTION 18 PASSENGER COMPLAINTS .....covviiiiitiee ettt 23
SECTION 20 PROJECT OPERATION RECORDS AND REPORTS .....occovviviev vt ere e, 23
SECTION 21 INSPECTION OF WORK .....coiiiiiiciiii vttt ettt 26
SECTION 22 PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND ASSESSMENTS ....ocoooiiiieieei e, 26
SECTION 23 INSURANCE ...ttt ettt 28
SECTION 24 CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING ........ooooviieeiieeee e 33
SECTION 25 DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE ......ccocovevieieieieiececee e 34
SECTION 26 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND PERMITS ...ooovvviiecieeeerer e 34
SECTION 27 NO FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS .....ccoovivieiiee e 34
SECTION 28 DISPUTES ... .ottt ettt et e enes 35
SECTION 29.ASSIGNMENT ..ot e ettt e e b e st en s e enes 35
SECTION 30 SUBCONTRACTING . ....coitririe ettt ettt ev e enr e e e s ens s n et eene e 36
SECTION 31 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. ....cviiieiietrictes et 36
SECTION 32 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST ... oot 37
SECTION 33 DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION STATUS ...ooiviiiieiiicccee e 37
SECTION 34 FORCE MAJEURE ... .o e a e eee e 38
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority August 2014

Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services

71



SECTION 35 REPLACEMENT SERVICES .. ..ot e 38
SECTION 36 LICENSING., PERMITS, AND TAXES ..ot 39
SECTION 37 AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS........o it 40
SECTION 38 WAIVER OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS ... ..-o-oo+ooooeoooo oo 40
SECTION 39 CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT ..ot 40
SECTION 40 CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES ... .o e 41
SECTION 41 REMEDIES ... ..... oot 41
SECTION 42 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENGE .......ooiiiiiireiiecie e, 41
SECTION 43 TERMINATION BY MUTUAL AGREEMENT ......ocoiiiiivieniiie e 43
SECTION 44 TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT .....oociiriiiiiiii e 43
SECTION 45 AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS .......ooii it 45
SECTION 468 SEVERABILITY ..o i 45
SECTION 47 GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE ......c.coocoviininiimiinnincnine e, 45
SECTION 48 SERVICE QUALITY STANDARDS FINANCIAL INCENTIVE PROGRAM. .......... 46
SECTION 49 NOTICES AND OFFICIAL RECEIPT ..ot 47
SECTION 50 RISK & INDEMNIFICATION......eiieiiiniiiiiieiieiii e iescniici i seecreanec s e 47
SECTION 51 NO AUTHORITY TO BIND ..ottt iisiiieieisesiiisin s cssnisn e 48
SECTION 82 ATTORNEY S FEE S . ettt e et ier s et trretzs g e 48
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority August 2014

Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services

72



SECTION 53 INTERPRETATION .. .ueeiiiieinnessieie e cesieicnsierniin i cninciien s enieinenniiaa s 48

SECTION 54 CAPTIONS ..ottt e ettt e 48
SECTION 55 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE ..ot 48
SECTION 66 BINDING EFFECT ...ttt vt ieie e e nir e 48
SECTION 57 ENTIRE AGREEMENT ... iineiin i 49
SECTION 58 COUNTERPARTS. ..00iiiitiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiie ittt et 49
SECTION 59 REPRESENTATION ...ttt e et e 49
SECTION 60 SIGNATURES . ..ottt e e 50
APPENDICES:
APPENDIX A, SCOPE OF WORK ..o i caneiea, 51
APPENDIX B, FEDERAL CLAUSES.. ... . e e 93
APPENDIX C, REQUIRED FORMS. ..o i 106
APPENDIX D, BEST AND FINAL OFFER DOCUMENTS AND FINAL
COST/STAFFING PAGES ... e 127
APPENDIX E INCENTIVES & LIQUIDATED DAMAGES............ oo, 128

APPENDIX F: SERVICE PERIMETERS, FARE POLICY AND FLEET INVENTORY..136

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority August 2014
Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services

/3



AGREEMENT FOR THE PROVISION OF GENERAL PUBLIC FIXED-ROUTE

AND DEMAND RESPONSE SERVICES

This Agreement for the Provision of General Public Fixed-Route and Demand
Response Services (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of  August 1, 2014 by
and between the Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
(“YCIPTA"), a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, and National Express Transit
Services Corporation (“CONTRACTOR"), a Delaware corporation.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, YCIPTA conducted a “Best Value" competitive procurement process
as prescribed in the Federal Transit Administration's Third Party Contracting Guidance
circular 4220.1.F. to select a contractor to operate and maintain the general public fixed-
route transit services, known as Yuma County Area Transit (“YCAT"), and demand
response transit services known as Yuma County Area Transit OnCall (“YCAT OnCall™)
(hereinafter YCAT and YCAT OnCall are collectively referred to as the “Services”)
throughout Yuma County, Arizona, with service extended into eastern Imperial County,

California;

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR provides such passenger transportation services to

various individuals, corporations, and governmental agencies on a contract basis;

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR was selected by YCIPTA pursuant to this
competitive process, and was awarded the contract by YCIPTA Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR desire to enter into this Agreement to
describe the Scope of Work to be provided by CONTRACTOR and to set forth the terms
and conditions that will govern the operation by CONTRACTOR of the fixed-route and
demand response services covered by this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and the mutual promises hereinafter
given, YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR hereby agree as follows:

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 1
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

74



SECTION 1 DEFINITIONS

A. Agreement: The term “Agreement’ means this Agreement for the Provision of
General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, including the
following Appendices as attached, all of which are incorporated herein as part of this
agreement: Appendix A, Scope of Work; Appendix B, Federal Clauses; Appendix C,
Required Forms; Appendix D, CONTRACTOR's Best and Final Offer and Final
Cost/Staffing Pages; Appendix E, Liguidated Damages. In addition, the Request for
Proposals (RFP) and CONTRACTOR's proposal as well as CONTRACTOR 's Best
and Final Offer (BAFO) in response to the RFP are incorporated into the Agreement
by reference as if fully set forth herein; Appendix F: Service Perimeters, Fare Policy
and Fleet Inventory. Should conflicts exist among these documents, this Agreement
and the Scope of Work attached hereto shall control over the RFP; the RFP and
CONTRACTOR's Best and Final Offer shall control over CONTRACTOR’s Proposal.
This Agreement supersedes any other oral or written representation between
YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR.

B. Appendix: The term “Appendix” shall refer to the specified appendix to the this
Agreement.

C. YCIPTA Transit Director; The term “YCIPTA Transit Director” means YCIPTA's
Transit Director or his or her designee.

D. Commencement Date: The term “Commencement Date” means the date the

CONTRACTOR begins the operation and maintenance of fixed-route and demand
response service under this Agreement. The Commencement Date is currently
scheduled as Monday, August 18, 2014 at 12:01 a.m., uniess YCIPTA modifies that
date by written notice to the CONTRACTOR.

E. Contract Term: The term “Contract Term” means the term of this Agreement, which

is for three (3) years, with seven (7) one year options available.

F. Contractor: The term “CONTRACTOR" means National Express Transit Corporation.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 2
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

75



G. Consumer Price Index: The term "Consumer Price Index" means the average of the
percent change in Consumer Price Index The Consumer Price Index (CP!) United
States City Average, All ltems Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U).

H. Date of this Agreement: The term "Date of this Agreement” means the date this

Agreement is executed by both parties.

|. Days: The term “days” means calendar days, unless otherwise designated in this
Agreement,

J. Deadhead Time: The term “Deadhead Time” means the time during which a revenue

vehicle is operating outside of the time period during which it is available to transport
fare-paying passengers, such as movement between the Facility and the departure
point of a scheduled route, and between the ending point of a scheduled route back
to the Facility.

K. Facility: The term “Facility’ means YCIPTA's Bus Facility at 2715 East 14™ Street,
Yuma, AZ 85365 or any other location designated by YCIPTA.

L. Federal Transit Administration (FTA): The term “Federal Transit Administration” or

*FTA” means the Federal Transit Administration of the United States Department of
Transportation.

M. Revenue Hour: The term “Revenue Hour® means the total time a revenue vehicle is

available to transport passengers and excludes “Deadhead Time”.

1. Eixed-route: For the fixed-route service, a “Revenue Hour” begins at the first
scheduled stop and ends at the last scheduled stop of the service day minus
layover time (time at the end of each line) and other activities when the bus is not

moving in excess of 15 minutes.

2. Demand Responsive Service: Service shall be operated in an origin fo destination

type of service. This means that passengers shall be picked up or dropped off at
their location at the curb or door based on the disability of the passenger in
accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). The Contactor will be
paid on a per hour basis, as specified in SECTION 5 COMPENSATION, for

Yuma Gounty Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 3
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

/6



"Revenue Hours" operated pursuant to this Agreement. For compensation
purposes, Revenue Hours are calculated from the time the first passenger is
picked up to the time of the last passenger is dropped off. Bus operator breaks,
lunch periods, and idle vehicle time when the bus operator is off the vehicle more

than 30 minutes shall be subtracted from the revenue hours.

N. Revenue Vehicle: The term “Revenue Vehicle” means any vehicle owned or leased

by YCIPTA for the purpose of carrying passengers in revenue service and used by
CONTRACTOR to provide fixed-route or demand response services under this

Agreement or any amendments.

0. Revenue Service: The term “Revenue Service” means the operation of a Revenue
Vehicle in transit service with the expectation of carrying fare-paying passengers.

Deadhead Time is not included as “Revenue Service”.

P. REP: The term “RFP" means YCIPTA’S Request for Proposals dated Monday,
December 16, 2013 and issued Addendums #1, #2, #3, and #4.

Q. Road Call: The term "Road Call" means the Revenue Vehicle system failures applies
to the performance of a specific vehicle. A failure is counted when the specific vehicle

(e.q., 5009) fails to complete its scheduled revenue trip or start its next scheduled

revenue trip even when another vehicle (e.g., vehicle number 4004) is substituted
and no Revenue Service is lost. The failures may occur in Revenue Service

including layover / recovery time, or during deadhead (miles and hours). The
Revenue Vehicle system failures are reported in two categories:

1. Major _mechanical system failures are those that limit actual vehicle

movement or are safety issues, and

2. Other mechanical system failures.

Major Mechanical System Failures: These are failures of a mechanical element of

the Revenue Vehicle that prevent the vehicle from completing a scheduled
revenue trip or from starting the next scheduled revenue trip because actual
movement is limited or because of safety concerns, Examples of major mechanical

systems failures incfude, but are not limited to, breakdown of brakes, doors, engine

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 4
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

’r




cooling system, steering, front axle, rear axle, suspension and/or torque
converters.

Other Mechanical System Failures: These are failures of some other mechanical

element of the Revenue Vehicle that, because of YCIPTA policy, prevent the

Revenue Vehicle from completing a scheduled revenue trip or from starting the next

scheduled revenue trip even though the vehicle is physically able tfo continue in

Revenue Service. Examples of other mechanical system failures include, but are

not limited to, breakdowns of fareboxes, wheelchair lifts, heating, ventilation and air

conditioning (HVAC) systems and/or other problems not included as a major

mechanical system failure.

Further details are shown here:

http: //iwww.ntdprogram.gov/ntdprogram/pubs/ARM/2012/pdff2012 Resource Modul
e.pdf

R. Vehicle Hour: The term “Vehicle Hour” means the total time a Revenue Vehicle is in
operation, beginning at its departure from the Facility and ending on its return to the
Facility. The term includes the time a vehicle is in Revenue Service as well as
Deadhead Time, but does not include operation within the Facility, use during
training, or the transporting of a spare vehicle to replace a vehicle that is out of
service.

SECTION 2 SCOPE OF WORK

The CONTRACTOR shall operate and maintain general public fixed-route and demand

response services in accordance with this Agreement, and as more particularly

described in Appendix A, Scope of Work, attached hereto and incorporated by

reference as though fully set forth herein.

SECTION 3 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

A.

In General: CONTRACTOR shall, at all times during the term of this Agreement,
perform all services described in the Scope of Work diligently, carefully, and in a
professional manner, and shall furnish all labor, supervision, machinery, equipment,

materials, and supplies necessary therefore (other than equipment and suppiies

Yurmna County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 5
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

/8



provided by YCIPTA as specified herein) as required under this Agreement.
CONTRACTOR shall conduct all work in CONTRACTOR'’s own name and as an
independent Contractor (as provided in Section 31) and not in the name of, or as an
agent for, YCIPTA.

B. Compliance with Procurement Documents: CONTRACTOR'’s performance of
services shall be in accordance with this Agreément as defined in Section 1 of this
Agreement.

SECTION 4 CONTRACT TERM

A. Contract Term: The term of this Agreement (the "Contract Term”) shall be for three
(3) years and twenty (20) days, commencing on August 18, 2014 and ending
August 31, 2017 at 11:59 p.m.

B. Options: YCIPTA, at its sole discretion, may require CONTRACTOR to continue
under the terms of this agreement for additional periods of one year each ending
June 30, 2018, June 30, 2019, June 30, 2020, June 30, 2021, June 30, 2022, June
30, 2023 and June 30, 2024.

SECTION 5 COMPENSATION

A. Base Compensation: Except as provided in subsection (b), CONTRACTOR shall be
compensated as follows:

Period For each Revenue |Each month as a
hour operated fixed monthly charge

July 13, 2014 - June 30, 2015 $34.49 $74,839

July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016 $36.25 $77,686

July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017 $38.13 $80,672

July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018 $39.87 $83,617

July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2019 $41.94 $86,971

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 6

Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Rouie and Demand Response Services, August 2014

79



July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020 $44.05 $90,556
July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021 $46.32 $94 346
July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022 $48.97 $98,443
July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023 $51.60 $102,770
July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 $54.55 | $107,448

In addition to the above, CONTRACTOR will be paid a lump sum amount of $215,511
for startup expenses. This amount shall be due and payable in three (3) equal annual
installments no later than October 1 of the first three (3) years of the Agreement upon
receipt of an invoice. YCIPTA may pay the entire amount of startup expenses due prior
to October 1 of the third Agreement year.

B. Payments fo CONTRACTOR: CONTRACTOR shall be paid monthly in arrears,

within thirty (30) days of submission of an accurate monthly report as defined in

Appendix A, Scope of Work and based upon the fixed monthly expense plus the
variable hourly rate for all revenue service hours provided, unless otherwise mutually
agreed upon in writing. Each monthly payment shall be based upon the actual
number of in-service vehicle revenue hours for which CONTRACTOR is billing in
that month. If this Agreement is terminated before the expiration of the Contract
Term, CONTRACTOR's total payment shall be computed pro-rata based on the
number of vehicle hours operated. The amount of payment during each period shall
be as set forth herein. In the event YCIPTA fails to make any payment in full, as
provided below, in addition to whatever rights CONTRACTOR may have at law or in
equity, CONTRACTOR has the right to declare Agreement terminated upon forty-
five (45) days written notice and to take such other steps as it may deem
appropriate.  CONTRACTOR agrees to cooperate fully with YCIPTA's efforts to
obtain federal or state funds to make payments under this Agreement. YCIPTA
agrees to remit the payment to CONTRACTOR subject to the terms of this

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 7
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

80



Agreement. CONTRACTOR's cooperation shall include, but not be limited to, the
provision of applicable service revenue and cost information, passenger counts, and
other information needed to meet any regional, state, and federal requirement or as
required by this Agreement for planning and reporting purposes.

C. Invoicing Procedures: CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices to YCIPTA on a monthly
basis and in the format specified by YCIPTA. Upon verification of the accuracy and
completeness of the invoice by YCIPTA, the invoice shall be processed for payment
to CONTRACTOR. All invoices, upon completion of a monthly report shall be
submitted to YCIPTA by the 15th day of the relevant month after the month that
service is provided and shall be processed by YCIPTA within thirty (30) working
days after the date of submission.

D. Limit_on_Funding Availability: CONTRACTOR expressly agrees that any costs,

expenses or amounts due under or in any way related to Agreement are solely to be
paid from any funds obtained from the FTA or other entities providing a subsidy for
these services, together with all monies collected through the farebox or other sales,
and in no event shall this Agreement obligate YCIPTA's general fund or other
YCIPTA sources of money not allocated towards the operations and maintenance of
YCAT.

E. Farebox and Other Revenues: All fare and related transportation revenues are
property of YCIPTA. CONTRACTOR shall collect all farebox receipts in sealed fare

boxes, and reconcile all revenues received for collection by a armor car service.

YCIPTA shall be responsible for the provision of the armored car service.
CONTRACTOR shall maintain all account records and reports as required herein
and in Appendix A, Scope of Work. CONTRACTOR shall provide evidence
satisfactory to YCIPTA that the fare and related transportation revenues collected by
CONTRACTOR and reported to YCIPTA are the amounts actually collected.
CONTRACTOR shall operate the fixed-route and demand response service during
the term of Agreement pursuant to the fare structure established by YCIPTA.
YCIPTA and other authorized agents may audit the cash handling procedures as

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 8
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

81



well as fare revenue collected at any time, with or without advance notice to
CONTRACTOR.

F. Audits and Reviews: YCIPTA may at any time, at its sole discretion, conduct an
audit of any and/or all records kept by CONTRACTOR that are directly or indirectly
related to the services provided under this Agreement. Any overpayment or

underpayment discovered in such an audit may be charged or credited (as the case
may be) against CONTRACTOR's future payments. Appropriate financial
adjustments to future payments shall be made by YCIPTA based upon any
inconsistency, irregularity, discrepancy, under-billing or unsubstantiated billing
revealed as a result of the audit. Prior to withholding payment or deducting amounts
from future invoices, YCIPTA will give notice to CONTRACTOR and provide
CONTRACTOR with an opportunity to state its position on the issue presented.

G. Adjustment to Base Compensation: The Base Compensation provided for in

Subparagraph “A” herein for each Revenue Hour operated and for the fixed monthly
charge shall be subject to adjustment one (1) year after the Agreement Contract
Term specified in Section 4 and every year thereafter ("the Adjustment Date”).The
Consumer Price Index (CPI) United States City Average and, All ltems Index for All
Urban Consumers (CPI-U)}, shall be used to compute the adjustment. The

Percentage Change published most immediately preceding the Adjustment Date for
the twelve (12) month period prior to the Adjustment Date, less the relative
importance of Motor Fuel, as shown in the table “Relative importance of components
in the Consumer Price Indexes : US City Average” shall be used in determining the
amount of the adjustment. The percentage by which the Base Compensation shall
be increased is calculated utilizing the following formula:

Percentage Increase to

It

Base A x (100.00% - B)
Compensation
Where:
A is said CPl U.S. City Average, All ltems Indexes, All Urban Consumers,

Percent Change for the twelve (12) month period prior to the Adjustment Date.

Yuma County Intergovernmentat Public Transportation Authority Page 9
Agreament for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

82



B is said relative importance of Motor Fuel as shown in most recent table
“Relative importance of components in the Consumer Price Indexes: U.S. City
Average,”

In no case shall the Base Compensation be less than the Base Compensation set
forth in subparagraph (A) herein. In no case shall the new Base Compensation
exceed the preceding Base Compensation by more than five percent (5%).

If the Index is discontinued or revised during the Contract Term, such other
government Index or computation with which it is replaced shall be used in order to
obtain substantially the same result as would be obtained if the Index had not been
discontinued.

SECTION 6 NON-REGULAR SERVICES

A. General; YCIPTA may, in its sole discretion, require CONTRACTOR to operate and
maintain non-regular services that are in addition to the bus routes set forth in
Appendix A, Scope of Work, YCAT current route map/schedule. Except in
emergency circumstances, any such request will be made in writing, and will be
made not less than ten (10) days in advance of the date the non-regular services will
be provided. In an emergency situation YCIPTA shall give as much notice as
possible and will work in good faith with CONTRACTOR to provide non-regular
services.

B. Rates and Other Terms:

1. Compensation for non-regular services shall be in accordance with the actual
revenue hours operated at the rate per Revenue Hour set forth in Section 5
Compensation.

2. Except as otherwise expressly agreed in writing by YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR,
the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply to any non-regular

services provided under this Section,

3. The CONTRACTOR and YCIPTA shall negotiate and agree upon
CONTRACTOR's work and rate and method of compensation prior to the

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 10
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

83



implementation of any non-regular service as provided in the Scope of Work as a
‘Potential Future Responsibility” of CONTRACTOR.

SECTION 7 RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT

A. Responsibilities of CONTRACTOR:

1.

The CONTRACTOR shall coordinate, manage, and control all activities
necessary to carry out its responsibilities as set forth in Appendix A, Scope of
Work.

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the costs of all equipment and
supplies necessary for the performance of services under this Agreement except
as provided in Appendix A, Scope of Work.

B. Responsibilities of YCIPTA:. YCIPTA shall be responsible for carrying out its

obligations under this Agreement and as described in Appendix A, Scope of Work.

C. Administration of Agreement. YCIPTA’s Transit Director or desighee shall

administer this Agreement on behalf of YCIPTA. CONTRACTOR shall take all
direction regarding the administration of this Agreement from YCIPTA’s Transit

Director and/or his or her designee.

SECTION 8 CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL

A. In General:

1.

The CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for the satisfactory work
performance of all its employees as described in this Agreement or the
Procurement Documents, or under any reasonable performance standard
established by YCIPTA, CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for payment
of all of its employees and/or subcontractors’ wages and benefits. Without any’
additional expense to YCIPTA, CONTRACTOR shall comply with the
requirements of employee liability, worker's compensation, unemployment
insurance, social security, and disability laws, including but not limited to the
Americans with Disabilities Act. CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold

YCIPTA and its member agencies, officers, agents, employees, volunteers and

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 11
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

84



consultants, harmless from any liability, damages, claims, costs, and expenses of
any nature arising from any alleged violations of personnel practices, or of
statutory, regulatory, or contractual obligations to CONTRACTOR's employees,
except to the extent the liability arose out of the acts or omissions of YCIPTA.

2. CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that any service delivery provider,
individual or subcontractor assigned by or under contract to CONTRACTOR to
provide services under this Agreement shall perform their duties so as to not
unduly impair CONTRACTOR's performance as required under this Agreement. By
assigning a person, service delivery provider or subcontractor to work under this
Agreement, CONTRACTOR agrees to be responsible for the performance of that

person, subcontractor or service delivery provider during contract performance.

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that YCIPTA has the right to require
the removal of any CONTRACTOR empioyee, subcontractor or service delivery
provider that YCIPTA determines to be negatively affecting performance of work
under the Agreement as defined and observed by YCIPTA. Some examples of
conduct negatively affecting performance of work under the Agreement include,
but are not limited to, if the employee is observed to be intemperate,
troublesome, rude, disorderly, inefficient, or otherwise objectionable. Upon
receipt of written notice from YCIPTA that the poor performance of an individual
or service delivery provider under contract to CONTRACTOR, is unduly
impairing Agreement performance, CONTRACTOR agrees to remove that
individual, service delivery provider or subcontractor, from doing any further work
under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR agrees that neither it nor any employee,
subcontractor or service delivery provider is entitled to any additional
compensation for costs incurred as a result of the removal required by YCIPTA.
Any YCIPTA demand for removal will be made in writing to CONTRACTOR and
upon receipt by CONTRACTOR shall take effect immediately as directed by the
notice. Within five (5) working days, CONTRACTOR may investigate and

address the poor performance actions and if warranted, may request YCIPTA to

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 12
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

85



reinstate CONTRACTOR employee. YCIPTA reserves the right to reject
CONTRACTOR's request,

3. CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national
origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability, ancestry or marital status
as provided for in federal, state and local laws in the performance of its
obligations under this Agreement.

B. Operations Manager: CONTRACTOR shall designate an Operations Manager who
shall oversee the proper operation of services under this Agreement and who shall

remain in this position for at least 24 months, unless YCIPTA consents in writing.
YCIPTA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to reject any individual
CONTRACTOR proposes for the position. The Operations Manager's job
responsibilities shall solely include providing services for YCIPTA under this
Agreement and serve as an extension of YCIPTA's management team and shall
work cooperatively under the direction of the YCIPTA Transit Director or designee.
In addition, CONTRACTOR shall designate the Operations Manager as
CONTRACTOR agent authorized to bind CONTRACTOR to performing all aspects
of this Agreement, who shall be available at all times, either by phone or in person,
to make decisions or provide coordination as necessary. The Operations Manager
shall be responsible for monitoring all aspects of the service, including but not limited
to, ridership, quality of service, fare collection, operations, maintenance and repairs,
attitudes, motivation and employee performance. The Operations Manager shall
work a minimum of eight (8) hours per day, 40 hours per week, at least five (5) days
during transit service hours and reside in Imperial County, California or Yuma
County, Arizona on a full time basis. The Operations Manager shall have a minimum
of six (6) years of increasingly responsible management experience in transit
agencies that employ twenty (20) or more full time equivalent bus operators in a

union environment.

C. Maintenance Manadger: CONTRACTOR shall designate and provide the services of

a qualified Maintenance Manager. YCIPTA reserves the right, in its sole discretion,

to reject any individual proposed. This individual may be the lead mechanic and

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 13
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

86



shall be assigned to YCIPTA transit maintenance operations on a full-time basis.
The Maintenance Manager shall also provide proactive resource management
including but not limited to: preventive maintenance scheduling and supervision,
quality assurance, repair supervision, technical training, and such other activities as
may be necessary to ensure the performance of CONTRACTOR’s maintenance
duties and responsibilities. The Maintenance Manager shall have a minimum of six
(68) years' experience as a Maintenance Manager managing the maintenance
functions of a diesel and Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) bus shop similar in size
and complexity to the services herein described. The Maintenance Manager shall
also have a minimum of five (5) years of journeyman level experience with large
gasoline, diesel and CNG bus engines, air conditioning systems, and wheelchair
lifts. This experience shall include work on full sized transit vehicles (i.e., 35 foot or
larger transit coaches). The Maintenance Manager shall have experience
supervising the work of other maintenance personnel and shali be a working

mechanic in addition to their managerial duties.

D. Lead Road Supervisor: CONTRACTOR shall designate a Lead Road Supervisor
who shall assist the Operations Manager in the oversight of day to day transit

operations, safety and training of Service operations under this Agreement, and
under supervision of dispatchers and road supervisors. YCIPTA reserves the right,
in its sole discretion, to reject any individual proposed. The Lead Road Supervisor's
job responsibilities shall include: (1) assist in the oversight of all operations
personnel; (2) facilitating training for all operational related personnel; (3) ensuring
safety is being followed for all CONTRACTOR personnel; (4} the ability to train
employees as a Transportation Safety Institute (TSI) trainer, Passenger Service and
Safety (PASS) trainer and a third party tester with Arizona Department of
Transportation, Motor Vehicle Division (MVD) locally in Yuma; and (5) facilitate the
training of potential bus operators through a class developed in conjunction with
Arizona Western College (AWC), acting as the instructor of this class. The Lead
Road Supervisor shall have a minimum of three (3) years of operations, safety and

training management experience in a union environment.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 14
Agreement for the Provisicn General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

87



E. Changes in Key Personnel: CONTRACTOR shall not, without prior written notice to
and consent by YCIPTA, remove or reassign the Operations Manager, Maintenance

Manager, Lead Road Supervisor or any key management personnel identified in its
proposal, or appoint any new individual to those positions, whether in an acting or
permanent capacity, at any time during the Contract Term; provided that
CONTRACTOR shall have the discretion, following written notice and explanation to
YCIPTA, to remove any such individual pursuant to CONTRACTOR’s established
personnel policies. YCIPTA reserves the right to request removal of any Operations
Manager, Maintenance Manager, Lead Road Supervisor or any key management
personnel identified in its proposal if they are not meeting YCIPTA expectations and
CONTRACTOR shall provide an interim plan on the management of the Service until
a permanent replacement is found.

F. Requirement for Qualified Workforce: CONTRACTOR shall provide and maintain
throughout the term of this Agreement a sufficient number of properly qualified

personnel to operate and maintain the Revenue Vehicles and other equipment and
to provide the services required under this Agreement. The number, qualifications,
class, craft, and position of the personnel provided shall be in accordance with the
information submitted by CONTRACTOR in its proposal. This includes adequate

executive, administrative, supervisory, operational, and utility personnel.

G. Compliance With Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy: CONTRACTOR shall provide

pre-employment, post-accident, reasonable suspicion, and random drug and alcohol

testing of its employees in "safety-sensitive" positions, pursuant to the requirements
of the FTA and/or the Arizona/California Highway Patrol. CONTRACTOR shall
comply with 49 C.F.R. Part 655, as may be amended from time to time, and with
other drug and alcohol testing rules and regulations as may be required by the FTA.
CONTRACTOR shall submit reports of drug and alcohol tests quarterly on an
approved YCIPTA form, due no later than the 156th of March, July, October and
December of each year of the Contract Term and any renewals thereto. In
accordance with FTA procedures, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to submit to
YCIPTA its annual Management Information System reporting to FTA no later than

Yurmna County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 15
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

88



February 15 of each year. CONTRACTOR shall make other information regarding its

drug and alcohol surveillance program available to YCIPTA upon request.

H. Worker's Compensation: CONTRACTOR hereby certifies that it is aware of the

provisions of A R.S. § 23-901, and any amendments thereto, which require every

employee to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake
self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that statute, and agrees that it
will comply with such provisions and submit satisfactory evidence to YCIPTA of such
insurance or self-insurance before commencing the performance of work under this

Agreement.

|.  Additional Personnel and Services: If service under this Agreement is increased,

reguiring changes in the number of Revenue Vehicles, number of Revenue Hours,
number of routes, and/or service frequency, CONTRACTOR must have available, or
be able to acquire in a timely fashion, any additional personnel required for the
provision of such additional service within thirty (30) days of YCIPTA’s request.

J. Employees of Prior CONTRACTOR:

1. If CONTRACTOR was not the operator of YCIPTA's transit system immediately
prior to the Commencement Date, existing employees shall be afforded an
opportunity to apply for employment with CONTRACTOR in compliance with FTA
Section 5333(b) regarding Standard Transit Employee Protective Arrangements,
and the Special Warranty For Application to Other Than Urbanized and Over-the-
Road Bus Accessibility Projects Pursuant to Section 5333(b).

2. CONTRACTOR shall not be obligated or required to hire any existing employee if
CONTRACTOR determines that the employee is not qualified for the position
(under the terms of the Agreement or under CONTRACTOR's employment
standards and personnel policies), or if CONTRACTOR determines that the
employee should not be hired because of unsatisfactory past employment
history, had a failed Central Background check, or a prior felony conviction as
identified through a background check process.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 16
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

89




K. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986: CONTRACTOR assumes full

responsibility for verifying the identity and employment authorization of all of its

employees performing work hereunder in compliance with the Immigration Reform
and Control Act of 1986 and rules and regulations promulgated in connection
therewith (hereinafter "IRCA"). CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold
YCIPTA harmless from and against any loss, damage, liability, costs or expenses
arising from any noncompliance with the provisions of IRCA.

L. Requirement Pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b); In accordance with YCIPTA's

obligations to the Federal government in the operation and maintenance of a public

transit service, the Special Warranty for the Small Urban and Nonurbanized Area
Program agreed to by the U.S. Secretaries of Transportation and Labor, dated May
31, 1979, U.S. Department Of Labor implementing procedures for 49 U.S.C. §
5333(b), and any revisions thereto applies to this Agreement and is incorporated
herein by reference.

SECTION ¢ VEHICLES

YCIPTA shall provide sufficient Revenue and non-revenue Vehicles, including
“spares, for use by CONTRACTOR in providing the services required under this
Agreement, as described more particularly in the Scope of Work. CONTRACTOR shall
not operate, lease or charter YCIPTA-provided vehicles, equipment or other assets
used in any way in connection with this Agreement for any purpose other than that
specified in this Agreement, unless specifically authorized by YCIPTA in writing.

SECTION 10 VEHICLE WARRANTY REPAIRS

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the exercise and enforcement of all
warranties relating to YCIPTA-provided vehicles and equipment.

SECTION 11 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the proper maintenance and repair
of all materials and equipment used to provide services under this Agreement as
described more particularly in the Scope of Work.

Yuma County intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 17
Agreement for the Provislon General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

90



SECTION 12 INVENTORY

A.

General: YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR agree to prepare a joint written inventory of
all YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR provided equipment and supplies. This inventory
shall be conducted at the commencement and termination of this Agreement.
CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for returning the vehicles, equipment and
supplies to YCIPTA in the condition they were originally delivered to CONTRACTOR
in, less ordinary wear and tear.

Initial_Inventory: YCIPTA shall provide CONTRACTOR with an initial inventory of
equipment and other property provided by YCIPTA to be used to provide services
under this Agreement. Said initial inventory of YCIPTA property is attached hereto

and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein in Appendix C, Form
9, YCIPTA Provided Inventory. The initial inventory may be added to, and the
inventory list updated accordingly, during the Contract Term.

CONTRACTOR Duty: CONTRACTOR shall return to YCIPTA, at the expiration or
earlier termination of this Agreement, property and equipment of equivalent type
value (as of the date acquired) and condition as that identified in the updated initial

inventory list, subject to normal wear and tear.

Final Inventory: YCIPTA shall conduct a final inventory during the last month of the
Contract Term or as reasonable if earlier terminated. If any property or equipment is
determined, on the basis of a comparison of the updated initial inventory list to the
final inventory list to be missing, damaged, otherwise unavailable for use, or in a
condition that is in excess of ordinary wear and tear, the CONTRACTOR shall be
responsible for either replacing such property and equipment, or compensating
YCIPTA for its replacement value, at YCIPTA'’s sole discretion. YCIPTA, in its sole
discretion, may deduct any amount due for the replacement of property or
equipment from the final monthly payment due to the CONTRACTOR. If the amount
due for replacement of property and equipment exceeds the amount of the final
payment owed CONTRACTOR shall pay YCIPTA that excess amount within thirty
(30) days after notification from YCIPTA.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 18
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

91



SECTION 13 MAINTENANCE, OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATION FACILITY

A. Facility

1.

CONTRACTOR shall be deemed to have a revocable license to use the Facility
during the Contract Term. This right shall not be construed as creating a lease
(express or implied) or as giving rise to any of the legal rights or interests
associated with a leasehold interest in property. CONTRACTOR shall use the
Facility solely for the purposes of operating service under this Agreement.
CONTRACTOR's right to use the Facility may not be transferred or assigned.
YCIPTA, at its sole discretion, may allow other contractors the right to use the
Facility, with thirty (30) days prior written notice to CONTRACTOR.

YCIPTA, at its sole expense, shall be responsible for the repair and maintenance of
structural (such as ceiling joists, framing, floor slab, load bearing components and
similar items) portions of the Facility, except to the extent any such repairs or
maintenance are required as a result of the negligence or willful misconduct of
CONTRACTOR, its employees, volunteers or agents, in which event such
maintenance and repairs shall be performed by CONTRACTOR at its sole
expense. YCIPTA, at its sole expense, shall be responsible for security, as well as
maintenance, repair and replacement of all the extertor and non-structural elements
of the Facility and other improvements at the Facility, including the exterior walls,
windows, roof, gutters, down spouts and the common areas, abutting sidewalks,
driveways and asphalt and alt general mechanical, plumbing, sprinkler, life safety,
HVAC and electrical systems serving the Facility, except to the extent any such
repairs or maintenance are required as a result of the negligence or willful
misconduct of CONTRACTOR, its employees, volunteers or agents, in which
event such maintenance and repairs shall be performed by CONTRACTOCR at its
sole expense.

3. YCIPTA shall be responsible for janitorial maintenance of the Facility, including

restroom supplies, pest control and general cleaning of all offices. CONTRACTOR
shall be responsible for managing and coordinating the facility maintenance

functions on behalf of YCIPTA in accordance with YCIPTA's Facility Management

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 19
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

92



Plan. All costs associated with facility maintenance shall be the responsibility of
YCIPTA.

B. Environmental Indemnification:
1. YCIPTA hereby represents and warrants that:

a. The Property and Facility have been used, operated and maintained at all
times in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local environmental

quality laws, regulations, rules, policies and rulings; and,

b. To the best of YCIPTA’s knowledge, there has been no discharge of oil,
gasoline, diesel fuel, solvents, other hydrocarbons or any other hazardous
materials into or contamination by such materials or otherwise of the soil,
ground water, surface water, storm drain system, sewer drain system, etc., or
any other pollution from any use, operation and/or maintenance of the

Property and Facility at any time prior to the date hereof.

¢. YCIPTA shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local environmental
quality laws, regulations, rules, policies, and rulings related to use,
maintenance and operation of the Property and Facility at ali times prior to,
during this AGREEMENT.

2. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local
environmental quality laws, regulations, rules, policies, and rulings related to its
use, maintenance and operation of the Property and Facility at all times during
this AGREEMENT after YCIPTA complies with the testing, inspection, and initial
repair or replacement provisions herein on the following terms and at the
expense of YCIPTA:

3. YCIPTA shall have full responsibility for the proper removal and disposal of any
and all existing hazardous material stored on-site prior to the commencement of
CONTRACTOR's occupation of the Property or Facility.

4. CONTRACTOR shall have no liability for any matters relating to hazardous or
toxic conditions of the Property and Facility, environmental cleanup and disposal,

or of violations of environmental quality laws, except for liability arising out of or

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Autherity Page 20
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

93



related to the willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of
CONTRACTOR, its subcontractors, employees, agents, invitees, efc..

. YCIPTA hereby agrees to defend, indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR harmless

from and against any loss, cost, or expense, including reasonable attorneys'
fees, damages, claims or liability arising out of or related to the use, maintenance
and operation of the Property and Facility related to environmental quality
matters affecting the Property and Facility including without limitation,
contamination of soil, surface water or ground water, personal injury or property
damage and compliance with all applicable federal, state and local requirements
affecting environmental quality (except for liability arising out of or related to the
willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR, its

subcontractors, employees, agents, invitees, etc..

. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to indemnify and hold YCIPTA harmless from and

against any loss, cost, or expense, including reasconable attorneys' fees,

damages, claims, or liability arising out of or related to the willful or negligent acts
of CONTRACTOR related to environmental quality matters affecting the Property
or Facility but only o the extent that such damage or claim arose out of the willful
misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR, its subcontractors,

employees, agents, invitees, etc.

SECTION 14 COMPUTER AND TECHNOLOGY REQUIREMENTS.

A.

Equipment Specifications: CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the proper care

and handling of any YCIPTA provided computer equipment, as specified in the initial
or any updated inventory list. In the event computers are desired beyond those
supplied by YCIPTA, CONTRACTOR shall obtain a PC compatible computer(s) with
the minimum specifications set by YCIPTA.

Hardware:

. YCIPTA shall provide all computers and telecommunications hardware as set

forth in the Scope of Work,

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 21
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

94



2. The CONTRACTOR shall provide “flash drives” as necessary to back-up critical
files including, but not limited to, all reports, statistics, and digitally recorded
phone calls (“Critical Files”). CONTRACTOR shall utilize flash drives to backup
Critical Files. YCIPTA shall own these files during and at termination of the
Agreement.

3. Software: YCIPTA shall provide all computer software as set forth in the Scope of
Work.

4. Facsimile; YCIPTA shall provide and maintain an on-site operating facsimile
machine.

SECTION 15 FARE COLLECTION

The fare structure for the fixed-route and demand response services shall be
established by YCIPTA and may be modified by YCIPTA during the Contract Term.
CONTRACTOR's responsibilities for fare collection shall be as set forth in the Scope of
Work.

SECTION 16 SERVICE CHANGES

Changes to the services provided under this Agreement may only be made
pursuant to the process set forth in “Changes to Level of Service” section of the Scope
of Work.

SECTION 17 OPERATION DURING A DECLARED EMERGENCY

In the event of a declared emergency by YCIPTA Board of Directors or YCIPTA’s
Transit Director, CONTRACTOR shall deploy vehicles in the manner described by
YCIPTA's Transit Director. YCIPTA shall compensate CONTRACTOR during such
period of declared emergency for services which significantly exceed the normal
expense of operating and maintaining service under this Agreement.

SECTION 18 MARKETING AND ADVERTISING

The CONTRACTOR shall cooperate in YCIPTA’'s marketing and advertising as
described more particularly in the Scope of Work. CONTRACTOR may not use

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 22
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

95



YCIPTA, and/or Yuma County Area Transit ("YCAT") name or logo without YCIPTA’s
prior written consent.

SECTION 19 PASSENGER COMPLAINTS

The CONTRACTOR shall electronically track and address all passenger

complaints regarding operational or service deficiencies, after receiving the complaint or
having it provided to CONTRACTOR by YCIPTA in accordance with the following:

A.

If the complaint relates to safety or serious operational deficiencies, CONTRACTOR
shall;

1. Report the complaint to YCIPTA and contact the person filing the complaint
within 24 hours after it is filed; and

2. Investigate the complaint and file a report to YCIPTA explaining the results of the
investigation within three (3) days after the complaint is filed.

If the complaint is of a less serious nature (not covered by subparagraph
AYCONTRACTOR shall report the complaint to YCIPTA within 24 hours pf the
complaint being filed, contact the person filing the complaint, investigate the
complaint, and file a report to YCIPTA within three (3) days after the complaint is
filed.

. In all cases, CONTRACTOR shall make (and document) at least three (3) attempts

to contact the person filing the complaint.
Any unresolved complaints shall be forwarded to YCIPTA for resolution.

CONTRACTOR shall follow any other protocols established for customer complaints
as defined by YCIPTA’s Customer Comment Policy.

SECTION 20 PROJECT OPERATION RECORDS AND REPORTS

A.

General: In order to document services under this Agreement and compliance with
all contract requirements, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records as required by
good business practices and as described more particularly in the Scope of Work.

The records are designed to provide documentation of daily operations and wiil

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 23
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

96



serve as a database to monitor and evaluate productivity of the services provided
and the service requirements and methods.

B. National Transit Database: All public transit services provided for YCIPTA (including
fixed-route, demand response and special services) must be reported annually to

the Federal Transit Administration in a completed National Transit Database (NTD)
report. As part of the annual NTD reporting requirement, CONTRACTOR shall
compile the on-board data sampling to statistically compute valid passenger mile
data in accordance with NTD procedures as defined by FTA. Details on NTD,
including reporting and sampling is available here:
hitp:/fwww.ntdproaram.gov/ntdprogram/

C. Financial Records: CONTRACTOR shall establish and maintain a separate account

of all project expenditures and any other relevant financial records or documents,
and shail maintain complete records reflecting all farebox receipts, CONTRACTOR's
financial records shall be kept on a strict accrual basis and comply with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. All source documents shall be maintained for a
minimum of three (3) fiscal years following final payment and may be audited by
YCIPTA or the FTA at any time within this period.

D. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Report: CONTRACTOR shall prepare an
annual DBE report to be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of

each YCIPTA fiscal year. The report shall include;
1. A listing of all DBE firms used;
2. The type of procurement in which DBEs were involved; and

3. A percent (by dollar amount of purchases from DBE firms) as measured

against all other purchases.

4, This obligation shall survive for a period of one year following the

termination or expiration of the Agreement,

E. Equal Employment Opportunity (EEQ) Affirmative Action Report: The

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and implement an Equal Employment

Yuma County Intergovernmantal Public Transportation Authority Page 24
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

o7



Opportunity/Affirmative  Action Program and policy in accordance with FTA
guidelines. CONTRACTOR shall, not later than 30 days after the end of each
YCIPTA fiscal year, prepare and submit to YCIPTA an EEQ report which consists of
the following:

1. Workforce Analysis for each job category;
2. Job Group Analysis for each job category;

3. Hiring Analysis for each job category;

4, Promotional Analysis for each job category;
5. Termination Analysis for each job category;
6. Utilization Analysis that shows the ethnic and gender breakdown for each

job category as well as indicates the short term and long-term goals for
achieving underutilized minority groups; and will work with YCIPTA on the
preparation of this analysis.

7. Availability Analysis that compares the current workforce against the
available workforce and will work with YCIPTA on the preparation of this
analysis.

8. This obligation shall survive for a period of one year following the
termination or expiration of the Agreement.

F. Surveys: YCIPTA may elect fo authorize representatives of other public agencies to
inspect, audit and analyze the records of CONTRACTOR in operating and
maintaining service under this Agreement or CONTRACTOR's operation and
maintenance of any similar service. YCIPTA may, in its sole discretion, obtain
additional documentation of service through the use of passenger surveys. These
surveys may be administered by authorized representatives of YCIPTA or its
designee. CONTRACTOR shall ensure the cooperation of all personnel with any
operational procedures relating to survey work, including the distribution of survey

questionnaires or other actions necessary to obtain service related information.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 25
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

98



SECTION 21 INSPECTION OF WORK

A. In_General: All work (which term in this Section includes service performed, material
furnished or utilized in the performance of services, and workmanship in the
performance of services) shall be subject to inspection and test by YCIPTA to the
extent practicable at all times and places during the Contract Term and any
extensions thereof. All inspections by YCIPTA shall be made in such manner as to
not unduly delay the work. YCIPTA, or a third party designated by YCIPTA for this
purpose, shall have the right to enter the premises used by CONTRACTOR for the
purpose of inspecting and auditing all data and records which pertain to
CONTRACTOR's performance under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall make
available for review all records, equipment or other items that may be requested by
YCIPTA or its designated representative.

B. Re-performance: If any work performed is not in conformity with the requirements of
this Agreement, YCIPTA shall have the right to require CONTRACTOR to perform
the work again in conformity with such requirements at no increase in the total

contract amount. In the event CONTRACTOR fails to promptly perform the work
again, YCIPTA shall have the right, either by contract or otherwise, to have the work
performed in conformity with such requirements and charge to CONTRACTOR any
expenses incurred by YCIPTA that are directly related to the performance of such
work, or terminate this Agreement for default as provided in Section 45. When the
work to be performed is of such a nature that the defect cannot be corrected by re-
performing the work, YCIPTA shall have the right to (1) require CONTRACTOR to
immediately take all necessary steps to ensure future performance of the work in
conformity with the requirements of this Agreement, and (2) reduce the contract
price by an amount YCIPTA, at its sole discretion, deems reasonable to reflect the
reduced value of the work performed.

SECTION 22 PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND ASSESSMENTS

A. In _General: CONTRACTOR shall be held responsible for project management

according to the operating procedures and standards in this Agreement or any other

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 26
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

99




document produced by YCIPTA and in the RFP. YCIPTA may, after consultation
with CONTRACTOR, establish additional rules which are reasonable for the
operation and maintenance of transit service.

B. Operating Performance Standards:

1. The CONTRACTOR shall operate vehicles with due regard for the safety,
comfort, and convenience of passengers and the general public. Service shall be
provided as scheduled or according to any adjusted schedule established by
YCIPTA, including route modifications required as a result of a declared
emergency. YCIPTA will provide CONTRACTOR with notice of a schedule
change at least ten (10) days in advance of its effective date for changes of more
than three (3) trips or on more than one bus line; provided that less notice may
be provided in the event of a declared emergency.

2. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain on-time performance, however,
CONTRACTOR shall not be held responsible for the failure to provide on-time
service due to weather or traffic conditions, unavoidable vehicle malfunctions, or
naturally occurring disasters, if sufficient documentation is provided to YCIPTA.

C. Personnel Performance Standards:

1. The CONTRACTOR shall assure that regularly assigned vehicle operators or a

trained back-up vehicle operators are available daily to ensure consistent and
reliable service under this Agreement.

2. All CONTRACTOR personnel are responsible for knowledge of the service
provided under this Agreement. Personnel must maintain a courteous attitude,
answering to the best of their ability any questions from the public regarding the
provision of service. Customer service training must include a focus on
passenger relations. CONTRACTOR personnel must also report all passenger
complaints and/or operation problems to the Operations Manager immediately.
All passenger complaints shail be reported by CONTRACTOR to YCIPTA within
24 hours after being received. '

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 27
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

100



3. Vehicle operators must accurately and completely submit the required operating
reports each day.

4. While in uniform (whether on-duty or off-duty), operators must be in conformance
with the uniform requirements described in the Scope of Work. While not
performing official YCIPTA functions or going directly to and from the job site,
CONTRACTOR employees shall not wear uniforms depicting YCIPTA, YCAT or
YCAT OnCall logos and/or name.

5. CONTRACTOR personnel shall be able to speak English at all times and at least
50% of CONTRACTOR's employees must have bilingual skills to converse with
Spanish speaking passengers. If personnel hired are not bilingual,
CONTRACTOR shall ensure that such personnel have access to the Basic
Spanish For Transit Employees handbook.

D. Liquidated Damages: YCIPTA shall have the right in its sole discretion to assess
liguidated damages in accordance with Section 48 of this Agreement. The
CONTRACTOR shall have the opportunity to contest any liquidated damages
assessed, but this shall not affect the right of YCIPTA to invoice or deduct the
amount of liquidated damages from the monthly amount due to CONTRACTOR
while the matter is pending, and hold such amounts in a separate account until the

matter is resolved.
SECTION 23 INSURANCE

A. CONTRACTOR Insurance: Before the commencement of any services,
CONTRACTOR must provide YCIPTA with certificates of insurance and formal

endorsements identifying this Agreement by number or name. All insurance policies

required by this Agreement, except Workers' Compensation and Professional
Liability must name YCIPTA, and its member agencies, officers, officials,
consultants, employees and volunteers, as Additional Insured with endorsement.
Any insurance carried by YCIPTA, and its member agencies, officer, officials,
consultants, employees and volunteers, is excess to CONTRACTOR’s coverage,
and not contributory coverage to that provided by CONTRACTOR. All required

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 28
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

101



policies shall contain a waiver of subrogation against YCIPTA, and its member
agencies, officers, officials, agents, employees and volunteers for losses arising
from work performed by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR. All insurance policies are
subject to approval by YCIPTA. All policies must include an endorsement providing
that such insurance as is afforded under CONTRACTOR’s policy is primary
insurance as it respects the additional insured and that any other insurance
maintained by the additional insured is excess and noncontributing with the
insurance required hereunder. CONTRACTOR must give YCIPTA thirty (30) days
written notice before canceling, terminating or altering any policy. CONTRACTOR's
failure to furnish evidence of insurance and/or have continuocus insurance during the

life of this Agreement may be considered a material breach of this Agreement.

B. The Certificate Holder must be named as follows: Yuma County Intergovernmental

Public Transportation Authority and its member agencies.

C. All certificates shall be sent to; Yuma County Intergovernmental Public
Transportation Authority, Attention: Transit Director, 2715 East 14" Street, Yuma,
AZ 85365 or jandoh@ycipta.az.gov

D. Minimum Scope of Insurance: Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability Coverage (occurrence
Form CGO0Q001).

2. Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability,
Code 1 (any auto).

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of Arizona (A.R.S. §
23-901) and Emplovyer's Liability Insurance.

E. Minimum Limits of [nsurance; CONTRACTOR shall maintain limits of noc less than:

1. Worker's Compensation: insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and

state statutes having jurisdiction over employees engaged in the performance of
the work or services, and Employer's Liability Insurance of not less than
$100,000.00 for each accident, $700,000.00 disease for each employee, and

Yuma County intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 29
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

102



$500,000.00 disease policy limit. Workers' Compensation Coverage placed with
the State Compensation Insurance Fund is acceptable.

CONTRACTOR shall require sub-consultants to provide Worker's Compensation
and Employer's Liability with at least as much coverage as required of
CONTRACTOR in the previous paragraph.

2. Commercial/Business Automobile Liability: With a combined single limit for bodily
injury and property damages of not less than $5 million dollars for each
occurrence on all vehicles CONTRACTOR uses, whether owned or leased, in the

performance of the work or services under this Agreement.

3. Commercial General Liability: Insurance with an unimpaired limit of not less than

$1 million dolfars for each occurrence with a $5 million dollars General Aggregate
Limit. The policy must be primary and the coverage shall not exclude Explosion,
Collapse and Underground (X, C, U). CONTRACTOR must provide annual
Certificates of Insurance of continued coverage. No endorsement limiting or
excluding a required coverage is permitted. All coverage's shall be on an
occurrence basis. THE ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT REQUIRED
HEREIN SHALL BE AN 1ISO FORM B (CG 20 10 1001 AND CG 20 37 10 01),
OR EQUIVALENT. The insurance policy shall not exciude;
e bodily injury

e property damage
o pollution liability
* Employee Dishonesty

4. CONTRACTOR shall carry Umbrella/Excess Liability insurance with an
unimpaired limit of not less than $5 milflion dolfars per occurrence combined limit
bodily injury and property damage, and applies in excess of the Commercial
General Liability, Automobile Liability and Employer's Liability, as required above.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 30
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

103



5. In the event any of the above insurance policies are written on a "claims made”
basis, coverage must extend for two (2) years past completion of this Agreement
as evidenced by annual Certificates of Insurance.

F. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions: Any deductibles or self-insured retentions

shall be declared to and approved by YCIPTA, and either: The insurer shall reduce
or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as it pertains to YCIPTA, its
officers, officials, member agencies, employees, volunteers and agents; or
CONTRACTOR shall provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to YCIPTA that
guarantees payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and
defense expenses.

G. Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M.

Best rating of no less than A:VIl, unless otherwise agreed upon by YCIPTA via prior,
written approval.
H. Verification of Coverage: CONTRACTOR shall furnish YCIPTA with the original

certificates and amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this

clause. The endorsements should be on forms provided by YCIPTA or on other
than YCIPTA's forms provided those endorsements conform to YCIPTA
requirements. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by
YCIPTA before work commences under this Agreement. YCIPTA reserves the right
to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including
endorsements effecting the coverage required by these specifications at any time.

I Indemnification: To the extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and
hold harmless YCIPTA and its member agencies, officers, officials, agents,

employees and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses and
expenses including attorney fees arising out of the CONTRACTOR’s performance of
the work described herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or
omission of CONTRACTOR, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable,
except where caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of YCIPTA.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 31
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

104



J. Other Insurance Provisions:

1. Each insurance policy required shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not
be canceled, terminated or altered except after thirty (30) days' prior written
hotice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to YCIPTA.

2. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain at ali times during the term of this Agreement
name the following entities as additional insureds:

a) Arizona Department of Economic Security
) Western Arizona Council of Governments (“WACOG")

=

L)

) Yuma County
d)

e) City of San Luis
f) City of Somerton

g) Town of Wellton

City of Yuma

h) Northern Arizona University-Yuma
i} Arizona Western College
j) Cocopah Indian Tribe

3. Quechan Indian Tribe

4. Any YCIPTA vehicle under lien with the Arizona Department of Transportation
(ADQOT) shall meet the insurance requirements as defined in their latest Section
5311 Handbook available here:

http://iwww.azdot.gov/planning/TransitP rogramsandGrants/program-handbook-

applications-and-awards.

5. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A .M. Best's rating of no less
than AVIl.  Workers’ Compensation Coverages placed with the State
Compensation Insurance Fund are acceptable.

6. YCIPTA, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be covered as
insureds in respect to: liability arising out of work or operations performed by or
on behalf of CONTRACTOR; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed
by CONTRACTOR.

Yuma County intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 32
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

105



. For any claims related fo this Agreement, CONTRACTOR's insurance coverage
shall be primary insurance in respect to YCIPTA, its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by YCIPTA, its
officers, officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess to CONTRACTOR's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to require that
coverage shall not be canceled by either party, except after thirty (30) days’ prior,
written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to
YCIPTA.

. Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity coverage for the active negligence of
the additional insured in any case where an agreement to indemnify the
additional insured would be invalid under the Arizona Revised Statutes.

10. CONTRACTOR shall furnish YCIPTA with original certificate and endorsements

effecting the coverages required hereunder. All certificates and endorsements
are required to be received and approved by YCIPTA before work commences.
All insurance documents are to be sent to:

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
Attn: Transit Director

2715 East 14" Street

Yuma, AZ 85365

Email: jandoh@ycipta.az.gov

YCIPTA reserves the right to require at any time during the life of this Agreement

complete, certified copy of all required insurance policies, including endorsements

effecting coverage required by these specifications.

SECTION 24 CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The CONTRACTOR shall provide YCIPTA with a certification regarding lobbying

as required by 31 U.S.C. 1352 and 49 C.F.R. Part 19, Appendix A, and as may be

amended from time to time, before the commencement of any Services under this

Agreement.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 33
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

106



SECTION 25 DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE

It is the policy of YCIPTA that Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs), as
defined in 49 C.F.R. Part 23, and as may be amended from time to time, shall have the
maximum feasible opportunity to patticipate in the performance of contracts and
subcontracts financed under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR is encouraged to use
DBEs to the maximum extent feasible in the performance of contracts and subcontracts

for the services provided under this Agreement,
SECTION 26 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND PERMITS

A. In General: CONTRACTOR shall give all notices and comply with all existing and
future federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders of any
public authority relating to the performance of this Agreement, including but not
limited to, the laws referred fo in this Agreement and in the other Procurement
Documents. If these Agreement documents are at variance therewith in any respect,
any necessary changes shall be incorporated by appropriate modification, Upon
request, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to YCIPTA certificates of compliance with all
such laws, orders and reguiations.

B. Federal Clauses: Certain specific Federal requirements that may be applicable to
CONTRACTOR and to the services provided under this Agreement are set forth in

the Federal Clauses, Appendix B, attached hereto and incorporated by reference as
though fully set forth herein.

SECTION 27 NO FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS

The Federal Government shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to
CONTRACTOR or any other person other than YCIPTA in connection with the
performance of this Agreement. Notwithstanding any concurrence that may be provided
by the Federal Government in or approval of any solicitation or contract, the Federal

Government has no obligations or liabilities to any party, including CONTRACTOR.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 34
Agreement for the Provisicn General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

107



SECTION 28 DISPUTES

A. In_General: Any dispute between CONTRACTOR and YCIPTA relating to the
implementation or administration of this Agreement shall be subject to resclution in
accordance with this Section.

B. Decision Process: The parties shall first attempt to resolve the dispute informally in

meetings or communications between CONTRACTOR and the Transit Director. If
the dispute remains unresolved 15 days after it first arises, CONTRACTOR may
request that the YCIPTA's Transit Operations and Planning Committee hear the
dispute and issue a recommended decision on the matter in dispute. The YCIPTA
Transit Operations and Planning Committee action shall be the final resolution of the
dispute between YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR. In connection with any such review,
CONTRACTOR and YCIPTA Transit Director shall be afforded an opportunity to be

heard and to offer evidence on the issues presented.

C. Continuing Duty: Pending final resolution of a dispute under this Section,

CONTRACTOR shall proceed diligently with performance in accordance with this
Agreement and the recommended decision of YCIPTA Transit Director.

D. Attorneys' Fees: If any action at law or in equity is brought on account of any breach

of Agreement, or to enforce or interpret Agreement or any provision hereof, the
prevailing party in such action shall be entitled to recover from the other party its
attorneys' fees and costs of suit, the amount of which shall be fixed by the Court and

made a part of any judgment rendered.
SECTION 29 ASSIGNMENT

A. CONTRACTOR: YCIPTA has awarded this Agreement in reliance on the particular
expertise, skills, experience, and ability of CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR may not
assign this Agreement (or any portion thereof), nor shall CONTRACTOR transfer its

interests, rights, duties, or responsibilities under this Agreement, unless YCIPTA in
its sole discretion grants prior written approval thereto. This requirement for approval
extends to any merger or consolidation involving CONTRACTOR which would cause

its responsibilities under this Agreement to be assumed by or transferred to a new,

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transpertation Authority Page 35
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

108



different, or restructured entity. This provision is separate and apart from the
provisions concerning subcontracting set forth in Section 30.

B. YCIPTA: YCIPTA reserves the right to assign its responsibilities under Agreement to
any existing or future governmental entity for the provision of public transportation
services. Such assignment shall constitute a complete novation of the Agreement,
and receipt by CONTRACTOR from YCIPTA of sums then due and payable for
services rendered pursuant to Agreement prior to assignment shall constitute
complete accord and satisfaction between YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR.

SECTION 30 SUBCONTRACTING

CONTRACTOR shall not enter into any subcontract for any portion of the work
required hereunder without the prior review and written approval of YCIPTA. In any
such case in which CONTRACTOR desires to enter into such a subcontract, it shall
provide YCIPTA with all proposed subcontracting agreements and documents, including
scope of work and terms of compensation. CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible
for all work performed by any subcontractor.

Further, the entering into of a subcontract shall not, under any circumstances,
relieve CONTRACTOR of its obligations, responsibilities, and liabilities under this
Agreement.  All transactions and communications with YCIPTA regarding the
performance of this Agreement must be through CONTRACTOR. Any approval of a
subcontract shall not be construed as making YCIPTA a party to such subcontract,
giving the subcontractor privity of contract with YCIPTA, or subjecting YCIPTA, its
member agencies, officers, employees, volunteers or agents to liability of any kind to
any subcontractor.

SECTION 31 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Under the terms of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor
and has and retains full control and supervision of the services it performs and also has
full control over the employment and direct compensation and discharge of all persons,
other than YCIPTA representatives, assisting in the performance of its services.
CONTRACTOR agrees to be solely responsible for all matters relating to wages, hours

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 36
Agreement for the Provision Ganeral Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

109



of work, and working conditions and payment of employees (including the negotiation of
labor agreements, if applicable), and for compliance with social security, all payroll
taxes and withholdings, unemployment compensation, and all other requirements
relating to such matters. CONTRACTOR agrees to be responsible for its own acts and
those of its subordinates, employees, and any and all subcontractors during the term of
this Agreement. CONTRACTOR agrees to comply fully with the worker's compensation
laws of the State of Arizona regarding its employees, and to indemnify and hold
harmless YCIPTA from any failure to comply with such laws,

SECTION 32 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

A. Individual Conflicts: No YCIPTA Board Member nor member of the staff of YCIPTA

shall participate in the award or administration of this Agreement if a conflict of

interest, real or apparent, would be involved. Such a conflict shall be determined in
accordance with the Conflict of Interest Code adopted by YCIPTA's Board of
Directors and applicable federal and state laws and regulations.

B. Pecuniary Interests: YCIPTA Board Members and staff shall neither solicit, demand,

nor accept from any person anything of a pecuniary value for or because of any

action taken or to be taken in the performance of their duties.

C. Organizational Conflict of Interest: Prior to entering into this Agreement,
CONTRACTOR was required to inform YCIPTA of any real or apparent

organizational conflict of interest. Such organizational conflicts of interest exists

when the nature of the work to be performed under a contract may, without some
restriction on future activities, result in an unfair competitive advantage to
CONTRACTOR, or may affect CONTRACTOR's objectivity in performing the
services provided under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall promptly inform
YCIPTA if any such organizational conflict of interest arises during the term of this
Agreement.

SECTION 33 DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION STATUS

The CONTRACTOR has provided YCIPTA with a certification addressing its
debarment and suspension status and that of its principals. During the term of this

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 37
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

110



Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall inform YCIPTA, in writing, of any change in the
suspension or debarment status of CONTRACTOR or its principals within ten (10) days
after such change occurs.

SECTION 34 FORCE MAJEURE

The CONTRACTOR shall not be liable for any failure to perform if acceptable
evidence has been submitted to YCIPTA that failure to perform this Agreement was due
to causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of CONTRACTOR.
Examples of such causes include acts of God, or of the public enemy, civil
disturbances, fire, war, or floods, but do not include labor related incidents, such as
strikes or work stoppages. In the event that CONTRACTOR negoctiates a non-strike
agreement with the union, the Parties hereto shall modify this Section 34, in writing, to

include strikes and work stoppages as examples of Force Majeure.
SECTION 35 REPLLACEMENT SERVICES

A. General Authority: In the event that CONTRACTOR is unable, due to a strike, work

stoppage, bankruptcy or other financial distress, or other event not caused by

YCIPTA and not covered by Section 38 to provide services in full compliance with
the requirements of this Agreement, then YCIPTA may (in lieu of finding
CONTRACTOR in default) obtain the services of a replacement operator or provide
the services with its own resources (collectively referred to as “replacement
services”). YCIPTA may utilize such replacement services as a substitute for all or
any part of CONTRACTOR's services, and may maintain such replacement services

in effect until either:

1. The CONTRACTOR is able to resume performance in full compliance with this
Agreement; or

2. YCIPTA procures a permanent replacement contractor prior to implementing
replacement services. YCIPTA shall notify CONTRACTOR in writing and provide
CONTRACTOR three (3) days in which to cure its noncompliance.

B. Liability: If YCIPTA utilizes replacement services under this Section, CONTRACTOR
shall be liable to YCIPTA for the actual amount by which the cost of such services

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 38
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

111



exceeds the amount that would have been payable under this Agreement for
comparable services, including any expenses (including internal administrative
costs) incurred by YCIPTA in soliciting and obtaining those services. During the
period in which any replacement services are provided, the only compensation

payable to CONTRACTOR shall be for any hours of service CONTRACTOR actually
provides.

. Savings Clause: Any action taken by YCIPTA pursuant to this Section in response to
CONTRACTOR's failure to perform shall not preclude YCIPTA from subsequently
finding the CONTRACTOR in default of this Agreement for the same or any related
failure to perform.

. Contingency Staffing Plan: If required by YCIPTA, CONTRACTOR shall develop and
provide to YCIPTA (through briefings or other appropriate means) a Contingency
Plan to assure the continued and uninterrupted operation of services under this
Agreement in the event of any strike or work stoppage engaged in by
CONTRACTOR’s employees. The Contingency Plan shall set forth all steps to be
taken by CONTRACTOR to assure compliance with the requirements set forth in this
Section, including, but not limited to, plans for solicitation of replacement workers,
hiring and training of workers, use of subcontractors, and reliance upon

CONTRACTOR management staff and personnel from other operations.

. Notification to Public: In the event of service disruption, CONTRACTOR shall post
rider alerts on an YCIPTA approved format if the service disruption lasts more than

24 hours and post announcements on YCIPTA Social Media sites.

SECTION 36 LICENSING, PERMITS, AND TAXES

The CONTRACTOR shall be appropriately licensed for the services to be

performed under this Agreement. The cost for any required licenses or permits shall be
the responsibility of CONTRACTOR, other than the licensing fees for the Revenue
Vehicles paid by YCIPTA. CONTRACTOR is liable for all taxes due as a result of

performance of services under this Agreement.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 39
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

112



SECTION 37 AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS

The CONTRACTOR agrees that YCIPTA, any Member Agency of YCIPTA,
Yuma Metropolitan Planning Organization (“YMPO"), ADOT, Imperial County
Transportation Commission, Federal Transit Administration (FTA), California
Department of Transportation (Caltrans), the Comptroller General of the United States,
and the Secretary of Transportation, or any of their duly authorized representatives,
shall, for the purpose of audit and examination, be permitted to inspect all work,
materials, payrolls, and other data and records, and to audit the books, records, and
accounts relating to the performance of this Agreement. Further, CONTRACTOR
agrees to maintain all required records for at least three (3) years after YCIPTA has
made final payment and all other pending matters related to this Agreement or the
services provided hereunder are resolved.

SECTION 38 WAIVER OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The failure of YCIPTA or CONTRACTOR to enforce one or more of the terms or
conditions of this Agreement or to exercise any of its rights or privileges, or the waiver
by YCIPTA of any breach of such terms or conditions, shall not be construed as
thereafter waiving any such terms, conditions, rights, or privileges, and the same shall

continue and remain in full force and effect as if no waiver had occurred.
SECTION 39 CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT

A. In any of the following cases, YCIPTA shall have the right to cancel this Agreement
immediately upon notice to CONTRACTOR and without expense to YCIPTA.

1. The CONTRACTOR is guilty of misrepresentation; or

2. This Agreement is obtained by fraud, collusion, conspiracy, or other unlawful

means; or

3. This Agreement conflicts with any statutory or constitutional provision of the State
of Arizona or the United States.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 40
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

113



B. This Section shall not be construed to limit YCIPTA's right to terminate this
Agreement for convenience or default, as provided in Sections 43 and 45
respectively.

SECTION 40 CLAIMS FOR DAMAGES

Should either party to the Agreement suffer injury or damage to person or
property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, agents
or others for whose acts he is legally liable, a claim for damages therefore shall be
made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after the first observance of‘
such injury of damage.

SECTION 41 REMEDIES

Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and
other matters in question between YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR arising out of or relating
to this agreement or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually
agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the State in which YCIPTA is
located.

The duties and obligations imposed by YCIPTA Documents and the rights and
remedies available thereunder shal!l be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties,
obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or
failure to act by YCIPTA, or CONTRACTOR shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty
afforded any of them under the Agreement.

SECTION 42 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

A. General:

1. The performance of work under this Agreement may be terminated by YCIPTA in
accordance with this Section in whole, or from time to time in part, whenever
YCIPTA Transit Director determines that such termination is in the best interest
of YCIPTA. Any such termination shall be effected by delivery to CONTRACTOR

of a notice of termination, at a minimum of ninety (90) days’ notice, specifying the

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 41
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

114



extent to which performance of work under this Agreement is terminated and the

date upon which such termination becomes effective.

Under no circumstances shall CONTRACTOR be entitled to anticipatory or
unearned profits or consequential damages as a result of a termination or partial
termination under this Section or for any other termination by YCIPTA. The
payment to CONTRACTOR determined in accordance with this Section shall
constitute the exclusive remedy of CONTRACTOR for a termination hereunder.

B. Actions upon Notice: Upon receipt of a notice of termination, and except as

otherwise directed by YCIPTA'’s Transit Director, CONTRACTOR shall:

1.

Stop work under this Agreement on the date and to the extent specified in the

notice of termination;

Place no further orders or subcontracts for materials, services, or facilities,
except as may be necessary for completion of such portion of the work under this
Agreement as is not terminated;

Terminate all orders and subcontracts to the extent that they relate to the

performance of work terminated by the notice of termination;

Assign to YCIPTA in the manner, at the times, and to the extent directed by
YCIPTA's Transit Director, all of the rights, title and interest of CONTRACTOR

under the orders and subcontracts so terminated;

Settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of
orders and subcontracts, with the approval or ratification of YCIPTA, to the extent
YCIPTA Transit Director may require, which approval or ratification shall be final
for all the purposes of this Section;

Transfer title to YCIPTA and deliver in the manner, at the times, and to the
extent, if any, directed by YCIPTA’s Transit Director, supplies, equipment, and
other material produced as a part of, or acquired in connection with the

performance of the work terminated, and any information and other property

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 42
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

115



which, if this Agreement had been completed, would have been required to be
furnished to YCIPTA,

Complete any such part of the work as shall not have been terminated by the
notice of termination; and

. Take such action as may be necessary, or as YCIPTA's Transit Director may

direct, for the protection and preservation of the property related to this
Agreement which is in the possession of CONTRACTOR and in which YCIPTA
has or may acquire an interest.

Payments by YCIPTA to CONTRACTOR shall be made within sixty (60) days after
the date of termination but not thereafter. Except as otherwise provided, settlement
of claims by CONTRACTOR under this Section shall be in accordance with the
provisions set forth in 48 C.F.R. Part 49, as amended from time to time.

SECTION 43 TERMINATION BY MUTUAL AGREEMENT

This Agreement may be terminated by mutual agreement of the parties. Such

termination shall be effective in accordance with a prior written agreement executed by

the parties. Any other act of termination shall be in accordance with the termination by

convenience or default provisions contained in Sections 44 and 46.

SECTION 44 TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT

A. In General: Subject to the provisions of Subsection C of this Section, YCIPTA may

terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement in any one of the following

circumstances:

1.

If CONTRACTOR fails to provide the services in the manner required by this

Agreement;
2. If CONTRACTOCR fails to perform any of the provisions, in whole or in part, of this
Agreement in accordance with its terms;
3. If CONTRACTOR fails to make progress in the prosecution of the work under this
Agreement so as to endanger such performance;
Yuma County tntergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 43

Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

116



4. If CONTRACTOR files for bankruptcy, becomes insolvent, or is unable or
otherwise fails to pay or otherwise satisfy, in the ordinary course of business, its

financial obligations to its suppliers, subcontractors, or employees; or

5. If CONTRACTOR, its employees, agents, represented employees through a
collective bargaining unit violates YCIPTA’s Media Referral Policy as defined in
Appendix A, Scope of Work and/or defames YCIPTA or its staff publicly while
representing CONTRACTOR during the term of this Agreement.

B. Re-procurement: In the event that YCIPTA terminates this Agreement in whole or in

part as provided in Subsection A of this Section, YCIPTA may procure, upon such
terms, and in such manner as YCIPTA’s Transit Director may deem appropriate,
supplies or services similar to those so terminated. CONTRACTOR shall be liable to
YCIPTA for costs associated with the termination of this Agreement, the
procurement of replacement services by YCIPTA, any excess costs of such similar
supplies or services, and any increase in the total contract cost as a result of the re-
procurement of services from the date of termination to the expiration date of this
Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall continue the performance of this Agreement to
the extent not terminated under the provisions of this Section. Any disputes arising
under this Section that cannot be resolved by CONTRACTOR and YCIPTA are
subject to resolution pursuant to Section 32 of this Agreement.

C. Notice: If YCIPTA determines that an event of default under this Section has
occurred, it shall immediately notify CONTRACTOR in writing and provide the
CONTRACTOR with ten (10) days in which to cure such default. If the
CONTRACTOR fails to cure within such time period, YCIPTA may declare the
CONTRACTOR to be in default and terminate this Agreement in whole or in part.

D. Claims: Except as otherwise provided, seitlement of claims by CONTRACTOR
under this Section shall be in accordance to the provisions set forth in 48 C.F.R. Part
49, as amended from time to time.

E. Transition to Future CONTRACTOR: For up to sixty (60) days prior to the effective

date of the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason,

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 44
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

117



CONTRACTOR shall provide to either YCIPTA or to any future contractor(s)
selected by YCIPTA, CONTRACTOR's full cooperation in the ftransition to the
successor contractor(s). This shall include, as a minimum, consultation regarding
labor and management issues (including a delineation of wage and benefits by
employee category), access to non-confidential personnel and maintenance files,
sharing of Facility space and ability to talk to personnel. CONTRACTOR shall
provide its best professional effort to assure a smooth transition from
CONTRACTOR's services to new contractor(s’) services, and shall cooperate fully
with YCIPTA and the new contractor(s) to this end.

SECTION 45 AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The obligations of YCIPTA under this Agreement are subject to the availability of
public funds and vehicles in its current and subsequent year budgets adequate to carry
out the provisions of this Agreement in full.

SECTION 46 SEVERABILITY

In the event any provision, or any portion of any provision, of this Agreement is
declared or determined to be unlawful, invalid, or unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction, such declaration shall not affect in any manner, the legality of the remaining
provisions of this Agreement, and each provision of this Agreement will be and is
deemed to be separate and severable from each other provision.

SECTION 47 GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE

This Agreement shall be subject to, governed by, and construed and interpreted
solely according to the laws of the State of Arizona. CONTRACTOR hereby consents
and agrees that any controversy, dispute or litigation arising out of, and/or in any way
connected to, this Agreement shall be brought or commenced only in a court of proper
jurisdiction in Yuma County, Arizona, and shall be exclusively vested in the state courts

of Yuma County.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 45
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

118



SECTION 48 SERVICE QUALITY STANDARDS FINANCIAL INCENTIVE PROGRAM

YCIPTA provides for financial incentives fo CONTRACTOR in the event that
certain administrative and operational goals are met. Additionally, because damages
are difficult to measure, the parties agree that YCIPTA may assess liquidated damages
in the amounts set forth in Appendix E to compensate and make YCIPTA whole in the
event that CONTRACTOR fails to meet YCIPTA's expectations. Liguidated damages
are determined contractually. In the event YCIPTA assesses such liquidated damages,
YCIPTA shall notify CONTRACTOR of such assessment within thirty (30) days of the
event giving rise to such assessment and provide CONTRACTOR with a specific
description of the reason for assessment of each liquidated damage. Failure by
YCIPTA to provide such notice within such time period shall constitute a waiver of
YCIPTA's rights to assess such amount for that particular incident only. However, it in
no way waives YCIPTA's right to assess liquidated damages for future events. YCIPTA
shall deduct liquidated damages from CONTRACTOR’s monthly invoice; however, the
maximum amount of liquidated damages deducted during any single invoice period
shall not exceed $2,000.00. If liquidated damages for an invoice period exceed
$2,000.00, the amount in excess of said $2,000.00 shall not be applied to any future
invoice period. If perforfnance incentives are provided, YCIPTA shall advise
CONTRACTOR that an incentive is provided. YCIPTA will not assess performance
incentives or penalties for the first ninety (90) days of this Agreement. During the initial
thirty (30) days of service under this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR and YCIPTA shall
meet to discuss each party’s areas of concern relative to this FINANCIAL INCENTIVE
PROGRAM and to clarify YCIPTA's objectives in the Program's implementation.
YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR will meet monthly to discuss incentives provided and
liguidated damages assessed for the previous month of operation. During this meeting
YCIPTA will identify improvements necessary for CONTRACTOR to avoid liguidated

damages and achieve incentive payments.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 46
Agreament for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

119



SECTION 49 NOTICES AND OFFICIAL RECEIPT

Official notices or communications relating to this Agreement shall be in writing
and shall be emailed, faxed or sent to the following individuals at the following
addresses:

For YCIPTA: John Andoh, Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation
Authority

2715 East 14™ Street, Yuma, Arizona, 85365
928.539.7076, ext 237 office

928.783.0309 fax

Email; jandoh@ycipta.az.gov

For CONTRACTOR: Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer
National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330
Cincinnatti, Ohio 45236
513.687.2867 office
513.458.2341 fax
Email. Pete@settle@nationalexpresscorp.com

SECTION 50 RISK AND INDEMNIFICATION

CONTRACTOR shall perform this Agreement and all related work at its own risk,
CONTRACTOR assumes all responsibility for the condition of tools, equipment and
materials used in connection with its performance of its duties and obligations under this
Agreement. To the extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless YCIPTA and its member agencies, officers, officials, agents, employees
and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses including
attorney fees arising out of the CONTRACTOR's performance of the work described
herein, caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of CONTRACTOR,
any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for
whose acts any of them may be liable, except where caused by the negligence or willful
misconduct of YCIPTA,

SECTION 51 NO AUTHORITY TO BIND
CONTRACTOR has no authority to enter into, or negotiate, contracts on behalf of

YCIPTA. This Agreement does not create a partnership, joint venture or any other
relationship between the parties, other than an independent contractor relationship.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 47
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Setvices, August 2014

120



SECTION 52 ATTORNEYS’ FEES

In the event suit or other action is brought or an attorney is retained by any party to
this Agreement to seek interpretation or construction of any term or provision of this
Agreement, to enforce the terms of this Agreement, to collect any money due, or to
obtain any money damages or equitable relief for breach, or to seek recourse in a
bankruptcy proceeding, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, in addition to
any other available remedy, reimbursement for reasonable attorneys’ fees, including
attorneys’ fees for representation in bankruptcy court, court costs, costs of investigation
and other related expenses.

SECTION 563 INTERPRETATION

This Agreement is the result of negotiations between the parties and, accordingly,
the terms and provisions hereof shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with
their usual and customary meanings unless defined otherwise herein, The parties
hereby waive the application of any rule of law which otherwise would be applicable in
connection with the interpretation and construction of this Agreement that ambiguous or
conflicting terms or provisions should be interpreted or construed against the party who
(or whose attorney) prepared the executed Agreement or any earlier draft of the same.

SECTION 54 CAPTIONS

Captions and paragraph headings used in this Agreement are for convenience
only, are not a part of this Agreement, shall not be deemed to limit or alter any
provision(s) of this Agreement, and shall not be deemed relevant in construing this
Agreement.

SECTION 55 TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE

Time is of the essence in each and every provision hereof.
SECTION 56 BINDING EFFECT

Subject to the limitations upon assignments and transfers herein contained, this
Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefits of the parties hereto, their
respective heirs, successors and assigns.

SECTION 57 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, along with the attached Appendices and related documents
referred to herein, if any, contains the entire agreement between the parties hereto. Al
prior and contemporaneous agreements, representations and understandings, written or
oral, are superseded by and merged into this Agreement. No promises or assurances
have been made which are not part of this Agreement. Any previous agreements,
whether written or oral, entered into between the parties are null and void unless

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transpartation Authority Page 48
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Bemand Response Services, August 2014

121



specifically incorporated herein. No supplement, modification or amendment of this
Agreement shall be binding unless agreed to and executed in writing by all of the
parties, or their authorized representative, hereto.

SECTION 58 COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which, when taken
together shall constitute fully executed originals but one and the same document.

SECTION 52 REPRESENTATION

Each individual executing this Agreement represents and warrants that the
individual has the complete and full authority to enter into this Agreement on behalf of
the party for whom the individual signs.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 49
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

122




SECTION 60 SIGNATURES

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, this Agreement has been executed by YCIPTA and
CONTRACTOR through their duly authorized representatives as of the day
of July, 2014.

NATIONAL EXPRESS TRANSIT

SERVICES CORPORATION YUMA COUNTY
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION

Ve ettt

By: Peter Settle By: John Andoh (/
Chief Executive Officer Transit Difector

ATTEST:

(ol

BY Carol Perez
Administrative Assistant

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Legal Counsel

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 50
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

123




APPENDIX A
Scope Of Work

TABLE OF CONTENTS

. General

.................................................................................................................

Equipment Including Vehicles

.....................................................................................

. Maintenance and Maintenance Facilities

.....................................................................

. Marketing and Public Relations Program

....................................................................

Reports, Accounting, and Audits

.................................................................................

Changes to Level of Service

.......................................................................................

. Employee Qualifications and Training Program

...........................................................

T MMmDIO >

General Rules.........

................................................................................................

-
o
@
=
o
>
%
)
te]
®
o
Q
Q
®
]
S
o
vy
o)
>
@
=h
—
o

............................................................................

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 51
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

124



A. General

1.

Schedulgs/Response Times shall be as defined in this Section: CONTRACTOR
shall provide an annual total of approximately 36,000 fixed-route and an optional
2,208 demand response vehicle revenue hours as determined by YCIPTA.
CONTRACTOR shall provide sufficient supervisory and dispatching personnel to
adequately handle both services.

Passenger Fares: The fare schedule shall be as set forth by YCIPTA and which
may be revised by YCIPTA at any time at its sole discretion. CONTRACTOR
shall collect all passenger fares in sealed fareboxes and any and all other
revenues from fare instruments required by YCIPTA to be sold by
CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR will remove all farebox revenue from
every revenue vehicle on a nightly basis. At no time will farebox revenue be left
in a vehicle overnight. Once the farebox revenue has been collected for that
service day, the receipts will be stored and locked in a safe supplied by YCIPTA.
All farebox revenue will be placed in individual bags with the vehicle number and
date identified on each bag. All farebox revenue will be counted while at least
two CONTRACTOR employees are present. Farebox revenue deposits will be
made on the next operating day following the collection of fares, excluding days
that YCIPTA's designated bank is closed in which case farebox revenue deposit
shall be made on the following day the designated bank is open. The
CONTRACTOR will count and record the amount of receipts by vehicle and
route, and prepare the deposit of the receipts for an armor car to pick up and
deposit into a designated YCIPTA bank account, and forward the deposit record
to YCIPTA's Financial Services Operations Manager or designee. Farebox
revenue for YCAT, YCAT OnCall, YCAT bus passes and Greyhound will be
deposited separately. CONTRACTOR shall develop Cash Handling Procedures
and submit to YCIPTA for approval.

YCIPTA will provide a safe. It is the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to
secure farebox revenue in the safe at all times.

Training and Retraining; CONTRACTOR shall provide ongoing training,
retraining, and safety education for all vehicle operators, maintenance personnel
and supervisory personnel which conform to the requirements of all regulatory
authorities with jurisdiction over transit operation, including, but not limited to,
Federal and State Departments of Transportation, Arizona and California
Highway Patrol and other applicable agencies.

Fare Instruments (tickets, passes and transfers)) CONTRACTOR shall
implement YCIPTA directed fare instrument program, and will accept transfers,
passes and/or fare instruments from other transit systems as directed by
YCIPTA. CONTRACTOR shall maintain strict control of all transfers and passes.
The number and type of transfers and passes issued to bus operators shall be
documented and bus operators shall return transfers and passes at end of shift.
It is the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to secure all YCIPTA provide fare
instruments in the locked, safe and secure location at all times.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transpartation Authority Page 52
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

125



9. Telephone Information and Reservations: If requested by YCIPTA and amended
into this Agreement, YCIPTA shall be responsible for providing telephone
equipment for CONTRACTOR to receiving reservations, and provide information
for YCIPTA's fixed-route, vanpool and demand response services. YCIPTA shall
provide telephones, phone service and a Nortel Network Call Center System.
CONTRACTOR shall offer telephone information whenever a vehicle is in
service. CONTRACTOR shall arrange dispatch work shifts that efficiently reflect
the volume of telephone calls received.

CONTRACTOR shall provide live telephone information during regular business
hours, Monday through Saturday. YCIPTA shall set the telephone information
hours. CONTRACTOR shall utilize YCIPTA's existing telephone automated
answering system (voicemail) for after service hours, holidays and Sundays, said
system shall have the capability for callers to leave a message for trip
reservations, information requests, reporting complaints, etc. The
CONTRACTOR shall check the automated system for demand response and
route deviation trips so that all ADA and route deviation trips are booked within
the specifications of the ADA and YCIPTA ADA Plan.

Telephone information lines shall be answered "Good Morning (afternoon or
evening), Yuma County Area Transit, (first name of answerer) Speaking, How
May | Help You?"

Telephone charges shall be the responsibly of YCIPTA. YCIPTA shall be
responsible for charges for Internet connection.

CONTRACTOR shall develop, implement and maintain a daily schedule of labor
resources to handle passenger information telephone calls and trip scheduling.
This schedule shall identify work assignments, specify non telephone work
assigned concurrently, and work shift times. YCIPTA shall reserve the right to
approve CONTRACTOR staff schedules.

The dispatcher should facilitate transfers with Imperial Valley Transit (IVT),
Greyhound and any other transit provider by calling these services as the bus
approaches the connection point so that passengers have a seamless transfer
between the two systems. Dispatchers should be familiar with all YCAT and
connecting transit systems routes and utilize tools such as the internet, Rider's
Guides and Google Maps to plan trips for passengers calling.

6. Cellular Phone Communications: CONTRACTOR shall provide a celiular
telephone for the Operations Manager, Maintenance Manager, Operations
Supervisor and Turquoise Route 10/NightCAT bus operator for use in conducting
YCIPTA business as related to YCIPTA’s transit services.

7. Dispatching Demand Response Service: If requested by YCIPTA and amended
into this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall utilize the existing Microsoft Excel
spreadsheet or better method to schedule vehicles and transport demand
response passengers using YCIPTA vehicles. This method is capable of
accommodating both fixed-route, and same day, next day and advance
reservations for demand response services, and of integrating all demands for

Yuma County Intergovernmental Pubiic Transportation Authority Page 53
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

126




service into efficient vehicle routes that maximize productivity, and assure setvice
quality to the levels prescribed in Agreement.

The Microsoft Excel spreadsheet should allow the ability to collect and monitor
the following information for all advanced and same day reservations including:

a. Date and time of trip request.

b. Passenger information that includes; name, address, phone number,
passenger identification number and a contact name,

c. Trip information that includes; destination, date, appointment time, return trip
time and mobility device.

d. Field information to identify the person that took passenger and ftrip
information.

e. Reservation confirmation that includes: date, time, and person for whom trip
was confirmed, pickup and return times given to passenger, whom trip was
confirmed with at passenger residence, and date and person that entered trip
into bus operator manifest.

f. CONTRACTOR will be responsible to track if trip was booked within the
defined regulation window, if trip was denied or refused, if trip was requested
for same day as call, if alternative time(s) were offered and reason for trip
denial or refusal,

CONTRACTOR will create a daily bus operator manifest. At no time will bus
operator daily trip manifests be allowed to be kept by hand on paper that requires
the dispatchers to erase or use whiteout to move or insert trips.

Information for all trips made will be kept during the term of this contract and the
CONTACTOR will have a method to keep records of advanced trips made for up
to 7 days prior to the reservation.

YCIPTA requires the daily demand response trip information, including but not
limited to number of trips within plus/minus 15 minutes of the scheduled pickup
time, number of trips early, number of trips late, be analyzed for 12 days per
month as selected by YCIPTA. This analysis will be included in the Monthly
Report. This information will identify productivity by bus and time of day, number
of vehicles out during each service hour, number of one way trips during each
service hour, average wait and travel time by service hour and bus, longest wait
time and passenger ride time by bus, service hour and day and purpose of trip by
passenger.

CONTRACTCOCR shall provide an adequate number of persons to staff the vehicle
dispatch and passenger scheduling functions. A minimum of one (1) dispatcher
must be on duty at all times that transit system is operating. Dispatchers shall be
responsible for maintaining communication (radio, cellular phone or other
methods) with all vehicles in service, and for maintaining the daily dispatch log to
be proposed by CONTRACTOR and approved by YCIPTA. Scheduling and
dispatching personnel shall be trained in professional techniques in the areas of;

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 54
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Reoute and Demand Response Services, August 2014

127



radio protocol, telephone etiquette, handling of difficult customers and
professional interactions with YCIPTA employees and local businesses. YCIPTA
shall provide CONTRACTOR with an adequate radio communication system.

8. Dispatching Fixed Route Service: CONTRACTOR shall provide an adequate
number of persons to staff the vehicle dispatch. A minimum of one (1) dispatcher
must be on duty at all times that transit system is operating. Dispatchers shall be
responsible for maintaining communication (radio, cellular phone or other
methods) with all vehicles in service, and for maintaining the daily dispatch log to
be proposed by CONTRACTOR and approved by YCIPTA. Scheduling and
dispatching personnel shall be trained in professional techniques in the areas of:
radio protocol, telephone etiquette, handling of difficult customers and
professional interactions with YCIPTA employees and local businesses. YCIPTA
shall provide CONTRACTOR with an adequate radio communication system.

Telephone lines shall be answered "Good Morning (afternoon or evening), Yuma
County Area Transit, {first name of answerer) Speaking, How May | Help You?"
Telephone charges shall be the responsibly of YCIPTA. YCIPTA shall be
responsible for charges for Internet connection. CONTRACTOR shall develop,
implement and maintain a daily schedule of labor resources necessary to
perform dispatching and other operations supervision related functions and work
shift times. YCIPTA shall reserve the right to approve CONTRACTOR staff
schedules.

The dispatcher should facilitate transfers with Imperial Valley Transit (IVT),
Greyhound and any other transit provider by calling these services as the bus
approaches the connection point so that passengers have a seamless transfer
between the two systems. Dispatchers should be familiar with all YCAT and
connecting transit systems routes and utilize tools such as the internet, Rider’s
Guides and Google Maps to plan trips for passengers calling.

9. Road Supervision: All dispatchers shall function as Road Supervisors and have
the ability to work within the office and in the field, which includes road
supervision. CONTRACTOR shall provide daily street supervision of the transit
service as needed for at least four (4) hours per day and at random times.
Functions shall include, but are not limited to: bus operator support, monitoring of
schedule adherence, on-street operation, on-route compliance, proper
implementation of YCIPTA's policies and procedures and interacting with the
public. The daily street supervision shall be proactive to ensure reliable transit
services are provided, service interruptions are prevented and minimized, and
bus operators are properly supported. Road supervision within the four (4) hour
period minimum can be conducted between the Operations Manager, Lead Road
Supervisor and the dispatchers.

10.Contact of YCIPTA/CONTRACTOR Personnel: YCIPTA personnel shall have the
right to make contact with all CONTRACTOR personnel, as needed when
CONTRACTOR personnel are in revenue service, or operating or in the
possession of YCIPTA-provided equipment. CONTRACTOR personnel shall

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page §5
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

128




have the right to contact YCIPTA personnel without fear of retaliation from
CONTRACTOR, YCIPTA shall not intervene with CONTRACTOR issues related
to personnel related decisions unless State or Federal laws are violated.
CONTRACTOR shall ensure that their personnel are aware that they do not work
for YCIPTA.

11.ADA Passengers: CONTRACTOR shall ensure that if a mobility device
passenger is stranded due to a lift failure or service interruption that the
passenger is picked up within 30 minutes of the delay. The vehicle that has the
lift failure shall be removed from service and replaced as soon as reascnability
possible. The lift must be repaired before the vehicle is returned to service.
There shall be no ADA trip denials on the demand response service. YCIPTA
shall provide an updated ADA passenger list for those certified for demand
response service on a monthly basis.

All bus operators shall call out bus stops at major intersections as defined by
YCIPTA in accordance with the ADA using the on-board public address system.
If one is not available, the ADA call outs must be loud enough for all passengers
on the bus to hear and shall be called out prior to approaching the intersection or
bus stop. Said ADA call outs shall be called out as prescribed by YCIPTA and in
accordance with 49 CFR §37.167.

12. Service Development, Bus Operators Bids and Employee Schedules: YCIPTA
shall have the responsibility of developing all routes (revenue and deadhead),
blocks and schedules with input from the CONTRACTOR. YCIPTA is not
obligated to utilize input from the CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide
YCIPTA with a copy of its bus operators bid/run assignment sheet and employee
schedules upon YCIPTA’s request and YCIPTA shall have final approval over all
bids and employee schedules.

13.Security Cameras: CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible for the proper
operation of video surveillance systems (VSS) on YCIPTA vehicles which
includes DriveCam forward facing cameras. CONTRACTOR shall routinely
check each VSS to ensure it is operating properly and report malfunctions to
YCIPTA immediately. CONTRACTOR will be responsible for maintenance of the
VSS equipment. CONTRACTOR shall download and review video from vehicles
whenever an incident occurs on board a bus wherein video of the incident might
assist in the resolution of the incident. CONTRACTOR shall operate and
maintain the equipment in accordance with the manufacturer specifications and
arrange for any necessary training to use VSS provided equipment at no cost to
YCIPTA. YCIPTA shall pay for any ongoing DriveCam monitoring costs if
DriveCam monitors the system outside of CONTRACTOR monitoring.

14. Automated Vehicle Locator Service and Real Time Transit Information:
CONTRACTOR shall operate and maintain said system to the fullest extent
intended by its manufacturer. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the
operations and maintenance of such equipment with authorized YCIPTA vendors
capable of maintaining such equipment at CONTRACTOR’s cost. YCIPTA shali

Yuma County Intergovernmenta! Public Transportation Authority Page 56
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

129




be responsible for AVL and real time transit information related operational
charges.

15.Acumen Smart Card System (YCATPass); CONTRACTOR shall operate and
maintain the Acumen Smart Card fare collection system on YCAT fixed-route
vehicles to the fullest extentt CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the
operations and maintenance of such equipment with authorized YCIPTA vendors
capable of maintaining such equipment at CONTRACTOR's cost.

16.SPX Genfare Electronic Fareboxes: CONTRACTOR shall operate and maintain
the SPX Genefare Transview and/or CentsABIll electronic farebox system on
YCAT vehicles to the fullest extent. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the
operations and maintenance of such equipment with authorized YCIPTA vendors
capable of maintaining such equipment at CONTRACTOR’s cost.

17. Luminator Destination Signs: CONTRACTOR shall operate and maintain the
Luminator destination signs, including their programming of destination signs on
YCAT vehicles to its fullest extent at CONTRACTOR's cost. CONTRACTOR
shall be responsible for the operations and maintenance of such equipment with

authorized YCIPTA vendors capable of maintaining such equipment at
CONTRACTOR's cost.

18.Wi-Fi. CONTRACTOR shall operate and maintain the Wi-Fi system on YCAT
fixed-route vehicles to the fullest extent. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for
the operations and maintenance of such equipment with authorized YCIPTA
vendors capable of maintaining such equipment at CONTRACTOR's cost.
YCIPTA shall be responsible for Wi-Fi related operational charges.

19.Email: CONTRACTOR's Operations Manager, Operations Supervisor,
Maintenance Manager and all office personnel shall have access to electronic
mail over the internet with their own email address provided by CONTRACTOR's
email system. Email address from third parties such as Google, Yahoo,
Hotmail/Outlook.com and/or others shall not be permitted.

20. Advertising. CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with YCIPTA regarding advertising
on the interior and exterior of YCIPTA vehicles. Said advertising includes all
signs up to and including full bus wraps. If directed by YCIPTA, CONTRACTOR
shall work with YCIPTA's contractor(s) related to the installation of interior
advertising cards and exterior signs/wraps including coordinating access for the
YCIPTA's contractor. YCIPTA shall retain all revenues associated with
advertising on YCIPTA vehicles or other assets.

21.Use of Transit Vehicles For Emergency Preparedness Drills & Exercises:
CONTRACTOR shall make available the use of YCIPTA transit vehicles for
emergency preparedness exercises upon request by YCIPTA. CONTRACTOR
shall also participate on the Yuma County Local Emergency Planning Committee
and other emergency planning related committees and act as YCIPTA
representatives. CONTRACTOR shall provide a written summary of each
meeting to YCIPTA within five (5) business days after the mesting
CONTRACTOR's participation shall be included in the fixed cost.

Yuma County intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 57
Agreement for the Provisicn General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

130



22.Detours _and_Route Deviations: CONTRACTOR in coordination with YCIPTA
shall establish detours when road closures are occurring or roadways within the
YCAT service area become impassable due to other obstructions.
CONTRACTOR shall post rider alerts on an YCIPTA approved format if the
detour lasts more than 24 hours and post announcements on YCIPTA Social
Media sites. All fixed routes shall follow approved YCIPTA routing unless a
detour as defined above needs to take place or if the route has been defined as a
flex route by YCIPTA. Under no other circumstances should fixed routes deviate
off their approved routing without expressed approval from YCIPTA.

23.Lost and Found: CONTRACTOR shall make a reasonable attempt to identify and
return lost items to the passenger the same day it was found. When it is not
reasonable to return the item, CONTRACTOR shall: 1) tag the item and note the
route, or location where the item was found, time and date found, 2) include the
name of the person turning in the item and a brief description of the item, 3)
maintain a log of lost and found items, 4) dispose of the lost item with the local
Police Department or charity within 30 days of non-claiming, 5) store the item in a
secure container in a secure office location.

24.Greyhound Sales: If requested by YCIPTA and amended into this Agreement,
CONTRACTOR shall provide Greyhound ticket and package express sales at the
bus facility during normal business hours. A transit operations supervisor should
meet each Greyhound bus during YCAT service hours to pick up packages and
provide customer service at the bus stop located at 1275 Castle Dome Avenue,
Yuma, next to Target. All Greyhound revenues shall be prepared so that an
armored car service can deposited the following business day, in a separate
deposit from other YCAT revenues received. YCIPTA shall facilitate and provide
CONTRACTOR staff with training regarding Greyhound ticket and package
express sales. CONTRACTOR and its staff shall be responsible for building the
Greyhound Package Express business and reaching out to additional businesses
in the Yuma County area.

YCIPTA may request CONTRACTOR to provide additional Greyhound services
on Sunday, holidays that YCAT does not operate and ovemight. Such costs
associated with the additional services shall be negotiated and determined as
defined in Section F.6. of the Scope of Work.

YCIPTA shall evaluate the effectiveness of this service on an ongoing basis.
YCIPTA may, at its discretion, terminate the requirement for this service. If the
services requirement is terminated, CONTRACTOR shall reduce its fixed rate to
reflect the savings incurred due to elimination of the service, including any
necessary reductions in staff. The amount of said reduction shall be approved by
YCIPTA, whose approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

YCIPTA shall provide $100.00 for maintaining a change fund for the cash
register. YCIPTA shall be responsible for providing a cash register and all other
necessary equipment for Greyhound sales. Any lost, misappropriate and/or
stolen funds from the change fund or from selling Greyhound products shall be

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 58
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

131



replaced by CONTRACTOR. YCIPTA staff, if using the register shall maintain its
own change fund 1o prevent co-mingling of accountability of revenues.

25.5afe Place: CONTRACTOR shall work with YCIPTA related to the
implementation and continuation of the Safe Place program which provides youth
age 11-17 with a safe place on board YCIPTA buses. YCIPTA has approved
procedures in place for this program and CONTRACTOR shall educate its
employees about this program. CONTRACTOR employees shall only report the
heed for Safe Place help to the dispatcher. The dispatcher will contact Safe
Place staff to meet the bus en route at a convenient and safe location. The
Facility is also designated as official Safe Place location.

26. Newspapers; CONTRACTOR shall work with YCIPTA and Yuma Sun regarding
the placement of newspapers on board of all transit vehicles each weekday and
Saturday. On Turquoise Route 10, CONTRACTOR shall work with Imperial
Valley Press for placement of their newspapers each Turguoise Route 10
operating day. Each bus shall have five (5) newspapers placed on the rack
closest to the Bus Operator. Each Bus Operator pulling out from the Bus Facility
shall have picked up its newspapers from the dispatch office. CONTRACTOR
shall be responsible to reconcile and return unsold newspapers each day to
Yuma Sun and Imperial Valley Press.

27. Libraries On The Go; CONTRACTOR shall work with YCIPTA regarding the
inclusion of donated library books for placement on specified racks inside each
vehicle. YCIPTA shall provide donated library books to CONTRACTOR and each
vehicle shall have a minimum of three books.

28.Transit System Security Program_ Plan: CONTRACTOR shall develop - in
coordination with YCIPTA — a Transit System Security Program and Emergency
Preparedness Plan (TSSEPP) that covers passengers, employees, vehicles and
facilities. Guidance on the development of this plan is available in a report
entitted, the Public Transportation System Security and Emergency
Preparedness Planning Guide (DOT-VNTSC-FTA-03-01) dated January 2003.
The TSSEPP should assign responsibility for security management from the
most senior executive to the first line supervisory staff. The TSSEPP must
address the following mechanisms:

» Interagency coordination with YCIPTA, local police, fire and emergency
responders in Yuma County, Imperial County and La Paz County and
other transit operators

Evacuation assistance plan utilizing YCIPTA's Fleet

Investigating Security Incidents

Security and Emergency Management Training for all personnel

Regular threat and vulnerability analyses in cooperation with YCIPTA

Compilation and reporting of data associated with the National Transit
Database’s Safety and Security Module

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 59
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

132



27.

28.

29,

» Participation in the Yuma County Local Emergency Planning Committee
and any other safety committees on behalf of YCIPTA.

The TSSEPP shall include a plan to respond to emergencies and routine
problems that may occur. Occurrences include, but are not limited to:

Passenger injuries
Passenger disturbances
Passenger illnesses
Vehicle failures
Inclement weather
Accidents

Detours

Employee injuries
Strikes/Walkouts/\Work Stoppage
Terrorist Incidents
Nuclear Event
Earthquakes

The Security Plan shall be due, no later than January 1, 2015 and shall be
created to fit with YCIPTA's existing operations and not from a bhoilerplate
template.

Safety Plan: To ensure YCIPTA's compliance with Moving Ahead With Progress
for the 21st Century (MAP-21), the CONTRACTOR's Operations Manager or
Operations Supervisor shall serve as YCIPTA's Safety Officer. CONTRACTOR
shall develop — in coordination with YCIPTA shall prepare a safety plan for
YCIPTA's transit operations for inclusion in YCIPTA's overall Safety Plan to be

submitted to the FTA that is compliant with the MAP-21 requirements as defined
here: hitp:/Awww.fta.dot.gov/decuments/MAP- 21 Fact Sheet Transit Safety and Oversight.pdf

The Safety Plan shall be due within 90 days after the start of this Agreement, no
later than September 30, 2014 and shall be created to fit with YCIPTA's existing
operations and not from a boilerplate template.

Transportation For CONTRACTOR Employees: CONTRACTOR personnel shall

be allowed to ride YCIPTA buses at no cost. This benefit does not extend to
CONTRACTOR personnel family members. YCIPTA reserves the right to amend
or terminate this benefit at any time.

Facility Access: YCIPTA Facility is a secured facility. As a result, certain

personnel have certain access rights to certain offices. All visitors in the Facility
must have a visitor pass and be escorted in the Facility. Non-authorized
CONTRACTOR staff members shall not be in the unauthorized areas of the
Facility including maintenance bays and administrative office areas without being
escorted by authorized CONTRACTOR or YCIPTA employee. YCIPTA staff

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 60
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

133



shall be responsible for issuing access into the Facility, which includes proximity
fobs and employee identification cards. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for
the replacement of lost or stolen employee identification cards and proximity fobs
at a rate of $5.00 per card and $50.00 per proximity fob. No CONTRACTOR
employee shall be allowed in the Facility or operate YCIPTA equipment without
employee identification cards and/or proximity fobs.

B. Equipment Including Vehicles

1. YCIPTA Shall Provide Vehicles: YCIPTA shall providle CONTRACTOR with a
fleet of suitable fixed-route and demand response revenue and support vehicles
for the performance of the Agreement. It shall be YCIPTA's responsibility to have
the vehicles documented by the MVD prior to delivery to CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR is required to rotate the vehicles in service to result in a relatively
even distribution of accumulated miles on the vehicles., CONTRACTOR shall
use vehicles on routes as defined by YCIPTA to ensure capacity is matching
actual demand for that route.

2. YCIPTA-Provided Equipment: At CONTRACTOR's written request and
justification, YCIPTA, at YCIPTA’s sole discretion, shall purchase Capital Assets
and Small Tools for Maintenance Shop for use by CONTRACTOR in
performance with this Agreement as set forth herein, such consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld. For the purposes of this Agreement, Capital Asset is
defined as tangible, nonexpendable facilities or equipment that have a useful life
greater than one (1) year, and Small Tools for Maintenance Shop is defined as
tools that are necessary to maintain the transportation fleet, other than tools
commonly provided by mechanics and Capital Assets. Capital Assets and Small
Tools for Maintenance Shop immediately become the property of YCIPTA, and
YCIPTA authorizes use of such equipment by CONTRACTOR in performance of
maintenance service.

3. Warranties: CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for maintaining all YCIPTA
provided equipment including warranties. CONTRACTOR shall be liable for the
cost of repairing or replacing any physical or mechanical damage caused by
CONTRACTOR negligence and not caused by YCIPTA or normal wear and tear.

4. Loss of Useful Life: CONTRACTOR shall be liable for the cost of replacing any
equipment damaged beyond use as a result of CONTRACTOR'S negligence
(e.g., tires which cannot be recapped due to damage from improper use).

5. Availability: YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR shall store all equipment including
vehicles at its Facility, located as of April 1, 2014 at 2715 East 14" Street, Yuma,
AZ 85365. YCIPTA shall make egquipment available to CONTRACTOR, for
inspection/training purposes, no later than April 2, 2014, so long as it does not
interfere with current operational services.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 61
Agreement for the Provisior General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

134




6. Return of Equipment: CONTRACTOR shall return all equipment to YCIPTA at
2715 East 14" Street, Yuma, AZ 85365 at the termination of Agreement in the
same condition as accepted, allowing for ordinary wear and tear. Ordinary wear
and tear shall be interpreted according to the equipment's use. CONTRACTOR
shall be liable for the cost of repairing or replacing any physical, cosmetic, or
mechanical damage, and related expenses, caused by CONTRACTOR
negligence and not caused by YCIPTA.

7. Alterations: CONTRACTOR shall not have the right to install equipment or make
any minor or major alterations to any YCIPTA owned equipment without prior
written consent of YCIPTA. CONTRACTOR shall not post any notices,
announcements or other materials in or on equipment unless approved by
YCIPTA.

8. Use: No YCIPTA provided equipment shall be operated beyond the limits
established in the applicable policies of insurance as hereinafter set forth, and
may only be used for the transportation of passengers as provided in the
Agreement or in services approved by YCIPTA in writing, in advance.
CONTRACTOR agrees to use equipment in a careful and proper manner and to
comply with all federal, state, local, or other governmental laws, regulations,
requirements and rules with respect to the use, maintenance and operation of the
vehicles subject to the Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall not use equipment in
any unlawful trade or for any unlawful purpose whatsoever, or in violation of the
Agreement. The CONTRACTOR may not use YCIPTA provided equipment to
train persons who are not working on services under this Agreement.

9. Liens: YCIPTA shall not suffer, create or permit to be imposed upon the vehicles
any lien or encumbrance which may interfere with CONTRACTOR’S intended
use of the vehicles.

Neither CONTRACTOR nor any of its agents shall suffer, create or permit to be
imposed upon the vehicles any lien or encumbrance whatsoever, and shall return
equipment to YCIPTA free of any liens, claims or encumbrances resulting from
its use of equipment. CONTRACTOR agrees to notify any third party furnishing
services, supplies or other necessities to CONTRACTOR that neither
CONTRACTOR nor any of its agents has the right to incur, create or permit to be
imposed on the vehicles any lien whatsoever.

10.Permits, Charges, Taxes: YCIPTA shall be responsible for securing and
maintaining vehicle related licenses, permits and authorizations necessary for the
intended vehicle operation. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for ensuring
compliance with all environmental issues including storm water, oil runoff, and
hazardous materials and develop any necessary plans for submittal to any local,
state or Federal agencies regulating environmental issues. CONTRACTOR shall
not be responsible for environmental concerns prior to May 1, 2014.

Yuma County intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 62
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

135



11. Repossession: In the event of termination of Agreement, YCIPTA shall have the
right to take immediate possession of all YCIPTA provided equipment, vehicles
and other assets; and CONTRACTOR shall reimburse YCIPTA all expenses,
including attorney's fees, incurred by YCIPTA in effecting such repossession.

In the event a suit or action is instituted by YCIPTA, or those claiming by, through
or under it, to recover possession of the any YCIPTA equipment, vehicles, or
other assets, to collect damage or to enforce any right possessed by YCIPTA
under the terms thereof, CONTRACTOR agrees and promises to pay such
additional sum as the court may adjudge reasonable as attorney's fees in said
suit or action.

12. Other Equipment. YCIPTA will supply all office and shop furniture and software,
YCIPTA will also supply a safe, coin counting machine and office photo
copierffax machine/printer. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for providing all
other equipment, which includes, but not limited to, a digital camera, office
supplies, printer paper, bus operator route bags, clipboards for bus operators,
bus operator vehicle inspection reporis and bus operator log books.
CONTRACTOR shall purchase items above, plus any items not listed above at
CONTRACTOR's cost within the fixed costs.

13.Support Vehicles: YCIPTA's minivans and support vehicles shall be used for the
expressed transportation of bus operators to and from any shift changes while
YCIPTA revenue vehicles are in service and by CONTRACTOR's management
staff for performing YCIPTA related business. YCIPTA administrative staff may
use all support vehicles except minivans for administrative use and shall have
priority use over the smaller sedan vehicles. The CONTRACTOR will not be
allowed to use any YCIPTA owned revenue vehicle for any other purpose than
for the rendering of YCIPTA’s public transit system operations. All expenses,
insurance and registration related to the operation of YCIPTA’s minivans and
support vehicles will be the responsibility of YCIPTA. YCIPTA shall also provide
two utility/maintenance trucks for maintenance purposes. YCIPTA personnel may
drive support vehicles that are not in revenue service.

The minivans and support vehicles will be kept in a safe, clean operating
condition at all times. CONTRACTOR will be responsible for all scheduled
preventative maintenance and repairs related to the operation of said vehicles.

14, Department of Transportation Number: Since YCIPTA is part of the Greyhound
Lines, Inc. network, CONTRACTOR shall be registered with the Federal Motor
Carrier Safety Administration with a USDOT number, a Motor Carrier (MC)
number and file a 91X insurance form. In addition, CONTRACTOR shall install
the phrase “Operated by (CONTRACTOR logo)” under the USDOT number.,

15.1dling of Vehicles: CONTRACTOR shall not idle YCIPTA vehicles for more than
five consecutive minutes.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 63
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

136



C. Maintenance and Maintenance Facilities

1. General: YCIPTA shall provide a Facility for the purpose of maintaining YCIPTA

vehicles. CONTRACTOR shall use due diligence maintaining the operability
and cleanliness of all equipment and vehicles. CONTRACTOR is responsible for
general housekeeping, wear and tear, and security of equipment when in
CONTRACTOR'S possession. CONTRACTOR is financially responsible for
correcting any damage, and paying for related expenses, caused by the
negligent use and/or maintenance of equipment or vehicles by CONTRACTOR’S
personnel.
CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the safe and efficient maintenance of all
vehicles and equipment, all communications systems, and all other YCIPTA
provided equipment, furnishings, and accessories required in connection with its
operation of YCIPTA transit services in a clean, safe, sound, and operable
condition at all times, and fully in accord with any Original Equipment
Manufacturer (OEM) Specifications and Requirements, in strict conformity with
YCIPTA approved Maintenance Plan, Preventive Maintenance Program and
applicable requirements of any federal or state statute, regulation or order,

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the maintenance of vehicles assigned to
the SARA Rides contractor operating YCAT OnCall in accordance with the
maintenance requirements of this Agreement. This includes notifying the SARA
Rides contractor when the vehicle is due for preventative maintenance, handling
all maintenance related aspects and handling readcalls and towing when
breakdowns occur., CONTRACTOR will not be responsible for mechanical or
body damage {o these vehicles caused by accidents of any type that occur while
the vehicles are under the control of the SARA Rides Contractor or any damage
of any kind caused by the negligence of SARA Rides Contractor. Should any
damage occur by the SARA Rides CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR shall be
reimbursed by YCIPTA to facilitate the repair of damage not caused by
CONTRACTOR and will be reimbursed at cost for the parts.

CONTRACTOR responsibilities the technical and mechanical maintenance of the
YCIPTA fleet which include, but are not limited to, operating, maintaining,
checking fluids, fueling the vehicles, maintenance of appearance, inspections
(fluid levels, tire pressure, efc.), preventative maintenance, heavy repair and
operation of vehicles in accordance with the Agreement and Scope of Work.

When maintaining YCIPTA vehicles the CONTRACTOR shall, at a minimum,
provide the following:

a. All necessary repairs to all YCIPTA provided vehicles and equipment

b. Tires, including tire changing equipment or a proposed tire-changing
subcontractor.

c. Battery maintenance equipment.

d. Lubrication and its related equipment.

Yuma County intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 64
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

137




e. All tools and equipment necessary to perform the maintenance activities
required in this Agreement that is not provided YCIPTA.

f. Equipment necessary to clean the vehicles in accordance with the
Agreement.

g. Parts for the vehicles and equipment.

h. Supplies for vehicle, equipment, bus stop and shelter maintenance.

i. Diagnostic equipment for maintaining transit vehicles and equipment,
including additional laptops and other diagnostic equipment not provided by
YCIPTA.

j. Computerized maintenance system, unless provided by YCIPTA.

k. Major components (reimbursed by YCIPTA as defined in section C.6.).

l.  Towing of all YCIPTA provided vehicles.

CONTRACTOR's duty and responsibility to maintain all vehicles and equipment
shall not be delegated to any other person, firm or corporation.

All parts, materials, tires, lubricants, fluids, oils and procedures used by
CONTRACTOR on all YCIPTA vehicles and equipment shall meet or exceed
Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) Specifications and Requirements. All
parts installed by CONTRACTOR on YCIPTA vehrc[es and equipment shall
become property of YCIPTA.

The CONTRACTOR shall implement a proactive Quality Assurance Plan, subject
to approval by YCIPTA, to verify the quality of work performed.

CONTRACTOR shall meet the following maintenance requirements:

a. All wheelchair lift-related equipment shall be inspected, serviced and
lubricated at intervals necessary to insure that the wheelchair lifts are fully
operational whenever the vehicle is used in revenue service.

b. Brake inspections and adjustment shall be performed at intervals that
insure the safe and efficient operation of the braking system.

¢. All components of the vehicle bodies, appurtenances, and frames shall be
maintained in a safe, sound, and undamaged condition at all times.
Damage (including body, glass, and all vehicle appurtenances) shall be
repaired in a professional manner within three weeks (21 calendar days)
of occurrences.

d. All mechanical, electrical, fluid, air, and/or hydraulic systems shall be
maintained in a safe and fully functional, as designed, condition at all
times.

e. The interior passenger compartment shall be free of exhaust fumes from
the engine, engine compartment, and exhaust system of the vehicle.

f. Heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) systems shall be
maintained and used to insure that the passenger compartment
temperature is comfortably maintained under all climatic conditions at all

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 65
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

138



h.

times on all in-service runs. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the heater and
A/C systems in an operable condition throughout the entire year.

Seats shall be maintained in proper operating condition at all times. All
rips, tears, cuts, gum, graffiti and other damage shall be cleaned or
repaired in a professional manner immediately upon their discovery.
CONTRACTOR shall replace seat covers, which are worn or cannot be
professionally repaired, using materials, which are identical in design and
color as those materials being replaced.

Tires shall always be matched (by manufacturer, size, and tread pattern)
on each axle, Tires shall not vary more than 3/32" between inner and
outer tires and not more than 4/32" between curb side and road side.
Cradle motor mounts shall be replaced in pairs.

Radiators may be re-cored or replaced at the time of engine
replacement/rebuild.

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all vehicle brakes are maintained as required

below:

©ooTw

Drums shall be turned with hubs attached.

Brake blocks shall be matched to drums by size; i.e., 1X, 2X, etc.

Both brakes on an axle shall be replaced at the same time.

Premium brake blocks shall be used.

Wheel seals shall be replaced with every brake job and bearings shall be
checked.

2. Maintenance Personnel: Maintenance personnel assigned to work on YCIPTA

owned vehicle(s) and equipment shall have thorough knowledge of:

ooow

(D

Engines, tfransmissions, and related mechanical equipment.

Methods and procedures used in servicing mechanical equipment.

Vehicle chassis and bodies.

Tools, precision instruments, equipment, and procedures used in the
general repair and maintenance of vehicle equipment.

Decimals, fractions, and specifications related to vehicle mechanics.
Specialized areas such as painting, upholstering, brake relining, air
conditioning, wheelchair lifts, and electronic destination signs.

Preventive maintenance inspections and associated paperwork.

Inspection of vehicle engines, transmissions, and other mechanical,
electric, and electronic parts and components.

Diagnosis of vehicle engine, transmission, electrical and electronic
component system malfunctions.

Repair of vehicle engines, transmissions, and other mechanical, electrical,
and electronic parts and components.

3. Maintenance Technical Training: CONTRACTOR shall provide technical training of

maintenance personnel necessary to insure a consistent leve! of current, thorough

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 68
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

139



knowledge in the maintenance and repair of the several types of vehicles and
equipment used in fixed-route and demand response service, including air
conditioning systems, wheelchair lifts, and other ancillary equipment.

4. Preventive Maintenance: CONTRACTOR shall document and submit a pro-active
preventive maintenance program for review and approval by YCIPTA within thirty
(30) days of the effective date of this Agreement. As a minimum, CONTRACTOR's
preventive maintenance program shall adhere to the preventive maintenance
schedules and standards of the industry, and shall be sufficient so as not to
invalidate or lessen warranty coverage of any YCIPTA vehicle or associated
equipment. Adherence fo preventive maintenance schedules shall not be regarded
as reasonable cause for deferred maintenance in specific instances where
CONTRACTOR’s employees observe that maintenance is needed in advance of
schedule.

CONTRACTOR shall not defer maintenance for reasons of shortage of maintenance
staff or operable vehicles, nor shall service be curtailed for the purpose of
performing maintenance without prior written consent of YCIPTA. No vehicle shall sit
unrepaired for thirty days or more. Preventive maintenance and running repairs shall
receive first priority in the use of CONTRACTOR'S maintenance resources.
CONTRACTOR shall adjust the work schedules of its employees as necessary to
meet all scheduled services and complete preventive maintenance activities
according to the schedule approved by YCIPTA.

CONTRACTOR shall adhere to the Preventive Maintenance Program identified in
the YCIPTA established maintenance plan and approved CONTRACTOR's
Maintenance Plan.

5. Vehicle Repair.  All repairs to YCIPTA vehicles shall be performed by
CONTRACTOR or other vendors and suppliers, which may be subject to prior
approval by YCIPTA. Repairs shall include, but not be limited to, work to correct
loss or damage; adjustments due to normal wear and tear; and overhaul, rebuilding
or replacement of components. Repair work shall be conducted as soon as
practicable upon learning that such work is required. CONTRACTOR shall perform
repair work expeditiously in response to identification of problems by bus operators
or other staff members. CONTRACTOR shall assure YCIPTA that required repairs
shall not be deferred beyond a reasonable time. CONTRACTOR shall not remove
parts or equipment from other YCIPTA owned vehicles and/or equipment to
repair other vehicles or equipment. Such action, if discovered is subject to
immediate termination. CONTRACTOR shall be familiar with vehicle and
equipment warranties and shall comply with all warranty provisions in the conduct of
its maintenance functions.

6. Engine, Transmission, Turbochargers and Differential Overhaul: CONTRACTOR
shall be responsible to monitor the condition and performance of vehicle engines,
transmissions and differentials so as to maximize useful life and avoid costly

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 67
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

140




catastrophic failures. At a minimum, the CONTRACTOR's monitoring program shall
consider miles accumulated, fuel and oit consumption trends, loss of power, erratic
performance, and regular periodic laboratory analysis of engine oil, transmission
fluid, and differential oil. The monitoring program will provide the basis for
recommending scheduled overhaul of engines and transmissions.

If CONTRACTOR determines that an engine, transmission, turbocharger or
differential needs to be overhauled or replaced, CONTRACTOR shall notify YCIPTA
in writing detailing the reasons for such a determination. The determination shall
include detailed findings of tests, oil analysis or consumables data that support the
conclusion.  After inspection, YCIPTA may direct CONTRACTOR, in writing, to
proceed with the recommended work.

Engine, transmission, turbochargers and differential overhaul shall be approved by
YCIPTA in advance of work, using only OEM parts and OEM minimum overhaul
standards. YCIPTA will reimburse CONTRACTOR for actual parts and/or service
costs incurred for engine, transmission and differential work accomplished following
the above guidelines. If YCIPTA determines that such work was a result of poor
maintenance performance, failure to monitor overhaul criteria, neglect or abuse by
CONTRACTOR, YCIPTA will not be liable for any costs. CONTRACTOR must
submit a detailed invoice to YCIPTA for all such work obtaining at least three quotes
for the purchase of parts and/or services.

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for removal and replacement of engines,
transmissions, turbochargers and differentials. In addition, during the overhaul,
CONTRACTOR shall replace ancillary parts, including all cocling hoses, engine and
transmission mounts, drive belts, and rebuild or replace the radiator. Also,
CONTRACTOR shall assess all other components, lines, hoses or systems. Those
items determined to have never been replaced or found not to meet the OEM
minimum standards for serviceability shall be rebuilt or replaced to minimum OEM
specifications at the time of the overhaul. CONTRACTOR shall invoice YCIPTA for
costs of equipment necessary for replacement of engines, fransmissions,
turbochargers and differentials and costs associated with related ancillary parts.

CONTRACTOR shall remain responsible for all costs related to repair or
replacement of engine driven parts such as generators, hydraulic pumps, water
pumps, fuel pumps, valve covers, oil pans, alternators, radiators, voltage regulators,
air compressors, air conditioning compressors, vacuum pumps, and starter motors.
CONTRACTOR shall also remain responsible for all costs related to repair or
replacement of transmission related parts such as oil coolers, external oil lines,
external filters, external linkage modulators, external speedometers, “driven” gears
or sensors, neutral start switches and temperature sensors. CONTRACTOR shall
also remain responsible for all costs related to repair or replacement of differential
related parts such as rear axle housing, bearings, shafts and seals.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 68
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

141



7.

8.

Parts Inventory: CONTRACTOR shall establish and maintain an ongoing spare parts

inventory sufficient to minimize vehicle down-time and ensure that peak vehicle
requirements are met.

Tools: All fools and equipment used for YCIPTA maintenance shall be maintained by

CONTRACTOR and provided by CONTRACTOR, if not provided by YCIPTA.

Emissions Control Programs: CONTRACTOR shall perform and certify such tests of

equipment required to meet YCIPTA, other local, States of Arizona and California,
and Federal requirements related to exhaust smoke and engine emissions.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain vehicles in accordance with the Transit Fleet Rule
established by the California Air Resources Board (CARB), including submission of
fleet reports and other requirements. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to
maintain the CARB's Voluntary Compliance Program for YCIPTA’s diesel bus fleet.
This includes submission and monitoring of periodic smoke emissions inspections
on an annual basis since YCIPTA vehicles operate into California. YCIPTA vehicles
without particulate traps shall not operate into California.

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to administer a Smog Check/Vehicle Emissions
program of YCIPTA’s gasoline-powered vehicles in accordance with the States of
Arizona and California and Federal laws.

10.Qil Analysis: A laboratory engine oil analysis shall be performed on every YCIPTA

11.

provided vehicle engine as required by the YCIPTA's Preventative Maintenance
Inspection (PMI) program. The analysis program used by CONTRACTOR shall be
subject to approval by YCIPTA. Results of the analyses shall be reported to
YCIPTA and kept on site for a minimum of one year.

A laboratory transmission oil analysis shall be performed on every YCIPTA provided
vehicle transmission as required by the YCIPTA's PMI program. The analysis
program used by CONTRACTOR shall be subject to approval by YCIPTA. Results
of the analyses shall be reported to YCIPTA and kept on site for a minimum of one
year.

Daily Vehicle Servicing: CONTRACTOR shall perform daily vehicle servicing on all
YCIPTA vehicles and equipment used in this Agreement. For purposes of this
Agreement, daily servicing shall include, but not be limited to:

a. Fueling. YCIPTA shall provide fuel and fuel cards for all YCIPTA provided
vehicles at designated locations identified by YCIPTA. CONTRACTOR must
insure that all vehicles {revenue or non-revenue) are properly fueled and
contain a sufficient quantity of fuel to complete their scheduled revenue
service without disruption of service due to an absence of fuel. Vehicles shall
be fueled as determined by the CONTRACTOR to accomplish this
requirement. Only authorized CONTRACTOR personne! shall be allowed to

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 69
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

142



fuel YCIPTA vehicles. Fueling cards shall be kept in a safe, secured location.
CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any misappropriation of fuel or
improper use of YCIPTA provided fueling cards. CONTRACTOR shall present
a fueling plan on how fueling would take place to YCIPTA for approval.
YCIPTA is responsible for all fuel costs for all YCIPTA revenue and non-
revenue vehicles.

b. Engine oil, coolant, water and transmission fluid check/add.

Vault pulling and replacement.

Wheelchair lift check. The wheelchair ramp/lift on each vehicle shall be

cycled one complete cycle prior to departure from YCIPTA's corporation yard

each day. If the wheelchair ramp/lift fails to complete the cycle, the failure

must be reported to YCIPTA and the vehicle repaired or another one

assigned.

Brake check.

Light and flasher check.

Interior sweeping and dusting.

Exterior and interior visual inspection.

Check of all vehicle performance defects reported by bus operators to identify

potential safety and reliability items requiring immediate attention.

j. Additional requirements as specified by vehicle manufacturers.

k. First Aid, Bloodborne Pathogens and Accident Kit: Check to ensure the
accident kit is fully stocked and is properly attached in the bus operator's
compartment. If the accident kit is missing, notify YCIPTA immediately.

Qo

@™o

[, Seat Insert Attachment: Inspect individual seat inserts to assure proper
attachment to the seat frame. If seat is not secure report it to YCIPTA at the
time of observance.

m. Vehicle Storage: All vehicles shall be stored at YCIPTA’s Facility or other
approved locations as designated by YCIPTA, when not in service. All doors
(including wheelchair [ift), windows and safety hatches of vehicle shall be
closed and secured.

n. Battery Switch: When storing vehicle the master battery switch shall be turned
to the "OFF" position.

CONTRACTOR shall develop, implement, and maintain a written checklist of items
included in the daily servicing of each vehicle. The checklist shall be utilized and
kept on file for YCIPTA review.

12.Right of Inspection by YCIPTA: YCIPTA and its representatives shall have the right
to inspect, at any time, all YCIPTA-provided equipment. CONTRACTOR shall
correct any problems, within twenty-four (24) hours of written notification by YCIPTA,
if the problem can be corrected within such time. If the situation is not correctable
within 24 hours, then arrangements for correction shall have commenced within said
period. CONTRACTOR is responsible for notifying YCIPTA immediately of any

Yuma County Infergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 70
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

143



maintenance safety violations for correction. YCIPTA reserves the right to bring a
third party maintenance auditor to review YCIPTA provided vehicles and equipment
and monitor/review CONTRACTOR's maintenance program at any time during the
Agreement term, at its own cost. CONTRACTOR is expected to fully cooperate and
provide any records requested by YCIPTA’s maintenance auditor or personnel. Said
auditor may act on YCIPTA's behalf and provide a report which would require the
CONTRACTOR to comply with the repairs with a specific time period as agreed
upon between YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR.

13.Corrections: If CONTRACTOR fails to correct a problem after receiving YCIPTA
notification, YCIPTA may make, at its discretion, corrections and shall charge the
actual reasonable cost to CONTRACTOR for these corrections. YCIPTA may deduct
these charges from any amount due or that may become due to CONTRACTOR
under Agreement.

14. Interior/Exterior Cleaning _and Maintenance: CONTRACTOR shall maintain the
exterior and interior cleanliness of all vehicles to the highest standards at all times.
CONTRACTOR shall supply aill materials and supplies for this purpose. YCIPTA
shall provide approved cleaning materials or supplies. All gum, litter, newspapers,
graffiti or other foreign materials shall be removed in a professional manner and
immediately upon their discovery. Physical damage to the exterior or interior not
correctable with diligent cleaning methods, such as tears in the seats, interior body
panel cracks or cracked lamp lenses, shall be reported by CONTRACTOR to
YCIPTA at the time of observance, and no later than within 24 hours of discovery of
the physical damage.

15.Daily_Cleaning: All vehicles that have been in revenue service shall have the
following items performed on a nightly basis:

a. Floor Cleaning: Using brooms, sweep the complete interior of each vehicle
starting in the rear and working to the front. Sweep trash from step wells
into an appropriate trashcan.

b. Interior Vacuuming: Where applicable, activate and carry the vacuum
hose through the door of the vehicle, and starting in the rear, collect all
trash, soil, dust and other debris off the seats and floor. Particular
attention should be given to vacuuming the bus operator's compartment
and cleaning the dash areas. Any large or heavy articles are to be placed
in plastic garbage bags and discarded in a trash barrel. Retract the
vacuum hose from the front door. After parking the vehicle, wipe dust off
the bus operator's area and all other horizontal surfaces inside the vehicle.

c. Trash Receptacle: Empty the trash receptacle located near the front of
each vehicle.

d. Dusting: Using a clean damp rag, wipe clean the dashboard, farebox and
all operator controls.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 71
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Reuta and Demand Response Services, August 2014

144



e. Vandalism/Graffiti Inspection: Inspect the vehicle interior to assure that no
seat damage or graffiti exists. Except as set forth herein, CONTRACTOR
should repair the damage and remove graffiti at the time of observance.
No vehicle shall be put into revenue service with visible graffiti.

f. Seat Insert Attachment: Inspect individual seat inserts to assure proper
attachment to the seat frame. If seat is not secure report it to YCIPTA at
the time of observance.

g. Lights: All lights including the high beams will be checked daily upon the
morning startup.

h. Wheelchair Ramp/Lift: The wheelchair ramp/lift on each vehicle shall be
cycled one complete cycle prior to departure from YCIPTA's corporation
yard each day. If the wheelchair ramp/lift fails to complete the cycle, the
failure must be reported to YCIPTA and the vehicle repaired or another
one assigned.

i.  Vehicle Storage: All vehicles shall be stored at YCIPTA's Facility or other
approved locations as designated by YCIPTA, when not in service. All
doors (including wheelchair lift), windows and safety hatches of vehicle
shall be closed and secured.

j. Battery Switch: When storing vehicle the master battery switch shall be
turned to the "OFF" position.

16. Weekly Servicing: CONTRACTOR shall maintain a list of all vehicles that have
been serviced. This list shall be used to assure that all vehicles have had the
action items listed below completed at the frequency described, or that a particular
vehicle was not available for revenue servicing during any given week. A Vehicle
Cleaning Report signed by the Operations Manager that details all vehicles cleaned
during a one-week period shall be submitted to YCIPTA each Monday by 5:00 p.m..

Action Frequency
Wash Exterior of Vehicle Twice Weekly or More Often as Needed
Mop Floors Once Weekly or More Often as Needed
Wash Wheels Twice Weekly or More Often as Needed
Clean Operator's Compartment Once Weekly or More Often as Needed
Clean Inside Windows Once Weekly or More Often as Needed
Clean Side Panels/Ceilings Once Weekly or More Often as Needed
Clean Seat Frames/Backs Once Weekly or More Often as Needed
Remove Graffiti As Needed
Vehicle Detailing Every six (6) months

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 72

Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

145



a. Mop Floors: Floors shall be wet-mopped starting at the rear of the vehicle
working forward, assuring to also mop wheel-well inner extension areas and
step well. Excessive amounts of water or other fluids shall not be allowed on
the floors or other interior parts of the vehicle.

b. Wash Wheels: Wheels shall be degreased and rinsed clean.

c. Operators Compartment: Operator's compartments shall be thoroughly
cleaned, including vacuuming of trash from around foot controls; wiping clean
dashboard, operator's seat and all operators’ controls. Upon completion, the
dashboard shall be treated with anti-static spray. Anti-static spray shall not be
applied to steering wheel or operator's seat.

d. Remove Graffiti. Any graffiti on interior or exterior of any vehicle shall be
removed immediately upon discovery. CONTRACTOR shall obtain approval
of all graffiti removal materials prior to their use.

e. Windows: Using the cleaner approved for use only on windows, the interiors
of all windows shall be sprayed, cleaned and wiped dry with a rag. Windows
include windshields, door windows and interior mirrors.

17. Detailing: Each vehicle shall receive a thorough detailing in May and November of
each year, no later than the end of that month. The detailing of these vehicles will
be scheduled and completed by the CONTRACTOR and a report verifying the
detailing of YCIPTA provided vehicles shall be completed and be available for
YCIPTA review. CONTRACTOR shall obtain the monthly preventative maintenance
schedule used by YCIPTA to develop detailing schedule. Each detailing shall
include at a minimum the following:

a. Wash exterior of the vehicle, including wheels.

b. Sweep and vacuum interior thoroughly. Remove gum and other substances
from the floor, sidewalls, ceiling or seats.

¢. Remove any and all graffiti from interior and/or exterior of vehicle using
YCIPTA approved graffiti remover.

d. Remove any and all foreign materials from the seats and other interior areas
of the vehicle. Clean the vehicle thoroughly, using industrial cleaner, aerosol
all-purpose cleaner and aerosol or mixed concentrated window cleaners.
Rinse all washed areas and wipe dry. Clean and dry all windows. A water
hose shall not be used in the interior of the vehicle.

e. Remove all side and rear double and friple seat cushions, not requiring tools,
for cleaning underneath. Replace cushions.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 73
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

146




18.

19,

20.

21.

22.

f. Clean interior dome lights as necessary.
g. Polish and clean aluminum wheels with YCIPTA approved method.

h. Apply protective coating to bumpers, dashboard, rubber fenders and tires to
improve appearance of vehicle. Do not apply to steering wheel, seats or
floors.

Subcontracting Vehicle Cleaning: YCIPTA may reserve the right to subcontract
vehicle cleaning and detailing to a third party. Should YCIPTA subconiract out this
function, CONTRACTOR shall remove all costs associated with the provision of this
function from their compensation as described in this Agreement final price
proposal to YCIPTA.

Bodily Fluids and Biood borne Pathogens: All bodily fluids and blood borhe
pathogens shall be cleaned up immediately. If a vehicle is in service at the time of
the discovery of any bodily fluids and/or blood borne pathogens, that vehicle shall
be replaced, removed from service and cleaned immediately. All YCIPTA provided
vehicles shall have a blood borne pathogens kit provided by CONTRACTOR.

Records: CONTRACTOR shall submit proposed Daily Vehicle Reports, Checklists
and Inspection Report and any other applicable reports (together referred to as the
“‘Reports™) to YCIPTA for approval prior to the service start-up date. YCIPTA will
approve or return the proposed Reports within ten business days of receipt. If
YCIPTA requires changes to any of the Reports, CONTRACTOR shall make such
changes to YCIPTA's satisfaction prior to the service start-up date.

Bus Stop Maintenance; CONTRACTOR shall repair and maintain all bus stops,
benches, shelters and YCIPTA controlled facilities throughout YCIPTA's transit
service area including, but not limited to: weed removal, landscape maintenance,
pressure washing sidewalks, installing/fremoving hus stop signs, poles and
benches, repairing bus shelters and emptying trash/recycle cans. CONTRACTOR
shall provide all tools, equipment and parts necessary for installing and removing
bus stop signs and cleaning supplies for benches and shelters as necessary to
clean and maintain facilities, bus stops, shelters and benches. YCIPTA will provide
signs, hardware and poles necessary for ihe CONTRACTOR to complete this
responsibility. YCIPTA may remove this function from the CONTRACTOR and
subcontract out if necessary. Should YCIPTA subcontract out bus stop
maintenance, CONTRACTOR shall negotiate with YCIPTA to remove all costs
associated with Bus Stop Maintenance from their compensation as described in this
Agreement.

Facility Maintenance: YCIPTA shall be responsible for facility maintenance of
YCIPTA controlled facilities, including janitorial maintenance of the facilities.
CONTRACTOR shall manage the YCIPTA Facility Maintenance Plan including

Yuma County intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 74
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

147




coordinating repairs to YCIPTA controlled facilities on behalf of and at the expense
of YCIPTA.

23. Turnover of Vehicles: This procedure is designed to determine the condition of
YCIPTA vehicles and equipment at the time of turnover between contractors. This
Turnover Procedure shall be implemented toward the end of the current contract
term and prior to the commencement of the new contract. At YCIPTA’s option, a
Turnover Inspection may be implemented with or without a change in coniractors.

a. Pre-Audit Meeting: The CONTRACTOR, the successor contractor, and
YCIPTA (or its designee) shall meet approximately 60 days prior to turnover
at the Facility. All parties shall be represented by authorized personnel at this
Pre-Audit Meeting. The purpose of the Pre-Audit Meeting shall be to set
guidelines for procedure during the initial Audit. Procedures shall be agreed
upon and confirmed in writing by all parties within five (5) working days of the
Pre-Audit Meeting.

b. Initial Audit Meeting: The CONTRACTOR, successor contractor, and YCIPTA
(or its designee) shall meet approximately 45 days prior to turnover. All
parties shall be represented by authorized personnel at this Initial Audit.
CONTRACTOR shall make available access to the YCIPTA provided facility
and such personnel as necessary to move vehicles and operate the lift, if
necessary. CONTRACTOR shall make available to YCIPTA (or its designee)
all preventive maintenance inspection records, daily bus operator inspections;
oil analyses test results and other records as appropriate. The
CONTRACTOR, Successful Proposer, and YCIPTA (or its designee) shall
cooperate fully during the Initial Audit as set forth in the guidelines determined
at the Pre-Audit Meeting.

At this time, YCIPTA (or its desighee) shall examine every coach under the
CONTRACTOR's care, and determine its current condition. CONTRACTOR
shall make available adequate facilities and equipment dedicated to
accommodate the Initial Audit. All parties shall be provided the draft results of
this inspection at the conclusion of the Initial Audit.

c. Resolution of Deficiencies: After the Initial Audit, CONTRACTOR and YCIPTA
(or its designee) shall meet to determine a plan and timeline for resolution of
defects found during the Initial Audit. CONTRACTOR shall furnish YCIPTA
with timeline and specific plan for resolution of deferred maintenance prior to
Turnover. The “Resolution Plan” shall be submitted no less than thirty (30)
days prior to the expected Turnover date.

CONTRACTOR shall address deficiencies identified from the audit. YCIPTA
at its discretion may have the items repaired and deduct the cost of the
repairs from the final invoice due to the CONTRACTOR at an hourly labor
rate plus parts, materials, supplies and sublet as required to repair defects.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 75
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

148



At five business days prior to tummover, YCIPTA (or its designee),
CONTRACTOR, and the Successful Proposer, shall meet to physically re-
examine every YCIPTA provided vehicle. Records shall be kept, and made
available to YCIPTA (or its designee), documenting items that have been
repaired since the Initial Audit. Current condition of every bus shall be
determined. All parties shall be provided the draft results of this inspection at
the conclusion of the Turnover Audit.

24.Vehicle Acceptance Standards: All YCIPTA vehicles will undergo a detailed

inspection, performed jointly by representatives of YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR,
prior to CONTRACTOR accepting any YCIPTA vehicle during a transition between
contractors. YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR agree that YCIPTA vehicles will be
delivered to CONTRACTOR in good condition and with each vehicle meeting or
exceeding the following specifications for the first 30 days of vehicle acceptance by
CONTRACTOR:

a.

Vehicle body and all attachments theretc will be free of dents and scratches
in excess of I" in length. All body parts shall be properly attached to vehicle
chassis and free of rust.

Exterior paint and decals shall be free from scrapes, scratches in excess of [
in length, rust and tar. All decals shall be properly applied and free from
peeling.

Vehicle tires shall be of proper load range for the vehicle and be of a type
equivalent to that originally supplied by the manufacturer. All tires shall be of
the same manufacturer and model. All tires will be free from side wall
damage, shall have a minimum of 8/32 inch tread depth on front tires and a
minimum of 6/32 inch tread depth on rear tires and shall be free from damage
due to improper alignment, balancing or curb damage.

Vehicles shall contain a spare tire and wheel meeting the standards of the
immediately preceding paragraph if the vehicle was so equipped when
purchased by YCIPTA.

Vehicle destination signs, if vehicles are so equipped, shall have all current
route indicators and shall be in proper working order.

All vehicle lights shall be in working order.

All decals or painting identifying the vehicle with a prior contractor or other
operator shall be removed prior to delivery and all paint damage from said
removal shall be properly repaired.

All vehicle doors and windows shall be in proper operating condition and
properly sealed against the entry of fumes or water,

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 76
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

149



i. All components of the emission control and exhaust system shall be free from
leaks, rust and be in proper operating condition, Vehicles shall have current
state emission certification, if so required.

j.  Vehicle engine shall be in proper operating condition. Proper condition shall
be established through oil analysis and compression testing. If engine has
been rebuilt, YCIPTA shall supply documentation of rebuilder and assure
CONTRACTOR that engine rebuild meets manufacturers’ specifications.

k. Vehicle transmission shall be in proper operating condition, free from leaks,
bad gears or slippage. If transmission has been rebuilt, YCIPTA shall supply
documentation of rebuilder and assure CONTRACTOR that transmission
rebuild meets manufacturer's specifications.

l. Vehicle electrical system shall be in proper operating condition. Alternator
shall be supplying specified output and battery(ies) shall fall within
manufacturers’ specifications for output and specific gravity. All vehicle wiring
shall be free from fraying and shall be properly loomed and attached to the
vehicle in such a way as to prevent fraying. Any alterations to wiring not
completed by vehicle manufacturer shall be performed so as to not overload
any circuit and not to cause any short circuit.

m. All heaters and air conditioners shall be free from leaks and shall perform to
the manufacturers' specifications.

n. All brake linings, drums and rotors shall meet manufacturers’ specifications
and shall have at least 50% life remaining as measured in 32nds of an inch
from new. All wheel cylinders and brake lines shall be free from leaks. All
brake parts shall be in proper repair.

0. Vehicle radios, antennas and all other communications devices shall be in
proper working order and mounted so as {o not constitute a safety hazard.

p. The wheelchair lift shall meet all current state requirements and be in proper
working condition. All wheelchair tiedowns and other securement equipment
shall be in good condition and not be frayed or worn so as to constitute a
safety hazard. Wheelchair lift interlocks, if so equipped, shall be in proper
operating condition and meet state requirements.

g. Vehicles shall be equipped with a fire extinguisher with current tag, a
complete first aid kit, full and complete safety triangle kit and all other safety
equipment required by law.

r. All passenger seats and all other interior surfaces shall be cleaned and free
from stains, tears and graffiti. Seats shall be properly secured to the vehicle
with the proper grade of securement device.

s. Vehicles shall have a current preventive maintenance inspection including oil
and filter change, fransmission service, etc., in accordance with the
requirements of CONTRACTOCR in this Agreement and state requirements.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 77
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

150




t. Vehicles will have all current required state inspection and registration
certificates, if required.

u. Vehicles will be cleaned to the standards of this Agreement and shall be
completely fueled. All other fluid levels shall meet manufacturers'
requirements.

v. All vehicle repair and inspection records shall be delivered with the vehicles.
w. All glass shall be free from chips, scratches and cracks.

X. All suspension and steering components shall be within the manufacturer's
wear limits specifications and free from cracks and leaks.

y. All other items not specifically listed herein shall be in serviceable condition
meeting generally accepted standards and practices of the public
transportation industry and meeting all requirements of the state and federal
government and all requirements contained in this Agreement.

In the event the joint vehicle inspection reveals defects in the vehicles as specified in
this section, then YCIPTA at its discretion may have the items repaired or authorize
CONTRACTOR to repair the items at an hourly labor rate plus parts, materials,
supplies and sublet as required to repair defects as negotiated between YCIPTA and
CONTRACTOR. If necessary, additional maintenance personnel, with authorization
from YCIPTA will be brought in to assist with completing repairs, their travel, meal
and lodging expenses will also be paid by YCIPTA in accordance with the Internal
Revenue Service per diem rates.

Upon completion of repairs, YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR will conduct a final
inspection of the vehicles to ensure that items noted in the preliminary inspection
were completed and that all vehicles are in compliance with this section.

D. Marketing and Public Relations Program

1. Marketing Organization: During the term of Agreement, CONTRACTOR will
cooperate in marketing and advertising efforts with YCIPTA and other parties.

2. Marketing Identity: YCIPTA shall determine the identity and approve all
marketing material. CONTRACTOR shall not distribute any materials that can be
directly or indirectly associated with YCIPTA or the fixed-route or demand
response services identified in Agreement, without the written approval of
YCIPTA.

All printed, audio, or visual materials dealing with fares, demand response
schedule(s)/pickup policies, promotional activities, public relations or other
marketing communications materials distributed on board any vehicle must be
approved by YCIPTA, in writing, in advance. From time to time, YCIPTA will
supply CONTRACTOR with marketing materials for distribution on the vehicles.
CONTRACTOR shall distribute such materials on the vehicles when asked to do
so by YCIPTA.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 78
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

151



3. Special Services: CONTRACTOR may from time to time be required to provide a
bus and bus operator to participate in YCIPTA sponsored marketing and public
outreach activities. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide YCIPTA with up to 10
events, up to eight (8) hours each at no cost to YCIPTA. YCIPTA may request
CONTRACTOR to provide additional shuttle services, holiday light tour or special
event services for the per revenue hour rate as defined in Section 5 of the
Agreement.

4. Media Referrals; CONTRACTOR shall refer all media requests for information on
the fixed-route or demand response services identified in the Agreement to
YCIPTA’s Transit Director. Under no circumstances shall CONTRACTOR make
any contact with the media or offer comment regarding the services identified in
the Agreement, without the written permission of YCIPTA Transit Director.
Should CONTRACTOR, or its employees, agents, representatives, or its
represented employees through collective bargaining violate this policy, including
defaming YCIPTA or its staff, while representing CONTRACTOR during the term
of this Agreement, it shall be grounds for immediate termination of the
Agreement for cause as defined in Section 44 of the Agreement.

5. Schedules, Brochures, Maps and Other Marketing Material: CONTRACTOR shall
be responsible for distributing YCIPTA transit materials (such as flyers, surveys
and maps) to passengers, agencies, outlets, and on the vehicles, mail or other
means as directed by YCIPTA. CONTRACTOR shall mail Rider's Guides,
brochures, and other transit information items prepared by YCIPTA to customers
who request them, if requested by YCIPTA and YCIPTA shall provide postage
and envelopes to CONTRACTOR for this purpose.

6. Passenger Surveys: CONTRACTOR shall, when requested by YCIPTA,
distribute surveys to passengers, and/or otherwise provide reasonable
assistance in YCIPTA's monitoring and marketing activities.

7. Notices, Postings and On-vehicle Advertising: CONTRACTOR shall post YCIPTA
provided and approved notices as directed by YCIPTA. CONTRACTOR shall not
post or otherwise distribute any materials on the vehicles unless specifically
requested by YCIPTA and YCIPTA shall approve all materials prior to their
distribution. Any revenue from posting or other distribution shall be YCIPTA's.

8. Community Engagement: CONTRACTOR, in agreeing to the terms and
specifications of this Agreement shall be considered as an agent and
representative of YCIPTA in its interactions with the community. As such, in the
course and context of all work specified herein, the CONTRACTOR shall bear
the same political responsibilities (e.g., to pursue justice, equity, inclusion and
participation) to the citizens (i.e., all residents) it services as does YCIPTA itself.
To this end, the CONTRACTOR shall develop and implement a plan for
community engagement, including participation in the local chamber of
commerce in the Yuma area and form relationships in the community in all
matters related to transit planning and operations in cooperation with and under
the direction of YCIPTA staff.

Yuma County Intergovernmeantal Public Transportation Authority Page 79
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

152




E. Reports, Accounting, and Audits

1. Reports: CONTRACTOR shall provide YCIPTA the following reports, based upon
the identified schedule and in a form and format prescribed or approved by
YCIPTA:

a. Daily Summary. Daily written summary of all fixed-route and if
CONTRACTOR is providing; demand response activity by program or mode
based upon daily passenger count logs. CONTRACTOR shall provide reporis
no later than three (3) business days following the date of service. This report
shall also describe anything out of the ordinary for that particular operating
day including any passenger complaints. CONTRACTOR shall file report daily
at end of each operating day via email fo jandoh@ycipta.az.gov.

b. Monthly Summary Report: CONTRACTOR shall provide written report no
later than the fifteenth (15th) business day of the month following the end of
the reporting period. The cover sheet for the report shall be on
CONTRACTOR letterhead and be signed by the Operations Manager. The
report shall be developed using the latest version (or other versions as
determined by YCIPTA) of the computerized spreadsheet software called
"Excel" and shall be provided in print and electronic formats. The electronic
copy may be sent via the internet, if approved by YCIPTA.

¢. Inventory of Schedules/Transfers/Passes: CONTRACTOR shall provide a
written monthly inventory of all schedules, brochures, transfers, passes and
other marketing materials by the fifteenth (15th) business day of each month.

d. Fare Revenue: CONTRACTOR shall document ali fares received and provide
written report by e-mail to skreger@ycipta.az.gov or any other person
designated by YCIPTA's Transit Director, no later than one business day
following the date of collection by the armor car service.

e. Other Reports: CONTRACTOR shall provide other written reports (i.e., daily
departure logs, unusual incident summaries, etc.) as required by YCIPTA.
CONTRACTOR shall provide reports on a daily basis.

f. Dissemination of Data: CONTRACTOR shall not disseminate ridership,
farebox, or other data or information to any party without prior written
approval from YCIPTA or as required by law.

Reports to YCIPTA

Report Due Date
Turquoise Route 10 15th of the following month
Monthly Report as defined by YCIPTA 15th of the following month
Daily by the end of the day. Prior to noon

Daily Vehicle Log preferred.

Daily Operations Report Three days after the day of service by 5:00 p.m.

Fare Receipts The following day of deposit by 5:00 p.m.

Cash Register Z & X Reports” The foliowing business day by 5:00 p.m. *
Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 80

Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

153



Acufare Reports 15th of the following month

Greyhound Reports* : The following business day by 5:00 p.m. *
Bus Shelter Report Monday of the following week by 5:00 p.m.
Bus Maintenance Report Monday of the following week by 5:00 p.m.
Supervisor Logs to Validate Road

Supervision 16th of the following month

NTD Surveys 15th of the following month

Demand Response Service Monthly Analysis

and Manifests* 15th of the following month

* Only if Agreement is amended fo include these services.

2. Accounting Practices: During the term of the Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall
maintain its accounting records as they relate to the programs identified in the
Agreement consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
and in an YCIPTA-approved format.

3. Compliance with Regulatory Agency Requirements: Services provided under the
Agreement shall conform to all the requirements of Federal, State, and/or local
regulatory agencies, including the U.S. Department of Transportation, if
applicable.

4, CONTRACTOR/YCIPTA Meetings: CONTRACTOR shall meet with YCIPTA as
required by YCIPTA's Transit Director, no less than weekly. CONTRACTOR shall
provide frequent communication with YCIPTA staff.

F. Changes to Level of Service

1. Basic Level of Service: The “basic level of service” is the amount of service,
approximately 36,000 vehicle revenue hours for fixed-route service and, if
requested by YCIPTA, 2,208 for demand response service, anticipated to be
operated by the CONTRACTOR on a routine basis. Following the procedures
described in this paragraph, YCIPTA, at its sole discretion, may increase,
decrease, or otherwise change the service to be operated by the
CONTRACTOR.

2. Emergency Adjustments in Service Level: Temporary emergency adjustments in
service may be initiated either by YCIPTA or CONTRACTOR only in the event of
an emergency or circumstance that requires a detour or an adjustment in routing
or scheduling under circumstances where there is no opportunity for the parties
to confer; provided, however, that such adjustments do not constitute a
“substantial change” as defined below.

The party initiating the emergency adjustment shall notify the other party
immediately of such occurrence. YCIPTA shall specify steps to be taken by
CONTRACTOR to notify passengers of the change in routing and/or scheduling
necessitated by such emergency adjustments, and/or medifications to the
emergency adjustments made by CONTRACTOR. In making temporary
emergency adjustments, should CONTRACTOR incur added expenses beyond
those compensated under the primary terms of the Agreement, YCIPTA and

Yuma County Intergovernmenta! Public Transportation Authority Page 81
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

154




CONTRACTOR shall negotiate a fair and equitable adjustment in compensation
for service.

3. Non-Substantial Changes in Service Level: YCIPTA may order non-substantial
increases, decreases or other alterations to the service upon written notice to
CONTRACTOR. Said notice will specify the change(s) requested and the
effective date(s). CONTRACTOR will be allowed thirty (30) days to implement
non-substantial changes; however, YCIPTA shall endeavor to provide
CONTRACTOR with earlier notice whenever possible. YCIPTA may also, from
time-to-time, request minor miscellaneous transit service (i.e. tour of YCIPTA for
new YCIPTA employees, group of senior citizens wishing to go on a field trip,
school field trips, etc.) and provide one (1) week notice, whenever possible.

4. Substantial Changes in Service Level. Any proposed change in the service level
shall be deemed “substantial” if such results in one or more of the following
conditions:

e Anincrease of 10% or more in total vehicle revenue hours, as computed from
the Basic Level of Service;

s A decrease of 10% or more in total vehicle revenue hours, as computed from
the Basic Level of Service;

« The cumulative total of non-substantial service changes over a period of time
that results in a service level either more than 10% above, or 10% below the
established Beginning Service Level.

e« The CONTRACTOR shall be given no less than thirty (30) days written notice
of the intent to order such substantial changes, and shall have an opportunity
to be heard prior to adoption of such order. Such order shall not be effective
sooner than thirty (30) days from the date of adoption, unless mutually agreed
otherwise in writing by both parties.

5. Compensation: The fixed and variable rates of compensation shall not be
renegotiated during the base term of this Agreement subject only to the
description of service level changes described herein. CONTRACTOR shall be
compensated following any substantial change to the service level according to
Section 5 of the Agreement.

6. Changes in__Subsidiary Duties: YCIPTA may request changes in
CONTRACTOR's reporting requirements, training and safety programs, inventory
requirements, testing procedures, personnel practices, and/or other operating
details that do not result in changes to the service level. If CONTRACTOR
declines such requests, or such request would result in a material increase in
CONTRACTOR's costs or in the time required for performance, CONTRACTOR
shall notify YCIPTA within seven (7) days after receipt of such request and shall
submit a claim detailing such objections and/or increases. The parties shall
negotiate an equitable settlement of CONTRACTOR's claim, which reflects

Yuma County intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page B2
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

155




actual increases or decreases in CONTRACTOR's total costs to perform
Agdgreement caused by the change in question.
G. Employee Qualifications and Training Program

1. Employee Qualifications: The following minimum qualifications will be required of
those persons employed in the fixed-route and demand response services:

a. Bus Operator Instructors/Operations Manager/Lead Road Supervisor:

1) Valid Class "B" or School Bus Operators License - with necessary
passenger endorsements and air brake endorsement.

2) Valid Medical Certificate and passage of pre-employment drug test.

3) One year recent experience in public transit or school bus driving or one
year recent experience as public transit or school bus training instructor,;
Valid instructor training certificate consistent with "Train the-trainer" or
other formal training program recognized by the State of Arizona and FTA
including TSI and PASS certifications.

4) Qualified to participate in third party testing through ADOT MVD.

5) Bilingual (English & Spanish) unless provided with Basic Spanish for
Transit Employees handbook.

6) Certified in First Aid & CPR.

7) Completion of YCIPTA orientation program.

8) No moving violations for a three (3) year period.

9) Completion of CONTRACTOR bus operator training program.
b. Bus Operators/Maintenance Manager/Mechanics/Utility Workers:

1) Valid Class "B" or School Bus Operators License with necessary
passenger endorsements and air brake endorsement.

2) No moving violations for a three (3) year period.
3) Valid Medical Certificate and passage of pre-employment drug test.

4) Minimum of three (3) years of recent experience safely driving a motor
vehicle with a valid license.

5) Completion of CONTRACTOR bus operator training program.
6) Completion of YCIPTA orientation program.

7) Bilingual {English & Spanish) unless provided with Basic Spanish for
Transit Employees handbook.

7) Bus Operators certified in First Aid & CPR.
c. Dispatchers/Transit Operations Supervisors:

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 83
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Reute and Demand Response Services, August 2014

156



1) Completion of the bus operator training program. (Compliance with
Section 2 below.)

2) Completion of the road supervisor training program.

3) Completion of CONTRACTOR's Customer Service Skills course.
4y Completion of YCIPTA orientation program.

5) No moving violations in a three (3) year period.

6) Bilingual (English & Spanish) unless provided with Basic Spanish for
Transit Employees Handbook

7) Certified in First Aid & CPR.

2. CONTRACTOR Staff Training; CONTRACTOR shall provide training for all
personnel employed to provide services pursuant to this Agreement. It is the sole
responsibility of CONTRACTOR to ensure that all bus operators are fully
knowledgeable of their duties and responsibilities and can operate a fixed-route
or demand response vehicle in a safe and effective manner. It is also the
CONTRACTOR's responsibility to provide additional training if the training
requirements specified by YCIPTA are insufficient. CONTRACTOR shall comply
with State of Arizona training requirements. At a minimum, training shall comply
with the following requirements:

1) Class "D", Class "C" bus operators, first-time Class "B" bus operators and
Class "B" school bus operators who have not had prior public
transit/school bus training.

a) Acquisition of a valid Class "B" (or school bus driver operator’s) license
and Medical Certificate.

b) Minimum sixteen (16) hours classroom instruction regarding
CONTRACTOR policies, procedures, defensive driving, vehicle code,
bus operator notices, vehicle components, bike rack use, radio
procedures, vehicle inspection, pick-up lists and schedules, transfer
policies, fare collection, accident procedures, state rules and
regulations, accident report writing, passenger handling and empathy.

¢) Minimum eight (8) hours classroom and supervised "hands-on” training
regarding wheelchair lift components, assisting passengers who have
disabilities, operation of [ift with/without power, loading/tying down
procedures and emergency procedures.

d) Minimum sixteen (16) hours individual behind-the-wheel instruction
from a qualified driving instructor while out of service.

e) Minimum sixteen (16) hours individual behind-the-wheel instruction
from a qualified driving instructor while in service.

fy Completion of bus operator training at least two (2) days before being
allowed to drive in service unsupervised.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 84
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

157



g) Completion of driving all routes (including "A" routes) and services at
least twice before being allowed to drive unsupervised.

h) Completion of a customer service and sensitivity training program prior
to entering service. Said training shall be conducted annually for all
staff assigned to this Agreement.

i) Completion of an orientation session to YCIPTA prior to entering
service.

2) Class "B"/school bus operators (with a medical certificate) who have had
at least nine (9) month's public transit or school bus driving experience
over the previous two years, as well as proof of training and good
references from current or prior employer.

a) Minimum sixteen (16) hours classroom instruction regarding
CONTRACTOR policies, procedures, defensive driving, vehicle code,
bus operator notices, vehicle components, bike rack use, radio
procedures, vehicle inspection, schedules, routes, transfer policies,
fare collection, accident procedures, state rules and regulations,
accident report writing, passenger handling and passenger empathy.

b) Minimum eight (8} hours classroom and supervised "hands-on" training
regarding wheelchair lift components, assisting passengers who have
disabilities, operation of lift with/without power, loadingftying down
procedures, and emergency procegures.

c) Minimum eight (8) hours individual behind-the-wheel instruction from
qualified driving instructor while out of service.

d) Minimum eight (8) hours individual behind-the-wheel instruction from a
qualified driving instructor while in service.

e) Completion of driving all routes (including "A" routes) and services at
least twice before being allowed to drive unsupervised.

fy Completion of a customer service and sensitivity training program prior
to entering service. Said training shall be conducted annually for all
staff assigned to this Agreement.

g) Completion of an orientation session to YCIPTA prior to entering
service.

b. Additional training required for all bus operators, dispatchers and transit
operations supervisors regardless of experience:

1) Written Route Knowledge Test: No bus operator dispatchers and transit
operations supervisors shall be allowed to operate in revenue service until
he or she has successfully completed a written test demonstrating full
knowledge of his or her assigned route.

2) Written Fare Structure Test: No bus operator, dispatchers and transit
operations supervisors shall be allowed to operate in revenue service until

Yuma Gounty Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 85
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

158



he or she has successfully completed a written test demonstrating full
knowledge of the system fare structure and fare instruments.

3) Vehicle-type Training: No bus operator, mechanic, utility worker,
dispatchers and transit operations supervisors shall be allowed to operate
equipment until he or she has been trained and signed off by a qualified
instructor as to his or her successful attainment of the skills necessary to
properly operate the vehicle type to which he or she has been assigned.

4) A minimum of one hour safety/ongoing training must occur every month
for every bus operator, mechanic, utility worker, dispatchers and transit
operations supervisors employed. CONTRACTOR will deliver meeting
agendas and minutes to YCIPTA and the CONTACTOR will add items to
the next meeting's agenda upon the request of YCIPTA. YCIPTA may
request items to be included on the agenda or have time to discuss
operational matters.

5) Training in understanding Title VI and Limited English Proficiency (LEP)
as defined by the FTA, including a signed statement acknowledging said
training.

6) No employee shall be allowed to enter service under this Agreement
without completion of the training requirements in Section G. Any
CONTRACTOR employee discovered to be in service not in compliance
with this Section shall be suspended from YCIPTA service until they meet
those requirements. CONTRACTOR shall provide documentation to
YCIPTA, if requested validating the training in this Section has been
completed.

7) CONTRACTOR Staff Evaluations: Each bus operator, utility worker,
dispatchers and transit operations supervisors employed shall be
evaluated by a qualified instructor at least once every six (6) months,
including in-service evaluation and license and medical certificate checks.

8) Accidents: A CONTRACTOR qualified instructor shali ride with, perform
an evaluation of, and retrain, if necessary, any bus operator who: (1) is
involved in a preventable accident or (2) is involved in two (2) or more
non-preventable accidents in any twelve (12) month period,

9) Bus Operator Safety Award: CONTRACTOR shall institute an employee of
the month, employee of the year and bus operator safety award program
to be conducted at least once every six (6) months, including the provision
of safe driving badges.

3. Background Checks: YCIPTA has entered into a memorandum of understanding
with the Western Arizona Council of Governments (WACOG) for the provision of
fransit services which requires background checks for all bus operators,
dispatchers and transit operations supervisors required by the Arizona
Department of Economic Security due to serving children or vulnerable adults on
YCAT routes and services.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 86
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

159




d)

CONTRACTOR shall have its employees go through the Central Registry
Background Checks and the Arizona Department of Economic Security
will use the information contained in the Central Registry as a factor to
determine qualifications for CONTRACTOR employees to provide
services under this Agreement.

A person who is disqualified because of a Central Registry Background
Check may apply to the Board of Fingerprinting for a Central Registry
exception pursuantto A.R.S. § 41-619.57. A person who is granted a
Central Registry exception pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-619.57 is not entitled
to a employment because the person has been granted a Central
Registry exception.

Before being employed by the CONTRACTOR, persons shall certify on
forms that are provided by the State of Arizona whether an allegation of
abuse or neglect was made against them and was substantiated. The
completed forms are to be maintained as confidential.

A person awaiting receipt of the Central Registry Background Check may
work under the terms of this Agreement after completion and submittal of
the Direct Service Position certification form if the certification states:

a. The person is not currently the subject of an investigation of child
abuse or neglect in Arizona, or another state of jurisdiction; and

b. The person has not been the subject of an investigation of child abuse
or neglect in Arizona, or another state or jurisdiction, which resulted in
a substantiated finding.

Note: The Certification for Direct Service Position is located at:
http://www.azdes.gov/InternetFiles/InternetProgrammaticForms/doc/ACY -
1287AFORFF .doc

If the Central Registry Background Check specifies any disqualifying act
and the person does not have a Centrai Registry exception, the person
shall be prohibited from working under the terms of this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR shall maintain the Central Registry Background Check
results and any related forms or documents in a confidential file for five (5)
years after termination of the Agreement.

Note: The Request for Search of Central Registry for Background Check
is located at: hitps.//www.azdes.gov/opac.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 87
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

160



4, Uniforms, Dress Code & Appearance: CONTRACTOR shall provide and
maintain clean, identical uniforms, to be approved by YCIPTA for all bus
operators, dispatchers, fransit operations supervisor, utility workers and

mechanics and shall enforce an appearance code, also subject to approval by
YCIPTA.

1) At a minimum, uniform requirements shall include the following for all staff:

a) Have a wrist watch that is set to www.time.gov as that is the official
time for YCAT services and is a part of the required uniform. Use of
vehicle clocks and cellular telephone clocks are not permitted (Bus
Operators are not allowed to have personal cellular telephones with
them while in Revenue Service).

b) Clean, identical, solid color permanent press, polo shirts with stitched
embroidery for YCAT logo, tucked in when womn. Maintenance
persennel may have a jumpsuit or solid color permanent press button
down shirt.

¢) Clean, identical, solid color jackets or windbreaker for all staff for use
during cold or rainy weather with the YCAT logo.

d) Clean, identical, professionally made name tags provided by
CONTRACTOR and clip-on emplioyee identification tags with the
YCAT logo provided by YCIPTA.

e) Clean, identical, solid color hat with stitched embroidery with YCAT
logo.

f) When operating the trolley, a special Conductor outfit shall be provided
to the bus operator to coincide with the theme of the trolley. YCIPTA
shall fund the initial cost of the uniform for those bus operators
assigned to operating the trolley vehicle and CONTRACTOR shall fund
future replacement costs for the uniform.

2) CONTRACTOR shall also strictly enforce the following dress and
appearance requirements:

a) Males: Clean, solid black full-length pants or trousers; clean, black,
matching socks; and clean, black solid-color shoes for all male bus
operators, Male staff may wear shorts or skirts.

b) Females: Clean, dark, black full-length pants/trousers, and clean, black
shoes for all female bus operators. Female staff may wear shorts or
skirts.

c) All staff operating in revenue service and on YCIPTA property shall
comply with uniform and dress requirements and shall be clean and
well groomed. Shirts must be tucked in. Name tags and employee
identification cards shall be clearly displayed for the public to see.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 88
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

161




b. Courtesy: CONTRACTOR shall supervise all staff to ensure that they are
courteous to all passengers at all times and respond to passengers' questions
regarding use of the transit system or connecting systems accurately. All staff
members shall greet every passenger boarding a YCAT vehicle with a "hello”
or "Good Morning, Afternoon or Evening".

c. Employee Work Rules: CONTRACTOR shall enforce the following employee
rules, subject to modification by YCIPTA:

1) Uniforms:

a) Must be complete and worn at all times when on duty.

b) Shall be clean and presentable at all times.

¢) Uniform designs, colors and ID tags subject to YCIPTA approval.
2) Gratuities/Fares:

a) Gratuities shall not be accepted.

b) All cash shall go into farebox without being handled by the bus
operator. Bus operator shall collect fares consistent with the most
recent fare structure adopted by YCIPTA.

3) Knowledge of Services/Fare Structure:

a) Bus operators, management, dispatchers and transit operations
supervisors shall have a thorough knowledge of the service and fare
structure prior to driving for that service unsupervised.

b) Bus operators, management, dispatchers and transit operations
supervisors shall also have a basic knowledge of transfer locations
with connecting systems and knowledge of connecting systems.

c) CONTRACTOR develop a rule handbook, subject to YCIPTA approval
with information on routes, fares, using YCIPTA electronic equipment,
destination sign codes, restroom stops and other pertaint information
that is required of the bus operator to be successful in their job. Such
rulebook must be in possession of the bus operator while in revenue
service.

5. Arizona Western College Training: As defined in Section 8.D. of the Agreement,
the Operations Supervisor shall be responsible for conducting a YCIPTA
sponsored class at Arizona Western College (AWC) that trains local residents on
how to obtain a Class B license. When this class is in session, the Operations
Supervisor shall commit approximately four (4) hours a week for a 14 week
period as a representative of AWC. CONTRACTOR shall provide a vehicle for
classroom students to train on an off property location. At no time shall AWC
students operate this vehicle on public roadways or without a CONTRACTOR
employee on board. CONTRACTOR shall offer priority hiring to students of this
AWC class should employment opportunities exist.

Yuma County Intergovernmentat Fublic Transportation Authority Page 89
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

162



6. Training of YCIPTA Personnel: At the request of YCIPTA, CONTRACTOR shall
afford YCIPTA staff the opportunity to participate in a training course for
obtaining class B license with passenger and air brake endorsements.

E. General Rules

1. No employee will be permitted to smoke within twenty (20) feet of a bus or bus
stop. No employee may eat, drink or use a cellular telephone, pager, or other
communication device while operating a YCIPTA revenue or non-revenue
vehicle.

2. Boisterous language, profanity, or incivility to anyone shall not be allowed while
in uniform, on or off duty.

3. While in uniform, or at work, no employee shall purchase, consume, or be under
the influence of any narcotic, intoxicant, harmful drug, or prescription drugs that
impair performance.

4. Bus operators shall be responsible to keep all vehicles clean and sanitary during
their shift.

5. All employees are responsible for reporting immediately any defects a vehicle
may have. Bus operators shall conduct a "walk around" pre-trip inspection of
their vehicle, as well as a posttrip inspection, and fill out a "daily vehicle
inspection" sheet. Bus operators shall have CONTRACTOR supervisor
personnel resolve any doubt about the safety of a vehicle prior to operating the
vehicle in service.

6. Employees may use vehicles only in accordance with their assigned duties.

7. Employees must conduct themselves and operate vehicles in a safe and
courteous manner at all times.

8. No one shall be permitted to solicit on the vehicle with the exception of personnel
specifically authorized to do so by YCIPTA.

9. No item longer than five (5) feet shall be allowed on the vehicle.

10. CONTRACTOR shall enforce the provisions defined in the YCIPTA Rules of the
Road to passengers boarding YCIPTA vehicles as published by YCIPTA.,

11.No animals, except service animals, shall be permitted on the vehicle, unless
otherwise authorized in writing by YCIPTA.

12.All information regarding accidents shall be confidential. Employees shall refrain
from speaking to anyone concerning any accident unless it is to the police,
YCIPTA supervisory personnel, or other person(s) invoived in the accident as
required by law.

13.Anyone under the influence of any intoxicant, narcotic, or harmful drug, who
endangers the safety of the bus operator, other passengers, him or herself, or
vehicle equipment, shall not be permitted on the vehicle.

Yuma County Infergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 90
Agreement for the Provision General Puplic Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

163



14.No vehicle shall stop at an unsafe location. Whenever practical, demand
response stops shall be made at a curb.

15.Backing of a vehicle is prohibited unless specifically authorized by dispatch. Bus
operators must request the option to back a vehicle from dispatch prior to
beginning the backing movement.

16. No vehicle shall be operated when its condition is unsafe or uncertain.
17.No bus operator shall operate the wheelchair lift or ramp:
a. Until they have received the mandated training; and

b. If there is any doubt whatsoever about the mechanica! condition of the lift or
safety of the passenger as a result of using the lift. Wheelchair lift operation
shall be in compliance with the methodology recommended by the Original
Equipment Manufacturer (OEM).

18.Bus operators shall utilize the SPX Genfare Transview or CentsABill farebox
system properly, recording ridership data in the format required by YCIPTA, if the
system requires recording of ridership.

19.Bus operators shall not leave their vehicle unattended when passengers are on-
board, except when needing to use a restroom, and the transmission is placed in
park, the parking brake is set and the engine is turned off. Doors on unattended
vehicles shall be kept closed and locked at all times. Bus operators must inform
and confirm with dispatch before leaving a bus unattended.

20.Demand response and flex route bus operators shall provide "hands-on"
assistance to passengers with disabilities for boarding and unloading purposes if
requested by passenger or passenger aide.

21.No vehicle shall be fueled while passengers are on-board.

22.Bus operators shall not be allowed to keep personal cellular phones, pagers or
other electronic paging or communication devices on themselves, or in the
vehicle while in revenue service, and contact from third parties shall be allowed
only through dispatch and no direct contact by bus operators shall be permitted.
Bus operators with a CONTRACTOR provided cellular phone must use the
phone in accordance with CONTRACTOR policies for safe driving.

F. Positions, Wage Scale and Benefits

CONTRACTOR shall have a wage scale for each year of the Agreement with the
bus operator starting wage for training and the bus operator's starting wage when
the bus operator has completed the CONTRACTOR'S training program. YCIPTA
recognizes the importance of wages and benefits to employee recruiting and
retention. YCIPTA desires that the CONTRACTOR offer competitive wages and
benefits to its staff and that are appropriate for the Yuma market.

At the minimum, the following positions must be included in this operation:

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 91
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

164




»  Qperations Manager

= Operations Supervisor

*  Maintenance Manager

» Transit Operations Supervisor/Dispatcher

»  Ulility Worker (if services is provided by CONTRACTOR)
* Mechanic

v Bus Operator

#Ha#

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Autherity
Agreement for the Provigion General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

165

Page 92



Appendix B
Federal Clauses and Other Requirements

A. Energy Conservation

CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to
energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued
in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6321 et
seq.

B. Access to Records

Upon request, CONTRACTOR agrees to permit, and require its
SUBCONTRACTORS to permit, the U.S. Secretary of Transportation, the
Comptroller General of the United States, and, to the extent appropriate, the State,
or their authorized representatives, to inspect all Contract work, materials, payrolls,
and other data, and to audit the books, records, and accounts of the CONTRACTOR
and its SUBCONTRACTORS pertaining to the Agreement.

CONTRACTOR agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any
means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.
The CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain all books, records, accounts and reports
required under this agreement for a period of not less than three years after the date
of termination or expiration of this agreement, except in the event of litigation or
settlement of claims arising from the performance of this agreement, in which case
CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain same until the FTA Administrator, the
Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have disposed
of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto,

C. Federal Changes

CONTRACTOR shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations,
policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or
by reference in the USDOT, FTA, Master Agreement (FTA MA (9)) (the Master
Agreement), between YCIPTA and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated
from time to time during the term of this contract. CONTRACTOR failure to so
comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract.

D. No Obligation by the Federal Government.

1. YCIPTA and CONTRACTOR acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any
concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or
award of the contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal
Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this contract and shall not
be subject to any obligations or liabilities to YCIPTA, CONTRACTOR, or any
other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter
resulting from the underlying contract.

2. The CONTRACTOR agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract
financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. it is further

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Autherity Page 93
Agreement for the Provisicn Genera! Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

166



agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the
SUBCONTRACTOR who will be subject to its provisions,

E. Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts.

1. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud
Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S.
DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. Part 31, apply to its
actions pertaining to this Confra¢t. Upon execution of the contract, the
CONTRACTOR certifies or affiirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any
statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining
to the underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for which this contract work
is being performed. |n addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the
CONTRACTOR further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a
false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the
Federal Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program
Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the CONTRACTOR to the extent the
Federal Government deems appropriate.

2. The CONTRACTOR also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a
false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the
Federal Government under a contract connected with a project that is financed in
whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by FTA under the
authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves the right to impose the
penalties of 18 US.C. § 1001 and 49 US.C. § 5307(n)1) on the
CONTRACTOR, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.

3. The CONTRACTOR agrees to include the above two clauses in each
subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by
FTA. It is further agreed that the clauses shall not be modified, except to identify
the SUBCONTRACTOR who will be subject to the provisions.

F. Civil Rights
The following requirements apply to the contract:

1. Nondiscrimination: In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as
amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975,
as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the
CONTRACTOR agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age,
or disability. In addition, the CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with applicable
Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may
issue.

2. Equal Employment Opportunity. The following equal employment opportunity
requirements apply to the contract:

a. Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex: In accordance with Title VIl of the
Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 94
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

167



49 U.S.C. § 5332, the CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all applicable
equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor
(U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs,
Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et
seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment
Opportunity,” as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42
U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable Federal statutes, executive
orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future affect
construction activities undertaken in the course of the performance of the
Contract. The CONTRACTOR agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment,
without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment,
upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff
or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for
training, including apprenticeship. In addition, the CONTRACTOR agrees to
comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

b. Age In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment
Act of 1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 623 and Federal transit law at 49
U.S.C. § 5332, the CONTRACTOR agrees to refrain from discrimination
against present and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, the
CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA
may issue.

¢. Disabilities: In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities
Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12112, the CONTRACTOR agrees that it will
comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of
the Americans with Disabilities Act" 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to
employment of persons with disabilities. In addition, the CONTRACTOR
agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

3. The CONTRACTOR also agrees to include these requirements in each
subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by
FTA, modified only if necessary to identify the affected parties.

G. Reporting and Record Retention Requirements

1. Types of Reports: The CONTRACTOR agrees to submit fo FTA the reports
required by U.S. DOT administrative regulations for grants and cooperative
agreements and any other reports the Federal Government may require.

2. Format Requirements for Reports: The CONTRACTOR agrees that all reports
and other documents or information intended for public availability developed in
the course of the Contract and required to be submitted to FTA must be prepared
and submitted in electronic and or typewritten hard copy formats as FTA may
require. Electronic submissions must comply with the electronic accessibility

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transpertation Authority Page 95
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

168



requirements of Subsections 12.g. (9) and 15.s. of the Master Agreement. FTA
reserves the right to require records to be submitted in other formats.

3. Record Retention: The CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain intact and readily
accessible all data, documents, reports, records, contracts, and supporting
materials relating to the performance of the Contract as the Federal Government
may require during the course of the contract term and for three years thereafter
or longer as set forth in Section B, above.

H. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise

The CONTRACTOR agrees to take the following measures to facilitate participation
by disadvantaged business enterprises (DBE) in its performance of the Contract:

1. The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with section 1101(b) of TEA-21, 23 U.S.C,
8§ 101 note, and U.S. DOT regulations, "Participation by Disadvantaged Business

Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs,” 49
C.F.R. Part 26.

2. The CONTRACTOR agrees that it shall not discriminate on the basis of race,
color, national origin, or sex in the award and performance of any third party
contract, or sub-agreement supported with Federal assistance derived from the
U.S. DOT or in the administration of its DBE program or the requirements of 49
C.F.R. Part 26. The CONTRACTOR agrees to take all necessary and reasonable
steps set forth in 49 C.F.R. Part 28 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and
administration of all third party contracts and sub-agreements supported with
Federal assistance derived from the U.S. DOT. The CONTRACTOR's DBE
program, as required by 49 C.F.R. Part 26 and approved by the U.S. DOT, is
incorporated by reference and made part of the Contract Implementation of this
DBE program is a legal obligation, and failure to carry out its terms shall be
treated as a violation of the Contract. Upon notification to the CONTRACTOR of
its failure to implement its approved DBE program, the U.S. DOT may impose
sanctions as provided for under 49 C.F.R. Part 26 and may, in appropriate cases,
refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. § 1001, and/or the Program
Fraud Civil Remedies Act, 31 U,5.C. §§ 3801 ef seq.

l. Incorporation of FTA 4220.1.F. Terms

The preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions
required by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract
provisions. All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular
4220.1.F., dated November 1, 2008, are hereby incorporated by reference.
Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA-mandated terms shall be
deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this
Contract. The CONTRACTOR shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or
refuse to comply with any YCIPTA request, which would cause YCIPTA of Vacaville
to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 96
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

169



J. Application of Federal, State, and Local lL.aws and Regulations

1. Federal Laws and Regulations: Federal law or laws authorizing Contract
approval control Contract implementation. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges
that Federal laws, regulations, policies, and related administrative practices
applicable to the Contract on the date the authorized FTA official signs the
Master Agreement or other awarding agreement may be modified from time to
time. In particular, new Federal laws, regulations, policies, and administrative
practices may be promulgated after the date when the CONTRACTOR executes
the Master Agreement or other awarding agreement, and might apply to such
agreement. The CONTRACTOR agrees that the most recent of such Federal
requirements will govern the administration of the Contract at any particular time,
unless FTA issues a written determination otherwise. FTA's written determination
may be issued as a Special Condition, Requirement, or Provision or Condition of
Award, a change to an FTA directive, or a letter signed by the Federal Transit
Administrator, the language of which modifies or otherwise conditions the text of
a specific provision of the Master Agreement. To accommodate changing
Federal requirements, the CONTRACTOR agrees to include notice in each
agreement with each subCONTRACTOR and each third party CONTRACTOR
participating in the Contract that Federal requirements may change and the
changed requirements will apply to the Contract as required, unless the Federal
Government determines otherwise. All standards or limits within the Master
Agreement are minimum requirements, unless modified by FTA.

2. State, Territorial, and Local Law: Except when a Federal statute or regulation
pre-empts State, local, or territorial law, no provision of the Master Agreement or
Contract shall require the CONTRACTOR to observe or enforce compliance with
any provision, perform any other act, or do any other thing in contravention of
State, territorial, or local law. Thus if any provision or compliance with any
provision of the Master Agreement or Contract violates State, territorial, or local
law, or would reguire the CONTRACTOR to violate State, territorial, or local law, -
the CONTRACTOR agrees to notify FTA immediately in writing. Should this
occur, FTA and the CONTRACTOR agree to make appropriate arrangements to
proceed with or, if necessary, terminate the Contract expeditiously.

K. Covenant Against Contingent Fees

Bonus or Commission CONTRACTOR affirms that it has not paid, and agrees not to
pay, any bonus or commission to obtain approval of its Federal assistance
application for the Contract.

L. Prohibition on Gratuities

Code of Ethics The CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain a written code or standards
of conduct that shall govern the performance of its officers, employees, board
members, or agents engaged in the award or administration of third party contracts
or sub-agreements supported by Federal assistance. This code or standards of
conduct shall provide that the CONTRACTOR officers, employees, board members,
or agents may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 97
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

170



value from any present or potential CONTRACTOR or SUBCONTRACTOR. The
CONTRACTOR may establish minimum rules where the financial interest is not
substantial, or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic value. This code or
standards of conduct shall also prohibit the CONTRACTOR officers, employees,
board members, or agents from using their positions in a manner that constitutes a
real or apparent personal or organizational conflict of interest or personail gain. As
permitted by State or local law or regulations, the code or standards of conduct shall
include penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary actions for violations by the
CONTRACTOR officers, employees, board members, or their agents, or by the
CONTRACTOR, any SUBCONTRACTORS, or their agents.

1. Personal_Conflicts of Interest: The CONTRACTOR's code or standards of
conduct shall prohibit CONTRACTOR employees, officers, board members, or
agents from participating in the selection, award, or administration of any third
party contract or sub-agreement supported by Federal funds if a real or apparent
conflict of interest would be involved.

2. Organizational Conflicts of Interest: The CONTRACTOR's code or standards of
conduct must include procedures for identifying and preventing real and apparent
organizational conflicts of interest. An organizational conflict of interest exists
when the nature of the work fo be performed under a proposed third party
contract or sub-agreement may, without some restrictions on future activities,
result in an unfair competitive advantage to the third party CONTRACTOR or
SUBCONTRACTOR or impair its objectivity in performing the contract work.

M. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act

The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of each third
party CONTRACTOR and each SUBCONTRACTOR under the Contract, with the
following employee protection requirements for contract employees:

1. Qvertime Requirements: No CONTRACTOR or SUBCONTRACTOR contracting
for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of
laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in
any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of
forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives
compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay
for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

2. Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages; Assessments: In the event of any violation
of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section the CONTRACTOR and
any SUBCONTRACTOR responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid
wages. In addition, such CONTRACTOR and SUBCONTRACTOR shall be liable
to the United States for assessments. Such assessments shall be computed with
respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards,
employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the
sum of $ 10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or
permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transpertation Authority Page 98
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

171




payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1)
of this section.

3. Withholding for Unpaid Wages and Assessments: The CONTRACTOR shall
upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable
on account of work performed by the CONTRACTOR or SUBCONTRACTOR
under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime
CONTRACTOR, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime
CONTRACTOR, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy
any liabilities of such CONTRACTOR or SUBCONTRACTOR for unpaid wages
and assessments as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this
section.

4. Subconfracts: The CONTRACTOR or SUBCONTRACTOR shall insert in any
subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section and also a clause requiring the
SUBCONTRACTORS to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.
The prime CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for compliance by any
SUBCONTRACTOR or lower tier SUBCONTRACTOR with the clauses set forth
in this section.

5. Payrolls and Basic Records: Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be
maintained by the CONTRACTOR during the course of the Contract work and
preserved for a period of three (3) years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics
working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address,
and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification,
hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated
for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof, daily and weekly number
of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the
Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any
laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in
providing benefits, the CONTRACTOR shall maintain records which show that
the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program
is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated
in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the
costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits.
CONTRACTORS employing apprentices or tfrainees under approved programs
shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and
certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees,
and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

N. Environmental Requirements

The CONTRACTOR recognhizes that many Federal and State laws imposing
environmental and resource conservation requirements may apply to the Contract,
Some, but not all, of the major Federal laws that may affect the Contract include: the
Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 ef seq. and scattered sections of 29

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 99
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

172



U.S.C.; the Federal Water Poliution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 et
seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§
8901 ef seq.; and the Comprehensive Environmenta! Response, Compensation, and
Liability Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 ef seq. The CONTRACTOR also
recognizes that U.S. EPA, FHWA and other Federal agencies have issued, and in
the future are expected to issue, regulations, guidelines, standards, orders,
directives, or other requirements that may affect the Contract. Thus, the
CONTRACTOR agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of each
SUBCONTRACTOR and each third party CONTRACTOR, with any such Federal
requirements as the Federal Government may now or in the future promulgate.
Listed below are requirements of particular concern to FTA and the CONTRACTOR.
The CONTRACTOR agrees that those laws and regulations do not constitute the
CONTRACTOR's entire obligation to meet all Federal environmental and resource
conservation requirements.

1. Air Quality: The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all applicable regulations,
standards, orders, and requirements implementing the Clean Air Act, as
amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq. In addition:

a. The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with the applicable requirements of the
U.S. EPA regulations, "Conformity to State or Federal implementation Plans
of Transportation Plans, Programs, and Projects Developed, Funded or
Approved Under Title 23 U.S.C. or the Federal Transit Act," 40 C.F.R. Part
51, Subpart T, and "Determining Conformity of Federal Actions to State or
Federal Implementation Plans," 40 C.F.R. Part 93. To support the requisite air
quality conformity finding for the Project, the CONTRACTOR agrees to
implement each air quality mitigation or control measure incorporated in the
Project. The CONTRACTOR further agrees that any project identified in an
applicable State Implementation Plan as a Transportation Control Measure
will be wholly consistent with the design concept and scope of the project
described in the State Implementation Plan.

b. U.S. EPA also imposes requirements implementing the Clean Air Act, as
amended that may apply to transit operators, particularly operators of large
transit bus fleets. Accordingly, the CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with the
following U.S. EPA regulations to the extent they are applicable to the
Contract; "Control of Air Pollution from Mobile Sources," 40 C.F.R. Part 85;
"Control of Air Pollution from New and In-Use Highway Vehicles and Engines:
Certification and Test Procedures,” 40 C.F.R. Part 86; and "Fuel Economy
and Carbon-Related Exhaust Emissions of Motor Vehicles," 40 C.F.R. Part
600.

c. The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with the notification of violating facility
requirements of Executive Order No. 11738, "Administration of the Clean Air
Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act with Respect to Federal
Contracts, Grants, or Loans," 42 U.5.C. § 7606,

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 100
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

173




2. Clean Water, The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all applicable
standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 ef seq. In addition:

a. The CONTRACTOR agrees to protect underground sources of drinking water
consistent with the provisions of the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as
amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 300f ef seq.

b. The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with the notification of violating facility
requirements of Executive Order No. 11738, "Administration of the Clean Air
Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act with Respect to Federal
Contracts, Grants, or Loans," 42 U.S.C. § 7606 note.

. Recycled Products

To the extent applicable, the CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with U.S. EPA
regulations, "Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines for Products Containing
Recovered Materials," 40 C.F.R. Part 247, implementing section 6002 of the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §6962, and
otherwise provide a competitive preference for products and services that conserve
natural resources and protect the environment and are energy efficient.

. Lobbying Restrictions
The CONTRACTOR agrees to:
1. Refrain from using Federal assistance funds to support lobbying,

2. Comply, and assure the compliance of each third party CONTRACTOR at any
tier and each SUBCONTRACTOR at any tier, with U.S. DOT regulations, "New
Restrictions on Lobbying," 49 C.F.R. Part 20, modified as necessary by 31
U.S.C. § 1352,

3. Comply with Federal statutory provisions to the extent applicable prohibiting the
use of Federal assistance funds for activities designed to influence Congress or a
State legislature on legislation or appropriations, except through proper, official
channels.

. Debarment and Suspension

The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of each third
party CONTRACTOR and SUBCONTRACTOR at any tier, with Executive Orders
Nos. 12549 and 12689, "Debarment and Suspension," 31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, and
U.S. DOT regulations, "Government wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-
procurement),” within 2 C.F.R. Part 1200.

. Transit Employee Protective Arrangements

If the Master Agreement or other awarding agreement indicates that transit
employee protective arrangements required by U.S. DOL (Dept of Labor) apply to
transit operations performed in connection with the Contract, the CONTRACTOR
agrees to comply with the applicable requirements as follows:

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 101
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

174




- 1. Standard Transit Employee Protective Arrangements: To the extent that the
Contract involves transit operations, the CONTRACTOR agrees to implement the
Contract in compliance with the terms and conditions that the U.S. Secretary of
l.abor has determined to be fair and equitable to protect the interests of any
employees affected by the Contract and that meet the requirements of 49 U.S.C.
§ 5333(b), and of the U.S. DOL guidelines, "Section 5333(b), Federal Transit
Law," 29 C.F.R. Part 215 and any amendments thereto. These terms and
conditions are identified in U.S. DOL's certification of transit employee protective
arrangements to FTA, the date of which certification appears in the Master
Agreement or other awarding agreement, and the CONTRACTOR agrees to
implement the Contract in compliance with the conditions stated in that U.S. DOL
certification. That U.S. DOL certification and any documents that may be cited
therein are incorporated by reference and made part of the Contract. The
requirements of this subsection do not apply to projects for elderly persons or
persons with disabilities that are authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2) or to
projects for non-urbanized areas that are authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311;
separate requirements for those projects are contained in Subsections 24.d(2)
and 24.d(3), respectively, of the Master Agreement .

2. Transit Employee Protective Arrangements for Projects for Elderly and Persons
with Disabilities Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2): To the extent that the U.S.
Secretary of Transportation has determined or determines in the future that
employee protective arrangements required by 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) are
necessary or appropriate for a public body sub-recipient under the Contract, the
CONTRACTOR agrees to carry out the Contract in compliance with the terms
and conditions determined by the U.S, Secretary of Labor as necessary to meet
the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b), and the U.S. DOL guidelines, "Section
5333(b), Federal Transit Law," at 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments
thereto. These terms and conditions are identified in U.S. DOL's certification of
transit employee protective arrangements to FTA, the date of which appears in
the applicable grant agreement. The CONTRACTOR agrees to implement the
Contract in compliance with the conditions stated in that U.S. DOL certification,
That U.S. DOL certification and any documents that may be cited therein are
incorporated by reference and made part of the Contract.

3. Transit Employee Protective Arrangements for Projects in Non-urbanized Areas
Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311;: The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with the
terms and conditions of the Special Warranty for the Non-urbanized Area
Program agreed to by the U.S. Secretaries of Transportation and Labor, dated
May 31, 1979, U.S. DOL implementing procedures, and any revisions thereto.

4. The CONTRACTOR also agrees to include the any applicable requirements in
each subcontract involving transit operations financed in whole or in part with
Federal assistance provided by FTA.

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority Page 102
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

175



. Substance Abuse

The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with the following Federal substance abuse
regulations.

1. Drug-Free Workplace. U.S. DOT regulations, "Drug-Free Workplace
Requirements (Grants)," 2 C.F.R, as modified by 41 U.S.C. §§ 702 et seq.

2. Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use. FTA regulations, "Prevention of Alcohol
Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations," 48 CFR Part 655, to the
extent applicable. The CONTRACTOR agrees to establish and implement a
drug and alcohol testing program that complies with 49 CFR Part 655, produce
any documentation necessary to establish its compliance with Part 655, and
permit any authorized representative of the United States Department of
Transportation or its operating administrations, the State oversight agency of
California or Arizona, or YCIPTA, to inspect the facilities and records associated
with the implementation of the drug and alcohol testing program as required
under 49 CFR Part 655 and review the testing process. The CONTRACTOR
agrees further to certify annually its compliance with Part 655 before January 1,
to submit quarterly Management Information System (MIS) reports no later than
the 15" of the month following the close of each quarter and to submit annual
MIS reports before February to YCIPTA's representative. To certify compliance
the CONTRACTOR shall use the "Substance Abuse Certifications” in the "Annual
List of Certifications and Assurances for Federal Transit Administration Grants
and Cooperative Agreements," which is published annually in the Federal
Register.

. Charter Bus Requirements

The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. §323(d) and 48 CFR Part 604,
which provides that recipients and sub-recipients of FTA assistance are prohibited
from providing charter service using federally funded equipment or facilities if there
is at least one private charter operator willing and able to provide the service, except
under one of the exceptions at 49 CFR 604.9. Any charter service provided under
one of the exceptions must be "incidental,” i.e., it must not interfere with or detract
from the provision of mass transportation. ‘

. School Bus Requirements

Pursuant to 69 U.S.C. 5323(f) and 49 CFR Part 605, CONTRACTORS and sub-
recipients of FTA assistance may not engage in school bus operations exclusively
for the transportation of students and school personnel in competition with private
school bus operators unless qualified under specified exemptions. When operating
exclusive school bus service under an allowable exemption, recipients and sub-
recipients may not use federally funded equipment, vehicies, or facilities.

. Privacy Act

The following requirements apply to the CONTRACTOR and its employees that
administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government under any
contract:

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Autherity Page 103
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

176



1. The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of its
employees with, the information restrictions and other applicable requirements of
the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 US.C. § 552a. Among other things, the
CONTRACTOR agrees to obtain the express consent of the Federal Government
before the CONTRACTOR or its employees operate a system of records on
behalf of the Federal Government. The CONTRACTOR understands that the
requirements of the Privacy Act, including the civil and criminal penalties for
violation of that Act, apply to those individuals involved, and that failure to comply
with the terms of the Privacy Act may result in termination of the underlying
contract.

2. The CONTRACTOR also agrees to include these requirements in each
subcontract to administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal

Government financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by
FTA

W. Fly America. (Transportation of persons or property by air)

The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with 49 USC 40118 (the "Fly America” Act) in
accordance with the General Services Administration's regulations at 41 CFR Part
301-10, which provide that recipients and subrecipients of Federal funds and their
contractors are required to use U.S. Flag air carriers for U.S Government-financed
international air travel and transportation of their personal effects or property, to the
extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of
necessity, as defined by the Fly America Act. The CONTRACTOR shall submit, if a
foreign air carrier was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately
explaining why service by a U.S. flag air carrier was not available or why it was
necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a certificate of
compliance with the Fly America requirements. The CONTRACTOR agrees to
include the requirements of this section in all subcontracts that may involve
international air transportation.

X. Cargo Preference (use of U. 8. flag vessel).

The CONTRACTOR agrees: (a) to use privately owned United States-Flag
commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed
separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever
shipping any equipment, material, or commodities pursuant to the underlying
contract to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for
United States-Flag commercial vessels; (b) to furnish within 20 working days
following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or
within 30 working days following the date of leading for shipments originating outside
the United States, a legible copy of a rated, "on-board" commercial ocean bill-of-
lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in the preceding paragraph to
the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Autherity Page 104
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

177




Administration, Washington, DC 20590 and to YCIPTA (through the CONTRACTOR
in the case of a subcontractor's bill-of-lading.) (c) to include these requirements in all
subcontracts issued pursuant to this Agreement when the subcontract may involve
the transport of equipment, material, or commodities by ocean vessel.

Yuma County Intergovernmentat Public Transportation Authority Page 105
Agreement for the Provision General Public Fixed-Route and Demand Response Services, August 2014

178



Appendix C
Required Forms

Form 1 Addentum ReCeiDt. .o e ccer it vrr s rcerscrriisss e e sasvassnnnse iaessenstra e srasranranns i-94

Form 2 Lobbying Certification ........ccciiminmmmimrensammn i s 11-95

Form 3 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other

Responsibility Matters ... s s H-96
Form 4 Non-Collusion Affidavit for CONTRACTOR .....ccccvrmmmvememmnnminnnimssscmismsnvnn i1-98
Form 5 Certification of Eligibility (Labor Standards) .......cccccimmnnnnnnennrnn, i1-99
Form 6 Certification of Primary Participant Regarding Responsibility Matters .....11-100

Form 7 Certification Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program/Equal

Employment Opportunify .o near sesrascnsmcnsismen 1-101
Form 8 Certification Regarding Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use............. 11-102
Form 9 YCIPTA Proﬁided Materials and Supplies .......c.coinecminnen e, 11-103
Form 10 Customer SEIVICE ... mssies e 1-105
FOrm 11 UNION .o i s s s s s s s s b ass s sss v s v s s ss s H-106

Form 12 Federal Transit Administration Third Party Contracting Guidance

Request for Proposals ... e ssais o ssssnsannas 11-107




Form 13 Recommendation Of AWArt.....cccevirmreeirmrersimrersoniunsrermesrersssssrmsssensissmsvsnsia 1-108

FOrm 14 Protest ProCatUIBS ..cc.cvecesivatsrrannssnsssenrisiasssrairesrrmes verseranssmssssarsseeabassssanses 1-109

Form 15 YCIPTA Transit FUnding ... s -110
Form 16 Affordable Care ACt.......coiiiierrcrmmnis e e issnnis sivssssarssinssss ivessnsnsaens n-111
-107

180




Form 1
( ‘ Addendum Receipt

National Express Transit Services
Corporation

(Name of CONTRACTOR) acknowledges it has received and read

the following Addenda;

1, Released January 13, 2014
Addendum # _  Signature (C %tzz— Lew

2, Released January 25, 2014 %’?ﬁ
Addendum # : Signature éf.%

3, Released February 4, 2014 %
Addendum # Signature /m CeD

4, Released February 8, 2014 m
Addendum # . Signature & i C‘E@
Addendum # A Signature
C_ Addendum # ____Signature
%/ E /e February 13, 2014
SIGNATURE o * DATE |

Peter J. Setitle, Chief Executive Officer

TITLE

National Express Transit Services Corporation

COMPANY NAME

11-83

181




Form 2
Lobbying Certification

The undersigned Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge
and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federai
loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
making lobbying contacts to an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard
Form--LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions [as amended by
"Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,” 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/98). Note:
Language in paragraph {2) herein has been modified in accordance with Section 10 of the Lobbying
Disclosure Act of 1995 (P.L. 104-85, to be codified at 2 U.S.C. 1601, ef seq.)]

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants,

loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all SUBCONTRACTORS shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fagt upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disciosure Act of 1995). Any
person who faiis to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000
and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

[Note: Pursuant to 31 U.8.C. § 1352(c)(1)-(2){(A), any person who makes a prohibited expenditure or fails
to file or amend a required certification or disclosure form shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less
than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such expenditure or failure.]

National Express Transit Services . ]
The CONTRACTOR, corooration , certifies or affirms the truthfulness and

accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the CONTRACTOR
understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. A 3801, ef seq., apply to this cerification and
disclosure, if any.

W January 27,2014

Signa&ure of CONTRACTOR'S Authorized Official ' Date

Peter J, Settle, Chief Executive Officer

Name and Title of CONTRACTOR’S Authorized Official

11-94

182




Form 3
Certification Regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters

Instructions for Certification

1. By signing and submitting this bid or proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing
the signed certification set out below.

2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous cerification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government, YCIPTA may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to YCIPTA if at any
time the prospective lower tier paricipant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or
has become erronecus by reason of changed circumstances.

4. The terms “covered transaction," "debarred” "suspended," “ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction, “participant," "persons," "lower tier covered f{ransaction," "principal," “proposal” and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage
sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549, 3 CFR. You may contact YCIPTA for assistance in
obtaining a copy of those regulations.

5, The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspendead, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
participation in this covered transaction, uniess authorized in writing by YCIPTA.

8. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include
the clause titled "Ceriification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transaction", without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all
solicitations for lower tier covered fransactions.

7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in
a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
the covered transaction, unless it Knows that the certification is errocnecus. A participant may decide the
method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is
not required to, check the Nonprocurement List issued by U.S. General Service Administration.

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed hy a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

9. Except for transactions authorized under Paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters info a lower tier covered fransaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligibie, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to
all remedies available to the Federal Government, .YCIPTA may pursue available remedies including
suspension and/or debarment. '

10. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this bid or proposal, that neither it
nor its "principals"” [as defined at 48 C.F.R. § 29.180.995] is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal
department or agency.

11-95

183




C

: Form 3
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT
SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS ~ (Continued)

11 When the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation fo this proposal.

F certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury, that the foregoing is true and correct.

%Wl January 27, 2014
SIGNATURE __{ : DATE

National Express Transit Services
Corporation

Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer
TITLE COMPANY NAME

11-96

184




Form 4
Non-Collusion Affidavit for CONTRACTOR

STATE OF ARIZONA

COUNTY OF YUMA

Peter J. Settle declares and says:

1. That he/she is the (owner, partner, representative, or agent) Chief Executive Officer

of National Express Transit Services Corporation ‘ hereinafter  referred o
(CONTRACTOR) or (SUBCONTRACTOR).

2. That hefshe is fully informed regarding the preparation and contents of this proposal for certain work
in Yuma County, State of Arizona.

as

3. That his/her proposal is genuine and is not collusive or a sham proposal.

4. That any of its officers, owners, agents, representatives, employees, or parties in interest, including
its affiliates, has not in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any
other CONTRACTOR, firm, or person to submit a collusive or sham proposal in connection with such
contract or to refrain to submitting a proposal in connection with such contract, or has in any manner,
directly or indirectly, sought by unlawful agreement or connivance with any other CONTRACTOR, firm, or
person fo fix the price or prices in said proposal, or to secure through collusion, conspiracy, connivance,
or unfawful agreement any advantage against YCIPTA or any person interested in the proposed contract:
and,

5. That the price or prices guoted in the proposal are fair and proper and are not tainted by any
collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the CONTRACTOR or any of its
agents, owners, representatives, employees, or parties in interest, including its affiliate.

I certify (or declare) under penalty of perjury, that the foregoing is true and correct.
2014 Ginginnati

Dated th]i ;ﬂh day of January . 2643-at Hamilton County . Ohio
Signed:
\

Title:  Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer

i-87

185




- . Form 5 '
C Certification of Eligibility (Labor Standards)
National Express Transit Services '
Corporation (Name of CONTRACTOR) hereby certifies that it is not included on the
United States Comptroller General's Consolidated List of Persons or Firms currently Debarred for
Violations of Various Public Agreements Incorporating Labor Standard Provisions.

W January 27, 2014
SIGNATURE ( DATE

National Express Transit Services

- . . Corporation
TITLE Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer COMPANY NAME

11-98

186




Form 6
Certification of Primary Participant Regarding Responsibility Matters

National Express Transit Services
The Primary Participant Corporation
best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principais:

(Name of CONTRACTOR) certifies to the

a Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted or had a civil judgment
rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining,
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public
transaction; violation of Federal or state antifrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery,
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

b. Are not presently under indictment for or otherwise criminally or clvilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (&) of this
certification; and

¢. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal had one or more public fransactions
(Federal, state or local) terminated for default.

If the primary parficipant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, the participant
shall attach an explanation to this certification.

National Express Transit

Services Corporati
THE PRIMARY PARTICIPANT, o oo Vorkoration (Name of CONTRACTOR) CERTIFIES

OR AFFIRMS THE TRUTHFULNESS AND ACCURACY OF THE CONTENTS OF THE STATEMENTS
SUBMITTED ON OR WITH THIS CERTIFICATION AND UNDERSTANDS THAT THE PROVISIONS OF
31 USC SECTIONS 3801 ET SEQ. ARE APPLICABLE THERETO.

Sign of Authorized Official
THe - Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer

| National Express
The undersigned chief legal counsel (or corporate secretary) for the Transit Services Corphereby certifies

that the Chief Executive Officer has authority under state and local law to comply with the subject
assurances and that the certification above has been legally made.

Signature of Attorney/Secretary

Ty
et Date
Cristen Kogl, Secretary

January 23, 2014

[1-99

187




Form 7
Certification Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise Program/Equal Employment Opportunity

In accordance with Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 23 and other applicable Disadvantaged
Business Enferprise ("DBE") and Equal Employment Opportunity ("EEO") rules and regulations, the
CONTRACTOR declares that it had made a good faith effort to comply with established DBE goals, and
that it has made a good faith effort to meet established EEQ goals, as evidenced below:

1%

1. CONTRACTOR'S overall DBE participation rate:

2. Names/Locations of DBEs contacted by CONTRACTOR:
National Express understands that there is no DBE Participation goa! associated
with this contract. However, we will continue to actively seek DBE participation in
this contract.

3. Names/Locations of DBEs selected by CONTRACTOR:
Transit Auto Parts LLC, 3712 N, Broadway #352, Chicago, IL 60613
We have attached their DBE Certificate on the page foliowing our EEQ-1 form, as
referenced below,

4, CONTRACTOR'S work force breakdown by race and gender:

We have provided our EEO-1 report on the following pages.
TOTAL EMPLOYEES as of

JOB CATEGORY EMPLOYEES
Male Female
Wht Blk Hsp Asn Nat [ Wht Blk Hsp Asn Nat

Officials &
Managers

Professional

Technical

Sales

Office/Clerical
Craflsmen

Laborers

Service

Note: The above DBE/EEO Affidavit is part of CONTRACTOR'S Proposal. Signing this Proposal on the
signature portion thereof shall also constitute signature of this DBE/EEO Affidavit,

S|GNATURE%W/ DATE January 27, 2014

National Express Transit Services

. ; ; Corporafion
Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer COMPANY NAME

TITLE

i1-100

188



Wd /+-20 £10z/6)/1 1 [Ls3131va a3 y=a0
S32HNOSTY NYIANH HOLOFHIA F1LIL

2129Z2€eLs ‘ON ANOHd3 4L

¥301440 DONILYHId0 43IHD F1LIL

WODHHODSSTHIXITYNOLUYNDNOSTIMANNIL  Tivh
'NOSHAd LOVLNOD 1HOd3d L-0:

NOSTIM AdEEL
NIHSMH AN

TIVIOIZH0 ONIALLLYE:

NOLLYDIHILHID - © NOLLO:

NYHL SL0Z/EL/B0  ‘GOIN3d TIOHAYd 40 S31

£10z/92/60
SYHVIWAY - d NOLLDHAS
£l 6 I b 0 ez o] Frd 14 14 8 g #9€ 00¥ 14 89
.l 0 0 0 0 1G gg 0 0 0 0 0¢ Ql 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
36 € 0 3 o L¥l gzl yA € 8 € GLE LOg ¥ 4
] L 0 0 0 0 L [ L 0 0 cl e # Gl
18 S 3 0 0 (44 e ¥ 0 0 [ gl 6l o 9
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 | g 0 0 0 0 1 £ 0 0
i 0 0 0 0 € Ll L 0 0 0 € e 0 g
0 0 0 0 0 L 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0
FALLYN HEANVTS)
MMW«M NvISVIY | OuDva| NYOREWY MWHWM ZMWM,WHH M sy xwmmﬁwﬁ NYOREWY
=0 HO NVIA Z<:MW<E NVORLEY qO MO NVIAN wo | Nvopmy | HHEM ) ATV TN
giion| OMl | NVOREWY gAiyN | ¥OHOVIE ol | NvonmEwy NI TR woxovE
ITVEEAD
srrrrrrrrrrTIVNEI x s x 2 x xR XX ¥ ¥ exrrxrrrprrxdIVIN s s2 222355555
: ONLEYT
WO DINVISIH

ONILYT O DINVASIE-LON

‘SOIVN
NOLLVIWHOINI INAWHSIIAV.ESH -4 NOLLDHES

“ON SNAQ N-€A-C AL

INFWHNINOTY ONITIL ¥Od LSAL - O NOLLDES

¢ 3dAL- 14043y A3 1VArtosNoD

9¢Z5¥ HO ‘IL¥YNNIDONID
0£E ALINS MOOHESOH L1708
dH0D LISNYYL SSTHdXT TYNOILYN ez

1HOdZH NOILYINHO-NT 3A0TdINT €102
»bz:hmo&f(mmg,woﬂ_am TVIIOF

TVLOL LHO4TY SNOIATAA
TY.LOL

SEENTOM TIIAYAS

SHAJTIH ¥ SYIJ0aV]

SAALLYHIIO
SHENYOM 1dVHD

LHOdNS TIALLYHISININGY

SHENFOM SHTVS
SNVIDINHDZL

STVNOISSHIOEd

SIDW B SIVIDIEIO QME\@

SUSW ¥ STVIDHEIO ¥S/IALLNNTR

SAIFODIIVD 9(

YVIVA INTFWAOTdWH - O NOLLDE

9e25t HO ‘ILYNNIONIO

0g€ ALINS MOOULESOH L1708
dH0D LISNVHL SS3ddXT TYNOILVYN 1

NOLEVDIILINIAI ANVAWOD - 9 NOLILOA

~ 8909€904 =n

Q 8606¢D4 =0



-

&

4 Arizana Departmeant of Transportation

Business Engagement and Compliance Office
1135 N. 22nd Ave. 2nd Floor, Phoenix, Arizona 85009

ADQT

Janice K. Brewer John H. Nichols

Govemor Deputy Director

John S. March 11, 2013
Halikowski

Diractor

Michael Hernandez

Transit Auto Parts, LLC DBA nfa
3712 N. Broadway, Ste 352
Chicago, iL. 60613-4235

Dear Michael Hermandez:

The Arizona Department of Transportation is pieased to announce that your firm has been certified as a
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) in Arizona, under a Unified Cerfification Program (UCP) in
accordance with 4% CFR, Part 26,

DBE certification is continuing from the date of this letter, but is contingent upon the firm renewing its
eligibility annually through this office. You will be notified in advance of your obligation to continue

eligibility in a timely fashion. Failure to continue your eligibility will result in immediate action to decertify
the firm.

As long as the firm is listed in the DBE Directory, it is considered DBE certified by all Arizona UCP
members. (ADOT, City of Phoenix, City of Tucson).

DBE certification is subject to actions by governmental agencies impacting the disadvantaged status of
the firm.

Your firm will be listed in Arizona's UCP DBE Directory which can bs accessed via the internet at
www.azdbe.org.

DBE certification is NOT a guarantee of work, but enables the firm to compete for, and perform, contract
work on all USDOT Federal Aid (FAA, FTA, and FHWA) projects in Arizona as a DBE contractor, sub-
contractor, consultant, and sub- consultant or material supplier.

If, at any time, there is a material change in the firm, including, but not Jimited to, ownership, officers,
Directors, scope of work being performed, daily operations, affiliations with other businesses or
individuals or physical location of the firm, you must notify this office in writing without delay. Notification

should include supporting documentation. You will receive timely instruction from this office as to how you
should proceed, if necessary.

Your firm may compete for, and perform, work on all USDOT Federal Aid projects throughout Arizona,
recelving DBE credit for work performed in the following areas:

NAICS: Specialty Description
NAICS-423120: AUTOMOTIVE PARTS, NEW, MERCHANT WHOLESALERS

190




NAICS-423130: TIRE TUBES, MOTOR VEHICLE, MERCHANT WHOLESALERS

(- Questions or concerns should be directed to this office.
Teiephone number: {602) 712-77614

Email: jgeist2@azdot.gov or ksmith@azdot.gov
Fax number: (602) 712-8428

Sincerely,

DBE Certification Program Manager

Certification Date: March 11, 2013
Certification Expiration Date: June 30, 2014

191




Form 8
Certification Regarding Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use

1) As required by FTA regulations, “Prevention of Aicohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit
Operations," at 49 CFR Part 655, Subpart |, the undersigned certifies that it has established and implemented
an alcohol misuse and anti-drug program, and has complied with or will comply with all applicable
requirements of FTA regulations, “Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit
Operations," 48 CFR part 655,

2) The undersigned shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies,
procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the
Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration, Master Agreement (FTA MA (9)), between
Purchaser (YCIPTA) and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term
of this contract. The undersigned’s failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of contract.

Signature W

Peter JFSettIe, Chief Executive Officer
Name

January 23, 2014
Date

National Express Transit Services Corporation
Company Name

. Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer
Title

H-101

192 ,




Form 9
YCIPTA Provided Materials and Supplies

YCIPTA shall provide the CONTRACTOR the following equipment to be used for YCIPTA related
business only:

YCIPTA shall provide CONTRACTOR the following equipment to be used for YCIPTA-related business

only:

Seven personal computers with keyboard, mouse and monitor for use by Operations Manager,
Safety & Training Manager, Maintenance Manager and Transit Operations Supervisors.

One scheduling personal computer for scheduling reservations on YCAT OnCall and personal HP
printer with switch.

One copier, printer, scannér, fax all in one machine,

One central printer and scanner.

One laptop for maintenance department use,

One laptop for Call Center suite,

One mini Laptop for reviewing on-bus security camera, plus associated speakers and equipment
from RE! for the on-bus security camera.

One computer for accessing security fobs for access into Bus Facility.

One computer for accessing Bus Facility security camera system.

Laptop and Acufare 200 for accessing Acufare system for smart cards (YCATPass).

Motorola dispatch radio system with four hand-held radio system, 35 mobile units, one base
station with base station power and micrephone,

Network system including wiring, hubs, switches, Internet modem, battery back for Internet
modem, -

Cash and coin counting machines.

Safe,

Fans and air conditioning.

All office furniture for use by Contractor staff, including desks, file cabinets, chairs, trash cans,

tables, microwave oven, DVD player, televisions, bulletin boards, storage cabinets, key boxes,
two hand frucks. ‘

Bus wash system.

Credit card machine.

Greyhound equipment, including TRIPS computer/monitor/keyboard, printer, calling card
machine, file cabinet, table, shelving, forms and supplies, printer ink, telephone, network
connection, check verification machine, three baggage storage sheds, baggage tag holders, hand
truck, baggage cart, waiting room chairs and frame for signage.

-102

193




» 27 Buses and 3 Trolleys (with destination signs, fareboxes, \security cameras, PA system,

“brochure racks, denominators, transfer cutters, wheelchair tiedowns, Yuma Sun racks, library
racks), 3 Minivans, 3 Support Vehicles, 2 Support Trucks, 1 Pressure Washer and Trailer.

« Two full sets of keys to vehicles

*» One set of keys to office furnifure

» Cash register.

¢ Luminator and Twin Vision destination sign programming equipment and cards.

* 20 Acufare Smart Card readers, fare selectors and associated cables.

* SPX Genfare small amount of electronic farebox parts and keys.

* 15 Nortel Telephones with Call Center Suite.

s  Two (2) vehicle [ifts.

= Bus stop signs, poles, infoposts, two post pounder and post remover,

» 30 bus shelters with benches, trash cans, map cases and solar panel lighting (two with

advertising boxes).

+ Bus Faclility with parking.

» Fuel for all vehicles.

» Parts Room shelving.

* Lock for access gate.

» Limited amount of maintenance shop equipment and small amount of tools.

* Limited amount of spare parts for SPX Genfare fareboxes, New Flyer buses, decals, brochure

- racks, denominators, efc.

« Diagnostic equipment for transmission and other vehicle companents.

» Storage shed.

e Dumpsters for refuse and recycling.

*  Air compressor.

» Three vending machines.
National Express Transit Services Corporation
NAME OF PROPOSER;
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE W/(/

A
Peter J. SLttle, Chief Execuiive Officer

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE TITLE:
_ January 27, 2014

DATE

-103

194




Form 10
Customer Service

Customer Service is a high priority to YCIPTA transit operations. Customer service is a priority element in
the growth of YCIPTA.

YCIPTA prides itself on providing bus operators, dispatchers and management staff that integrate high
quality customer service intc daily operations, for the benefit of our transit passengers. I is understood
that quality customer service leads to repeat patronage and is key to increasing YCIPTA ridership.

Bus operators not only operate YCIPTA transit vehicles, but also provide the essential contact/interaction
with passengers. YCIPTA bus operators are YCIPTA's transit ambassadors to the public,

Dispatchers & Transit Operations Supervisors, more often than not, are the first YCIPTA staff members to
make contact with a passenger requiring transit information. Providing high quality telephone based
customer service to individuals inquiring about YCIPTA is critical to ensuring the patrons’ transit trip is a
SUCCESS,

YCIPTA Management Staff (Contracted Operations Manager, Maintenance Manager and Safety &
Training Manager) are integral in ensuring customer service is practiced and adhered to by bus
operators, mechanics, utility workers and dispatches on a daily basis.

I hereby certify by my signature below that | have read and understand this declaration regarding
Customer Service.

National Express Transit Services Corporation
NAME OF PROPQSER: i

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE W
Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE TITLE:

January 27, 2014
DATE:

i-104

195



Form 11
Union

YCIPTA bus operators, mechanics and utility workers belong to Amalgamated Transit Union Local 1433
(*Union”). CONTRACTOR is responsible for coordinating with the Union regarding collective bargaining
negotiation and ensuring YCIPTA's compliance with FTA Section 5333(b) regarding Standard Transit
Employee Protective Arrangements.

I hereby certify by my signature below that | have read and understand this declaration regarding Union.

In addition, | certify by my signature that 1 attest pursuant to this Request For Proposals, | and or my
representatives have had the opportunity to request further information and clarification regarding Bus
Operators Union during the following Request For Proposals activities:

National Express Transit Services Corporation
NAME OF PROPOSER: /7

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE W
Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer

AUTHORIZED REFRESENTATIVE TITLE:
January 27, 2014

DATE:

11105

196



_ Form 12
Federal Transit Administration
Third Party Contracting Guidance
" Request for Proposals

YCIPTA receives operating and capital funding through the Federal Transit Administration (FTA). As
YCIPTA receives FTA funding, YCIPTA will utilize YCIPTA's Procurement Policy which incorporates
Federal Transit Administration’s Third Party Contracting Guidance, FTA Circular 4220.1 .F., as the basis
for YCIPTA transit service contract procurement. :

| hereby certify by my signature below that | have read and understand this declaration regarding Federal
Transit Administration Third Party Contracting Guidance:

* YCIPTA will utilize FTA's Third Party Contracting Requirements, FTA Circular 4220.1.F,,
Competitive Proposals (Request for Proposals) procurement guidance: o

* Per FTA Circular C 4220.1F, Chapter VI, Section 3. Methods of Procurement, Part d.
Competitive Proposals (Request for Proposals), Section 1. When Appropriate, Subsection (M(c).
Price Alone Not Determinative, that “. . . the greater the performance risk, the more technical or
past performance considerations may play a dominant role in source selection and supersede low
price:”, that YCIPTA is not bound to award YCIPTA transit service contract fo the lowest bidder;

» Per FTA Circular C 4220.1.F., Chapter VI., Section 3 Methods of Procurement, Part d.
Competitive Proposals (Request for Proposals), Section 2. Procurement Procedures, Subsection
f. Best Value, that “the recipient may award the contract to the offeror whose proposal provides
the greatest value to the recipient’, that YCIPTA is not bound to award YCIPTA transit service
confract to the lowest bidder.

National Express Transit Services Corporation
NAME OF PROPOSER: ol
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE (m

Peter J. Sek&tl;:'Chief Executive Officer
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE TITLE:

January 27, 2014

DATE:

11-106

197




Form 13 .
Recommendation of Award

Upon completion of proposal analysis as outlined within YCIPTA's Procurement Policy, fo determine
which responsible firm submitted the most advantageous, "best value” proposal (defined by the Federal
Transit Administration Third Party Contracting Requirements, Circular C 4220.1.F., as a tradeoff of
gualitative technical factors and price/cost to derive which proposal represents the “best valug”), YCIPTA

staff will notify in writing all vendors that submitted a qualified proposal of staff's recommendation of
award to YCIPTA Board of Directors.

YCIPTA staff recommendation of award shall be clearly noted on the award notification letter as YCIPTA
staff's recommendation.

YCIPTA staff recommendation of award will be provided to YCIPTA Board of Directors.

| hereby certify by my signature below that | have read and understand this deciaration regarding
Recommendation of Award. '

National Express Transit Services Corporation
NAME OF PROPOSER: 4

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE %W{w

Peter J. Se‘ttI;, Chief Executive Officer
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE TITLE:

~ January 27, 2014

DATE

-107

198




NAME OF PROPOSER:

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE TITLE:

Form 14
Protest Procedures

YCIPTA’'s Bid Protest Procedures outlines the protest procedures in the event a proposer wishes to
submit a protest.

The bid protest procedure exists to investigate and resolve proposers’ questions regarding the Request
for Proposal process.

Proposers who wish to protest shall follow the prescribed protest procedures as outlined within YCIPTA
Bid Protest Procedures.

| hereby certify by my signature below that | have read and understand this declaration regarding Protest
Procedures and that a protest shall be conducted through the procedures as outlined within the Request
for Proposals document.

National Express Transit Services Corporation

r-wa

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE_W{/

Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer

January 27, 2014
DATE:

I-108

199




C

Form 15
YCIPTA Transit Funding

YCIPTA transit system, YCAT, is funded through two primary sources 1) Local from member agencies
and Miscellaneous activities funds and 2) Federal Transit Administration. Continuation of this Agreement
is subject to annual appropriations from YCIPTA member agencies and the Federal Transit
Administration as funding fluctuates from year to year.

| hereby certify by my signature beiow that | have read and understand this declaration regarding YCIPTA
Transit Funding. ' '

: National Express Transit Services Corporation
NAME OF PROPOSER:

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE W
Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE TITLE:
_ January 27, 2014

DATE

H-109

200



C

Form 16
Affordable Care Act Compliance
Request for Proposals

On March 23, 2010, President Obama signed the Affordable Care Actinto law, putting in piace
comprehensive reforms that improve access to affordable health coverage for everyone and protect

consumers from abusive insurance company practices. On June 28, 2012 the Supreme Court rendered a
final decision to uphold the health care law.

If your business has 50 or more employees, you are considered a "large business" under the health care
law. Several important parts of the law apply to you.

Most large employers can't use the SHOP Marketplace

If you have more than 50 full-time equivalent (FTE) employees, you generally won't be able to
use the SHOP Marketplace to offer health insurance fo them. -

Starting in 2018, all SHOPs will be open to employers with up to 100 FTEs.

The Employer Shared Responsibility Payment is a new requirement under the health care law
that will apply to some larger employers in 2015. You may have to make this payment if you have
50 or more full-time equivalent employees (A full-time employee is one who is employed an
average of at least 30 hours per week.) and: At least 1 of your fuli-time employees gets lower
costs on their monthly premiums through the Marketplace.

Employer Notice to Employees of the New Health Insurance Marketplace

Employer Shared Responsibility Provisions '

Health Insurance Coverage Reporting Requirements

summary of Benefits and Coverage (SBCs) Disclosure Rules

Medical Loss Ratio Rebates

W-2 Reporting of Aggregate Haalth Care Costs

Limits on Flexible Spending Account Contributions

Additional Medicare Withholding on Wages

New Medicare Assessment on Net Investment Income

90-Day Maximum Waiting Period

Transitional Reinsurance Program Fees

Workplace Wellness Programs Should be implemented

As a proposer, It is important that any proposer operating YCIPTA transit services are in compliance with
the Affordable Care Act and the costs are taken into consideration when proposing health benefits for full
time employees working 30 hours or more, :

Additional details on the Affordable Care Act is available here:
http:/fwww. hhs.gov/healthcare/rights/law/index.htmil
http:/Amvww.whitehouse.gov/healthreform/healthcare-overview
http:/ivww. dol.goviebsa/healthreform/

hitp:/fwww.irs goviuac/Affordable-Care-Act-Tax-Provisions
http:/fwww.sba.gov/content/empioyers-with-50-or-more-employees

| hereby certify by my signature below that | have read and understand this deciaration regarding the
Affordable Care Act.

NAME OF PROPOSER: ﬂational Express Transit Services Corporation

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE [ W\

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE TITLE: Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer
January 27, 2014

DATE:

201



Appendix D
Best and Final Offer, Budget Detail and Staffing Pages

1127

202




nalional express

March 21, 2014

Mr. John Andoh

Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
2715 East 14" Street

Yuma, AZ 85365

Re: Best and Final Offer for Transit Operations and Maintenance

Dear Mr. Andch:

On behalf of the entire Nationat Express Transit Services Corporation Team (National Express), we want to
thank you for this opportunity to present our Best and Final Offer to the Yuma County Intergovernmental
Public Transportation Authority (YCIPTA) for the operation and maintenance of transit services. We are

pleased to present responses to all of your requests. On the attached pages, we have provided the
following:

&= Direct responses to all of your requested items.
o= Revised price pages, including all requested elements.

Our designated contact person for this cpportunity is Mr. Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer. Please find
his contact information below:

Mr. Peter J. Settle, Chief Executive Officer
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330

Cincinnati, OH 45236

Telephone: {513) 587-2867

Fax: (513) 458-2341

Email: pete.settle@nationalexpresscorp.com

You may also contact us through our Business Development Director, Mr. Reno Navarette, by phone at (323)
314-8778 and by email at reno.navarette@nationalexpresscorp.com. We look forward to your review of our
response and to hearing from you soon as you evaluate your aiternatives. | want to personally assure you
and your Board that National Express has the resources available to fully support the accelerated start-up of
this service. Should you have any questions, please contact us at your convenience.

1. Due to current challenges with the present Transit Operations and Maintenance Contractor,
YCIPTA would like the proposed Contractor to hegin service as early as May 1, 2014. A draft
Agreement will be provided to the recommended Contractor by Tuesday, March 25, 2014 for
a basis to negotiate and finalize from.

National Express understands YCIPTA's challenges with the current contractor and is fully prepared
to commence service as early as May 1, 2014, provided that a formal notice to proceed is issued on
or prior to April 1, 2014,

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45236
(513) 322-6200

203




Page |2

2

3.

4,

A transition maintenance audit will occur in April. YCIPTA is negotiating with the current
Contractor regarding having the proposed Contractor make the repairs necessary that have
been identified from the audit. Please provide a cost to YCIPTA for your firm to make these
repairs and your approach towards making these repairs without affecting the preventative
maintenance of the remainder of the fleet.

With YCIPTA permission, National Express would like to have a maintenance representative attend
the above-referenced maintenance audit as an observer, This will allow National Express the best
opportunity to become familiar with the fieet and the challenges that are ahead. Based on the
documented inspection results we would suggest working with the inspector and YCIPTA to
categorize the defects into the following four categories:

e Category 1. Those simple repairs that will not require parts and would be normally
corrected within two maintenance cycles and within no more than 90 days. There will be no
additional cost associated with these repairs.

» (ategory 2. Repairs requiring parts that can be corrected in-house with some overtime and
that will not disrupt the normal maintenance cycle. These repairs will be passed through to
YCIPTA at the cost of the parts plus a 10% mark-up, and $68 per labor hour spent. Special
care will be necessary to balance the scheduling of this type of repair to not impact normal
operatlons and to not overtax the maintenance staff with extra work.

« Category 3. Repairs of a larger or specialized nature that would impact shop operations
based on long down times or heavy staff demands that would impact normal preventive
maintenance cycles. Repairs in this category would be referred to third-party vendors and
the costs passed through to YCIPTA. These repairs would include items such as engines,
transmissions, rear-ends, and the like, with costs being pre-approved by YCIPTA prior to
initiating the repair.

* Category 4. Body damage documented in the maintenance audit. Damage will be prioritized
and vehicles rotated to outside body repair locations at a rate that does not disrupt service.
These costs will be passed through to YCIPTA.

Please advise if you intend to purchase the current parts inventory and any Contractor owned
equipment from the current Contractor. A list of their equipment is provided.

National Express has reviewed the equipment list and would welcome the opportunity to work with
the current contractor to obtain the equipment at a price reflective of the current condition and
value. Similarly regarding the parts inventory, National Express is willing to purchase quality, useful
inventory specific to the YCPITA fleet with appropriate documentation as to value.

YCIPTA is participating in a one call, one click mobility management center called SARA Rides
with the Saguaro Foundation. As a result, the demand responsive hours will be operated by
them. The Contractor will still be responsible for the maintenance {possibly cleaning) of the
two cutaway buses and one minivan that they will be using. Please remove any costs
associated with the provision of demand responsive service at this time. YCIPTA may reserve
the right to incorporate demand responsive service to this Agreement in the future.

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45236

{513) 322-6200

204



Page |3

6.

Costs associated with the provision of demand responsive service have been removed as depicted
on our attached revised pricing sheets,

YCIPTA has assumed the customer service function. As a result, the Contractor will only be
responsible for dispatching the fixed route transit system. Please remove any costs associated
with providing customer service and Greyhound customer service functions at this time.
YCIPTA may reserve the right to incorporate customer service functions into this Agreement
in the future,

Costs associated with the provision of customer service and Greyhound customer service functions
have been removed as depicted on our attached revised pricing sheets,

YCIPTA is looking to outsource interior/exterior bus cleaning and facility cleaning to a third
party. Please explain all costs associated with bus and facility cleaning as a basis for
separation from this Agreement if necessary, this includes supplies, personnel and benefits
costs. YCIPTA will also be responsible for providing pest control services. Proposed Contractor
would still be responsible for fueling buses however. YCIPTA may reserve the right to
incorporate bus and facility cleaning to this Agreement in the future.

Costs associated with bus and facility cleaning have been identified below. National Express
understands that YCIPTA will be responsible for pest control services and supplies and that the

Contractor is responsible for fueling of the buses. National Express is open to negotiation on these
items, '

s Labor: 559,431
¢ Materials & Supplies: $9,000

YCIPTA operates its transit system in the manner where the Contractor is an "agent" of
YCIPTA, which allows for YCIPTA to be active into the day to day management of the transit
system, when necessary. This requires the Operations Manager and Maintenance Manager to
be an integral part of YCIPTA daily operations with communication and reports regarding
system operations often. Please explain how your firm would foster a good working
relationship with YCIPTA in regard to this question.

National Express believes in becoming partners with each agency it serves. We understand you are
the agency and we are the contractor, but we must work together to ensure good operations of the
system. Our Operations Manager, and Maintenance Manager will meet daily with YCIPTA to ensure

we are on the same page and we all agree with the strategy of providing a quality product to the
customers we serve,

During the start-up of the operation the Mobilization Manager will be an integral part of ensuring
that our local team is cooperating with the agency in achieving its goals. Daily meetings during this
time with YCIPTA and National Express will be the time we will foster that relationship as partners.

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45236
(513} 322-6200

205



Page | 4

10.

The other key factors after operations begin will be a direct line of communication with local staff,
YCIPTA and the VP Operations for National Express. We want to meet or exceed our customer’s
expectations. Our quality assurance “grade card” system, which was included in our proposal, is

monitored monthly to ensure good communications remain open with both YCIPTA and National
Express.

All potential Contractors must have an understanding on the Critical Definitions. This will be a
fixed and variable Agreement. Assume a total of 36,000 revenue vehicle service hours for
fixed route and possibly 2,208 demand responsive service hours in the future. YCIPTA
reserves the right to increase/decrease 10% without renegotiating the Agreement. The
Agreement is purely based on revenue vehicle service hours. Positions in fixed costs shall not
operate revenue vehicles in excess of 20% of the position’s scheduled work week (8 hours a
week).

a. Fixed Route: For the fixed-route service, a “Revenue Hour” begins at the first scheduled
stop and ends at the last scheduled stop of the service day minus layover time (time at
the end of each line) and other activities when the bus is not moving in excess of 15
minutes.

b. Demand Responsive Service: Service shall be operated in an origin to destination type of
service. This means that passengers shall be picked up or dropped off at their location at
the curb or door based on the disability of the passenger in accordance with the
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). The Contactor will be paid on a per hour basis, as
specified in SECTION 5 COMPENSATION, for "Revenue Hours" operated pursuant to this
Agreement. For compensation purposes, Revenue Hours are calculated from the time the
first passenger is picked up to the time of the last passenger is dropped off. Bus operator
breaks, lunch periods, and idle vehicle time when the bus operator is off the vehicle more
than 30 minutes shall be subtracted from the revenue hours,

National Express understands these critical definitions and has structured its proposal and
revised pricing accordingly. National Express also understands that YCIPTA seeks to exclude
demand-responsive service from the scope of services and we have removed the costs
assoclated with such service as reflected in our attached revised pricing.

Please ensure that you show your profit and overhead amounts and fully explain your budget
expenses in the column shown at the right end of the budget pages, including all generic,
other and miscellaneous expense categories. Please fully explain in detail in particular,
cellular phone costs, office equipment, maintenance equipment, licenses, all miscellaneous
and other costs. [n particular, please explain quantity and annual cost for each line item.

National Express has complied with these requests on the attached revised pricing sheets.

Please explain how your proposed Operations Manager meets the term of the Agreement
that states: The Operations Manager shall have a minimum of six (6) years of increasingly

responsible management experience in transit agencies that employ twenty (20) or more full
time equivalent bus operators in a union environment.

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hoshrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45236
(513) 322-6200

206



Page |5

il

12,

National Express confirms that our proposed Operations Manager candidate (referred to as
Proposed Project Manager) exceeds these minimum requirements. A detailed resume for our
Operations Manager is included in Appendix A of our Proposal.

Please explain how your proposed Maintenance Manager meets the term of the Agreement
that states: The performance of CONTRACTOR’s maintenance duties and responsibilities, The
Maintenance Manager shall have a minimum of six {6) years’ experience as a Maintenance
Manager managing the maintenance functions of a diesel and Compressed Natural Gas (CNG)
bus shop similar in size and complexity to the services herein described. The Maintenance
Manager shall also have a minimum of five years journeyman level experience with large
gasoline, diesel and CNG bus engines, air conditioning systems, and wheelchair lifts. This
experience shall include work on full sized (i.e., 35 foot or larger transit coaches). The
Maintenance Manager shall have experience supervising the work of other Maintenance
personnel and shall be a working mechanic in addition to their managerial duties. YCIPTA will
only accept persons who have at |east six years experience as a "Maintenance Manager" and
have at least five years experience as a journeyman, due to previous concerns with past
maintenance management practices.

National Express’ candidate for the Maintenance Manager position was a journeyman technician
from 2006 to 2012 and is currently managing a fleet of more than 123 transit vehicles, similar in
make up to the YCAT fleet, in Southern California {(and has managed this fleet since 2012). We have
thoroughly interviewed him and are confident that the YCIPTA evaluation team will be quite
impressed with him if selected for an interview, though his personal maintenance management
experience falls a few years short of the six-year requirement above. To supplement his expertise,
our Maintenance Manager will benefit from the close mentorship of our Vice President of
Maintenance, Mr, Gregg Harringten, who greatly exceeds the requisite experience listed above. Mr.
Harrington is based in Phoenix and will be especially responsive to the Yuma-based team and to
YCIPTA as needed, especially during the start-up and turnover of the YCAT fleet, Mr, Harrington,
who has conducted some initial assessments of the YCAT fleet in preparing our proposal, will be
available for interview along with our local team members.

If YCIPTA should desire a candidate other than our proposed Maintenance Manager, following an
interview with YCIPTA, National Express can present additional candidates for YCIPTA's
consideration.

Please explain how your proposed Operations Supervisor meets the term of the Agreement
that states: The Operations Supervisor shall have a minimum of three (3) years of operations,
safety and training management experience [n a unlon environment.

National Express confirms that our Operations Supervisor will meet or exceed these minimum
requirements. Because of the changes in this position’s title and description (see Questions 18 and
19 below), National Express is removing our proposed Safety & Training Manager from our Proposal.
National Express requests the opportunity to discuss some creative solutions to Operations and
Road Supervision during an interview if we should be invited to do so.

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Sulte 330, Cincinnatl, OH 45236
(513) 322-5200

207



Page |6

13. There will be liqguidated damages and performance incentives in the Agreement and that will

14

15

16

be negotiated with the successful Contractor.

National Express understands that liquidated damages and performance incentives will be
negotiated and included in the agreement with the successful contractor.

Wages and benefits should only confirm to the most recent Collective Bargaining Agreement
(CBA) only for the unionized labor {Bus Operators, Mechanics and Utility Workers). The Pro-
Med benefit plan is based in Mexicali, Mexico. Additional details are here:
http://www.co.imperial.ca.us/human-resources/HrNew/Benefits/PinnacdleManagement/PROMEDFlyer11232010. pdf.
All other non-unionized, hourly positions should receive an increase equivalent to the
consumer price index for Yuma area from what they are making today to take effect in Year 2
of the Agreement. YCIPTA requests status quo on wages as increases were already provided
by the current Contractor on July 1, 2013. Please revise your wage scale to reference the
description above. Please provide fully describe and provide additional documentation on
your benefits plan, including holiday pay, personal day, vacation, sick leave, retirement/401K,
and other pertinent benefit information for union and non-union employees as well as what
the cost to the employee and employer would be,

The wages contained within our attached revised pricing are consistent with the information
provided by YCIPTA and with wage increases required to maintain a satisfied workforce. National
Express’ United Healthcare (UHC) benefits plan is described in detail in response to Question 21 in
our proposal. It is our understanding that our plan confarms to the current CBA. The costs for the

UHC plan are included in our BAFO pricing and all eligible employees will be able to enroll in the
plan.

Please provide a salary table for each position and what the wage schedule will be for year 1
through year 10 of the Agreement for all hourly positions.

Please see the wage and salary table contained in the attached revised Exhibit D.

Please advise if you plan to negotiate with the ATU Local 1433 or if you are going to honor the
Transportation Concepts negotiated CBA, There is no requirement or obligation from YCIPTA

for the proposed Contractor to accept the current CBA as that does not bind any proposed
Contractor,

Mational Express fully intends to honor wages and benefits as described in the current CBA and have

priced our revised proposal accordingly. National Express, if selected by YCIPTA, plans to negotiate
an agreement with ATU Local 1433,

National Express Transit Servicas Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45236
(513) 322-6200

208



Page |7

17. Please advise if DriveCam will be provided in this Agreement. If so, what is the cost and what

18

19.

line item in the budget is the cost in? If not, what would be the cost to YCIPTA to add? Is there
a reduction in insurance costs for having DriveCam? DriveCam should be an option to YCIPTA,
not a mandatory item, if there are costs built into YCIPTA's budget. YCIPTA would like a
statement that the costs of such installation and its maintenance is not included in the fixed
or variable costs should the Contractor choose to install this equipment. Should a proposed

Contractor choose to install this equipment, YCIPTA would require that DriveCam is installed
in 30 of the 35 vehicles.

National Express has not included the costs for installation and implementation of DriveCam or any
equivalent system.

The Safety and Training Manager position should now become an Operations Supervisor
position as explained below:

Operations Supervisor: CONTRACTOR shall designate an Operations Supervisor who shall
assist the Operations Manager in the oversight of day to day transit operations, safety and
training of Service operations under this Agreement. YCIPTA reserves the right, in its sole
discretion, to reject any individual proposed. The Operations Supervisor's job responsibilities
shall include: (1) assist in the oversight of all operations personnel; (2) facilitating training for
all operational related personnel; (3) ensuring safety is being followed for all CONTRACTOR
personnel; (4) the ability to train employees as a Transportation Safety Institute (TSI} trainer,
Passenger Service and Safety (PASS) trainer and a third party tester with Arizona Motor
Vehicle Division {(MVD) locally in Yuma; and (5) facilitate the training of potential bus
operators through a class developed in conjunction with Arizona Western College (AWC),
acting as the instructor of this class. The Operations Supervisor shall have a minimum of three
(3) years of operations, safety and training management experience in a union environment.

Please revise your costs to reflect this position.

National Express understands this modification to staffing and has reflected it in our attached
revised pricing sheets. National Express requests the opportunity to discuss some creative solutions
to Operations and Road Supervision during an interview if we should be invited to do so.

Please confirm your staffing levels and define what other positions may be that are not

defined in the price proposals.

a. Operations Manager salary should be between $65,000 and $77,000, plus henefits. If
proposed Contractor is requesting a higher amount, please justify why.

National Express is maintaining the proposed Operations Manager and is willing to reduce the
annual salary as presented in our proposal to $78,000 plus benefits. We are justifying this
approach for several reasons: (1) we are confident that our Operations Manager candidate
commands such a salary based on his years of successful experience in transit management; (2)
we firmly believe that it will require the skillset of such an experienced manager to accomplish
YCIPTA's mission for a truly successful partnership with its contractor; (3) the accelerated nature

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hoshrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45235
(513) 322-6200

209



Page |8

of the new timeline allows little time to recruit a suitable candidate at a lower salary; and (4) we
have already extended a conditional offer of employment to our candidate should we be
selected by the YCIPTA,

Maintenance Manager salary should be between $40,000 and $55,000, plus benefits. If
proposed Contractor is requesting a higher amount, please justify why.

National Express is maintalning the proposed Maintenance Manager and salary as presented in
our proposal {annual salary of $75,000 plus benefits). We are justifying this approach for several
reasons: {1) we are confident that our Maintenance Manager candidate commands such a salary
based on his years of successful experience In transit maintenance; (2) we firmly believe that it
will require the skillset of such an experienced manager to accomplish YCIPTA's mission for a
truly successful partnership with its contractor; (3) the accelerated nature of the new timeline
allows little time to recruit a suitable candidate at a lower salary; and {4) we have already

extended a conditional offer of employment to our candidate should we be selected by the
YCIPTA.

Operations Supervisor should be a salary position with supervisory abilities with a salary
range between $29,120 and $30,000, plus benefits or an hourly position between the

range of $14.00 and $16.00 per hour, plus benefits. If proposed Contractor is requesting a
higher amount, please justify why.,

National Express believes in providing a premier service to our customers. As stated above we
also believe in establishing a partnership with YCIPTA, 1tis our belief that this position is a very
critical one and with all of the requirements of this position that a fair rate of pay should be
$40,000 at a minimum or $19.23 an hour plus benefits. This position is responsible for working
with the union, safety and training, and assisting employees in the field when needed. Itis our
belief that to fix some of YCIPTA's existing concerns we need to provide a high-powered
individual,

National Express is willing to consider an alternative that we believe will result in an annual
savings of approximately $9,000. This alternative would be to perform the road and operations
supervision duties utilizing two full-time Road Supervisors, one at an hourly wage of $13.52 and
the second at an hourly wage of $14.50, each with full benefits

Please explain how road supervision would be conducted? Using Dispatchers, the
Operations Supervisor, the Operations Manager or a dedicated Road Supervisor? Road
supervision is a critical component towards contract compliance and addressing the
quality of service on the street.

National Express plans to accomplish road supervision using two dedicated Road Supervisors.

Piease explain who will handle payroll and parts ordering, recognizing that today, there is
no Administrative Assistant and that there is a need to provide road supervision and
dispatch coverage.

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45236
(513)322-6200

210



Page |9

The National Express Operations Manager will be responsible for payroll, with assistance from
the dispatchers, and the Maintenance Manager will order parts. National Express has planned
for road supervision and dispatch coverage that will be more than adequate. National Express
agrees to remove the Administrative pasition from our proposal, which will result in an
additional annual savings of approximately $40,000.

Explain support staff costs. Define position, cost and duties.

Please see attached revised Exhibit D for descriptions and costs for each support staff position.
Also, complete job descriptions for each of National Express’ proposed positions are included in
response to Question 19 in our proposal to YCIPTA, on pages 99 through 106.

Please show a schedule for the administrative, dispatch staff and the maintenance staff.
YCIPTA would like creativity coverage in scheduling including late shift/overnight
maintenance and cleaning for instance. There should always be a dispatcher on duty (via
radio or cell phone) when an YCAT bus is in operation. There has been historical concerns
with buses being pulled out of service, while in service to perform maintenance.

Proposed Administration, Dispatch and Maintenance schedules are depicted in the ilustration
on the following page.

National Express is committed to maintenance schedules based on several principles. Route
operation must be fully supported during all hours of operation, maintenance staff must be
scheduled to complete PM and Repair services without impacting operations, and that
Operators must be supported during pull-out and shut-down. To address these principles and
ensure staff is available we included an additional technician in our staffing plan. National
Express is willing to review the technician staffing after the first full year of operations with the
YCIPTA staff to ascertain if a reduction in maintenance staffing is mutually agreeable.

Explain how behind the wheel training would be facilitated? Individual employees, bus
operators or Operations Supervisor? How will behind the wheel trainers be compensated?

The behind-the-whee! training will be facilitated by our Vice President of Safety with the
support of our Operations Supervisor while in the start-up. National Express will use
cempany-certified TSI training instructors to conduct the behind-the-wheel training in the
start-up. We will also plan to recruit potential trainers for route training from the current
bus operator group. Those trainers will be required to be certified in our training

program. The recruited route trainers must successfully complete our train-the-trainer
program and demonstrate proficiency as a behind-the-wheel instructor. They will be paid at
the rate of an additional $1 an hour more than their normal driving wages. The certified
company instructors that we bring in for the start-up will be compensated at an hourly rate
with a per diem for meals and all travel expenses paid.

MNational Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnatl, OH 45236
(513} 322-6200

211



UBIBYIE e i | " pofop wheg
oL t0% { Auprpius j2a uo } 24 fosmasdng proy orZi-otid
ﬂ ot pUs T gbelennn %uemn._m._m. Lo w” ) R o=g uibag _
I < SINOH 301A39S LYOA > ]
ot o] filix°] 0E§ 005 [rox4 oot [5 (o4 (oA ooz DE*1 DOl Qegl ODZL  OELl  OO'LL 020l Oo.k [slt:3 e ] [rlok:]
SAYQHNLYS
" o0 pus B T
[ nectous ; = uibag .
‘berLmbeq |
umpluiaag Buisery (Q\|
oog weag | -
sl Biraadg 0y uIbaq *
| 005 pua - o 2
....au‘Eﬂ.nm n«auwum.zhutum.nnuomr:ma:w. peon .. ; pua i iy
_ poLEpue” T T T ieuptedsmg Ny j ’ . opeuibag _
) R toig uibsg _
R PUB T T T et suahiiedn 3 b
[ < ATAIDS DMY > 08 PUz <SI0OH B2IISS 1WA > og's ufeq |
(1.4 [Lird ol 0oL 00TL 00ZL 0L 00l OE'0L OO0l oe 54 osg oog =73 00 oEg g oS [ ogr oo [ ooe OEL o0z oeiL oL oSzl 00ZL OulL 00l 0E01 0001 oeE 008 oER ooe OEL oL o9 [rin] oes

s 0w

SAYAMZAM
Fuygers soueualUlEl 17 suoiesado sseidxg [ruonEN/ 1Y pasadold



Page |10

f.  Please explain how transit service would be covered in the event of missouts by regularly
scheduled bus operators to ensure that there are no missed trips?

[n the event that regularly scheduled drivers call off National Express has a reserve of
extraboard drivers scheduled during all days/hours of operations. The first extraboard driver will
be scheduled in before the first driver is due to clock in. They are usually veteran drivers
because these are bid by seniority and operators are trained on all routes and are prepared to
walk out of the office and begin routes. We also have several buses pre tripped and ready to go
in case of a mechanical malfunction at pull out, In addition, all frontline supervisors and a
majority of staff and dispatchers are fully credentialed to drive if necessary to avoid missed

trips. We also keep a list of operators who have signed up for extra work so that we always have
a backup.

20. YCIPTA intends to interview the three key management team members proposed by the

21

Contractor as the foundation of a relationship is the management team being able to work
with YCIPTA staff. Please provide acknowledgement to this request. The interviews will take
place between Wednesday, March 19, 2014 and Friday, March 22, 2014.

National Express acknowledges YCIPTA's request to conduct an interview with our proposed key
management team members, and will make these proposed staff members available for interview

on the dates listed above. National Express’ preferred date for an interview is Wednesday, March
19,

- YCIPTA expects all current Contractor employees ave treated as "new” prospective employees

by the proposed Contractor and that all current Contractor employees must go through an
interview process with YCIPTA staff present and participating, a background check/pre-
employment check process and a selection process that YCIPTA would be actively involved in.
As a result, Section 8.1, of the Agreement is deleted in its entirety, All positions should be
opened to the general public and the proposed Contractor should work with Yuma Private
Industry Council and Goodwill to assist in filling jobs as well as advertise online, in the local
newspaper and hold hiring fairs. Please explain how you intend to facilitate this process?

Once awarded the contract we will reach out to the Yuma Private Industry Council and Goodwill to
coordinate our hiring and interview efforts. We will obtain a building location to conduct interviews
and to work with the local media and local businesses to recruit potential employees. We would
partner with the YCIPTA staff and ask them to either join in the interview process or help us approve
the selections after the prospective candidates have met our qualifications. If YCIPTA allows us, we
can use your facility to conduct the interviews and work together as a team in the hiring process.

To ensure we receive numerous applicants for the open positions, we will flyer the community,
advertise in the local media, conduct a hiring fair and set-up a recruiting hotline number for
applicants to call and obtain information. Our company will bring in several computer kiosk systems
onsite to allow candidates to apply online in our computerized HR hiring system.

All candidates that meet our minimum hiring qualifications will receive interviews and if they meet
requirements, backgreund checks and MVR checks will be conducted. YCIPTA staff would be most

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45236
{513) 322-6200

213



Page |11

welcome to accompany us in the interviews. Any candidates who are former employees currently
working for YCIPTA that pass the hiring process will receive a minimum of 16 hours of orientation
training. All new operator candidates that are not currently bus operators must complete our 120
hour new-hire training program. After assessing our position needs and manpower status, we will
start a bus operator training class within 10 days of initiating our hiring campaign process. National
Express prides itself in always starting a new contract with 100% of the employees we need on-hand
at the first day of service and with all employees completely trained and ready to go.

New employees will be trained on all National Express and YCIPTA operations and safety policies, as

well as all company values. All employees will be continually assessed, beginning immediately upon
hire, for compliance with our standards and policies.

a. Please provide detailed job descriptions as defined in the attachment for Bus Operator,
Dispatcher, Utility Worker, Mechanic, Operations Supervisor, Operations Manager,
Maintenance Manager and any other position that you propose.

Complete job descriptions for each of National Express’ proposed positions are included in
response to Question 19 in our proposal to YCIPTA, on pages 99 through 106.

b. Ali employees hired must comply with YCIPTA's training requirements prior to the start of
the Agreement and prior to being hired, regardless if they are working for the current
Contractor or not. Please explain how your firm intends to facilitate this. YCIPTA will

provide buses available for proposed Contractor's use, as welt as, classroom space for the
proposed Contractor to use.

National Express plans to comply with YCIPTA's training requirements prior to the start of the
agreement, even under the accelerated timelines described by YCIPTA. We plan to facllitate this

training in accordance with the training program descriptions found in response to Questions 7
and 17 in our proposal.

¢. Please provide a detailed explanation of your new employee hiring process, including
necessary forms that they would fill out, employee handbook and confirmation that all
employees will receive benefits effective with the start of this Agreement.

National Express’ new employee hiring process is described in our proposal in response to
Question 7. A copy of our employee handbook was included with each copy of our proposal. All
current contractor employees who are qualified, selected by National Express, and choose to

continue their employment with National Express will receive benefits effective with the start of
the Agreement.

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45236
{513) 322-8200

214



Page |12

22, Overal! facility maintenance responsibility will be managed by Contractor, on behalf of

23

-

24,

YCIPTA. A sub lease agreement will be established within the YCIPTA agreement for use of the
facility. YCIPTA, at its sole expense, shall be responsible for the repair and maintenance of
structural (such as ceiling joists, framing, floor slab, load bearing components and similar
items) portions of the Building, except to the extent any such repairs or maintenance are
required as a result of the negligence or willful misconduct of Contractor, in which event such
maintenance and repairs shall be performed by Contractor at its sole expense, YCIPTA, at its
sole expense, shali be responsible for security, as well as maintenance, repair and
replacement of all the exterior and non-structural elements of the Building and other
improvements at the Facility, including the exterior walls, windows, roof, gutters, down
spouts and the common areas, abutting sidewalks, driveways and asphalt and all general
mechanical, plumbing, sprinkler, life safety, HVAC and electrical systems serving the Building.
Contractor will be responsible for facilitating these repairs and establishing service contracts
in accordance with YCIPTA's Facility Maintenance Plan. YCIPTA will be responsible for these
costs directly. Please do not include any facility maintenance expenses in your proposal costs.

National Express confirms that the attached revised pricing excludes facility maintenance expenses
as described above.

YCIPTA will provide all office equipment necessary, such as computers, printers, postage,
copier and fax. Contractor will need to provide copy paper, office supplies and coffee for the
break room. Existing supplies may be avaiiable from the current Contractor to purchase.

National Express understands that YCIPTA will provide all office equipment necessary, such as
computers, printers, postage, copier and fax machine; and that National Express will be responsible
for the costs of office supplies, daily DVI forms, other paper, and coffee. National Express is open to
negotiating the costs associated with these items,

As part of bus stop maintenance, the proposed Contractor is responsible for providing tools
and supplies necessary to support the cleaning, installing and removal of bus stops {minus the
YCIPTA provided items). Proposer would also be responsible for cleaning bus shelters. YCIPTA
will only fund purchase of poles, bus shelter metal parts, plexiglass, infoposts and assoclated
hardware for installation and/or removal. Contractor is responsible for facilitating the repair
to the damaged plexiglass on shelters and infoposts and mesh walls on shelters, painting,
graffiti removal, power washing of bus stops, and cleaning all bus shelters as well as heavily .
used bus stops. Contractor is also responsible for emptying 33 trash cans at 30 bus shelters
throughout Yuma County.

National Express understands the responsibilities for bus stop and shelter maintenance and has
included the costs associated in our attached revised pricing.

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45236
(513) 322-6200

215




Page |13

25,

26.

27.

28.

Please explain what your employee welfare programs are, YCIPTA values employee
empowerment and happiness. There are significant employee morale issues that require
specific attention.

National Express treats all of our employees as internal customers, a philosophy that we espouse at
every operating location. This approach has served us well in developing and maintaining high
morale. In addition, several of our senior management team members live in the Phoenix area and
can easily respond to address any issues that require special attention in Yuma.

National Express’ employee welfare programs are described in our proposal to YCIPTA in response
to Questions 16, 21, and 22.

Please explain what the license fees are for. The City of Yuma requires a business license for a
small fee. The City of San Luis requires a $0.00 business license fee. YCIPTA will license all
vehicles. Contractor will be responsible for any environmental permits. Please budget for the
exact dollar figure of necessary licenses needed for this operation.

Any license fees included in our proposal are described on the attached revised pricing sheets.

Marketing activities using a bus and bus operator shall be provided free of charge to YCIPTA
and is limited to 10 events per year for up to eight hours per day. Please acknowledge this
requirement is understood.

National Express acknowledges this requirement and is prepared to support the YCIPTA and YCAT
marketing activities as described above for up to 80 hours annually. There are no additional charges
for these services.

Contractor will be responsible for implementation of an employer testing program in Yuma in
conjunction with ADOT MVD and development of a new class with Arizona Western College
for training bus operators. This would require the Contractor to allow the use of buses for the
classroom participants on Arizona Western College property. Please confirm that is
acknowledged and is in the plans to implement these request requirements.

National Express acknowledgas this requirement and is prepared to comply fully. We will work with
ADOT MVD and set up an employer testing program. We have this testing in place in several states
and are familiar with Arizona’s process to obtain testing approval.

The National Express team applauds YCIPTA for its efforts with Arizona Western College to develop a
bus operator training curriculum. National Express’ Vice President of Safety will work in close
conjunction with Arizona Western College, our site Operations Supervisor and YCIPTA to complete
this process and carry this forward. We will ensure that buses will be made available for training.
This truly can be a great benefit for all parties.

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hoshrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45236
(513)322-6200

216




Page |14

29. Contractor will be responsible for providing NTD reports, preparing a Transit System Security

30.

31

32,

33.

Program Plan and Safety Plan, providing a DBE and EEO report. Please confirm that is
acknowledged and is in the plans to implement these request requirements by September 30
2014, The plans must be specific to YCIPTA's operation and not a boiler plate plan.

’

National Express acknowledges these reporting and planning requirements and is prepared to have
tailored reports and plans fully implemented prior to September 30, 2014.

Please explain the insurance expenses and confirm that the insurance requirements match
YCIPTA’s minimum insurance coverages. ADOT has special insurance requirements for the
three trolley vehicles and those costs should be factored into the budget.

The insurance coverages included in National Express’ proposal to YCIPTA satisfy the minimum
required coverages, inclusive of the special insurance requirement for the three trolley vehicles.
These costs are fully factored into the attached revised pricing.

Please advise if there would be a special event “marginal” revenue vehicle service hour rate

for additional special event services that YCIPTA may add such as HolidayCAT and Visitor
Bureau shuttles.

Yes, National Express’ rate for special event “marginal” service is $55.19 per hour in the first year of
the contract.

Confirm that the bilingual requirements of Section J will be followed. Any employee that is
not bilingual should be provided with the Basic Spanish for Transit Employees Handbook.
While YCIPTA wants all bilingual employees, as long as non bilingual personnel has the
handbook, the hiring of non-bilingual personnel will be accepted.

National Express confirms that our proposal satisfies the bilingual requirements of Section J and that
non-Spanish speaking employees will have access to Basic Spanish for Transit Employee Handbooks.

YCIPTA has prepared a "blocking plan" that it expects the proposed Contractor to follow. As a
result, the deadhead has significantly been reduced as explained below. This plan requires 9
to a maximum of 12 buses, depending on the day. In addition, a floater tripper bus is added to
keep the transit system on time, when routes fall 30 minutes or later. Please review this plan
and incorporate this blocking into your costs.

The hlocking presented in the letter requesting this Best and Final Offer has been tncorporated into
the attached revised pricing.

National Express Transit Services Carporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45236
{513) 322-6200

217




Page |15

34, Please provide a transition schedule that takes effect Thursday, May 1, 2014.

Please see the attached revised Mobilization Plan reflecting a service start date of May 1, 2014,
National Express has been particularly adept at accomplishing successful transition under short and
accelerated timelines. ln the past twelve months, we have had four very successful start-ups: one in
Greenshoro, North Carolina, one in Newark, Ohio, ane in Colorado Springs, Colorado, and one in
Vallejo, California. Each of these transitions shows the true strength of our Transition Team and
corporate support and have been recognized for their success.

( naﬁonal express Taking Transitions to the Next Level

“From the moment ! received the National Express project proposal to the
time I sow our vehicle pull out on December 1, 2012; your Corporate
Support Feam managed everything expected ond vnexpected to
accennplish o smooth transition... A bar has been set high for your onsite
persaarel to perform at the level thot has now been established by the
tronsition team.”

Scoft Rhine, PART Executive Director

*With the dedicotion of you and the rest of your start-up tearn during this
process ond the pbstacles thot you encountered along the way, you were
able to accomplish this task with no disruption in service.

You implemented o new poratransit saftwore-Trapeze, hired enough
quoiified employees to cover our service, ond you were obie to reocl at
mifdnight June 30, 2013 when the strike occurred in San Froncisco ond pat
on additional efght vehicles in seevice ol of which hod to be implemented
on Auly 1, 2013, 1 om pleased to soy hiring Netlonol Express was o great
decision.”

Meno Bobeuta, SoiTrans Executive Director

“Notionof Express was given o short timeline in order to remp up and your
feaen stepped up to thot plate ond novigated the complications with the
required skill. The contract successfully storted on time ond with minimai
Issues. Even when your team was thrown o curve buoll ond hed the
Operations Manager withdraw from the project, only & couple of weeks
before implementation, Nutional Express handled that adversity smoothly
ond professionoffy, ond quickly rectified the fssue.”

Jonni McCoy, City of Coloradoe Springs, Contract Specialist
. J

-We provided the complete letters of reference from PART, SolTrans, and the City of Colorado
Springs, as well as two additional letters: a letter from Solutions for Transit regarding our SolTrans
mobilization and another more recent letter from Mr, Rhine at PART providing a look back at our
first full year of operations in North Carolina, as Appendix I in our Proposal.

35. YCIPTA is look for any cost savings to ensure that prices are competitive for the delivery of up
to 38,208 revenue vehicle service hours,

National Express has incorporated any cost savings into our attached revised pricing which reflects
competitive rates for the provision of up to 38,208 revenue vehicle service hours.

36. Please fully explain and breakout your start up costs. YCIPTA is providing all of the office

furniture, equipment, shop tools and equipment, so any of these costs should be removed
from the start up cost budget.

National Express’ proposed start-up costs are broken out, as requested, below, National Express is
open to negotiation with YCIPTA on start-up costs if selected for award,

National Exprass Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hasbrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45236
{513) 322-6200

218




Page |16

Labor $37,568
Travel and Relocation $43,600
Training Space and Equipment $8,950

Supplies (including Initlal inventory} $73,200
Services 552,750
Total $216,068

37. Please revise your Exhibits C (detailed budget) and D (staffing) to reflect the information
listed above.

Please see attached revised pricing sheets, inclusive of revised Exhibits C and D.

38. Please explain your cash handling procedures and how fare revenue intends to be deposited at 1%
Bank Yuma, three days a week (Monday, Wednesday and Friday)? Do you intend to use existing
office staff or use an armor car service to deliver the revenue? If using an armor car service, please
advise costs assoclated with such provision.

National Express has included the costs for armored car service four times weekly for the deposit of
cash fare revenues. These costs are depicted on our attached revised pricing sheets. National
Express is willing to consider additional options to achieve costs savings for YCIPTA, including a
reduction in the number of armored car service days, or removing these costs if YCIPTA takes on the
responsibility directly for armored car service.

Additionally, we understand that YCIPTA will furnish all Operator and Maintenance uniforms and we are
willing to adjust our pricing accordingly.

We have enjoyed speaking with you about the important service you provide and look forward to the
possibility of assisting you with the operation of the YCAT service. If you should have any additional
questions or requests for clarification, please feel free to contact Mr. Reno Navarette, our Director of
Business Development, either by phone at (323) 314-8778 or by email at
reno.navarette@nationalexpresscorp.com.

Sincerely,
National Express Transit Services Corporation

Peter ), Settle
Chief Executive Officer

Attachments: Revised Exhibits C and D; Revised Mohilization Plan

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45235
{513} 322-6200

219



national express

July 21, 2014

Mr. John Andoh
Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
2715 East 14™ Street

Yuma, AZ 85365

Dear Mr. Andoh:

Thank you for the opportunity to continue our discussions regarding operation of the YCAT service.
Attached to this letter, you will find our revised mobilization plan, final approved Agreement and associated
price proposal pages. The following assumptions were used to develop our final price proposal:

* The Technician pricing and benefits include two {2) Class A Technicians and one {1) Class B
Technician,

*  A4th Technician will be a pass-through expense at his/her actual wage ($28.90/hour), plus
benefits based on an hourly rate for a minimum period of one year,

* The Operations Supervisar position has been eliminated and in its place we have added one (1)
full -time Road Supervisor for a total of two (2) Road Supervisors, at a wage of $14.50 per hour

and $13.52 per hour, respectively, for a savings of $9,000 as defined in the BAEO document
dated March 21, 2014,

»  The Administrative Assistant position is removed, including salary and benefits.
r  The Facility Maintenance costs are removed. YCIPTA will be responsible for all facility repairs.

* The Maintenance Equipment Depreciation costs are removed and will be a separate pass-
through with an amount not ta exceed $25,000.

*  YCIPTA will provide Dossier on Demand Maintenance Software, and our pricing reflects no costs
far this software.

* National Express will purchase three (3) laptops as a pass-through expense to YCIPTA outside
the Agreement. Naticnal Express will retain ownership at the end of the contract term.

* Internet costs have been removed per your request.

*  Uniform costs were reduced: Our pricing will cover hats and name tags for drivers, frontline
supervisors and weekly uniform service for all Malntenance personnel. Armored car costs have
been removed. YCIPTA will pay directly for this service.

* Reduce the number of revenue fleet vehicles to 25 {fleet list aitached), resulting in a cost
savings of $7,000.

National Express Translt Services Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnati, OH 45236

{513} 322-6200

220



Page |2

We have enjoyed speaking with you about the important service you provide and look forward to the
possibility of assisting you with these operations. If you should have any additiona! questions or requests for
clarification, please feel free to contact Mr. Reno Navarette, our Director of Business Development, either
by phone at {323) 314-8778 or by email at reno.navarette@nationalexpresscorp.com.

Sincerely,
National Express Transit Corporation

Peter J, Settle
Chief Executive Officer

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hoshrook Road, Suite 330, Cincinnatl, OH 45236
(513) 322-6200

221



HNIEUTS YOLIVELNGD

auoydapr, g
I o I il | I I ] I I 1
SR 1LIBSE F EEIEA § | 89961 TEL § [ GLLSL Lt T | ¥RV LI $ | SOGETE0T § | SRLETPGT ¥ | sTEBT ORI 5 | fusaiell S [ T oSyl ¥ T34 AISUIISIEY AMOI [#I0L
[ i ] | | 1 ] [
$5F & 05is 3§ 68§ 759§ Sotr 3§ TE1F_§ e § EIRE 8 A e 3 TIOR SMiaATy 1od SRIeU) ol qEtA
BYLOLS CLLTOLS £hRG S EEE 3 906§ 1698 § LI9'ER § 908§ 98ULL S GE4TL 3 SEIEND RO PRI
AN poxL FUELARA PEE FELIEA PIRLT STVHEA PRLL ST, [7d | JUFLEA | PN | SIMELA | PONIA | SELEA | Pesid | JGWHRA | PORMA | JGEAEA | PN TrRiang Ssuddiy
TEUCMLI) O o0l /L | CGaiML/9 0} cx@a/T/L | TeNe/0g/9 01 IT0S/T/L TE0R/DESD 01 DTG/ TIL DR0GINES ™ BRIl | GL0T0S/ G| SIOCGO-LIOTUL | L INCMe/o-0T0LIL_ | STORNERrSio e | EI0Z0epTI0E L oA JOvIIUNg
£ aea unidg FECITGY ¢ ITa % UoLD, + IEA } R0kl € ITa § woniQ LT 1134 wARlQ £ ARTA LN 1IR3 AR IEON0T
(IRUOToY FUFLIIQ GOZ°C FUT 9I0Y PAXIA D00 9E) FANOH PARsTd BOT BE 01 411
THOLIVELNGD

LOVIIL0) SIS I SEod (5 [eHONEN

222



ampndiis HOLIYVHINOY

ad
I 1 - =1 | | R | | | ] | .31 Jrestic o7 LEFIL § [ENTEET| [ AT dnTens]
[ Qe T P PR 0 SR PR
] HRaa S {ning B T A L0 T TR RET ¥ttt TRt RN HE 3
iz AL [ i T [ 3Tl EMNTTT A T[T RS AT ¥
Tnd TIE | FEBIE T 6P T T IS T Il TIEGi T WL | oy xa T w00 ot 1 LT LT T
hET8E ] AT [EHEINY ] soyoRn | L | ] [T i 5 A0k
e e o S o I S TR T T e [ P I A o I T - AT PR BT A R T T e T
oAt 4, pand) sl 1802 AQ WIBlY
TR, T i = TR = [ = Lo = TR H = = LT = T ¥ LT = 3 T TROE
e penEroee My pesq gy
AR PR I
BE G 30 G 53 =1 = a1 3 I T [ o £ g R
1 I+ ey pemarmy v g0 05
- o - - = < = = = = RET T SRR
FIFIGARCLL =3 (B3 0% TS o o G FLIF i Tier TIPSR SR, =
(o e v w2 A
23] TETT TP TEl VTR ] W T THaHT T T e T L] PR, TAFTpoF SR ST SErEA,
14 pur s wesd 2svmng TR
T PG 005 AHUMIO KR T
SRR & Tl L WL T E74ny By T BT SRR SR,
sl e yeos et amveman TSN
e o 'y somira Ayt risemn
By EL|
] I
T = < < = v = = = = T o] L U T
- g = = = - - - - = T
! 73 s 6 ) ST AL06 RS oy LI5S =g Y
Sunmp pradie o e ukkipting
oA T FIEE T ) TIvY ) T CEN ST R TR T =)
T o TET B3 ED WoT LD £ oL T BT G SRRA ST e
Par Sumors sakadam Jor FTINAY
e B0 Y3 o LT FEE [ CET TR i F
md g un g 2k s@dedu
PRI R
] [
“ - - . = : : : - - —
E7EN ToFT C LA G ol TS T ) T TR
1SN U poma eI By My e
T B TR g Cog s T (0 G RIRE T
Az podeppiap par =oumpde ety
v e s Ard KSR
] b
N I e I T TR | RVRA | TR | SWpRL e |
ANGTITH ASNAAND VYT MLy [ TROCAR D S | TR e T VN BRIt RTTTE | STOARO RIGTTL | EauinLiowie | Lo | RAr ST b HO|
X [t ) TI6 TaWo [N U DO e’ S | T T T i
T ot adpny
I
ThRL]] ] o SFT "I o1 T T WL il 3 TG0 o1
B e el e e Rty B e |
TR B i Wavl A 3] el ERLEl WL o BT BRTT V[ o
300 Sausmsdes [retsoary e poseq ey
= = = = = g - < = = T 3
= = = = = = i - = T P TR S
T
- - < = = = = g d = R SR ST AT
TR AP 0]
I
e C O T = = = = = = g T TRET ik |
O g G - = - - - = - e I R DR L T T
“FE] ] T AT T S RAR T I TR TTIE TR L)
e T e i G gL R EY) Ties BKO'SE [ i K [T ) Lwir k]
g c TR P g CEL 0T LTI £y TR R SRS
dhoas engaamny y s Syt afhy
S SAREL WL T X W GYIF i TR T TAT
Aiapec pue inansdng 101 sy st
IR Sl Ao RIS LI i G EILES ST TEEoT T H [
TRV OIS | ] UG SO 3 I TERE LT T TS T ) ST
T g T ) TS 63 EED B ST BT THRLl TR T, TR TR P
|
o e ) B g TSI B FLH] HLF Eid K ES R - GRE F SR [ AR
= <o) 10) @8t sassvouSu )
Y 4EoL SETET F=y EE] 70 TS WL [P TRor oS TR =]
NG 1 poquop v Eman oy ety
ek ZED g Tow e SRRRED G ) =] 25TTET TR SRt AT
o s St ) SEy,
=5 5] i TR R G W oewar TR
= Sy dong g ol reBon
B LA G ToTRE TISE TELEL B3 T I B W Ry
= L e v g e Ksiuggaiesy
Elaial ™ TR TR e LT TEHRL 53 T 1k AL T Ty
 pengrnep e megairdngy a7 ey g
T © e ] TS g BEEd e G B3l T L3 TR -
b A Aty ) A
TG O oo i RO TRl Tl LY Eaiad LT GLC] TE LT TR
58 BV kiR J0T KpereSeny .
TS T R o e
| ] |
LUREY SRV P | SR | RN | erepen | T | SRR | e VG SR
NOHAR ASNTDEA HOVE NIVILIGT | Fo0oms 7 i DT Y T A L L P W e e T T Ui TR DL,
[aiy] IR el Sl Rl T T TImL T PTRy
Tevmluy; arnag AGLE P o7 Tor 7 KR | IRHee T e R T AT

MOLOVHINGD

223



*DBLL

IS YOLIVEINGD

HHL S0 NOILITHD:

TINCY (IR0 ¢ RNED S1UL[EAINDS SW ({I] SoIAmEs pasoduri 21 35

1 MALLVEIYN ¥V HOVILY B —-u“c’ru._-_ M) T GRLTTNG 5 1T Aokisd 31T [ SHOLIYEIND Wk 10 UQLIATNT PUr STt
D] PoSA DIt PF1A AINOY DFTIVAR ) AR (¥, 211,4) SN JO IQUING o] HBOIpUl SR05{d S5 JO 580 Sif1 U] AE]rs AJIJUONE 30 "5GA, AP0 SRESaAR DUt 54 A1 PIIOKS L ABIPSAE0 .
o7 Pooau SHONEod JU[SATIEA SUNT [N 10 TRLAG O1f] SuRsll FUDRION Jo OO,

e

TANNOSYES HONS ANV J1°ATINS AJLLSAT ISYIT «

ISUoTRULR(Q

|

<t << <€ <t 3 =3 £ ti T EE PRENUSY ST (SR B0
- Fu - R - F[ - 0 - v - F]0 - R[] - FEE - EA - sty IEIE AUS I
- E - g0 - g0 - [ - a - i)0 - g0 - $la - I - sl suolilzad No
- |0 - ER L) - g o - §0 - ] - £ j0 - ER D - gla - ¥ 0 - 30 FI[ERAUS 29LURE POIST
- 510 - o - s o - s - 3] - 50 - 5o - 5[0 = 3|0 - [ El AR SHR]
- EAE - ER - g o - %i0 - 0 - £10 = g1a - 3[a - Flo - 310 o PSR
YLD EA R M $(! T gl 1807 gil 1ToT g [i 961 ERE E I 6Ll FAN [l gt [ i el
L1 HE FlT EFEL 5|c LT 3T ROTT $it T 3T 1207 FiT EH T SOAT T HPRT B W ucysop

6586 5|1 HOUEH 1 [ 1 rege8 5 |1 aFeoR  § |1 FIT'rs Fi gt HB 0sT'LL 1 oon'sL Ft THIRURLY AALMLL
KT FlT L€l < LEET 4 R6TL L [( $ |« gccl F e 5| < [ k4 LR Y g, Ao eI
- 5 [0 - 0 = = 0 - a2 - $10 = 3 [0 [1] - [ - 3|0 JEHESRY 2ATERLEIDY |
- g [0 hd 0 - - a - a - $1¢ o 5|0 - [{] - g |¢ - o RS et ]
- §0 - 0 - - 1] - 2 - 3] - 5|0 - [1] - R - o e & S e LI V]
sl 3§ |7 6orenl s I 608 L)) § 00¢'001 i GLE LG 1 ErErG L 6RU16 ST 21168 1 0598 1 [ 1 ASRRUR]AL 13003
SERI S ]c TRLI B 6L AL $ B9l % 0891 T 7851 T T § < Wl T 8F Tl 5 |2 ANFI T SEEAndng paoy
[ % ERS1 $ 12 LEEL £ £5°PL T [ L L0PT T wrel i STET T |REl T (e T SApTEdsIc]
- 0 - s - £ 10 - EA - o . 0 - o - $|0 - [ - ] SIRURLT, [PUAL 21 PUIER]
fl [ 9661 s |IT <FEl ¥ iz 06rL 3 4 BETL 1T 1GE] ¥ [iT el 1z 267t E [ £ 4 it &1 S0REIAgy Shg|
IRERSTAL| (A1d) ON [CFmERiv ] [ALD N fUrlegete | (ELA) YN [OEESRRt | (A1) 0N POEESBEA| LHID 0N | AdvivSA0e s | (OLE) N [STEPSRe A | (TIA) oN | SE[Es/ue Ay | GLLA) ON RGN A | (FLD ON | tPIngoaman, | (I 1aT ON insELD or
TIOLTIOLS 03 CTOTILNL ST O TIHTITIL TTOTAWD 0 1TOT/TIL 1ZOTINED O3 (ITOCTIL 0ZOTAEY ™ 613T/T/L BIOTHEFS1UT/ /L RLOT/OE/LIDTIT/L LTITREMINAT L ST0TOL10-SLDTIIL ELNTMEITFI0EIL PoLag 0T
T 1m0 A oy R DI T AusA HODAG 33 Uondg £ T, mondg Z Tway, UoRAG =1 I3 GAId0 TR, TN T amsA W3, JINIIEN

DNIIIVIS AWIL TT4 - @ LIFIHXT

67y FISIAASE TIICI L, rasdxg [eOamep]

HOLIVELNOD

224



UL

Aeg

ammmuRls Y QLI VHINGD

ECEITIED

TINNOSERS HS ANY IT "ATT0E AJLLSNC ASVATL =

3

=

Tlinbay %11 A 50,

=JEIS PNS Y|

SoTiROd S

By SIS SUIoIs.)

P EHRD

EEEE L]

BEEEE

FELEE

=[=g

P G B B S

e ERCEEEE

'
A Y B ) O] 2 2

'
JICS B2 PR Pt T O P

'
L K e e I Y R B
FHEEECEEEREERE

TR KAPE/RUOMIRG0,

EEERE

,
wi|2al el | caluatinival vl a9 | wafea

TR |

'
wils4] ta| v wnlea| sa| v | walwa|2a] sl enf e

0
w50y v |44 | i el | oa ] e n | wa | e va | ea|

ToFInBnNG SUCTIIAI0)

E]

£67%1

[Tat

L%l

o981

RRCT T

ErELECTH

R EEEEEEE

A e ]

EIE

'
a5 lunfon) 55| va |va| va a5 o | us 5528 wafaa) 45
B E EEEEEEBEEEEEED

ekl

N EEEEECG EEEEEEEED

E3
]
K
$
g
3
§
5
- E
El
£
§
3
s
¥
g
¥

[

B EHE EBEEEEEEEEEEER

|l

68l

'
o3| 3| 68| 93| )23 |49 ea 1o 50 || A 4a | a| ea | ) <)

D EEEEER

oFEl

BERECEEEEEEEEEEE B

orgl

BEEEEEEEECEEEEEEBE

Tl

- 0
A £

SIOIEPA0) FIE

o M ST

FTUT/0EY N ETOT/TAL

paniegadan [ (31D 0N
SZOZAEY ™ TTOZ/ L

[avirsAdrm| (1LY on
TTOT/NESD O TTOZT/TIL

eS| (LD ON

AowtveAaei| (214) 0N

AANRSAENAL | (4.14) ON

[EreespEe A | (dLak o

ArEsETg, | a1 ON

AIR[RSoRT AL | (A1) 0N

SAvESPTeM | (Z 14V oN

EEIFEDS

1TOT/0ESD M NTOTILIL

DTOTMNE!D 9k GEOE/ENL

1 DZ/OLFORINZ/1/L

SLOTDE/LIOTTIL

LIDTAOSODIOLTIL

SLYTOE/-EINTIL

STOTAL/SFHTAZITIL

PULag JaEancg

| £ 3we unkdg

9 Imax Gy

g Jesx nondg

TArax nondn

€ A=0x HoHlg

T sy tolldoy

TaNIL

ZImg

T IE5X

IWI Jannieyy

ONIIVISIWIL LdVd = d LISIHX3

TonuIndan,y seofATag FINDII ], MEeldL] IREADEN]

HOLIVAINGD

225



T a8ed
e — ssauB0sg e Ajuo-uonelng S35 {PUIAIXT
# aulpeag JSEL |BnUE Alewiwing 12efold
r Ajuo-ysiug AIBWIWLING BAIR2RUY[ Aewiwing mmm.aww\_wmwﬂwmﬁ.wwm
| Ajuo-prels ) JUCISTIW IAIIEBL| » 3U0IsIIAl 10} UB|4 UOEZHIGO 133[01d
ABwwng |enueip ysel aAloRY| IRALELLLLLEER L y|dg
dnjjoy Aewwng |enuel) & US| |BUISINT oA ey ysel
PT/ST/@UOIN  PT/ST/LanL peIUO) T 0T
v1/91/8 14 ¥1I/T1/8 UoN sjuRquInoUl Jeg 3sal Baug 8T'T 6T
L3 PT/PT/BUNS  ¥I/ET/BIES SIeH pue s3e| 3WeN ‘sulojun |NQUISIA LTT | 8T
| ¥T/T/6 UOW $T/TT/8 UG S3[14 jEIMRpRI) JaAllQ dn-135 oT'T 1
i e vr/og/genL  ¥T/EZ/g3eS 53l Buluiel ) Fedwen ST°T 9T
PT/TT/8 14 ¥T/TT/8 UON Suiues| woosssey yI'T T
g VI/IT/3¥ON  PT/6/81ES plg uonesea 15ad £1°T yT ©
Era YI/IT/UON  1T/6/818S pauwspgisod zvr | st | CON
vI/8/8 143 ¥1/v/8 UOW pig uny 218343 TI'T 4} N
| s | ¥T/ST/8 143 ¥1/T1/8 UOWN A]102.4007 uousuel] SHBUIY 93A0|dWT aLNg AUNsUT OT'T 1L
™1 yI/Ce/8 44 ¥T/81/8 UOIA SpJodRYy BRIl Jo JBjsuRIL 6T | OT
yi/zi/genL  vT/Z/gNYL suaa.as 8ndq 73 s1E0isAud 8T B
—hmm— VT/T/3 14 ¥1/8T/L UON am) [eac7 dn-195 £°T 8
| pT/8/2 14 vL/9/8 PEMm wesd014 8310N j00d AWQ dn-1es 9T L
YI/LT/8uns $T/EL/8 Pom padinbai | saanejusssidey volun yum Sunasiy dn-ies 5T g
vI/¥T/2 nyL +1/6/8 185 yoogpuey asAo(dwg/Bunse | Snig/sSunesiy UoREIUSHD ¥'T g
vI/8/8 14 ¥I/¥/8 UOW $5330.4 co_u..mum_n_n_q 1 ¥
CT i ™1 PI/TE/BUNS  YT/9/8 PO asnoy uadg Sumojol Z'T £
g ¥T/5/88nL  +T/¥/8 UoN uoISSas YD /35n0Y uadQ BuliH $eahoidwiz Bunsixg T'T z
o e eSS S vI/T/6 ol vI/Z/813eS sasAojdwa Bunspa T, T
Fany UNS BNy TeS T BV T T8y ML T PSA IZ 10T SNLE 1N YO [310f Uns EELE e SLUEN SEL ai




Z a8ed

e ————— ssalBoid e e Ajuo-uopesng Dyse] jeutsg
+ aulpeaq ¥SE] [BnUBA Alzunung joefoly
r AJO-USIUL e oo oo™y AZRWILING 3ARRY| Aewing mmuhnww\_wmw_w”“waﬁ.ﬂwmm
| Ajuo-yels o BUOISI[IN BAIRIEL] & auoIsa|IAl 104 Ue|d UCIEZIIGON 393[01d
[ — Azuiung [enuely T yse] AnIRU| e ds
& JUOISAIN [BUIDIXT ysel
vI/1E/8Uns  YI/ST/L 8Nl senidEd ¥ O
RN =i T YI/TE R uUng ¥I/1/8 113 HRIS Yuim Bueen [ewl TTE | 6E
YI/8/8 14 ¥1/9/8 Pam Aayjod suoue|sy BIPIA YLIDA IO OT'E 8€
£l ¥T/22/8 U4 ¥1/81/8 UoIN (sAepsaupapn UO JeXI JaGUIRLD) sassauisng (B30T YIM 193Nl 6°E £
B i | yI/6T/83anL FI/ET/8 Pami uejd diysiauied pue wuawadesus Auunwuo] ssnasid '€ gg
i YT/2e/3 14 ¥1/81/8 UON ADIjOd PUned pUe 1507 MBIASY '€ cg
FT/8T/L 4 PT/8T/L 1A 10003040 1R dLIOD Y1dIDA USLIND MBIADY §'E wE
YI/8T/8 UOW +T/TT/8 UoiN 10303014 1PBIUCD V1dIDA 4019420 58 | ££
vI/8/2 141 YL/B/2 UOW (BU:0BU0} SUISIL0D JUBLIND INOYE VLIAIDA YUM H[EL t'E z¢e
ET3 ¥T/ST/8 14 pI/Ti/8snL [02030.d SUIfaNS MBIADY £'E 1€
i PT/IE/L UL ¥I/8T/L Vo paanbal Se SR V14IDA UM 199N T°E 0g
o YI/0E/L PR PT/OE/L PBM Le1G V1dIDA Yam SEURSSW LoRIsUR USIiGeIST T'E | 6T
+I/1E/8 Uns ¥1/8T/L UoIN s3uRaaIA UoIHSURIL £ 8T
¥I/TT/8 14 PI/ET/8 UON S35UFDN IUBWIIOD J0 JAGUWRYD UIRGO £ iz
YE/ST/8 14 HT/TT/8 UON {s1n7 uES % BUINA) S5US3(T ssaLIsng UIeIg0 9'g 9z
vT/91/83RS FL/eI/gand SS1E31I1RD SIUBINSU| UIBAGQ PUR BPIADY] §'T vl
L yI/sT/L 104 YT/ET/L PR Y1d{JA WO.d 1DEIUCD PBUSIS [BUL VIR0 T'T ¥Z
[ PT/TZ/L9NL ¥I/TT/L o 1e13UeT [BUL SIS pUE MBINBY €7 €7
g | ¥1/9T/L PR PT/FT/L UOIN MBIASY 10J 0|0 SWIOH O} PBAUOD PUBS Z'T 77
o YL/YE/L UOIN PT/PT/L UOW PIRLUOD BPIAGIE 01 YIdIDA T'Z 24
[ ey NS¢ BNy 85T 8y U | Bny NOLE M PSA L (0T SNLT INfUOW |9 0T Uns Ysiuld HEY SUIEN 5B L al

227



¢ o5ed

e = SsaUBOlg  mrmmmmere—— Ajuo-uoneing $yse] [Buiaixd
* aujjpeag MSBI [ENUBA Arwing pafoid
C AUO-ystUid ¢ . e Azewawing sadeU| Alewiwing mmmaﬁh\_wmwwwu_\\“.ﬂwww
4 Aluo-HEs o BUOISI| Al SAIIDERY) & EHOLEN 07 UBld UOIRZIGOIN $133]0g
Alewwing fenuen MSBLBARIBU|  rrrernromirniann yds
dnjjoy Adewwuns [enuepy & BUOISD|IA [BULRKT T ys52]
PT/T/6UON  PI/T/8Hd SDUBUSIUENARSIS S| 09
I | vI/8T/8 UON YI/ET/8 PEM saJ1| 1SEMM 0} Q19D 6TF | 6S
C3 PT/TE/UNS  ¥T/0E/838S 11504 [e8a] 99A0)dwi3 1504 8T°Y 85
3 PT/IE/8UNS  $T/0E/8 168 SaUNPI00Jd IUDPIIU| $NOLIAS S5910xX7 |eUCHEN 31504 LTV 5
£a PI/IE/BUNS  ¥T/0E/838S a|npauas Suneain A1ajes AjyIuc 1504 §TV 5
m FI/TE/8UNS  ¥1/0E/318S pJeog A19jes [|=isU| STV | §S
[ | PI/IE/BUNS  PT/0E/8 1S sHey) uonenseng AJusBiauil 150d vIY ¥s
=l ¥I/8/8d  ¥E/S/gSnl ml3WeD |euBiC Iseydngd €Ty £5
vE/BL/BONL  $T/8/8 1 (PepaU 41) PRJBPIQ SBUIRIN BUIPUSA 217 [43
PI/Z2/81d  ¥T/QT/8UAS wjoog sasw dnes I | TS
¥1/6/838S  FI/E/EUNS 807 Jonue) Asy Aujioed sieaud/melasy 0Ty 05
g | ¥I/FfauolN  ¥T/Z/816S sasuadxg |euden Jo) 5,437 aredeld g% 67
o3 YL/PE/8 NUL FT/TT/8 UDIN UEld Su)[Bnd MOIADY /YSORIST B P 2p
[ ags | ¥I/L/3NUL $T/¥/8 UOIN SIOPUSA UBLIMD || YUMHIEL LY | b
o vT/6/8 185 v1/6/8 188 Ue|d AJUNDES AN|DRI MBINSY 97 | O
PI/8T/L 14 YT/ST/L 3nL sjcol pue Juswdinbs paumo y1didA Pedsui Sy Sy
¥I/L1/8 Uns +T/TT/8 Uoiy sway| Jiedad Aljioeq Buinsixa/uado aA10s31 01 ¥1dIDA YHM JIOM 7' Pars
s YL/L/B UL BT/9/8 Pam YLdIJA Yum 2oueidease puz ySnoay-|em e 1onpuod £y £
| mgin | YT/OE/L PO PT/8Z/Z VO All[I9e V1d[IA 03 3A0|N 218 |I9BH OF VIdIDA UM NI0M T 4%
i P1/82/L VO FT/ET/L PIM aoeds som Alesodws] &n238 T'y 154
F3fY UNS 7 8Ny 185 [T 2ny Od [ any :_._._,m_:;m\smm A SAL [Rr UOW g [0f Uns qsui] VeS| BLIEN H5E ] al

228



7 28egd

e 5534304 Ajuo-uoneing SHSE] |Budalxg
*£ Iujpesq sl [enuea| Alewung 19afoid
c Ajuo-ysiutg AJEWILNG BAIDEL] Atewiuns vT/12/2 UOIA -31eQ
ssa1dx3 |EUOLIEN/V1dIDA
3 Ajuo-pels BLOISIYIN BARIRY L g auoys={IN 10} uB|d UOIRZIIGO H33cld
ENEEDW_WHJCN_\/_ e v_mm.._:m:a._u.umc_ Prrrndeta it Eniren u.__n_m
dnjjoy Adewiung |Bnuela) & UOISIIA] [RUIDIXT okl yse,
_
¥1/8/8 144 ¥1/¥/8UCIN $3UN022Y JopuaA dn 39S 6T°S 6L
i s ¥I/ST/guo  vT/Zz/Rd 3jNPaYas |INd Ueld 8T'S 8/
¥T/0E/g18S  ¥I/ST/8 A $,1IAld Y{IBJ] 01 IBMIOS BIUBUBIUIEN Q3U] 218 283N JBIUT LT'S LE
i YI/9T/2365  PT/PT/8 NYL S3INPII0I4 [[B3 PECY ULIGUOD/M3IASY §T'S 9z
¥1/Tz/8 M vT/8T/8 UoN SLII0J3 SauBUBIUIRIA | JUL/ISPIO ST'S =74
i YI//T/8UnS  $T/9T/81ES S2INP3J0U4 |Nd SS31dX3 [BUOREN U0 LEIS I2URLRIUIEIA UlRdL $T'S 174
YI/L2/8 papy $T/ST/8 UOIN 2oe|d u1s8o |9nd £T°S £/
] ¥1/02/8 PR T/8T/8 UoiN sa.npalold 8uyand szijeuld /MBSy TS (43
$T/TT/ U4 ¥T/TT/8 Uow sajld 3piyap dn-1as TT'S 1L
¥T/IT/8 Yo v1/8/8 144 sa|gewwel] Joj Jaulge) |210ads 12pI0 0T'S or
vI/6T/8=2nL  $T1/91/813eS S3UNPIV014 IUAIIS 10 IO Ajleq dojpasg &S 9
¥I/ST/8 134 #T/ZT/8°nL saunpadoid 2ujues|y shg g'5 89
¥T/4/8NYl  ¥T/¥/8 UOIN S,NIA UaLIND sey Aueduiod aouBnsu) unsul £°§ 19
o ¥1/0E/818S PT//Z/8 PAM say|ddng Bujuea) sng JspIg 9°S 99
vr/i/gent vE/8/8 14 Aoausaur 3pIysA JEpI0 §'6 59
$T/TE/8UNS $T/SZ/8 UOW 53|14 Jiedsy IPIYSA JO UOHSURLL ('S 19
PI/vT/guns  tI/cg/8 1S su01335dsuy| adiYap Jo uole|dwo] €5 £9
ca ¥I/Lz/Luns  v1/9g/L 1S uoidRdsU] BPIYBA TS 79
o YL/2/8NYL  ¥1/v/8 UoN DNPBYIS UORISURLL B[3IYBA 2Z)2uld T°§ 19
f BTy ar m_mm_:< P _“._” BAY m._“;mj_q :fr_m Nl PaMR ,WN nf w:._._” _:ﬁcoﬂzwm nrunsg SIulg tmum_ SLUEN HSEL ail

229



G 38ed
B T R n S52UB01d  repees— Auc-uoneang SysE) [BUI3IXT
b suipeag NSe] [BNUBA Apuauing uum.ﬂog_&
C AJuo-ysiug AIBUILING BARDEW]| ABLUWING mmm.am\_wmw_wwuﬁ.ﬁu_ww
| Aluc-uels - UOISIIN BADRY| & auoIsaIN 103 URjd UCHEZI|IGOA 398[01d
Aewiwing |enue ASB| BATIDBU|  frrereirinron uds
dnjjoy AJeaing jenueiy @ BUOISIIIA [BUL2IXT ysel
yI/8/81d  ¥L/S/88NL sashoidw J0j Ue|d 2YUSG YIERH YSIgRIsT 2'9 86
YE/TT/23nL  ¥T/p/8 Uon suopedddy JuswAc|dw3 ssadold T°g /5
¥1/1/6 Ui ¥1/1/8 14 $80INnosvy UBWInH 9l 95
¥1/11/8 UoOW $1/8/8 14 SJPMYOS ATUBUIIUIEN |[BISU] 5E°G 56
yI/IE/8UnS  ¥L/0E/838S SBIYBA INUSAY LO # 1LOASN I[EIsU] ¥E'S 6
¥I/ST/8U4  vT/L/8 Ul St B|dWES IO JPI0 EE'S | £6
PpT/ET/21RS  PT/VL/8 NUL B[IIYSA SNUSAIY-UON J0) SI IUBPIIDY 13P30 ZE'S 76
¥I/CT/eanL  pI/6/81ES SS|21USA SNUDADY IO} JBGUNN #7V J8pi0 TE'S 16
YT/ET/R PeM ¥T/TT/8 UON s[ona7 SUyels souBLBIUIRIN BZjeUld 0E'S 06
¥1/3/8 M4  ¥T/P/8 Uo SDI0 BUWOH 01 5,UIA LM 1SIT 199[4 JWgns 6¢°S 58
YI/ez/8 U3 ¥I/8T/8 VoW 30140 SUIOH 01 35711255y WWANS 8TS | 88
yT/sT/guolN  PT/€Z/818S $321YBA SNUIATY UON 10y sAay a1eds /TS (8
¥i/9z/8enl  vI/vT/gung sasng anuaney 4oy sAs) 2ieds 9TS | 98
VE/IE/RUNS  $T/0E/818S s3shg ||B UD 5101933y ‘S1aysindunxg 34 §2°S ] 5g
9 V1/02/8 PRM Y1/0T/8 PAM {papaau ) SI0P3YaY /SISySINBUIXT 2114 J2pI0 VTS | v
¥I/0E/818S  $I/0E/B3ES sng AJIAZ Lo $pJED SaueInsul/suocnensiSey £7°% £8
PL/IE/gUNS  ¥I/0E/81ES sng AJaA3 UC S)y JUSPIDY TT'S 78
- vi/E2/818S  YT/ET/318S SI JUBPLDY BPIYSA JIPIO TT'S 18
(v1diDA Ag
(e vi/e/e lid  PI/¥/8 UCA palinbaz [eacsdde-sad) uswdmby pue sjoo doys 13pi0 0T'S fo}:]
Ty 3] B AULE [T PSR TE If SN LE [T WO |9 10F U5 ST VER SWEN 5EL di

230



9 28ed

= ot SSIUBOLG e AJuo-uoneing SHSEL [RUL3IXT
o+ aulpeag AsE] [EnUEA >._mrcc._:m uuwmoha
C Ajuo-ysiulg e Y AJRWIWING BAN2BU] Alewiung mmmhn_H\_.hMMwM_“_\\u_q“«_Mm
3 Aluo-uels o AUOISBYIA BAIISEL *» 2U0153|IN 10y UE|g LUORBZLION 19301
Alewiung [enuepy NSEL BAITIBU|  rrrnieriveaiicng uds
dnjjoy Arewsung |enuep & AUOISINA [BUIDIXT ysel
e ¥T/LZ/8 POIM PT/ST/8 UOW , ssanpasold Bulig memey €4 | 8TT
YI/TT/8enL  v1/TT/89nL syodad [|e Joy sayep anp ssnasi@ 7L | LTT
yT/FT/8 0L VI/ET/3 PIM suoday Y1dIDA pallnbay ysiqesy T2 | 9TT
e ¥1/0Z/8 PO VT/TT/8 oW Supioday | st
e vI/IE/8UNS  ¥1/6T/8 1A S2UNPaICId dN-40eg 1531 7199 PIT
v1/82/8 NUL ¥1/52/8 UoiN 33B|d U] $|09010.d dN-yoeg PIERURIS BINSUT TT°9'9 £TT
FT/ST/8 U4 TT/IT/8 UOIN 1Je35 |30 404 |lew-3 dn-395 0T'9'9 [44)
¥1/9T/818S HT/TT/8 UCN wesgold [oAed dn 185 69 11T
¥1/9/8 PPM ¥T/#/8 UoIN aaneuasaadyy SNGIXeN [B207 1°RIU0D §'9°'8 OTT
e ¥1/02/8 PeM ¥T/8T/8 UON {pepaau se) je1s 4oy Suiulzl | SNEIXIN Ysi|GeIS £'99 60T
PT/ST/ 14 $T/TT/8 9Nl MBIASY 4BMYOS SNGIXEN 9°9°9 20T
i PI/TE/8UNs  ¥T/0E/8 168 [1BY B3I0A 5INOH JaYy dn-195 S°9°9 L0T
¥1/TT/8°anL v1/6/8 1S AjADayT Supiopy 2Je siaindwo) aunsul $9°9 90T
vi/og/eenl  vI/€T/21eS Ajssdosd Supjiop s) WasAS BUGUd YLdIDA WHIUOD £79°9 S0T
vI/8/8 144 vI/v/8 UON sauoyd 1133 J9RIC 799 70T
FI/9/8 P I/¥/8 UOIN paJnbay se juswdinb3 20140 pue s181NdWo3 JOPIO 199 0T
PI/T/6UON  PI/T/8 14 noge | zot
i PI/ST/RUCIN  #T/9T/8 385 pa1sod 1577 AJUOIUSS 59 10T
e vT/6T/8 144 ¥1/5T/8 Uo He1S uoluN UoN JuBw|oaul (3} Tov 9 | 00T
; ¥I/1E/8Uns  #1/87/8 NYL pailels 207 00€ YHSO €9 66
[BRy UNS g 5Ny 385 [T 2ny I [ 3Ny QLR A1 PO [Z [N SNLT N[ USAl {3 {ir uns ] Telg] SLIEN ASeL al

231



£ 98ed

—————rey ssUB0dd  rreheeememe—ie Ajuo-uoneing $Hse| [BUIIIXT
£ auypeaq NsE] JBnUBA Arwiwing 12afolg
C Ajuo-ysiuiS AIBLIWINS 3AIT0RU| Azewuns mmwﬁm\_wmmu““wﬁ_”ww
o Aluo-nels A AUOISB|IN aAIRERU| *> ETSECHINT 40} uejd vopeziigo 38foud
Aseliwinsg enuelp yseL AAIeU| yds
dnjjoy Alewiwng [enuely & BUOISB[IIA |BUI3IXT ysel
vT/LZ/8 P YT/8T/8 UOW $314 [3UUOSISg PdWo) 86 | BEL
e ri/1e/8uUns  $T/0E/838S ey uonezuediQlsod L6 | LET
+I/ET/8 Pemy #T/TT/8 .co_z 23URINSU[ JO SIEDYINIED UONRSUSdWo) § 43340/ J3PI0 96 :ImWHl
i vI/9/8 PP ¥T/¥/8 UOW Supsa Joyooly pue Bniq / [eaisAud Joy 2D dN 1RSI §°6 | SET
= PI/IE/RUNS  ¥T/0E/81ES uSWIReIS UOISSIN I5Cd ¥'6 | PET
! YI/TE/gUNS  ¥T/0£/838S s12150d (e85 150d €6 | €51
Rl YE/ST/8 M4 PI/TT/S UOIN 1UBLUZIEIS UDISSIN 8 SI9150d [efo ueIq0) 76 | ZE1T
— ¥YI/ET/8 PPM ¥T/T1/8 UOW s3|npayds Sugels azijeuld 76 | TET
vI/I/6UON  PI/T/81d uonenswpy 6 0€T
g vI/TE/8ung  #T/08/81eS SINPES00I JUBPIOIY ssaldX] jeuoneN uo paued] Jayoledsig QT'8 57T
® ¥T/0€/818S  ¥T/0E/8 168 $81504 S2UNPIV0I4 USRIV 58 871
” ¥1/05/238S  HI/0E/83ES s3Inpanold Yoiedsiq 1sod 88 /7T
i ¥I/ve/auns  ¥T/ET/81eS SULIOA 2IUBPUSTIY JIAA /8 971
i yT/ET/RI8S  ¥I/ZT/81d saanpadoid sso[y/usdg mamay 98 | STT
il ¥T/0e/818S  PT/0E/8138ES pJEOg UMO(Q,AUSWUSIssY sng Alled S8 7T
¥I/S1/8 144 $T/1T/8 UOIN YIAG 101 52INpadCId MAINSY +'8 €71
i ¥I/8/8 44 ¥1/9/8 pam sa|npayas yoledsig udissy/dopsnsag €8 | ZZT
YT/¥Z/8 Uns  vI/LT/] Uung |esodoud ul paulzng se BuluiRy] 83lAaS JBW0ISNT 7°8 17T
R ¥I/LT/8uns  pT/9T/8 188 sasyedsiq Mau Jo) uoissas Sululel] T8 07T
e P TS RR e ¥T/Te/g ung YT/E/81d ysedsia g} BIT
ﬁm:,.\ i mwmzq 1BST3NY _.#;mz_q AUTT D PO ﬂm =N} N UuowW _m AT Ung zm_c_u__ LiEls SUIEN xmm.w_ al

232



g 9824

T —— ss218044 e e Ajuo-uoneang sYse] |ButaIx]
+* Ui peag Jse] jenueln Aewauing 1sfosd
C AUC-YSILlY - ~ AIBWILLNS BARIRU] Asewawing ¥T/TE/L VO 9380
- 4 3 ssatdx3 |2UOREN/Y LdIDA
| Auo-peis o~ BU0YS3|IA BAIIDEY| * BUOISIIA 10} UB] UON2ZI|IGOA 1193[0ud
AdeWIING [BRUBA - ¢ YSEL 9AI30RY) Tireiaen ds
dnjoy Aewiwng [enuey & BUOLSI A |BUIaDG ysel
e | ¥I/9T/838S ¥I/ET/8 P HEIS (8207 Ym 198png Bunessdo meady £'TT | LST
PI/L1/8 UNS $T/ET/8 PeM sa1eq jjoAed/saunpano.d jlodAed Usiqeisa Z'TT 95T
i (i s e | PI/TE/8UnSs  F1/¥/8 UOIA sasuadx3 dn-pels ¥eedl T°IT SST
yI/i/6UoiN YL /T/8Ud asueulj pue Sugadpng IT| #S1
uswdinby
YT/0E/838S  PT/9Z/33NL  SUCHEDJUNILICY [IYBA/S [PIXEN/SAUI S3U0Yd 322D SWSISAS TT'0T | €51
vI/8/8 4 VI/L/8NyL saanpaaoud Asuadiaws meneY OT'0T | €ST
PT/ET/8 PAM FI/ET/8 PIM Y14IDA WOJ) S9p07) olpey URlqO 60T 15T
PI/I/6 UoW  $T/TE/8 UNg Aojod 1u10d 2IUBPUSIIE SSNISIP PUEB MEINSY 0T 05T
YI/LT/8uns  YL/9T/83ES |ENUEL 9N5S] 77 SeANpadcsd yiedsip meaey /0T s
vi/8/814d  ¥I/¥/8 UoN UOIIEDQ] JIRITUOD JO§ PEDLISIIS] PUEB SPIED SSRUISNG J8piQ S 0T T
wlfee/g 4 vI/6T1/8 3Nl $500Q YIAQ 43p20 SOT | /%1
YL/IT/BUON  PL/¥/8 YO S3|NPEYIS HIOM SSANQ Ysl|geisa/mainay 10T 9¥1
PI/TT/8UON  PT/L/8 ML 98RLIOYS JBALIQ YysiqeisT E0T §771
¥L/TT/8 14 PI/8T/8 Yo s1a8uassey SpaBN |BIDSAS 10) 53UI04 Jaysued] Ay sulwieiag T 0L PrL
PT/9T/818S  ¥I/ZT/8°NL sainpanolq 28essay Aases Allegd manay T'0T €71
W— ¥1/1c/g uns ¥T/T/8 14 suoperdo o] 7vT
o YI/8/8 14 ¥I/¥/8 UOIN sa||ddng 32140 BPIC TT'6 THT
i yT/T/8UNS  $T/9T/81ES vondussag qof Rytiedsia 2InguIsIq 0T'6 orT
¥L/L1/8uns  vI/9T/81ES sdng peoy pue sayzzeds)q 104 Suuiep uodsng 9|(EUOSESY 6'6 6ET
ﬂ%&c mwm:qamm ﬁ._” un<_._“:m:< :r_._.w_::um\s je T enL o UCIA S (R UNS SIOH] tﬁmm, SWBN HSE || dl

233



G 98ed

A e ———— SSOIF0I] s Auo-uoieang SYSE] |2UI2IXT
+ auypeag JSEL [RNUEA Alewnuns osfosg
c Ajuo-usiuig AJRWILUNG 3AIDEU] Arwiuing v1/TZ/L uoly 2312g
SS310X] [EUOREN/V1dIDA
1 Auo-peis o SUOISIIA SALRSRU[ L g 3U01sIN 10} UB|d uoREZIIgE :398[0ld
AlewsLung (Bnusiy JSB] IAIIBU| T u:nm
dnjjoy Adeunung |BnUE & AUOISIA |BUIRIX] Nse|
(i FI/ET/89nL  v1/6/818S Bujuled | LS S0} SIPIPA Ajnuspr TET | £9T
£-d ¥I/9/8PaM  tT/k/8 UOIN pa.inbay se 9|Npayas ALY pue Sujulel] jind dofeAsg T'ET 991
vifer/ganl vi/8/814d sl £T| 59T
¥I/FZ/8UNS  $T/OT/8UNS Sujules] J9ALQ MIN £ZT 29T
rr/8/8td  ¥T/v/g uon SISIURD JUBLIIE|J GOf [BI0] YUM 123N 72T £91
[a| vi/efguns  pI/E/RUNS sucIysod uadQ Joy SPY UNY T'ZT 70T
yI/ST/8 ucin vI/1/8 144 Suynuisey T 191
| | PT/ST/8 14 +T/ET/8 PoM [[0lAeq 01U saRAcdws s8ul 9'TT 091
PT/zZ/8 114 YE/BT/8 UOW pRlapI(/PauUsIS WIoH UBIPOISND UsE) ABad 1T 6ST
e ¥T/Tz/8 144 ¥I/81/8 VO paAIRIRY S9IBIYHS] BJURINSU| WIUOD {TT 8sT
Fany Emﬂm:<~mmﬂ By [ 8NV RULEINT e [ INf SRLL AT UGTA T8 TR uns FSIE] tﬁmﬁ SUIBN MSE]) al

234



‘pasnjdins pue 1es)y AsusBunuas ojur peoeld ag oL
Ao ngeagH ayeT WolL PAUIBI]o 90 0L

Gii

¥
9g'S09ELS 0/ 116 000'Le £8669MI98NI0STVZNT As|joiL Mewadg 28ulpyBisad NDROLD | ZE/ERLA
z 9eG09'cLS a0/1/6 000°LE 29B6IMDOANI0TYZNF Azjjoll Aepeds saulpyBisiy ADLQ/D | cefevlA
. 9E°C09'ELS 90/1/6 00018 S8E69MO9IAB0EYZNY Asijo1] Ayepads seupyBisig ADQYID | LEFLA
b 0O'666'7S ¥LOZ0LE 05€'9¢ | £659LONLL0TIZAALT 62 Jora 10A|3 MBN LBB L NO.L9/D |OLYE/EELA
9t 00" 6B67S SLOT/LLZL 0GE'9E | SLLLLONALOTIZAAAL 62 Jora 1BA|d maN BB ND9SLD |DLIG/ILELA
al 00'666'7$ £L02/1/6 05€'0e | 9LLLLONASOTIRQALL 68 H40va 19A|4 MON /6BL NOSG/D | B60L6/9ELA
€ 00'000'061% 0L0Z2IZ 000'02 | €6.¢ltd8r6LNSIEDL ze yodssed ON- 00550 AMey 0102 MOTHOD ZELA
€ 00°000'061% 0LOZEIZ 000'9z | 186Flbd816LNSrASL ze podssed DNI 00560 Areun 0102 MOEF0D LELA
z 000000618 oLoeee 000'9Z | 08000¥IB06LASLEDL ze uodssed QN3 00550 AMBUD 0LOT HOFPOD 0E1A
z 00°000'061% 0L0zZ/a/E 00092 | LOS0DAJBXBLAS rEDL ze uodssed ONI 005SD AMaUD Q102 MEEP0D 6TLA
z 00°FS2' 181 0L0Z/62/e 000'0Z | [ZELLFdBLELASIED] 3 uodssed NS 0QS6D AU 0L02 MOEF0D 8TLA
g 0C°000'06L% 0L0Z/VZIT 0009z | 2807 Lr48r6LNAreDl 3 podssed ON3 00560 AMeUD 0102 MO0599 LZLA
> 00°000'061$ 010Z/2IT oca‘ez | 92ERLPdeZELNSrast zg podssed DNI D0SGD AveyD 0102 M95599D 9ZLA
g 00°000'061% 0L0zZvele 0C0'9z | 608k LP-gFELNSrant e podssed DNI 00850 AveyD QLoZ MSEHFD SZLA
g 0000006 1% 0L0Z/¥eie 000°0Z | 900FLFI8GELNSrEDL 43 Hodssed DNI 0085D AreUD 0L0Z MO/FPD YZLA
g 004829218 100Z/9f OGO'9Z | Z€LLGADLEMEDYYZNP ¥E il LSw/ssan DNZMeuRYBield 002 MNOGHFD 80LA
9 00056'F0 1S 00Z/8IZ 1 0LG'6E | SZ2FICOTEBIVINIENL € 11 28pd Z3 [EUOREN OPRIOPIT E00Z | MDLPPD Q0 LA
9 DO0SB'YOLS a00g/0Z/ 1 L 016°6T | OFZHR0DTXSDVINGN E) | Jspiey 73 [euCRBN onRIopT £00Z | MDEVFD ZOLA
9 00" 28L'SZ1S 9002/12/3 00092 | ZLPZOXDOLMEDIVYZNY e il Ls/ssan ONZeuipyBRly 9002 MNOPD LOLA
g 00°98L'SZLS Q00Z/SEIL 0009Z | 7LPZeXD0MEIVYZIT ¥E i LSW/ssan oNzMeuiyBed 900 HOOFFD 980A
9 00°281'621% 900Z/Se/L 00092 [ €LreexDesmanvvzny e il LSW/esan ONI/reulyBrEIg 9002 ND0S.D GB0A
¥l 00°656'7% G6BL Wonul | Zeess3IX9T0EINGHL £ %on.] soimeg doys 0GZd plod 6651 iovire |[lzes) ovLA
zL 00°656'F% 1002 Horu], §5Z15831673024N1dL 3 yonil dn oid 0524 Pios L00Z 1919 [(e0) 6ELA
o 00°gEr'91S £L0ZILLIL 1BD 9EE65L1AXTIESAYLL ¥ J00( { SN0 S04 piod £1OZ Wogsso |(578) SELA
0 00°8EP'9LS ZL02LLL EE) £25€5170123EdAYL ¥ 100(] ¥ $N30- snvog plod £L0Z Wo9ssS |{F28) PELA
0 008EF'9LS FATrA N ieD YZEEGL10e23EdAYd L P 1000 ¢ snoo4 SM00-5 P10 E€LOZ WOSESD ({8Z8) EELA
z 00'069'Gr$ 0L0ZIPIZ 0080l | ZoZiivavxX4ea3adt z+9 2GRy ONJ 05e3 plod 0L0E MOPENS £z1a
4 00°069°6+$ 0L0ZH /2 0080l | LoZLLvaveldeasadl +9 al[cIsy DN 05€3 paod QLOZ MNHEGOD zeid
£ 00°069'5%% oLoziseiL 008°0L | eceglisasiidezsadl z+9 ajjoiey ONI 0SE3 paod OLOZ MOGECD. 12La
£ 00°956'E5% 0LOZIGT L 0080l | £6LLIvaYX14E33AAL z+8 aleIdY NI 0Ge3 piod OLOZ MOBLHD g:10
£ 00°956'cS$ 0L0Z/82/1 008’0l | s8LIIvaviTde3=adlL 7+8 ajljcidy ONI 0ge3 piod 0LOT HOZEOD 4110
£ 00°956'€6% oLoZIse/ L 008°0F | 9BLLlv¥ave1de33a4dl +9 SjioieY ONT 0SE3 paod 00T HOEEND gi1d
¥ 0O'GRY'LFS B00Z/BLIE 08F'S | 87L1LEGROMELACEDL a uBAIBjUT UnRIG aumguap ANSUD 8002 MOOF0D £110
¥ 00°689°L¥g 600Z/L2/L 0B8PS | ZE411ECROMELACEDL 9 urBUTg UNn2ig sinuap AnBUD 8002 HOLFOD ziia
S 00589 L¥S 800Z/0Z/E 08F's | 8G56ELCBIMELACEDL g uBALSWY ONI aurquap ArdU) B00T MOLEHD iL1a
aby anfep 3iva HMAD HIGWNAN NIA deg ssey 13a0W MY #31y1d | # sng
JJIAMIS NI N

€1°GC79 1517 193[d 655# BWNA

235



BORET

e ——— e ——

THING DN LY 4340 3L 2T D LIIIHXI

FE6E BEE TE8'E DEL'E 55 0T [ OLEE f scgr | SaoRes o) SURA Suadg ST
410 1Z6F IR’y el 159 L [ DLEY BT [ | [ ] snoareyisili RAodUR
snrdLT MOXURIISTY|
= = 0 = - B - - - - UCHRRSIEWPY T8I0 wemdmba g
- A T = = - T - - g ITTEALRIT IPRAA Wnd b SSUEEMUEI
Py = T - - - P = - - suoiresde) APRIUSA| (anuaADs-Uo) SOIOIURA
naprardn (i Amaan] jaHudmb |
E5Y 10511 0 opLOt £E¢01 BEL0I SER'S S56 [53 oS FITELARATIN SPHTAUON sdogE
- - - - - - - k - - - Hug-ﬂuﬂmﬁz QPEIA
[asese »3508T Z6L'ELT SE5IT 95L'95% $LT'60T L10'Er T R96'LT ¥¢1'322 (e AWM IPTRA s
ruxizy adnedelolcly]
TREHEA | PI%id | SWEDTA | pawid | otwA | pemd | sigepes §pexld | SIG6SEA | ool | simiea | _eoxnis | olvees | pama [maensA | PemM | lermA | TR uqriea | PoxI TowF0g weedxy
TEOTIoS G ETOTL | £202/0u9 ) TIOUTAL | Tehz/00s & THUL | TR0TLiy o 0Z0Y UL | Ocopiers Bl ETOLTAL | 6102/009-Si0T/TIL LI0TL | LTeZAEHDLTE § SIWUOSYSI0UUL | STOAM+I0TUL PopIad THEI 1AL
[ ZiBoxuopdp | 99X Raydo AT ) yaeX HoRd0 | LAESA BORIO ZJEa% BoRd0 Y JEa% BoRdO £I0R IR, [ LT
T adung y3png
] H
[l ZLt Gl 9z UL I 1971 [l [ 0001 [T T ] ~HoecoEumun g
IFEF1 090°F1 +8L41 ISl [l [T PEXE serzl GrELe 000l TeLERSI IRy [B19630)] T
- = - - - - = - = - UGREAS P [FITIE
= = = ) = - - - - - WOREMIBMpY TR XS /T8| E NI S RATIC)
ER S E )
|
= = = p = = - - - = DRI SRIRRA-ION, SORSIEE I AR
Srandzg QAPES BWO|
= T T B 0 O T - = - S el ] Hwg Heg
- - - - - - - - - - TECNERUO JIPI9eA]  Pniwasy - nop pue Suint | Iang
] BEL L95 TEE81E ETVLE LSFEEy HE565C T L9E [T TETIE 106 08¢ SUEHEISH SPIEA wEg
E85°EL €035 LD 10555 [ 1Z1'75 SRE'2 6E8'SY ECTER 080 SHUTEREE HPUEA] SEESR
[ T 66 4508y 9THEr Le56E 1L0°9E LO8TE L986T 99ELT FoumUFLLN UK, 1ON] SOURRRIEIN 9038 SN
o o ] = o - li|||d| j
EEEL LTS SETES L6525 L5LF SEI'SH [ sy 96E 2% $054C SACRRIS00) S [PHEA| SN
ik 8167 LY BR90Y DL LE SLTEE ¥TGOE T £C852 SEFET T ) Syl
1551 05102 Tt3 81 [T &9l SIES1 ] 1TE] GRS Tl FI351] SFLS U SPILIA] IR S TAE
HEEST ORLET [ SH66L o't 1L 99561 L8+ THEEY 5661 SUCHERAY IPIGAA TGS RIT] SUOHEIIA)
[IPOYE o3|
gre'gl $62 9L LA 15951 €51 £65°C1 JSLv1 oTvE SELF1 LB6°EL SudmeRd) SPIIA | SRR - VAN PUT SUIIELL S333UQ
[ TOL'TEL 63 20L 120°3LY AT OLTEES 50805 L1985 DEOTIS 6L TES SUGHEISEE SRmTA ]
659291 176'458 ol o5R'REI [ TIE0HE HETEL 5Tl FOPBEL TRl STUETSILF N TIR3A oA
THLTY G 015 HEE6E [ 18355 $ETES €LTTY GET 15 [ SHIEUTIEL JPPA-TON SIYTUSIURLY SOi5 SRR
£50°58 OEFCE 625 1159% IGEEL BOLL 195769 [T 29559 30 ES TG00 OPIIA TESIAERS
SE 16 6L B3 0T 98 L6563 &5T18 64 8L THEGL FEEYL SEIEL SROUL UEHRIEALIpY [Tt SapRdg
[ BO0C6 1¥ET6 55768 OG'05 +IETE £5618 B 6L QSTEL [T 74 SOURUTIUR HP2A TSI EGE}Y SOUTTAIGCIN |
1097601 601901 §0E£01 08£'001 GLELE 05 6216 51068 0598 OO'ER T ol ] TSWASEUTH SHOITEIRa
PO ALY ST, POC SEETS]
ST | P | A | T | SHEEA | PR | PAUDeA | PeRd | SlwHeA | pong | iaepea | poxd | SwWened | Bexld [ QMULEA | PN | GGEEA Tasd ] ssHed | PR JVELI0T FUIARE
TETTOSs e i | SYNee O TR UL | LToU0ns O TTOU/L | Feicie vl DT0ULL, | UZ0Z0C O 6HTL |_SIZRTEBIoUyL | SILNES-LINTUL | LI0G0Ds-OL0zyt [ 91080 DHSIOUIL | SITOE/S UL POLIL SEEaT
LT3R TORE0 DAL A, BARA() S A% BORUD F T U050 £ ICeR, DORADY TATIA BERGO E.DIIEI TJEIA TR D TR0
Eruodssy PUELIM S L PUEIMOY POXLI (00 9C) SI00F InTaANY S0rEs 03 AN
07 ROIAIS J1SEH I 35U CTH 1ET 0N FHOLOVIINGD

236



AV 7 S ]

amg aumjendic YOIOVAINGD
-7
WL VA,
| - 5] . S] - s | - s | [ - s] [eeg1L < Tresie s RN fesie <] ] o osmdzg doumg)
NoB0J S[UCEEA PUS DIXIS 301 j3 3PN SIEIIUXT

ZOUHOLE 5 | f0F'656T 5 | G9C0IBE S1pICET < | QEC2CET HEA § { ceo62Ee (B ES Y S 152851 S 1 ESPEHUE < 150 Junesd o 1TIn),
0588 5 | uae s | svee HET S | ZLOL s | ger s | e0oe (X s [Zors < {8k S 1303 TEIRIA G Amox e
0697181 859ILT OPELT | 090 T¥5'| 1£0°65¢1 ZIZ56E T SETOTE | LECROT 1 Be0°952 | €65 /4T 105 SAELE el
ZLE68T 1 SETEETT OEE 18I LETTEY 859'980°41 29| 4O Ee0"L 150'255 IET'EE6 630'268 2503 FATL] 1104

SEETIL | #0796 I ST 91L'I0L ] L5908 5996 £E£°28 148118 02’8 ShL'IS SeLbL [ 120' 12 TR 86L°0L GETBL [0s'2y 1065L 299 D e i goig

- LIE°6T - G597 ST - 5161 - £5L°9T - $9T9T - LEZST - 68LFT - SRLEL - 0GE £2 - STFIT TOHENSHENIpY [E3020) i aa®)
PUAIAAQ POY 201

i 651 6l 161 281 ¥8I 081 L1 £ [ TOFENSINTLRY [EAD) S3UIIY

- - - - - = - - - - TUORTHSATADY BP0 PUOE SoURELiG mg

96T9S EES 120°ES 1S LI6'6F TR 2014 SEL'SH S0 LIrer SUGHERAQ SPIRA DO SO,

+LECE £BPTEL 565621 068 5El SErl [ T Zes11 PG 1T FESI SUCHESAD TiSHRA | (PIEanpap PR A SEREA

SOTEL 246'C] £69'CL +T1 BOT'T1 196'ET G LE Il 12271 a1 G APMRAL (7 prj2u]) Aipqey 1o
JOHIXT 220ZINSN]

|

- - ~ - - - - - - - [ UCHRISAAURY [e1a0 (TURIpY {3 1)) S5ty

- - - p - - - - - - MUY IPIYZA| ED0FUT|[IVS PN PUTRIAETY

6LE'E BL'S 6 056 5175 260’6 108's L85 L1588 [ SERENALI Uy [PrIUaG) suagiy

FIT'E [T LICE 11EE MEE X DEIE B0E [T oz | CEREQSUIIEpY (21320 Subl|EShmUIioYy

237



auoqdIpL ATE aanjeudts YOLIVIINOD
L9867 LET-E7E FITiE]L §§M\
2
[ I I ] i I I | { ]
SR149°852 S | 8B'519°5PT 5 | 89°961°FET S| SULBLTRT S | bSTIS9'EIE $ | €06 E0T S | BELET'PS] § | 9173857981 S | LU8BL8LI S | ZTTssF'oLl s T JUIWIASY AYIUOTY [BIOL
I
523 £ [EAE s LEBF § e 5 Eiad 5 ¥ S g % S ST S SFPE S o) e 24 IR PIqEUeA
8k¥L01 § DLEEOL £FF26 S IsHs § 95506 § 12698 % LI5E8 § w908 § 939°LL S EA ST AR pavL
PigeLs | parl SIFEHETA Xty aQepes | PR ajqerEA | Py IR A P SAEREA P algeseh, | PRRIY agEREA | PGS SAFHTA | Pasd AqEVTA PAXL] enLI0 ] eI dxg|
+TOTAER OF ETOT/L EI0LOEN & TOLL/L TEOTH0E9 O TZOLLAL TEOTOED 01 DTOELSL QTNTIGES OF GALOTL/L SL0TMET REOTIL SIOTO/GLIOTITIL LTOTREF-ILITLL SL0ZOEDSIOUTIL SIDTOEAFIOTIIL L ]
Lieax Bondo g 1c3x usndp) S e usnusg RG] caeax mondy T 160 HOIFE0y 1 AR NI EATIN P Y deax dGex JoEIa0
(seuodsoy] PUbWRG SHCT PUE 0IMO0Y PoX GO09E) SINOH INUIAIY SOTIE N dn

TEOLIVELNGD

UOREITI0y Majaag JEuel], SRIdxy [RuoiEN

238



nalional express

July 22,2014

Mr. lohn Andch
Transit Director

Yuma County Intergovernmental Public Transportation Authority
2715 East 14" Street
Yuma, AZ 85365

Re: Proposal for Transit Operations and Maintenance

Dear Mr. Andoh:

This correspondence serves to rescind National Express Transit Services Corporation’s letter to you {dated
March 24, 2014} withdrawing our Best And Final Offer (BAFO) to provide YCIPTA's transit operations and

maintenance. Our Revised Proposal, submitted July 21, 2014, supersedes in its entirety our previously
submitted BAFO.

National Express Transit Services Corporation is fooking forward to working alongside YCIPTA and the YCIPTA
Board for this next phase in the evolution of the YCAT system. If you should have any additional questions,
please feel free to contact Mr. Reno Navarette, our Director of Business Development, either by phone at
(323) 314-8778 or by email at reno.navarette@nationalexpresscorp.com.

Sincerely,

National Express Transit Services Corporation

Veer

Peter l. Settle
Chief Executive Officer

National Express Transit Services Corporation
8041 Hosbrook Road, Sulte 330, Cincinnati, OH 45235
(513)322-6200

239



8cl-li

"sidisoal Yueq Jo/PUE JEIS
V.1dIOA Ag suonearesqop

‘snuanl
xogale} Jo AleAooal o} ucnippe
u juslBsiby Jad pajisodsp
Buieg jou sidisoal xogsale)

10 30uUaLIN00 Aue 1oL DOZS

"SUON

"Allep JUNoooE Y1dIDA
o} usodap pue ‘sydigoal

UN0o ‘AllED SSI0IYaA BNUAASI
wol} sidieoal xoqaae! (e
aAcBl [[BUS HOLOVHINQOD

[BAOLUSY XOgaled

‘Hodal
swabeurw Ayuows

SHOLIVHINOD
ay; ui patuasald

pue HOLIVHINOD

ay; Aq pepdwoo sopsnels
inoy spiysa iad sdijy
Jebuassed BOuO IVDA

BUON

"YIUOLU YoBR 1oy S|21UaA
reroy Jed siebuossed

C'Z SP220Xa JNoyY 3|2IUsA
lod sduy soBusssed syt It
HOLOVHINGD 0} pajuelb
2q |[eys §0GE io snuoq v

-Inoy spiysa
Jad sisbusssed ¢z spoaoxa
Jo syesu (pousad YiuoLl
-saly] e Jaao pebelsag) Jnoy
8otuaA Jod sduy 1abusssed

BSUQ LV3A
‘AIalonpold Jabusssed

WIRISAS

[BALLIE SWI-Ea) JiUCII38
Sdo ‘sbBuipiooal

BlaWEd AUnoas

snq ‘Yels vY1dioA

Ag suoneassgo wopuey

Bl ainpedsp

panpayos sy a1ojaq juiod awin
pa[nNpayos Y1diOA & sHedap
2OIAISS SNUDASI Ul SN B UsUm
apioul 1od gOLE passesse

24 [leys JOLIOVHINOD

"BUON

“awi} sunpedsp
pa|npayos sy o3 Joud jutod
aun Aue pedsp [jeys sng oN

sInoi-paxid - 2\NPayss
10 peslyy Buneredp

‘sdmyord

sw-uo jo abfejuaniad

ay] uielqo o) pafieloae

aq [ pouad Luow
221U} Uoea JO synsal sl
‘sisAjeue sousuLouad
aun-uo dn-aid Jot sAep
Bunesado (z 1) salemy
108]8s AjWIOpUE! |lBys
HEIS Y1dIDA UluoLw yoeg

Jsenuewl sabusssed

8y} Uo paiioads al

2] Joye sa)nUIW G| 0] alojaq
salnuiw 5| jo abuel B uiyum
aie polad YJUoLL SAIINISSUOD
2914} Juadal 1sow auyl Buunp
sdnyaid panpayss o %06
UeLy ss3f 4 HOLOVHINOD
ay} Aq pred aq ||eys

005$ o sabewep pajepinbi

1S2lIUBWL
JebBusssed au U0 payioads
auI |y} JSYe SaINuiLL

G Ol 810J5q SSINLHLW

Gl Jo sbuels B uiylim sie
pouad LUoW! SANI3SUOD
981U} JUS08l JS0W By
Buunp sdmyoid psinpayos
40 %66 I HOLDOVHINOD
oy} o} Ajyauouws pred

aq [[BYS 00G$ 40 snuoq v

Jsanuety Jabusssed

8y} uo palyoads awpn

U] J2le SaInuIl G| o} a10jaq
sojnuiw G| Jo sBusl B uiyum
Bulmnmaao dmyold uoRulep
BWHFUD VL1dIDA ©F uepoduwl
aie sdmyord JaBuassed
asuodsal pueLwsp swi-uo

IEQUQ 1¥DA
‘'sainuedag awi-up

Burioyuop

sabeweq pejepinbr

aAfua3L]

pJepuejs

sobewe(q pajepinbi] ¥ soAlJUSOU]

3 xjpuaddy

AINSEIN SDUBWLIOLSH

240



6C -1l

‘sjuie|dwos

Jawloisno ‘spodas ‘wsisAs
[BALLIE @Uig-{es) DIUoIo98
5do ‘'sbuipiooal eiawed

Ajunoas snq "gels V.1dIDA
AQ suonEAIRSqO Wopuey

‘passiw s dig 1ol
-paxit a|npayos Aue § 00°05¢$

"SUON

PlostTTgRii=i:=1gg

el wou uopdexs uspum e
paaieoal sey YOLOVHINOD
al} $59UN ‘aping

SJSpid LVOA Ul Ul psulsp
se gjerado pjhoys saoinles
VLdIDA PR[RP3YDS ¥

di passiy Jo sys|dwoou|

-gouetliopa